### SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY LONG RANGE TRANSIT PLAN Interim Draft Report



### PARSONS

In Association with Hexagon Transportation Consultants, Inc. Patti Post & Associates M.I.G. Gomez Research

### October 2009



San Bernardino Associated Governments



San Bernardino Associated Governments

San Bernardino County Long Range Transit Plan

Interim Draft Report October 2009

### Submitted to:

SANBAG 1170 West 3rd Street, 2nd Floor San Bernardino, California 92410

### Submitted by:

### **Parsons Transportation Group**

In Association With Hexagon Transportation Consultants, Inc. Patti Post & Associates M.I.G. Applied Management & Planning Group (Now Gomez Research)





### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

EXECUTIVE SU	JMMARY	1
CHAPTER 1	INTRODUCTION	9
1.1	County Setting	9
1.2	Challenges	0
1.3	Legislative Framework1	2
1.4	Planning Framework1	3
CHAPTER 2	EXISTING CONDITIONS1	7
2.1	Existing Transit Conditions1	7
2.2	Existing Land Use Plans and Policies2	2
2.3	Existing Demographic and Ridership Profile3	0
CHAPTER 3	THE TRANSPORTATION LAND USE CONNECTION4	1
3.1	Introduction4	1
3.2	Transit Oriented Development4	1
3.3	Regional Examples of TOD's4	3
3.4	Strategies for TOD Implementation & Example Policies4	5
CHAPTER 4	TRAVEL DEMAND FORECASTING AND FUTURE CONDITIONS	1
4.1	Travel Demand Forecasting Methodology6	1
4.2	Travel Demand Model Validation6	7
4.3	Year 2035 Population and Employment Forecasts	;9
CHAPTER 5	DEVELOPMENT OF ALTERNATIVES	5
5.1	Regional Plans7	'5
5.2	2035 Baseline Alternative	4
5.3	2035 Plan Alternative	7
5.4	2035 Vision Alternative9	13
5.5	2035 Sustainable Land Use Alternative	0
CHAPTER 6	EVALUATION OF ALTERNATIVES	3
6.1	Evaluation Methodology10	13
6.2	Model Results for Transit Alternatives10	13
6.3	Comparison of Alternatives11	2
CHAPTER 7	VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT ALTERNATIVES	1
7.1	Victor Valley Transit Authority12	1
7.2	Existing Activity Centers	3
7.3	Existing Demographics12	3
7.4	Planned Development Projects12	6
7.5	Travel Demand Forecasting and Future Conditions	6
7.6	Development of Transit Alternatives12	7
7.7	Evaluation of Alternatives	:5

### SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY LONG RANGE TRANSIT PLAN

CHAPTER 8	RURAL TRANSIT AGENCIES	143
8.1	Future Conditions	143
8.2	Future Service	144
CHAPTER 9	PUBLIC OUTREACH	145
9.1	Public Workshops	145
9.2	City and Agency Outreach	146
9.3	Final Public Meeting(s)	146
CHAPTER 10	FINANCIAL PLAN	149
10.1	Funding Sources and Amounts	149
10.2	Possible Innovative Financial Strategies	150
10.3	Revenue from Development and Transit Oriented Development (TC	D) 156
10.4	Financial Projections	162
<b>CHAPTER 11</b>	RECOMMENDED LONG RANGE TRANSIT PLAN	165
11.1	San Bernardino Valley alternatives	165
11.2	San Bernardino Valley Recommended LRTP	166
11.3	Victor Valley	168
11.4	Rural Transit Operators	

### **Appendices**

Appendix A – Existing Plans and Policies	171
Appendix B – Transit Riders Survey	187
Appendix C – Financial Projections	189

### LIST OF TABLES

Table ES-1	L: Recommended LRTP for San Bernardino Valley	8
Table 2-1:	Existing Transcenters	. 21
Table 2-2:	Summarized Results of Land Use Survey	. 23
Table 2-3:	Year 2006 Population and Employment Data - San Bernardino Valley Cities	. 33
Table 2-4:	Survey Results	. 34
Table 3-1:	Examples of TOD Densities	. 55
Table 3-2:	ULI's Minimum Densities for Supporting Transit	. 56
Table 3-3:	TOD Principles and Benefits	. 58
Table 3-4:	MTC's Housing Threshold by transit Mode	. 59
Table 3-5:	Performance of TOD's in other regions	59
Table 4-1:	Transportation Analysis Zones in SCAG Counties	62
Table 4-2:	Trip Purposes from Trip Generation and Trip Distribution Models	66
Table 4-3:	Omnitrans Ridership Validation by Route	70
Table 4-4:	Omnitrans Ridership by Trip Purpose	70

### Governments SANBAG Working Together

Table 4-5: Year 2035 Population and Employment Growth Data - San Bernardino Valley Cities	71
Table 5-1: Mass Transit Service Assumptions for LRTP Alternatives	80
Table 5-2: San Bernardino Valley Mass Transit Service Assumptions for the baseline Alternative	85
Table 5-3: San Bernardino Valley Route Service Frequencies in the Plan Alternative	92
Table 5-4: San Bernardino Valley Route Service Frequencies in 2035 Vision Alternative	94
Table 6-1: Year 2035 Base Alternative Transit Ridership Forecast	104
Table 6-2: Year 2035 Base Alternative Omnitrans Performance Measures	105
Table 6-3: Year 2035 Plan Alternative Transit Ridership Forecast	106
Table 6-4: Year 2035 Plan Alternative Omnitrans Performance Measures	107
Table 6-5: Year 2035 Vision Alternative Transit Ridership Forecast	108
Table 6-6: Year 2035 Vision Alternative Omnitrans Performance Measures	109
Table 6-7: Year 2035 Sustainable Land Use Alternative Transit Ridership Forecast	110
Table 6-8: Year 2035 Sustainable Land Use Alternative Omnitrans Performance Measures	111
Table 6-9: Comparison of Alternatives for Omnitrans Performance Measures	113
Table 6-10: Fleet Expansion Plans for Alternatives	113
Table 6-11: Omnitrans Fleet Replacement and Expansion Capital Costs for Alternatives	114
Table 6-12: Capital Costs for BRT Corridors in Vision Alternative	115
Table 6-13: Total Capital Costs for Alternatives	116
Table 6-14: Gross Operating and Maintenance Costs for Base Alternative	118
Table 6-15: Gross Operating and Maintenance Costs for Plan Alternative	118
Table 6-16: Gross Operating and Maintenance Costs for Vision Alternative	119
Table 6-17: Net Operating and Maintenance Costs for Alternatives (SANBAG Costs in \$M 2009)	119
Table 6-18: Total Operating and Maintenance Costs for Alternatives	120
Table 7-1: Existing VVTA Transit Routes	122
Table 7-2: VVTA Transit Route Service Areas	122
Table 7-3: Victor Valley Population and Employment	123
Table 7.4: Victor Valley Population and Employment Growth Forecasts	127
Table 7-5: Year 2035 Base Alternative – Weekday VVTA Transit Service	130
Table 7-6: Year 2035 Plan Alternative – Weekday VVTA Transit Service	133
Table 7-7: Year 2035 Vision Alternative – Weekday VVTA Transit Service	135
Table 7-8: Year 2035 Base Alternative – VVTA Performance Measures	136
Table 7-9:         VVTA Operating and Maintenance Cost – Base Alternative	137
Table 7-10:         VVTA Fleet Requirement and Capital Cost – Base Alternative	137
Table 7-11: Year 2035 Plan Alternative – VVTA Performance Measures	138
Table 7-12:         VVTA Operating and Maintenance Cost –Plan Alternative	139
Table 7-13:         VVTA Fleet Requirement and Capital Cost – Plan Alternative	139
Table 7-14: Year 2035 Vision Alternative – VVTA Performance Measures	140
Table 7-15:         VVTA Operating and Maintenance Cost – Vision Alternative	140
Table 7-16:         VVTA Fleet Requirement and Capital Cost – Vision Alternative	141
Table 8-1: Population and Employment Growth	143
Table 8-2: Fleet Size, Average Age and Replacement Cost	144
Table 8-3: Gross Operating Costs	144
Table 8-4: Net Operating Costs	144

Table 10-1:	Measure I Funding Estimates	152
Table 10-2:	Funding Projections	163
Table 11-1:	SB Valley Alternatives Comparison	166
Table 11-2:	SB Valley Alternatives and Financial Projections	166
Table 11-3:	BRT Corridors	167
Table 11-4:	Recommended LRTP	168
Table 11-5:	Victor Valley Alternatives Comparison	168
Table 11-6:	Victor Valley Alternatives Costs and Financial Projections	169
Table 11-7:	Rural Transit Operators	170



### LIST OF FIGURES

Figure ES-1: Baseline Transit Alternative	3
Figure ES-2: Plan Transit Alternative	4
Figure ES-3: Vision Transit Alternative	5
Figure ES-4: Sustainable Land Use Transit Alternative	7
Figure 1-1: San Bernardino County and Surrounding Areas	10
Figure 2-1: Existing Omnitrans Routes	18
Figure 2-2: Existing Access Fare Zones	20
Figure 2-3: Existing Regional Land Use	24
Figure 2-4: Existing Regional General Plan Land Use	25
Figure 2-5: Key Activity Centers	26
Figure 2-6: Existing Employment Density	31
Figure 2-7: Existing Population Density	32
Figure 3-1: Fontana Land Use Concept	42
Figure 3-2: TOD Characteristics	43
Figure 3-3: Station Area Planning	47
Figure 4-1: VISION Employment Density Year 2035	72
Figure 4-2: VISION Population Density Year 2035	73
Figure 5-1: The Baseline Alternative	76
Figure 5-2: The Plan Alternative	77
Figure 5-3: The Vision Alternative	78
Figure 5-4: The Vision Sustainable Land Use Alternative	79
Figure 5-5: sbX Systemwide Plan	81
Figure 5-6: E Street sbX	82
Figure 5-7: Planned Omnitrans bus routes	88
Figure 5-8: Redlands Rail Alignment and Station Locations	89
Figure 5-9: Metro Gold Line Extension	91
Figure 5-10: Sustainable Population Density Year 2035	101
Figure 5-11: Sustainable Employment Density Year 2035	102
Figure 7-1: Victor Valley Existing Population Density	124
Figure 7-2: Victor Valley Existing Employment Density	125
Figure 7-3: Victor Valley Population Density Year 2035	128
Figure 7-4: Victor Valley Employment Density Year 2035	129
Figure 7-5: VVTA Baseline Alternative	131
Figure 7-6: VVTA Plan Alternative	132
Figure 7-7: VVTA Vision Alternative	134
Figure 10-1: Measure I Sub Areas	151

Draff

This page intentionally left blank.



### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

### Introduction

Southern California is one of the largest and most complex metropolitan areas in the nation, and its transportation challenges are equally large and complex. The County of San Bernardino, has the largest land area of any county in the contiguous 48 states, and has grown by more than 40% since 1990 reaching more than 2 million residents. According to the San Bernardino Associated Governments (SANBAG), the population of the county is expected to continue growing for the next 30 years and is expected to reach 3 million residents by the year 2035. This increase in population, coupled with increases in employment and the creation of new job centers, will dramatically affect the County's transportation systems. In response to these changes, local transit systems will need to expand and enhance their transit services to provide essential mobility for transit dependent populations and to relieve traffic congestion.

Population growth has pushed urbanized areas outward into the Victor Valley and the Morongo Basin. As urban expansion occurs further into the county, the sheer size of the county and low density development heavily restricts the role of transit in providing mobility to many of its citizens. As the population of the county ages and minority populations continue to grow, shifting demographics will continue to influence travel behavior and transit's ability to serve regional needs.

The Long Range Transit Plan (LRTP) addresses the county's current and future travel challenges and aims to provide a system of transit facilities and services that can increase transit's role in the future. Given the large and diverse nature of the county, the plan is split geographically into three areas: San Bernardino Valley; Victor Valley; and rural areas.

The San Bernardino Valley comprises 15 cities, plus unincorporated areas, in the southwest corner of San Bernardino County. While the land in the San Bernardino Valley covers less than 2.5 percent of the county, it houses more than 70 percent of the county's population, and these residents account for more than 90 percent of the current transit ridership in the county.

By the planning horizon year 2035, the San Bernardino Valley is expected to continue its explosive growth, with 36% more population, 42% more households, 77% more jobs, and 53% more travel trips, according to San Bernardino Associated Governments (SANBAG) estimates. Given this growth, mass transit must play a larger role in serving future travel demand to lessen the burden on the County's freeways and roads and guide responsible growth.

As future travel demand grows on the existing road network and traffic congestion increases, transit services provided by local bus routes suffer a decrease in reliability and an increase in travel times. Premium transit service can offer a solution. Many of the benefits of premium transit service can include increased reliability, competitive travel times when compared to the automobile and increased mobility and accessibility. Premium transit—such as rapid buses and rail modes—can also encourage more balanced, "transit-oriented" land use development near transit stations. Mass transit is a "green solution" because it attracts car drivers to switch to transit, thereby lessening air pollutants and energy consumption.

### **Transit Providers**

Currently, there are six local transit service providers and one regional rail network operating in San Bernardino County. The transit routes that these service providers operate cover less than ten percent of the land area of the county, but they provide transit services to more than 90 percent of the population of the county.

SCRRA - The Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) is the joint powers authority that operates the Metrolink commuter rail system. This system serves parts of Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside and Ventura Counties, along with the San Bernardino Valley portion of San Bernardino County.

Omnitrans - Omnitrans was established as a regional transit authority in 1976 through a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) that serves a 456 square mile service area in the San Bernardino Valley with a population close to 1.4 million.

- Victor Valley Transit Authority Victor Valley Transit Authority (VVTA) is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) established in 1991 and comprised of five jurisdictions; the cities of Adelanto, Hesperia, and Victorville, the town of Apple Valley, and several unincorporated areas of San Bernardino County including Phelan, Pinon Hills, Wrightwood, Lucerne Valley, Helendale, and Oro Grande. The combined population of the Victor Valley recently passed 250,000.
- Morongo Basin Transit Authority -Morongo Basin Transit Authority (MBTA) is a JPA that operates in the city of Twentynine Palms, the town of Yucca Valley and in the Morongo Basin.
- Mountain Area Regional Transit The Mountain Area Regional Transit Authority

(MARTA) is a JPA that provides coordinated transit services for all of the mountain communities including, Big Bear Valley, Running Springs, Crestline, Lake Arrowhead and Blue Jay. The agency also provides two "Off the Mountain" services, from Big Bear Valley and Lake Arrowhead to downtown San Bernardino.

- Barstow Area Transit Barstow Area Transit (BAT) provides transit service to the Barstow area, as well as the communities of Hinkley, Lenwood, Grandview, Yermo, Harvard, Daggett and Newberry Springs.
- Needles Area Transit The City of Needles administers the Needles Area Transit (NAT) service in the Needles Area.

### **Development of Alternatives**

The recommended LRTP began by developing and analyzing a wide range of alternatives designed to meet the needs of the county. Coordination with transit agencies, local governments and with extensive public outreach led to the development of four alternative scenarios for the planning horizon of 2035. They are summarized as follows:

- The Baseline Alternative shown in Figure ES-1, continues all transit services currently existing and any improvements currently funded.
- The Plan Alternative shown in Figure ES-2, an enhancement of the baseline alternative it includes restructuring the existing system of local bus routes plus all projects currently planned for development.
- The Vision Alternative shown in Figure ES-3, a premium transit scenario that includes additional BRT and Rail service as well as other potential transit services.



Draft

3



Source: Parsons, 2009.

4 PARSONS





## Figure ES-3: Vision Transit Alternative

Governments SANBAG Working Together



 The Sustainable Land Use Alternative shown in Figure ES-4, the Vision scenario with modified transit supportive land use forecasts.

These four alternatives, described in detail in Chapter 5, were evaluated in Chapter 6 to meet the County's future transit challenges and needs. The evaluation is based on the alternatives ability to serve key travel markets, the total ridership, cost effectiveness, public input and the ability to provide economic development.

Three alternatives were also prepared for the Victor Valley including the Base Alternative, the Plan Alternative, and the Vision Alternative. These alternatives are described in detail and evaluated in Chapter 7.

### **Public Outreach**

Extensive public outreach has occurred as part of the LRTP process. The first public meetings were a series of workshops held in July and August of 2006 in various locations in the San Bernardino Valley. The alternatives presented included the Baseline and Plan Alternatives and three vision alternatives that became condensed into one Vision Alternative, based on public opinion.

In May of 2009, SANBAG hosted a series of meetings to assist in the development of the Sustainable Land Use Alternative. Those in attendance included representatives of local jurisdictions that had premium transit service identified in the Vision Alternative. Additional public outreach meetings occurred in August of 2009 to receive public input on the selection of the LRTP and to receive input on the recommended LRTP. Chapter 9 provides a summary of all the public meetings.

### **Funding Projections**

Funding Projections were prepared for the LRTP and included a variety of Local and

Federal Sources. Projections for Measure I, the local half-cent sales tax was provided by SANBAG. Local transportation funds were projected by subareas for the entire county. Federal Funding projections were prepared for the 5317 New Freedom program, 5316 Job Access & Reverse Commute (JARC) program, 5311 Rural Program, 5307 Urbanized Area Formula Program and 5309 Rail modification Program. Funding Projections were not prepared for State Transit Assistance (STA) funds, as the funding source was suspended by the state. Surface Transportation Program (STP), and Congestion Management and Air Quality (CMAQ) Funding, were not included in the projections due to the nature of the funding source, and Federal 5309 New Starts/Small Starts funds were not included in the projections as they are competitive funds and are distributed on a project-by-project basis, but were included in the recommended LRTP.

### **Recommended LRTP**

For the San Bernardino Valley, the Sustainable Land Use Alternative provides the most annual boardings and serves the highest annual passenger miles. Additionally, this alternative provides the opportunity to guide development in line with the implementation of SB 375 and provide the communities of the San Bernardino Valley a vehicle to promote economic development.

SANBAG's recommended LRTP is the affordable portion of the Sustainable Land Use Alternative, and promotes partnering cities in adopting policies to support transit as recommended in Chapter 3. It is anticipated that future project development will progress only when the transportation / land use connection is appropriately addressed. The recommended LRTP includes, the Metrolink Extension to downtown San Bernardino, The Redlands Rail Commuter Rail



project, the Goldline Extension to Montclair Transit Plaza, increased service for Metrolink and Omnitrans, and four sbX corridors.

A funding deficit is shown in Table ES-1, for the life of the plan and reaches 1.1 billion dollars. This deficit does not include all available funding including STA funds, STP and CMAQ funds as well as a potential increase in Measure I funds. Chapter 10 also identifies various other financial strategies that may be considered for implementation.

For the Victor Valley, the three alternatives were evaluated based on a cost-effectiveness measure, by calculating the ratio of annual boardings over the annual cost of the system. The Vision Alternative, as the highest ranked alternative, is the Recommended LRTP for the Victor Valley. As shown in chapter 11 all three alternatives are well within the funding projections and no shortfall in funding is expected for these alternatives. It is anticipated that only a percentage of the LTF funds will be utilized by the transit network for the area, providing funding for other transportation and transit usage in the Victor Valley.

Victor Valley is a key growth area in the county and with the implementation of SB 375 it is unclear what effect the legislation will have on the development patterns of the valley. Transit's role in providing a choice in mobility to residents of the valley is expected to remain a challenge, and due to the low density nature of the Victor Valley, new services will be implemented primarily as they become feasible in the short range planning process.

The Rural Transit Agencies of San Bernardino County each operate in unique circumstances from the remainder of San Bernardino County. The LRTP analyzed a continuation of the existing level of service throughout the life of the plan, and although funding shortfalls exist, there is sufficient funding sources identified over the life of the plan to support these services.

	Total 2010-2015	Total 2016-2025	Total 2026-2035	Total 2010-2035
Omnitrans Fleet* (exclude NS)	\$51,060,000	\$143,670,000	\$174,500,000	\$369,230,000
BRT Corridor New Starts**	\$170,650,000	\$214,500,000	\$346,200,000	\$772,050,000
Omnitrans Other Costs	\$66,600,000.00	\$176,800,000	\$251,600,000	\$495,000,000
Redlands Rail	-	\$240,000,000	-	\$240,000,000
Metro Goldline to Montclair		\$50,000,000		\$50,000,000
Metrolink Extension		\$40,000,000	-	\$40,000,000
Metrolink Strategic	\$120,000,000	\$110,000,000	-	\$230,000,000
Total Capital Costs	\$408,310,000	\$974,970,000	\$813,000,000	\$2,196,280,000
Total Net Operating Costs	\$399,123,820	\$914,317,700	\$1,313,942,860	\$2,627,384,380
Projected Revenue	537,091,618	1,175,171,895	\$ 1,515,443,758	\$ 3,361,560,638
Projected 5309 Funding of	¢75,000,000	¢150,000,000	¢150,000,000	¢275,000,000
	000,000,010	\$150,000,000	\$150,000,000	\$375,000,000
Total	\$(195,342,202)	\$(564,115,805)	\$(461,499,102)	\$(1,087,103,742)

### Table ES-1: Recommended LRTP for San Bernardino Valley

\*Includes ADA Fleet

\*\*E Street without Extension

\*\*\*Redlands Rail and four sbX Corridors

Source: Hexagon, Parsons, 2009.



### **CHAPTER 1** INTRODUCTION

### 1.1 COUNTY SETTING

San Bernardino County, located in Southern California boasts a wide variety of natural settings including beautiful mountains and vast deserts as well as numerous prominent institutions, local and regional parks, cultural centers and historic landmarks.

Framed by the Counties of Los Angeles and Orange on the west, Riverside County to the south and extending to Nevada and Arizona to the east, as shown in Figure 1-1, the County is connected to Los Angeles, San Diego and Orange County by several major transportation corridors. Interstate 10 (San Bernardino Freeway) is the major east-west freeway through the highest density population centers of the San Bernardino valley, while Interstates 15 and 215 connect the valley from Riverside and San Diego to the South, and continue over the Cajon Pass to the Victor Valley and the cities of the high desert and eventually to Las Vegas. Scenic State Highway 18 enters the mountains surrounding the San Bernardino Valley and attracts tourists and residents during the weekends and holiday seasons to Lake Arrowhead, Big Bear Lake and other mountain communities and ski resorts on the famous Rim of the World Highway.

The eastern portion of the county is mostly undeveloped and contains the Mojave National Preserve, the Fort Irwin and Twentynine Palms military installations, as well as portions of Death Valley and Joshua Tree National Parks. Twentynine Palms Highway connects the City of Twentynine Palms, Town of Yucca Valley and Morongo Valley to Palm Springs in Riverside County, the nearest major metropolitan area.

### SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY

San Bernardino Valley is the most intensely developed portion of the county. Located in the southwest corner of the county, it is bounded by the San Gabriel and San Bernardino Mountains to the north and east, and the counties of Los Angeles, Orange and Riverside to the west and south.

The County is connected to other regional centers by scheduled transit and commuter rail service provided by Metrolink and (to a much lesser degree) by the Southwest Chief and Sunset Limited Services provided by Amtrak. Metrolink serves as an increasingly important commuter rail service between San Bernardino and Los Angeles, with connecting service south to Riverside and Orange County. Ontario International Airport (ONT) is located in the west valley and is the largest airport in the region with several major expansion projects recently completed. Omnitrans provides local and express bus service within the San Bernardino Valley, and five other operators serve outlying communities.

### VICTOR VALLEY

The Victor Valley area is located on the western edge of the Mojave Desert just north of the San Bernardino Mountains, roughly 45 miles north of the City of San Bernardino and 80 miles northeast of downtown Los Angeles. Major municipalities in the Victor Valley area include Victorville, Hesperia, Adelanto and Apple Valley. Known as the "high desert", the area has an elevation of about 3,000 feet above sea level.

The valley was historically known for its agricultural, industrial, and military land uses. During the last several decades, however,



Source: ESRI, Parsons, 2009

Figure 1-1: San Bernardino County and Surrounding Areas

Victor Valley has become an area of increasing development in the Southern California Basin with a population exceeding 200,000. As the area's residential population continues to grow dramatically and as the local economy develops and diversifies, it is vital that transit continues to provide a viable mobility option for residents.

The primary highway in the Victor Valley area is Interstate 15 (I-15), which bisects the area in a north-south direction, entering the Valley between the San Gabriel and San Bernardino Mountains, which divide the Victor Valley area from the Los Angeles and Riverside metropolitan areas to the southeast, and continuing north to Barstow, roughly forty miles to the northeast, and then to Las Vegas, Nevada. State Highways 18 and 395 provide additional highway access to Victor Valley, and Historic U.S. Route 66 passes through Old Town Victorville. The Victorville Amtrak station is also located in Old Town Victorville; the "Southwest Chief" Amtrak rail line stops at the Victorville station once daily in each direction.

### 1.2 CHALLENGES

### **GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT**

As a major emerging employment center, employment in the county is forecasted to grow by almost 80% by 2030. The growth in employment will bring the county closer to jobs-housing balance and will have a dramatic affect to travel behavior. San Bernardino County's freeways are already highly congested during commute hours and a substantial increase in overall traffic will affect the ability of transit to provide essential mobility and maintain good basic coverage in communities.

The cities of the High Desert have experienced rapid growth and the area now totals over 200,000 people. As the residential growth continues in the area, new economies are emerging, such as the Southern California Logistics Airport (SCLA) a major employment center.

This rapid residential growth has occurred primarily in low densities that strain local infrastructure and results in additional Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) as commutes to traditional employment areas become longer. The conversion of vacant land to urban and suburban environments at such a rapid rate challenges local and regional planners to guide development in a beneficial and meaningful way.

### SOCIAL CHALLENGES

Given the low population density of much of the county, transit's ability to offer mobility to the transit dependent and provide accessibility to key medical and social services will continue to be a major area of focus. SANBAG, in December of 2007, developed the Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan for San Bernardino County. This short-term plan identifies mobility needs for five remote areas of the County and recommended strategies and priorities to help improve access to human necessities such as, medical appointments, trips to the pharmacy, social service agency visits, and grocery store shopping for the elderly, disabled and lowincome individuals. As the transit dependent

populations grow throughout the county, the long-term ability to provide access to these services will play a larger role for transit providers.

### ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS AND BENEFITS

Good air quality is vital for the health of residents, nature and the economy. Southern California continues to have among the worst air quality in the nation, and although significant improvements have been made, the South Coast Air Basin that includes San Bernardino Valley and mountain communities, still has the highest concentrations of ozone and PM2.5 in the nation.

Since 1980, the region has accomplished significant improvements in its air quality particularly with respect to carbon monoxide (CO) and ozone. For example, the South Coast Air Basin is now a CO attainment area and in the entire Inland Empire (compromising San Bernardino and Riverside Counties), emission levels have been reduced by almost half during the last decade.

According to the 2008 SCAG Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), of all the people nationwide who are exposed to PM2.5 (particulate matter with a diameter of 2.5 micrometers or smaller) levels that exceed the national health-based standard, 52% live in Southern California. Vehicle emissions are a major source of pollution as fossil fuels continue to be the main energy source for vehicles.

In addition to the challenges presented by air quality, transportation represents 38% of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Climate change of which overwhelming evidence shows is occurring, poses serious risks to our economy, water supply, biodiversity and public health, and has led new efforts to reduce the amount of GHG emissions released into the atmosphere.

### **FUNDING CHALLENGES**

Transit operators face a continual challenge to grow, operate and maintain transit services. Federal, State and Local funding play a crucial role in determining what transit services can be provided.

Costs of operating transit service are expected to rise at least as fast as inflation. In the short term, funding for transit, particularly state and local funding, may not keep pace with inflation. The recession and budget concerns have led to a cutback in state funding for transit. Although a recent court decision favored the transit operators, it is unlikely to change the state funding picture anytime soon. At the local level, transit funds keyed to taxable sales have fallen during the recession, causing additional difficulties for transit operators.

The long term forecast has the economy rebounding and sales tax and other funding increasing over time. However, the small operators will be challenged to maintain their services through the life of this plan and may find it difficult to obtain the resources to expand. The larger transit operators in the county can call on a wider range of funding sources. Some of these are tied to population and will grow as the population expands.

### 1.3 LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

Mass Transit and Transit Oriented Developments are consistent with the strategies, policies and plans of many local, regional, state and national governmental agencies and national development organizations. Among these are the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), Southern California Association of Governments, the State of California, and the Urban Land Institute (ULI).

In 1994, the FTA established the Livable Communities Initiative, which aimed to strengthen the integration of transit and community planning and encourage land use policies that support the use of transit.

In 2005 the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU) was signed. SAFETEA-LU went further than the Livable Communities Initiative, granting priority for funding in its New Starts and Small Starts programs for transit projects with transitsupportive land use policies and implementation measures.

In 2002, with the passage of Assembly Bill (AB) 1493, California launched an innovative and pro-active approach to dealing with GHG emissions and climate change at the state level. AB 1493 requires the Air Resources Board (ARB) to develop and implement regulations to reduce automobile and light truck GHG emissions; these regulations will apply to automobiles and light trucks beginning with the 2009 model year.

On June 1, 2005, Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger signed Executive Order S-3-05. The goal of this Executive Order is to reduce California's GHG emissions to: 1) 2000 levels by 2010, 2) 1990 levels by 2020 and 3) 80% below the 1990 levels by the year 2050. In 2006, this goal was further reinforced with the passage of AB 32, the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006. AB 32 sets the same overall GHG emissions reduction goals while further mandating that ARB create a plan, which includes market mechanisms, and implement rules to achieve "real, quantifiable, cost-effective reductions of greenhouse gases." Executive Order S-20-06 further directs state agencies to begin implementing AB 32, including the

recommendations made by the state's Climate Action Team.

Senate Bill 375 signed by the Governor in September of 2008, a housing, land use and air quality bill helps implement AB 32's GHG reduction goals by integrating land use, regional transportation and housing planning. SB 375 requires regional transportation plans to meet the GHG reductions targets set in AB 32 by adopting a "sustainable community strategy" (SCS) or a development strategy that promotes the reduction of Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) from passenger vehicles. Transportation projects that are part of the SCS will have priority on State transportation money. Although the law focuses on regional planning efforts, it specifically states that it does not supersede city or county land use powers and local plans are not required to be consistent with the approved SCS. The SCS also allows transit priority projects and projects consistent with the SCS to be exempt or receive streamlined California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) clearance.

Two types of projects are eligible for CEQA incentives if they are consistent with the SCS: Transit Priority Projects, and residential or mixed use residential projects. Transit Priority Projects are defined as having at least 50% residential use, a density of at least 20 units per net acre and located within a half mile of a regional transit corridor. Residential or mixed use residential projects must have at least 75 percent of the total square footage for residential use.

Transit Priority Projects qualify for a CEQA exemption if they: (1) are consistent with the SCS; (2) meet eight environmental criteria, including no wetlands/riparian areas, historic resources, hazards or endangered species located on the site; and (3) meet seven land use criteria, including affordable housing or open space requirements. Transit Priority projects that do not meet the exemption requirements may still qualify for a streamlined environmental review under CEQA if certain criteria are met. The form of streamlined review includes a limited Initial Study or Environmental Impact Review (EIR).

Residential or mixed use residential projects do not need to analyze the following impacts in their CEQA documents: growth-inducing impacts; project or cumulative impacts from vehicle trips on global warming or the regional transportation network; or a reduced residential density alternative.

### 1.4 PLANNING FRAMEWORK

The LRTP was developed in conjunction with the comprehensive regional planning process that includes the following Planning Efforts:

### REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN (RTP)

The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) is a 20-year transportation blueprint adopted by SCAG that outlines a long-range strategy to meet mobility, financial, and air quality requirements. This plan shows how the region will meet federal air quality standards and other needs based on realistic estimates of transportation funding. Only programs and projects outlined in the final document are eligible for state and federal funding. The RTP establishes transportation priorities and identifies projects that support its goals.

The RTP is updated every three years. For the last update, in May 2008, SANBAG staff and all 24 cities in San Bernardino County provided extensive input to this regional plan and submitted future county transportation projects for inclusion. The RTP reflects population, housing, employment, environmental, land use forecasts, and technology changes for the Southern California region. Public transit priorities included in the public transportation system in the RTP include:

- BRT: Designed to provide fast, highquality bus service to attract choice riders and effect a mode shift to reduce congestion.
- Metrolink Commuter Rail: Provides the backbone of a mass transit regional commute service.
- Land Use Transit Coordination: The regional transit program calls for increased and better coordination between transit and land use planning.
- Transit-Oriented Development (TOD): Local and regional planning agencies are encouraged to promote TOD initiatives cooperatively along major transit corridors.
- Transit Centers: Develop a network of transit-based centers and corridors, supported by in-fill development that maximizes use of existing infrastructure, supports increased ridership, reduces air pollution, and preserves green space and undeveloped areas.

The LRTP is a strategy that reflects the goals and public transit priorities of the RTP.

### **COMPASS BLUEPRINT 2% STRATEGY**

As stated earlier, the region is expected to experience explosive growth. In 2001, SCAG began an ambitious study to examine how the region should grow. In 2004, the results indicated that if growth were concentrated in only 2% of the land area of Southern California, the region could accommodate the growth while still maintaining the single family neighborhoods that make up Southern California cities. But in that 2% area, largely in built up areas and along existing and proposed transit corridors, densities would have to increase and efforts would have to be made to integrate land uses so as to improve the jobs-housing balance.

Since 2004, SCAG has been undertaking a series of studies, entitled *The Compass Blueprint 2% Strategy*, which is a guide for how and where to implement SCAG's Growth Vision for Southern California. While recognizing valuable quality of life goals, the Compass Strategy provides a guide to local decision-makers, demonstrating how minor changes in land use and transportation decision-making can reap unexpected economic, mobility, and environmental benefits locally, sub-regionally and regionally.

The Strategy proposes increasing the region's mobility by encouraging transportation development and transit-oriented development focusing on in-fill development and redevelopment opportunities.

In 2006, as part of SCAG's *Compass Blueprint* 2% Strategy, SANBAG began to examine in more detail how anticipated growth in San Bernardino County could be accommodated as part of the SANBAG Transportation Land Use Integration Project. Released in March of 2008, the Transportation Land Use Integration Project, building on the initial SCAG efforts, identified "opportunity" areas in the San Bernardino Valley where growth would likely occur and transit ridership could support TOD's, as shown in Figure 1-2. These opportunity areas include city centers, transit hubs or Transcenters, and other high-density growth areas. The Project identified seven opportunity sites and generated preliminary recommendations to guide development, consistent with the key goals of the Compass Blueprint 2% Strategy.





## Figure 1-2: Compass Blueprint Sites

PARSONS 15



This page intentionally left blank.





### CHAPTER 2 EXISTING CONDITIONS

### 2.1 EXISTING TRANSIT CONDITIONS

### SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY

### **SCRRA**

The Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) is the joint powers authority that operates the Metrolink commuter rail system and is comprised of the following public agencies: Los Angeles County Transportation Commission, Orange County Transportation Authority, Riverside County Transportation Commission, San Bernardino Associated Governments, and the Ventura County Transportation Commission. Metrolink has the highest ridership of any commuter rail operation in California and is the fifth largest in the United States. It is also one of the youngest, having started operations in October 1992. Metrolink operates seven routes in the southern California region and operates three routes in the San Bernardino Valley. The San Bernardino Line paralleling the I-10 freeway contains the highest ridership in the Metrolink system and serves six stations in the valley. The Riverside line paralleling State Route 60 serves one station in the valley. The Inland Empire-Orange County Line originates in San Bernardino and parallels the 91 freeway.

### **Omnitrans**

Omnitrans was established as a regional transit authority in 1976 through a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) that included the cities of Chino, Colton, Fontana, Loma Linda, Montclair, Ontario, Redlands, Rialto, San Bernardino, Upland and the County of San Bernardino. The cities of Chino Hills, Grand Terrace, Highland, Rancho Cucamonga, and Yucaipa have since joined the JPA. The County and all member cities are represented on the Omnitrans Board of Directors.

Omnitrans serves a 456 square mile service area in the San Bernardino Valley with a population close to 1.4 million. The range of Omnitrans services includes:

29 fixed bus routes, including 17 routes in the East Valley (east of I-15), 11 routes in the West Valley (west of I-15), and one regional express route to the City of Riverside. These Routes are shown in Figure 2-1.

- Two OmniLink general public demandresponse services in Chino Hills and Yucaipa designed for low-density service areas.
- An ADA complementary paratransit service, Access, operated throughout the Omnitrans service area.
- OmniLink, a dial-a-ride service designed for low-density service areas.

Omnitrans' fixed route transit system provides scheduled, general public service along planned, predetermined routes in accordance with established frequencies. Those frequencies are generally based on passenger volumes: enough people have to ride each bus so that productivity and fare box recovery standards are met.

OmniLink demand responsive service is available in two areas, Chino Hills and Yucaipa. In addition to providing policy-based service coverage in low-density areas, the Chino Hills OmniLink service is designed to provide feeder service to/from Omnitrans fixed route bus service. The Yucaipa OmniLink provides service to/from neighboring Calimesa, but is not provided for trips that begin and end in Calimesa.





The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requires that fixed route transit operators provide, or ensure the provision of "Complementary" (i.e. comparable) paratransit service for those individuals who, because of their disability, cannot use the regular general public fixed route service. Access service is available through the Omnitrans service area within a 3/4 mile radius on either side of an existing Omnitrans regular bus route. Access service is contracted out to First Transit, and the three zone fare structure is shown in Figure 2-2.

### **Additional Transit Services**

Additional transit services and connections in the Valley are provided by the following transit agencies:

- Riverside Transit Agency, which operates route 204 from Riverside to Montclair with service to Ontario Mills;
- Foothill Transit, which operates local bus and the Silver Streak, a commuter express bus service from the Montclair Transcenter to Downtown Los Angeles;
- Orange County Transportation Authority, which operates route 758 from the Chino Transcenter to the Irvine Spectrum in Orange County;
- METRO, which operates route 484 from Downtown Los Angeles to the Pomona Transcenter;
- Pomona Valley Transportation Authority, which operates Access and Dial-A-Ride services throughout the Pomona Area;
- Mountain Area Regional Transit Authority, which operates the "Off the Mountain Service" route into downtown San Bernardino; and

 Greyhound, a private bus operator that provides service to the cities of Victor Valley and Barstow into downtown San Bernardino.

Table 2-1 provides service information to the existing Transcenter sites in the San Bernardino Valley Existing Transcenters.

### **Victor Valley**

Victor Valley Transit Authority (VVTA) is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) established in 1991 and comprised of five jurisdictions; the cities of Adelanto, Hesperia, and Victorville, the town of Apple Valley, and several unincorporated areas of San Bernardino County including Phelan, Pinon Hills, Wrightwood, Lucerne Valley, Helendale, and Oro Grande. The Board of Directors includes representatives from the above jurisdictions, who contract out management and operations, with operations overseen by a transportation advisory committee (TAC).

VVTA is the second largest transit operator in San Bernardino County and operates 18 local fixed routes with a mixed fleet of 38 buses. The city of Victorville is served by 12 routes, routes 21, 22, 31, 32, 41, 43, 44, 45, 51, 52, 53 and 54; the city of Hesperia with five routes, routes 44, 45, 46, 48 and 53; the city of Apple Valley with five routes, routes 23, 40, 41, 43 and 47; and Adelanto with three routes, Routes 31, 32 and 33. Buses operate from 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. on Saturday. There is no Sunday service. In addition to the 18 fixed-route schedules, VVTA operates a fleet of 27 cutaway vehicles for ADA Complementary paratransit bus services for the Victor Valley Area. Additional fixed route deviation service to Wrightwood, Pinon Hills, Phelan, Helendale, and Lucerne Valley is available.

Draft



Source: Omnitrans, 2009.

## Figure 2-2: Existing Access Fare Zones



Draff

Table 2-1:	Existing	Transcenters
------------	----------	--------------

Transit Center	Bus Bays	Services/Routes
Montclair Transcenter	14	Omnitrans: 62, 65, 66, 68
		Regional Transit Connections Available:
		Omnitrans IEC: 90
		RTA Route: 204
		Metrolink: San Bernardino Line
		Foothill Transit: 699, 187, 292, 294, 492, 480, 190, 197, 690, Silver Streak BRT
Chino Transcenter	7	Omnitrans: 62, 63, 65a, 65b, 68, OmniLink
		Regional Transit Connections Available:
		Foothill Transit: 497
		OCTA: 758
Ontario Transcenter	6	Omnitrans; 61, 62, 63, 67, 70, 75
South Fontana Transcenter	4	Omnitrans: 19, 20, 28, 29, 61, 71
Fontana Metrolink Station	9	Omnitrans: 10, 14, 15, 19, 20, 61, 66, 67, 71
Transcenter		Regional Transit Connections Available;
		Metrolink: San Bernardino Line
Redlands Mall	5	Omnitrans: 8, 9, 15, 19
		Regional Transit Connections Available:
		RTA: 36
4th Street Transit Mall (San	14	Omnitrans: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 14, 15
Bernardino)		Regional Transit Connections Available:
		MARTA: Off The Mountain Service
		Omnitrans: 215
Inland Center Mall (San	1	Omnitrans: 2
Bernardino)		Regional Transit Connections Available:
		N/A
Ontario Mills Center	4	Omnitrans: 60, 61, 70, 71, 75
		Regional Transit Connections Available:
		RTA: 204
Ontario Airport	1	Omnitrans: 61
		Regional Transit Connections Available:
		Airport Shuttle
Arrowhead Medical Center	4	Omnitrans: 1, 19, 22
Pomona Transcenter	10	Omnitrans: 61
		Regional Transit Connections Available:
		Foothill Transit: 191, 193, 195, 292, 294, 291s, 291n, 480w, 480e, 482
		LAMTA: 484
		Metrolink: San Bernardino Line

Source: Parsons, 2009.

Transit Service into San Bernardino Valley is currently provided by Greyhound Lines. SANBAG and VVTA have implemented a ticket subsidy program that provides discounted fares for trips into San Bernardino Valley and into Barstow.

### OTHER AREAS

### Morongo Valley & Joshua Tree

MBTA is a JPA that operates in the city of Twentynine Palms, the town of Yucca Valley and in the Morongo Basin. Current operations include 9 deviated fixed route services as well as a limited dial-a -ride service that provides door to door service for seniors and the disabled. Two of the fixed routes connect the Morongo Basin area with Palm Springs. Ready-Ride provides door-todoor service that is divided into zones. The zones are generally split among the communities in the service area, including Yucca Valley, Morongo Valley, Joshua Tree and Twentynine Palms.

### **Mountain Areas**

The Mountain Area Regional Transit Authority (MARTA) is a rural transit agency, organized as a JPA by the city of Big Bear Lake and San Bernardino County. The goal of the JPA is to provide coordinated transit services for all of the mountain communities including, Big Bear Valley, Running Springs, Crestline, Lake Arrowhead and Blue Jay. The agency also provides service "Off the Mountain" to the downtown San Bernardino. MARTA provides local fixed route in the Arrowhead/Crestline area and in Big Bear Valley, dial-a-ride bus services, and intercity commuter express service to downtown San Bernardino.

### Barstow

Barstow Area Transit is administered by the City of Barstow and is contracted out. The agency operates five fixed route services to the Barstow area, as well as the communities of Hinkley, Lenwood, Grandview, Yermo, Harvard, Daggett and Newberry Springs.

### Needles

The City of Needles administers the Needles Area Transit service, which is contracted out and provides deviated fixed route service. The city also provides Dial-a-Ride service for seniors and persons with disabilities, including to Bullhead City.

### 2.2 EXISTING LAND USE PLANS AND POLICIES

The San Bernardino Valley was first developed towards the end of the 19<sup>th</sup> century. The introduction of the railroads and the citrus industry in the 1870's enabled the area and the surrounding "citrus belt" to fast become a major economic area. The arrival of Route 66 in the 1920's brought in tourists and migrants and the introduction of the interstate system opened the valley up for real estate development in the 1950's. The real estate boom of the 1950's allowed for a massive suburban expansion and the growth of the employment areas of San Bernardino, Ontario and Riverside that combine to make the Inland Empire, and ultimately the eastern portion of the larger Los Angeles Metropolitan area.

The valley is governed by various small to medium sized cities and unincorporated communities. As the valley evolved from a rural to suburban environment, affordable home ownership has played a leading role in the economic growth and ultimately the land use of each of the cities. As the primarily suburban residential population grew, retail and service industries have grown too, and several major shopping centers serve the region.

Industrial land uses have historically benefited from proximity to the local



highway and rail transportation networks as well as inexpensive land prices when compared to the greater Los Angeles region. As a result there is a large warehousing and manufacturing industry in the valley that is expected to continue to play a large role in the regional and state economies.

Existing Land Use and General Plan Land Use was analyzed from the SCAG regionally adopted travel Demand Model, described in detail in Chapter 4. This Land Use data is shown in Figures 2-3 and 2-4, respectively.

Additionally, a land use survey of existing plans and policies in current General and Specific plans was prepared in May of 2009 for select cities in the valley. The survey was prepared in conjunction with the city outreach process discussed in Chapter 9 and corresponds to the development of the Vision Sustainable Land Use Alternative discussed in detail in Chapter 5. A review of the cities' general plans, many in various states of revision, was prepared to gauge the cities' current thinking on transit as preparation for engaging the cities in the LRTP planning process. The result of the survey is summarized in Table 2-2 below and is included in Appendix A.

### **KEY ACTIVITY CENTERS**

As part of the existing plans and policies survey, key activity centers in the San Bernardino valley were identified. Key activity centers are identified to analyze potential improvements in transit service. The following key activity centers have been identified in the San Bernardino valley and are presented in Figure 2-5.

### PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ÁREAS

As part of the City outreach efforts that occurred in May of 2009, the following areas have been identified to accommodate planned growth.

	Chino	Chino Hills	Colton	Fontana	Highland	Loma Linda	Montclair	Ontario	Rancho Cucamonga	Redlands	Rialto	San Bernardino	Upland
Mixed Use Designation	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х				Х				Х
Maximum Density (DU/AC)	40	35	30	40	30	20	40	25	30	27	35	36	30
Transit Supportive Policies			Х	Х		Х	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	
Parking Management Strategies	Х	Х	Х		Х	Х					Х	Х	Х
TOD Policies	Х					Х		Х	Х			Х	
Urban Design Policies	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
Growth Management	Х	Х				Х		Х					
Source: Parsons, 2009.													

|--|





Figure 2-3: Existing Regional Land Use

Source: Parsons, 2009.



# Figure 2-4: Existing Regional General Plan Land Use

Governments SANBAG Working Together

Source: Parsons, 2009.





Source: Parsons, 2009.

26 PARSONS


#### Chino

The city of Chino is developing the Ag Preserve as a TOD based development with a maximum 40 dwelling units per acre (DU/Ac) for residential land uses. This specific plan area is set to accommodate most of the growth planned in the city. A second area of growth is around the current Transcenter which is planned to develop into a civic center.

#### **Chino Hills**

The Shoppes, a Specific Plan area, has mixed uses and a hotel in the downtown and is located next to the civic center. It features over 70 retail tenants and 60,000 square feet



The Shoppes, Chino Hills

of 2nd story office space. The surrounding trade area encompasses a population of one million. The master plan for the Shoppes at Chino Hills includes a new Chino Hills Community Park and a new Chino Hills Civic Center, featuring a police department, library, city hall and five administration facilities.

#### Colton

The city is currently working on two Specific Plan areas, the West Valley Specific Plan which is the location of one of the Compass Blueprint sites and covers 285 acres, next to Arrowhead Medical Center. The second Specific Plan is for the Pellissier Ranch, an urban village near a proposed Metrolink station. The superblock area would have about 4,200 dwelling units plus office and retail at densities up to 30 DU/Ac.

The city is also looking to accommodate planned growth along Mount Vernon Street and at Colton Avenue and Valley Boulevard.

#### Fontana

Fontana is currently developing the Metrolink station and Transcenter site to include more intensive uses including affordable senior housing. Fontana is also accommodating planned growth on Foothill Boulevard and on Baseline Road.

#### Highland

The City of Highland is planning for growth in various locations throughout the city. Planned developments include:

- East Highlands Ranch Planned unit development to the east of SR-30 has been the prime shaper of the development in the city.
- Sunrise Ranch is a potential residential development that may accommodate 2,000 to 10,000 dwelling units and up to 30 DU/Ac. There is no specific plan for this area at this point.
- Many of the midblock commercial uses along Baseline, which is the principal east-west corridor through the city, have been re-designated as medium-density residential uses.
- Golden Triangle, a specific plan area formed by two creeks and Boulder Avenue is a master-planned, mixed-use development.

5th Street and Victoria Avenue are planned to be major employment centers to support the San Bernardino airport, that includes Business Parks and other industrial land uses.

#### Loma Linda

Loma Linda has recently passed a city ordinance that manages growth in the city. Planned growth areas are located next to transit stations, and for Loma Linda University housing.

#### Montclair

The existing commercial and industrial land uses north of I-10 and between Holt Boulevard and Mission Boulevard attract many people. Residential neighborhoods are predominant in the southern portion of the I-10 Freeway up to Holt Boulevard.

The North Montclair Downtown Specific Plan proposes a mixed-use, transit-oriented development between the Montclair Gold Line/Metrolink station and the Montclair Plaza. Mixed-use development is intended to create a transit village with a range of medium to high-density housing, retail, commercial, and office development.



Montclair Transcenter, Montclair

This development will reinforce the significance of the Montclair Transcenter as an Omnitrans service focal point.

#### Ontario

Major commercial developments in Eastern Ontario include:

 Ontario Mills: 8 million square feet of office, commercial, residential, and industrial uses.



Ontario Mills, Ontario

- CA Commerce center: 1420 acres of development.
- Centerlake: 1.3 million square feet of commercial and business uses.
- Village industrial park: Large-scale warehousing and distribution uses for Hyundai, Honda and Inland Container.

Unique areas that have special attention for development are:

- Citizens Bank Arena
- Grove Avenue Corridor Business Park
- Town Center Study Area
- East Holt Boulevard Study Area



Citizens Bank Arena, Ontario

#### Rancho Cucamonga

Rancho Cucamonga aims to increase mixeduse development along Foothill Boulevard and the Empire Lakes area. Additionally, the city aims to consolidate open space preserves. The following Specific Plans and Planned Communities have been approved:

 Foothill Boulevard Visual Improvement Plan: The plan proposes a series of activity centers and gateways, linked through a unifying streetscape design.



Foothill Boulevard, Rancho Cucamonga

Etiwanda Specific Plan: This rural area is located in the northeast corner of the city and the purpose of the Plan is to ensure long-term rural character.

- Etiwanda North Specific Plan: The General Plan aims to make open space a prominent feature in these 6,840 acres of land, located just above the Etiwanda Specific Plan area.
- Victoria Community Plan: With Victoria Park Lane as the central corridor, the City plans to build residential villages and related uses in the 2,150 acres of land bounded on the north by Highland Avenue, the east by Etiwanda Avenue, and the south and west by the I-15, Arrow Route, Base Line Road, Milliken, Pacific Electric Trail and Deer Creek.
- Terra Vista Community Plan: This central core area is planned for a mixed-use development along Foothill Boulevard and Haven Avenue.

#### Redlands

The Downtown Redlands Specific Plan makes specific proposals for the development of the downtown area between Redlands Boulevard and the I-10 Freeway. This includes two- and three-story mixed-use development in the Town Center District and industrial buildings in the Service Commercial District.

#### Rialto

The city of Rialto has identified Foothill Boulevard and its downtown area for potential infill development. The downtown area will bring more mixed-uses including commercial and residential development.

Vacant sites on Foothill Boulevard are being looked at for redevelopment.

#### San Bernardino

The City of San Bernardino is currently developing the downtown specific plan for revitalizing the downtown area. The plan will include mixed development as part of the revitalization and is based on the transit village concept. The city is also planning for development at the San Bernardino International Airport for industrial uses.



Looking North on E Street, Downtown San Bernardino

#### Upland

The City of Upland is reopening the Vision Plan for Foothill Boulevard. Also, there is a Downtown Specific Plan, which allows 30 or more DU/Ac. The City is especially interested in planning in the southwestern portion of the city, which has been recently annexed and is near the Montclair Transit Center.

The Downtown Specific Plan for Historic Downtown Upland is meant to guide future growth and economic development in this area of the City. It will address land use, public facilities and services, urban design, transportation, housing, and other issues of interest to the community and provide specific guidance for private property owners, businesses, and residents.

The College Park Specific Plan is a 39.7-acre mixed-use development consisting of two land use components; commercial and residential. The commercial component is approximately 8.0 acres and consists of a 40,500 square foot retail center (shops and restaurants); a 4,000 square foot service station and mini-mart. The square footages described above are considered the maximum allowed. The residential component is approximately 31.7 acres and consists of a mixture of single-family units, multi-family units, private recreation areas/ facilities for each residential use and a park.



Development on Foothill Boulevard, Upland

#### 2.3 EXISTING DEMOGRAPHIC AND RIDERSHIP PROFILE

Existing demographic data is provided in the SCAG Travel Demand Model, described in detail in Chapter 4. 2006 levels of employment and population densities were analyzed as part of the LRTP, and are shown in Figures 2-6 and 2-7, respectively.

Year 2006 population and employment data for San Bernardino Valley cities are summarized in Table 2-3.

This table shows that San Bernardino is currently the largest city in the valley, with just over 200,000 residents, followed by the cities of Ontario, Rancho Cucamonga, and Fontana.

The City of Ontario has the highest employment in the region, followed by the cities of San Bernardino and Rancho Cucamonga.



# Figure 2-6: Existing Employment Density

Source: Parsons, 2009.





#### SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY LONG RANGE TRANSIT PLAN



Draff

Source: Parsons, 2009.

Figure 2-7: Existing Population Density

City	Population	Households	Employment
Chino	78,116	18,902	12,915
Chino Hills	78,251	22,226	13,074
Colton	53,177	15,300	6,102
Fontana	165,292	41,313	47,759
Grand Terrace	12,505	4,293	8,971
Highland	52,059	14,873	45,790
Loma Linda	22,518	8,429	3,075
Montclair	36,361	9,171	16,157
Ontario	174,173	45,313	16,771
Rancho Cucamonga	167,474	50,888	15,969
Redlands	71,319	25,202	3,049
Rialto	101,037	25,665	110,886
San Bernardino	203,503	58,334	61,464
Upland	74,381	25,323	22,750
Yucaipa	50,570	17,703	3,451
Unincorporated	124,466	32,578	35,244
San Bernardino Valley Total	1,465,202	415,513	423,427

#### Table 2-3: Year 2006 Population and Employment Data - San Bernardino Valley Cities

Source: SCAG, 2009.

#### **ON-BOARD TRANSIT SURVEYS**

On Board surveys were collected for Metrolink, and prepared for transit operators in the county to identify trip needs and priorities tor transit patrons, as well as provide trip and demographic information.

In April through June, 2004, Strategic Consulting and Research (SCR) conducted an independent survey of weekday Metrolink passengers for the Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA). In 2005, Strategic Consulting and Research (SCR) conducted another independent survey of weekend Metrolink passengers for the SCRRA.

In April, 2005, AMPG surveyed fixed route and demand-response riders from the Barstow, MARTA, MBTA, and Needles transit systems.

In March and April, 2006, AMPG surveyed fixed route and demand-response riders from the Omnitrans system. This survey addressed the same demographic issues as the surveys of the other transit providers, but the survey of fixed route riders on Omnitrans was geared towards collection of origindestination data, instead of the attitudinal data collected in the surveys of the smaller systems.

In April, 2006, the Victor Valley Transit Authority (VVTA) conducted an independent survey of its passengers.

The complete results of these surveys can be found in Appendix B, Profile of Transit Riders in San Bernardino County. A summary is provided in Table 2-4.

#### SENIOR CONCENTRATIONS

The proportion of the San Bernardino Valley population age 65 and over is 7.4%. This is below the proportion of the California population age 65 and over (10.6%). The majority of the cities have elderly population proportions lower than the State average. The exceptions are Grand Terrace (10.7%), Loma Linda (15.4%), Upland (11.1%) and Yucaipa (15.5%).

			Servi	ce Provid	er			County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	VVTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	800	730	620	180		53,620
Gender									
(Sample Size)	3,915	2,570	728	263	268	212	77	8,033	
Male	50%	47%	45%	53%	59%	40%	36%	49%	49%
Female	50%	53%	55%	47%	41%	60%	64%	51%	51%
Age									
(Sample Size)	3,789	2,457	698	255	257	195	65	7,716	
12 to 15	2%	0%	8%	8%	2%	2%	0%	2%	2%
16 to 19	15%	3%	17%	13%	16%	11%	3%	11%	13%
20 to 29	28%	15%	23%	22%	27%	21%	23%	23%	26%
30 to 39	20%	22%	16%	19%	16%	21%	17%	20%	20%
40 to 49	18%	30%	18%	21%	16%	21%	20%	22%	19%
50 to 59	12%	23%	11%	8%	12%	10%	11%	15%	13%
60 or older	5%	7%	6%	10%	11%	14%	26%	7%	6%
Ethnicity <sup>1</sup>									
(Sample Size)	397	2,489	713	263	263	212	72	4,409	
African American	29%	24%	26%	5%	14%	26%	3%	23%	27%
Asian/Pacific Islander	2%	12%	3%	2%	4%	1%	0%	8%	3%
Caucasian	22%	32%	37%	61%	62%	39%	54%	36%	25%
Hispanic	43%	29%	27%	19%	14%	21%	17%	28%	39%
Other/Multiple	5%	3%	7%	13%	7%	13%	26%	5%	5%
Household Income <sup>2</sup>									
(Sample Size)	3,303	2,332	611	242	230	183	65	6,966	
Less than \$20,000	53%	11%	58%	54%	65%	86%	85%	41%	49%
\$20,000 to \$29,999	18%	8%	22%	14%	17%	4%	6%	14%	17%
\$30,000 to \$39,999	9%	9%	4%	10%	5%	4%	2%	8%	9%
\$40,000 to \$49,999	6%	8%	7%	5%	2%	2%	3%	7%	6%
\$50,000 to \$59,999	4%	10%	3%	10%	4%	2%	0%	6%	5%
\$60,000 to \$74,999	3%	14%	3%	1%	3%	0%	2%	7%	4%
\$75,000 to \$99,999	2%	17%	1%	4%	1%	0%	2%	7%	4%
\$100,000 to \$149,999	1%	16%	1%	2%	1%	1%	2%	6%	3%
\$150,000 to \$199,999	1%	4%	0%	1%	0%	1%	0%	2%	1%
\$200,000 or more	1%	3%	0%	1%	1%	1%	0%	1%	1%
Did Transit Riders Have an	Auto Availa	ble for their	Trip?						
(Sample Size)	3,906	2,531	731	270	272	217	79	8,006	
Yes	15%	75%	22%	16%	17%	6%	8%	34%	22%
No	85%	25%	78%	84%	83%	94%	92%	66%	78%
		•							

#### Table 2-4: Survey Results

Driver's License Possessed by Rider?

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Omnitrans data for this question based on 2003 Survey (other socioeconomic questions based on data collected in 2006 survey).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> VVTA shares for income groups above \$50,000 are estimated because VVTA survey used different income groups than other surveys.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Metrolink survey did not ask riders about the possession of driver's licenses.

	Service Provider						County	Total	
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	VVTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	800	730	620	180		53,620
(Sample Size)	3,781	N/A	717	271	273	221	79	5,342	
Yes	36%	N/A	39%	42%	51%	36%	35%	37%	36%
No	64%	N/A	61%	58%	49%	64%	65%		64%
Driver's License Possesse	d by Someon	ne Else in Ho	ouseholo	d?					
(Sample Size)	1,982	N/A	457	147	125	134	48	2,893	
Yes	73%	N/A	69%	65%	54%	43%	46%	69%	72%
No	27%	N/A	31%	35%	46%	57%	54%	31%	28%
Average Household Size									
(Sample Size)	3,838	N/A	N/A	254	250	191	64	4,597	
Mean	4.1	N/A	N/A	3.1	3.5	3.7	3.1	4.0	4.1
Median	4	N/A	N/A	3	3	3	3	4	4
Do You Have a Permanent	Disability? <sup>4</sup>				-				
(Sample Size)	3,831	N/A	656	266	267	214	75	5,309	
Yes	15%	N/A	22%	19%	22%	30%	37%	17%	16%
No	85%	N/A	78%	81%	78%	70%	63%	83%	84%
What Type of Disability? <sup>5</sup>									
Daily Riders	6,450	N/A	399	151	161	186	67		7,015
(Sample Size)	465	N/A	182	48	57	60	23	835	
Mobility	47%	N/A	51%	63%	60%	50%	61%	50%	51%
Hearing	16%	N/A	18%	17%	12%	7%	13%	15%	17%
Sight	11%	N/A	10%	19%	16%	20%	13%	12%	12%
Other	45%	N/A	21%	27%	35%	37%	30%	37%	45%
Frequency of Usage of Tra	nsit Riders <sup>6</sup>								
(Sample Size)	4,055	2,383	693	271	267	221	78	7,968	
5-7 days per week	62%	67%	5 <b>9</b> %	34%	35%	42%	24%	61%	62%
3-4 days per week	15%	18%	26%	32%	28%	32%	55%	19%	17%
1-2 days per week	16%	11%	10%	17%	19%	16%	12%	14%	15%
less than 1 day per week	6%	4%	5%	17%	19%	10%	9%	6%	6%
Duration of Usage of Transit	Riders								
(Sample Size)	3,962	2,614	751	272	271	223	78	8,171	
More than 2 Years	49%	53%	46%	46%	38%	41%	51%	49%	49%
1-2 Years	21%	15%	17%	22%	21%	20%	23%	19%	20%
6-12 Months	13%	13%	11%	10%	10%	10%	14%	13%	13%
Less than 6 Months	17%	19%	26%	22%	31%	29%	12%	19%	18%
Primary Trip Purpose									
(Sample Size)	4,569	2,574	757	235	212	144	53	8,544	
Work/Work Related	41%	87%	40%	34%	27%	25%	8%	54%	46%
Shopping	11%	0%	12%	14%	21%	38%	58%	9%	10%
Medical/Personal	7%	2%	18%	22%	22%	27%	23%	8%	8%
Recreation/Social	12%	5%	2%	12%	13%	1%	6%	9%	11%

Draff

Governments **SANBAG** Working Together



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> The Metrolink survey did not ask riders about their disabilities. <sup>5</sup> The Metrolink survey did not ask riders about their disabilities.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> The Metrolink and VVTA surveys used different response categories, so some responses are interpolated.

#### SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY LONG RANGE TRANSIT PLAN

	Service Provider							County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	VVTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	800	730	620	180		53,620
School	16%	4%	21%	11%	10%	3%	2%	12%	14%
Other	13%	1%	8%	7%	8%	6%	4%	8%	11%
Access Mode									
(Sample Size)	4,569	2,432	743	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	7,744	
Walk	73%	2%	69%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	51%	66%
Transfer	16%	6%	15%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	13%	15%
Drive Auto	1%	69%	7%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	23%	10%
Auto Passenger	4%	21%	7%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	10%	6%
Bicycle	2%	1%	3%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	2%	2%
Other	1%	0%	0%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	1%	1%
Egress Mode									
(Sample Size)	4,569	1,945	723	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	7,237	
Walk	72%	10%	65%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	56%	67%
Transfer	17%	51%	27%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	28%	23%
Drive Auto	0%	17%	2%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	5%	2%
Auto Passenger	3%	20%	4%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	8%	5%
Bicycle	2%	2%	3%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	2%	2%
Other	1%	1%	0%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	1%	1%

Six percent of all riders in the county are over 60 years of age. The shares of elderly riders are directly related to the urban nature of the service areas. The rapidly growing suburban areas of San Bernardino Valley and Victor Valley have relatively low shares of elderly riders. The more secluded rural areas have increasingly high shares of elderly riders, peaking at 26 percent in Needles

#### POVERTY AND VEHICLE OWNERSHIP

The proportion of households in the San Bernardino Valley living below the poverty line is 15.6%. This is higher than the proportion of California households living below the poverty line (10.6%). Cities with high concentrations of households below the poverty line include Colton (19.6%), Fontana (14.7%), Highland (21.5%), Loma Linda (15.1%), Rialto (17.4%), San Bernardino (27.6%), and the community of Muscoy (36.5%). A number of these communities also have high proportions of households without a vehicle. Almost 11% of households in Colton do not own a vehicle, while the proportions in Loma. Linda and San Bernardino are 11.2% and 10.5% respectively.

#### DEMOGRAPHICS

Two service providers serve more males than females (MARTA and MBTA) and four providers serve more females than males (Metrolink, VVTA, Barstow and Needles).

Almost two-thirds of all transit riders in San Bernardino County are between 20 and 49 years of age.

The median age for all transit riders is approximately 35 years of age. The riders of all service providers have median ages between 30 and 39 years of age except Metrolink and Needles, which have median ages between 40 and 49 years of age. Fifteen percent of all riders in the county are less than 20 years of age. VVTA and MARTA have the highest shares of young riders, with over 20 percent on each of those systems. Metrolink and Needles each have fewer than five percent shares of young riders.

Hispanics represent a plurality of transit riders in San Bernardino County, with 39 percent of total riders. However, Omnitrans is the only service provider that has more Hispanic riders than any other ethnic group.

African-Americans represent the second highest share of transit riders in the county, with 27 percent of the countywide transit ridership.

Caucasians, who account for only onequarter of the total transit riders in the county, represent either a plurality or a clear majority of riders on each of the other transit operators (besides Omnitrans).

Other/Multiple race riders account for five percent of countywide ridership, with shares of greater than ten percent observed on MARTA, Barstow, and Needles services.

Asian/Pacific Islanders account for only three percent of total ridership. The only system that carries a significant share of Asian/Pacific Islanders is Metrolink, with a 12 percent share.

#### "CHOICE" RIDERS

Transit riders who have an auto available for their trips are assumed to be "choice riders". Transit riders who do not have an auto available for their trips are assumed to be "captive riders". Overall, only 22 percent of the transit riders had an auto available in their household for their transit trip. Threequarters of Metrolink riders had an auto available for their trip. Metrolink is the only service provider with more than a 22 percent share of choice riders. Almost half of all transit riders in San Bernardino County have household incomes of less than \$20,000 per year. All service providers except Metrolink have median incomes of less than \$20,000 except Metrolink, which has a median income of over \$60,000.

Barstow and Needles had the highest shares of captive riders, both of which had more than 90 percent of their riders claiming that they did not have an auto available to make their trip.

Another measure used to differentiate between choice riders and captive riders is the possession of a driver's license. The survey of Metrolink riders did not include questions regarding the possession of driver's licenses. Table 2-4 shows that only 36 percent of the public bus riders in San Bernardino County possessed driver's licenses. MBTA is the only operator with more than half of the riders reporting that they possessed a driver's license. The table also shows that approximately 70 percent of the transit riders who do not have driver's licenses live in households where someone else does own a driver's license.

The surveys of Metrolink and VVTA riders did not include questions regarding household size. The table shows that the average household size for transit riders in San Bernardino County is approximately four persons per household. The MARTA and Needles services reported the smallest average household sizes in the county.

The survey of Metrolink riders did not include questions about disabilities. Approximately one-sixth of all transit riders in San Bernardino County have permanent disabilities. Omnitrans carries the smallest proportion of disabled passengers not including access service (15 percent), and Needles and Barstow carry the largest shares (37 and 30 percent, respectively). The most commonly stated disability for all service providers was mobility-related disability. Riders were allowed to claim more than one disability.

#### TRANSIT USAGE

Transit riders were asked how often they used the fixed-route transit services. More than sixty percent of transit riders in San Bernardino County use transit at least five days per week. The services that have the greatest percentages of "regular" passengers (those who use the service at least five days per week) are Metrolink and Omnitrans, with 67 percent and 62 percent, respectively. The services that have the highest percentages of "occasional" riders (those who use the service twice per week or less) are MARTA and MBTA, both of which have more than one-third of their ridership in that category.

Transit riders were asked how long they have used the fixed-route transit services. Almost half of fixed-route transit riders in San Bernardino County have used transit for at least two years. The services that have the greatest percentages of "long-time" passengers (those who use the service for at least two years) are Metrolink and Needles, with 53 percent and 51 percent, respectively. The services that have the highest percentages of "new " riders (those who have used the service for less than six months) are MBTA and Barstow, with 31 percent and 29 percent, respectively.

Transit riders were asked to give the primary purpose of their transit trip. The most common trip purpose for transit riders in San Bernardino County is for work or workrelated trips, with 46 percent of the total ridership. However, the seven services varied widely in the percentage of work trips on their services, from 8 percent on Needles to 87 percent on Metrolink. The second most common trip purpose was for school trips, with 14 percent of the total transit trips in the county. The percentage of riders making school trips also varied widely, from greater than twenty percent of riders on VVTA, to less than five percent of riders on Metrolink, Barstow and Needles.

Shopping trips were the most common trip purposes for Needles (58 percent) and Barstow (38 percent) transit riders.

Transit riders on three of the service providers were asked how they got from their origin site to their transit stop. The surveys of the smaller bus services (MARTA, MBTA, Barstow and Needles) did not include questions relating to access modes. Walking was the most common access mode for fixed-route transit riders in San Bernardino County, with 66 percent of the total ridership. Other common modes of access are transferring from other transit vehicles (15 percent), driving (10 percent) and getting a ride (6 percent).

The access modes for bus riders and Metrolink riders were completely different. Walking is a much more likely mode of access to transit for bus riders (approximately 70 percent) than for Metrolink riders (2 percent). Meanwhile, driving or getting a ride is a much more likely mode of access to transit for Metrolink riders (90 percent) than for bus riders (5-15 percent).

Transit riders on three of the service providers were asked how they got from their transit stop to their final destination. The surveys of the smaller bus services (MARTA, MBTA, Barstow and Needles) did not include questions relating to egress modes.

Walking was the most common egress mode for fixed-route transit riders in San Bernardino County, with 67 percent of the



total ridership. Other common modes of egress are transferring to other transit vehicles (23 percent), and getting a ride (5 percent).

The egress modes for bus riders and Metrolink riders were completely different. Walking is a much more likely mode of egress to transit for bus riders (approximately 70 percent) than for Metrolink riders (10 percent). Metrolink riders are much more likely to transfer to another transit route (51 percent vs. 17 percent for Omnitrans riders and 27 percent for VVTA riders). Driving or getting a ride is also a much more likely mode of egress from transit for Metrolink riders (37 percent) than for bus riders (3-6 percent).



This page intentionally left blank.



#### CHAPTER 3 THE TRANSPORTATION LAND USE CONNECTION

#### 3.1 INTRODUCTION

The LRTP is intimately connected with planned land use. Land use plans and policies that promote and guide increased development density along transportation corridors help to ensure the vitality of transit networks and the land-uses that encourage transit usage. Conversely, continued growth patterns of low density suburban development will result in an environment that is not conducive to the development and implementation of transit alternatives.

This synergy between land use and transportation is a goal of the "livable communities" or "smart growth" philosophies. Experience in other parts of the country has shown that concentrating development near transit stations and providing linkages to stations, often called Transit Villages or Transit-Oriented-Development (TOD), is an effective way to shift more trips to transit from automobileassociated modes of travel. This relief in traffic congestion helps to improve the overall environmental quality for both local communities and the County by protecting mature, established neighborhoods as well as environmentally sensitive areas.

The passage of SB 375 in November of 2008 affirms the connection of land use and transit. As discussed in Chapter 1, SB 375 prioritizes state transportation funds to transportation projects that promote the goals of reducing greenhouse gas emissions from passenger vehicles. TOD's are a key element of SB 375, and as part are eligible for streamlined environmental clearance.

Development of the LRTP Vision Alternatives presented in Chapter 5, occurred as part of a

collaborative planning process that worked closely with the SANBAG Transportation -Land Use Integration Project, under the Southern California Associated Governments (SCAG) Compass Blueprint 2% Strategy Program to develop integrated land use and transportation planning concepts for selected cities in the San Bernardino Valley. The SANBAG Transportation – Land Use Integration Project identified seven potential TOD opportunity sites along mass transit corridors in the valley which are illustrated in Figure 1-1. The SANBAG Transportation – Land Use Integration Project assisted local communities in developing land use concepts for these identified sites, as shown in Figure 3-1 to create catalysts for economic development, improve transit ridership, and assist SANBAG in their support for TODs.

# 3.2 TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT

TODs are a form of Smart Growth that refers to a compact, mixed-use, pedestrianoriented neighborhood surrounding or adjacent to a transit station. TODs often feature a variety of residential types (townhouses, rental units, condominiums, single-family homes) combined with retail, employment centers, public areas and other services. TODs typically have a radius of onequarter to one-half mile (which represents the average distance a pedestrian can walk within five to ten minutes) to or from a rail or bus station that is surrounded by highdensity development with lower density development gradually spreading outwards. By locating a mix of amenities and activities around transit stations, adjacent retail and residential space become more desirable



Source: Gruen Associates

Figure 4.8: Phase 2 Town Square Concept

Figure 3-1: Fontana Land Use Concept

through enhanced accessibility, and transit ridership increases as it becomes a viable and convenient mode of travel.

As shown in Figure 3-2, typical characteristics of a TOD within one-quarter to one-half mile of a station are:

- An attractively designed transit station with pedestrian amenities
- Diversity of uses such as residential, retail, office, entertainment and recreational facilities.
- Higher development intensity nearest to the transit station tapering off near the edges of TOD
- Public and civic spaces near stations
- Interconnected network of streets

- Pedestrian connections, such as continuous sidewalks and pedestrian paths to the station and throughout the development with features such as:
  - adequate sidewalk widths
  - decorative sidewalk and crosswalk treatments
  - appropriately sized street trees in tree wells at the curb
  - pedestrian-oriented signage
  - properly scaled street lighting
  - buildings and their entrances oriented toward the street
  - parking behind buildings
  - traffic calming measures in neighborhoods adjacent to the station
- Well-designed and managed parking, and a reduction in parking requirements near transit



#### **Transit Village Concept**

Development in walking distance of transit station to encourage alternatives to automobile trips, thereby reducing traffic congestion and improving air quality in the area

#### Building blocks of a Transit Village



Source: Gruen Associates, 2008.



- A bicycle network and other non-motor vehicle modes connecting the transit station with other transit stops and the surrounding area
- Special attention focused on buildings designed to enhance the pedestrian environment

#### 3.3 REGIONAL EXAMPLES OF TOD'S

The following is a brief list of TODs that have been successfully implemented in Southern California:

Village Walk, Claremont, CA – Village Walk is a transit-oriented development located within an eight-minute walk of Metrolink's Claremont Station. It is also near Claremont Village, as well as the five Claremont Colleges. Completed in 2006, Phase I and II consist of 186 condominiums, lofts, town homes and duplexes. Village Walk is the main residential component of the City of Claremont's Village Expansion plan. The plan for the area includes the transformed lemonpacking house into the new Claremont Museum of Art, live/work lofts, restaurants, and shops. On the main street of Indian Hill Boulevard and the adjacent blocks, new shops, offices, restaurants, a boutique hotel, a five-screen movie theater, and a public parking structure with retail tenants, as well as a public plaza were constructed. (Source: City of Claremont website).



http://www.condominiums.com/california/Cl aremont/images/villagewalk claremont.jpg

Mission Meridian Village, South Pasadena CA – The South Pasadena Metro Gold Line was designed to include a town square with pedestrian amenities and artwork. The Mission Meridian Village, adjacent to the Metro Gold Line in South Pasadena includes 67 condominiums, 5,000 square feet of retail space, two levels of subterranean parking containing 280 parking spaces, and a bicycle store and storage facility. It is located within two minutes of the Metro Gold Line Mission station and is designed in styles in keeping with the surrounding neighborhood. As a TOD, Mission Meridian Village has been a success. In 2006, it won both the AIA Honor Award for Multifamily Residential developments and Congress for New Urbanism Charter Award. This development and the station have stimulated other pedestrian-friendly compatible developments in the area. (Source: Gruen Associates and Moule and Polyzoides Architects).

**Del Mar Station, Pasadena CA** – Completed in 2007 in Pasadena on the Metro Gold Line, Del Mar Station is an intense, mixed-use development based on the concept of historic transit plazas of Europe. The four- to seven-story buildings, organized around a 1acre plaza and the train station, have 347 apartment units and 11,000 square feet of retail use. (Source: The New Transit Town, Best Practices in Transit-Oriented Development). The Stuart at Sierra Madre Villa Station, East Pasadena, CA – The 1999 East Pasadena Specific Plan encouraged TOD uses around the then proposed Gold Line light rail station at Sierra Madre Villa and provided development guidelines. The Stuart, located adjacent to the final stop of the Metro Gold Line on 7.5 acres of property, and completed in 2006, is the first phase of the TOD. Part of this 188-unit complex is the former Stuart Pharmaceutical plant and office building that was designed by architect Edward Durell Stone in 1958 and is listed in the U.S. National Register of Historic Places. The Stuart features a direct pathway to the Sierra Madre Gold Line station and park-and-ride, and preserves portion of the Stuart Pharmaceutical. The second phase of the project (still under review) will include an additional 322 units. (Source: Gruen Associates and Pasadena Star News).



http://bredebuts.typepad.com/photos/uncat egorized/2008/06/17/barbara\_2.jpg

Wilshire-Vermont Station Mixed-Use Project, Los Angeles, CA – Recently completed, the Wilshire-Vermont Station of the Metro Red Line includes a central courtyard (the entrance to the station is within the courtyard), approximately 400 rental units, 26,000 square feet of ground level retail, and 700 underground parking spaces. The Wilshire-Vermont Station was partially financed with Community



Redevelopment Agency (CRA) funds, and 20 percent of the rentals are affordable. A new middle school and childcare center are also located on this block. (Source: Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority).



http://www.jamessuhrandassociates.com/W V-crp04.jpg

#### Hollywood & Vine, Hollywood, CA -

Currently under construction and scheduled to be completed in 2009, this project is adjacent to the Hollywood/Vine Metro Red Line station. The project being developed jointly between Legacy Partners, Gatehouse Capital Corporation, and the Los Angeles Community Redevelopment Agency, will include a 12-story, 300-room Hotel, 61,500 square feet of retail and restaurant space, 150 for-sale condominiums, and 375 rental units, of which 20 percent will be affordable units on a 4.6 acre parcel. It is currently under consideration for certification by the U.S. Green Building Council as an environmentally, friendly development. (Source: Los Angeles Times).



http://mayor.lacity.org/labt/media/Hollywoo d Vine Project.jpg

**Downtown Brea, CA** – With the decline of old Downtown Brea, the City of Brea hosted a design charrette in 1989 to bring new life into downtown. What resulted from the charrette was a new downtown mixed-use district, which required the City acquisition of land. Built from scratch, the pedestrian friendly 60 acre entertainment/retail district consists of movie theaters, restaurants, and retail as well as a mixture of housing options with live/work apartments and townhomes. (Source: www.epa.gov)

#### 3.4 STRATEGIES FOR TOD IMPLEMENTATION & EXAMPLE POLICIES

In developing the LRTP, SANBAG builds upon the unique assets of the individual communities that guide county-wide decision making. Successful TODs require a mix of supportive public policies. The local communities that benefit from transit must enhance their roles by developing and implementing policies that encourage higher density mixed use residential and commercial developments within walking distance of the transit nodes within their community. Implementation of TOD supportive policies entails collaboration and coordination between public and private entities. Therefore, considerations of incentive mechanisms aimed at both local

communities and developers will further help to achieve the goals of TOD.

SANBAG has identified strategies for TOD implementation, as well as examples of how effective TOD policies and strategies have been implemented in other cities. Local communities can use these examples to develop a policy framework that strengthens the relationship between land use and transportation in their city, and throughout the San Bernardino Valley.

#### UPDATE GENERAL PLANS/PREPARE SPECIFIC PLANS

Plan plans visio frequ vario calle comp

California State Law requires cities and counties to adopt a comprehensive General Plan to guide its future development. General plans indicate the goals, priorities and future visions at a citywide level. Larger cities also frequently develop policy documents for the various geographic communities within it, called Specific Plans. Specific Plans are comprised of the land use elements of the General Plan, and provide more site-specific policy recommendations and detailed land use designations consistent with the goals and policies of the General Plan.

SANBAG encourages all local jurisdictions to update their general plans and prepare specific plans, if appropriate, for the corridors identified as TOD opportunity sites in order to designate the entitlements and incentives that support TOD.

There are many effective planning and regulatory mechanisms that communities can pursue to achieve successful TOD. Updates to general plans and the development of specific plans should include policies and strategies related to station area planning, urban design, parking management, zoning, and affordable housing. Below are just a few strategies and policy examples implemented by other cities.

#### **Station Area Planning**

SANBAG, in its participation with SCAG Compass Blueprint 2% Strategy Program and the Redlands Passenger Rail project, has taken the lead in developing Station Area Plans. SANBAG encourages local communities to review and streamline their project approval process to encourage development under the applicable Station Area Plan. Methods that have been used to streamline the Project Approvals process include the development of Memorandums of Understanding (MOU's) and Intergovernmental Agreements (IGA's).

Station Area Plans, as shown in Figure 3-3, are developed for both existing stations and future transit facilities. They allow communities to achieve the goals and visions outlined in their General Plans and Specific Plans by addressing elements that are unique to their station areas and surrounding neighborhoods. Station Area Plans establish development guidelines for the area within a half-mile radius of a transit station, including the amount of office, retail, housing, streets, sidewalks and parking. Components of Station Area Plans include market studies, land use plans, infrastructure and utility needs, redevelopment strategies, and regulatory recommendations and incentives that encourage TOD. It is during the station area planning process that urban design policies, parking management guidelines, zoning strategies and affordable housing goals are established.





Source: Gruen Associates, 2008.

Figure 3-3: Station Area Planning

#### **Examples of Station Area Planning**

Successful Station Area Planning processes involve a variety of planning efforts<sup>7</sup>:

#### **Building Community Support**

In an effort to take a more proactive approach to station area planning, the City of Los Angeles is shifting its focus from planning for general station prototypes to developing neighborhood plans for each station area; this approach recognizes the value of creating specific plans for each individual station. Involving local businesses contributed to the ongoing successes at BART's Fruitvale station and along San Francisco's Third Street light rail line. When transit operators and local governments seek the neighborhood business community's participation, the potential for transitoriented development coupled with neighborhood revitalization increases.

#### Integration with Other Planning Efforts

In the San Francisco Bay Area, specific plans at the Hayward and Fruitvale BART stations have integrated new and old development, and the plans themselves have become integrated into other planning efforts. The Hayward station plan was part of the City's overall effort to revitalize its downtown. At Fruitvale,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> All examples have been taken from the document located here:

http://www.seattle.gov/transportation/SAP/Backgrou nd\_Report\_Profiles/chapter3.pdf

the station plan was integrated with the provision of vital housing and community services to local residents.

In San Jose, a solid framework comprised of the General Plan, specific plans, and Housing Initiative policies support transitoriented development. San Jose has been successful in implementing transitsupportive projects because of its policy base and the implementation of those policies.

## Expedited permit review procedures to encourage TODs around station areas

In the Bay Area, "umbrella" environmental review has shortened the review period around some BART stations for projects that conform to particular station area plans.

# Work with Redevelopment agencies to promote private development in station areas

In the City of San Francisco, MUNI staff sought to engage and cooperate with the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency in order to plan for appropriate land uses and catalyst projects. Muni's role in the process was to plan for and provide transit and enhancements, with the SFRA taking the lead on land use planning and providing other redevelopment incentives, such as land assembly. Both agencies worked cooperatively by hosting joint economic revitalization forums as part of the light rail planning process.

#### Locating public buildings at rail stations

 In Portland, Tri-Met encouraged the location of government office buildings and regional attractions at MAX stations.
 For example, the Rose Garden basketball arena and the Oregon Convention Center were both built at existing light rail stations and integrated with the transit system. In the western suburb of Hillsboro, a major justice center is located at the terminus of the Westside light rail line, and the design incorporates landscaping and wide sidewalks to facilitate access to the rail platform and make the station area more attractive for pedestrians. At the Old Town/Chinatown station in downtown Portland, the Oregon Department of Transportation relocated one of its offices to a location near the station several years ago, and the State of Oregon is constructing a new government office building.

#### **Urban Design**

Urban design plays an important role for the achievement of TODs. Urban design policies are used not only as aesthetic tools to enhance or maintain the image and identity of a city through built form, but also to direct growth and guide developments to create pedestrian and transit user friendly environments. The goal of urban design policies for TODs is to ensure a cohesive and compact urban form that is pedestrian friendly, attractive, and creates neighborhood connections to transit.

#### Examples of Urban Design Policies

The 2030 Sacramento General Plan (March, 2009) outlines policies that address both land use and urban design. Listed below are design policies from the 2030 Sacramento General Plan that relate to TODs:

LU 2.1.3 Complete and Well-structured Neighborhoods. The City shall promote the design of complete and wellstructured neighborhoods whose physical layout and land use mix promote walking to services, biking and transit use; foster community pride; enhance neighborhood identity; ensure public safety; are familyfriendly and address the needs of those of all ages and abilities.



- LU 5. Urban Centers. Urban design policies for urban centers should include:
  - Convenient and attractive pedestrian connections from adjoining neighborhoods and transit;
  - Internal streets designed to integrate and balance safe pedestrian, bicycle, and transit use with efficient vehicular traffic flow; and
  - Street design integrating safe pedestrian, bicycle, transit and vehicular use and incorporates trafficcalming features and on-street parking;
- LU 6.1.10. Corridor Transit. The City shall encourage design and development along mixed-use corridors that promotes the use of public transit and pedestrian and bicycle travel and maximizes personal safety through development features such as:
  - Safe and convenient access for pedestrians between buildings and transit stops, parking areas, and other buildings and facilities; and
  - Roads designed for automobile use, efficient transit service as well as pedestrian and bicycle travel.
- LU 7.1.4 Urban Design. The City shall require that new and renovated employment center development is designed to accommodate safe and convenient walking, biking, and transit use, and provide attractive, high-quality "campus environment," characterized by the following:
  - A highly inter-connected system of streets and walkable blocks;

- Buildings sited around common plazas, courtyards, walkways, and open spaces;
- Extensive on-site landscaping that emphasizes special, features such as entryways, and screens parking lots and service areas;
- A coordinated and well-designed signage program for tenant identification and way finding;
- Attractive streetscapes and lighting to promote pedestrian activity;
- Clearly-marked entrance drives, pedestrian routes, and building entries that minimize potential conflict between service vehicles, private automobiles, and pedestrians; and
- Facilities and services such as child care, cafes, and convenience retail that address employee needs.

#### **Parking Management Strategies**

Parking management strategies result in more efficient use of parking resources that when implemented, reduce automobile use; reduce the amount of land required for parking facilities; and increases infill affordability. Parking is an essential component to the planning process of creating TODs. Reduced parking requirements along with parking management strategies and policies must work hand-in-hand in order to make TODs successful.

Currently, most of the cities in the San Bernardino Valley have land values that support surface parking. For example, many of the cities have land use policies with high parking requirements which is a reflection of the current auto-dependant and suburban nature of development. High parking requirements have been shown to significantly increase the cost of development and lower the density which may actually decrease the value of property in some areas. Reductions in parking requirements for land uses are an important and critical ingredient of TOD.

Today, when designing mixed-use developments or transit projects, structured parking is often necessary to achieve compact development at reasonable densities and to accommodate parking requirements. Parking infrastructure contributes substantially to the cost of a project. A March 2006 *Exposition Line Infill Development Potential Analysis* by Solimar found that parking reductions play a more important role in making a project economically feasible than density bonuses.

According to Statewide Transit-Oriented Development Study, Special Report Parking and TOD: Challenges and Opportunities prepared in February 2002 for the California Department of Transportation, a TOD can potentially reduce parking per household by approximately 20% compared to non transit oriented land uses. It also states "a wide range of parking reductions (from 12% to 60%) has been found for commercial parking in TODs." However, this document also states that there is no clear conclusion and parking reductions should be considered on a caseby-case basis. As a general rule, parking requirements serving the uses of a TOD should be lower than that of conventional development. The report also states that "a reasonable supply of parking for those who need or want to drive is required to sustain development viability. Moreover, insufficient park-and-ride parking at a TOD, without compensatory park-and-ride spaces elsewhere, can reduce transit ridership by limiting the auto access ridership component."

There are many opportunities to implement parking management strategies that reduce the demand as well as the need for parking in a TOD.

- Parking Requirements: For developments constructed near planned future transit, allow an increase in density on the site without an increase in parking requirements. Although a transit system is not yet built, parking reductions should be considered due to the mix of uses near transit. This provides the option of sharing parking between daytime/nighttime and weekend/weekday demands, and better utilizes existing available parking in the immediate vicinity.
- Parking Benefit Districts: A concept advocated by UCLA Urban Planning Professor Donald Shoup, a parking benefit district is an area where metered parking revenue is earmarked directly for the community to pay for public services or improvements. An example of this in practice is Old Pasadena where 690 parking meters resulted in \$1.2 million in net revenue to fund additional public services. The application of this policy directly contributed to the successful redevelopment of Old Pasadena, making it one of the more successful shopping and entertainment areas in the Los Angeles region.
- Parking Meters: There are various parking meter strategies that have benefits for TODs. San Francisco is experimenting with meters that allow for variable pricing as well as payment options. Where meter prices can be adjusted based on demand, it becomes feasible to increase the price of a curbed space depending on how long a car is parked. For example, charging higher fees after the first hour of parking. Allowing for various payment methods is

another parking meter strategy, where the convenience of paying by credit card, debit card or cell phone may increase the chance that users will pay a higher fee for parking. Similarly, San Francisco's Translink card, a system currently being used as a universal fare card across multiple regional systems, is being tested to serve as a single card for both parking and transit fares.

#### **Examples of Parking Management** Policies

The City of San Diego General Plan (March 2008) proposes broad policies that create a platform for more detailed parking solutions to be developed in community-based specific plans. Listed below are the broad policies in the City of San Diego General Plan in which each specific plan should conform to:

- ME-G.1. Provide and manage parking so that it is reasonably available when and where it is needed.
  - Where parking deficiencies exist, prepare parking master plans to inventory existing parking (public and private), identify appropriate solutions, and plan needed improvements.
  - Implement strategies to address community parking problems using a mix of parking supply, management, and demand solutions.
  - Optimize parking prices to reflect equilibrium between supply and demand. Consider the positive and negative implications of parking pricing when developing solutions to parking problems.
- ME-G.2. Implement innovative and up-todate parking regulations that address the

vehicular and bicycle parking needs generated by development.

- Adjust parking rates for development projects to take into consideration access to existing and funded transit with a base mid-day service frequency of ten to fifteen minutes, affordable housing parking needs, shared parking opportunities for mixed-use development, provision of on-site car sharing vehicles and parking spaces and implementation of TDM plans.
- Strive to reduce the amount of land devoted to parking through measures such as parking structures, shared parking, mixed-use developments, and managed public parking (see also ME-G.3), while still providing appropriate levels of parking.
- ME-G.3. Manage parking spaces in the public rights-of-way to meet public need and improve investment of parking management revenue to benefit areas with most significant parking impacts.
  - Continue and expand the use of Community Parking Districts (CPD). The CPDs can be formed by communities to implement plans and activities designed to alleviate parking impacts specific to the community's needs. The CPDs also improve the allocation and investment of parking management revenue by providing the Community Parking Districts with a portion of the revenue generated within their boundaries for the direct benefit of the district.
  - Implement parking management tools that optimize on-street parking turnover, where appropriate.
  - Judiciously limit or prohibit on street parking where needed to improve

safety, or to implement multi-modal facilities such as bikeways, transit ways, and parkways.

- ME-G.4. Support innovative programs and strategies that help to reduce the space required for, and the demand for parking.
- ME-G.5. Implement parking strategies that are designed to help reduce the number and length of automobile trips. Reduced automobile trips would lessen traffic and air quality impacts, including greenhouse gas emissions.

#### Los Angeles County has implemented parking policies that directly correspond to surrounding transit:

Allows 40% parking reduction for new residential development, and 60% reduction for some commercial and civic activities in TOD districts established around the Metro Blue Line stations at Slauson, Florence, Firestone and Imperial.

#### City of Los Angeles

 Allows 15% parking reduction within 1,500 feet of Metro Rail Red Line.

#### Zoning

Zoning regulates land-uses, lot sizes, densities, heights, setback and parking within a zone district. Traditional zoning assigns specific areas of a community one of several zones identified in a community's zoning code and tends to focus on the segregation of land uses. Traditional zoning does not address the qualitative features of development such as building orientation, pedestrian spaces, and public realm.

Changes in zoning or the implementation of zoning strategies, particularly in the vicinity of existing and future transit stations, are essential for encouraging TODs. There are various zoning strategies that permit a mix of land-uses and dwelling types to co-exist within a zoning district. The most critical elements of zoning strategies for TODs include increased density, reduced parking requirements, mixed-uses, as well as pedestrian and bicycle access to transit. The objective of zoning for TODs is to link a variety of land uses nearby transit stations that generate transit demand, and to facilitate the design of well-connected and vibrant pedestrian environments between these land uses and transit stations.

#### **Examples of Zoning Strategies**

An Overlay Zone is a separate zoning district with regulations tailored to address a specific topic or issue within a specific area, which is overlayed over the current zoning district. An overlay zone is typically more restrictive than the underlying zoning, and in the case of a conflict with the existing code, the more restrictive requirement will apply. TOD goals can be met with this regulatory approach because overlay zones can address the specific context of an area and ensure that the land uses, densities, and site designs that support TOD principles.

- San Diego created an Urban Village Overlay Zone which has been used to create a mix of land uses. The intent of this overlay is to develop at higher densities than is currently allowed in the current zoning districts, and to provide various height and density bonuses for projects located within close proximity to an existing or planned light rail transit station.
- The City of Mountain View created a Transit Overlay Zone to help guide neighborhood development to be well integrated with a new light rail station. The City requires developers to implement higher density development

and various design features that foster a pedestrian-oriented environment, and restrict auto-oriented uses within the Transit Zone.

Where overlay zones address specific goals and issues, Plan Districts are tailored to meet the needs of a specific geographic area when other zoning mechanisms cannot accomplish the desired results. They are designed to work with the existing zoning regulations, and are used to modify zoning for areas defined in plans and studies, for example, an area identified as a future transit corridor, redevelopment site, or a TOD development site.

Oakland applied a new zoning classification that was created specifically for the BART Fruitvale Station area. The TOD District classification encourages a balance of commercial, civic, and residential uses and was used as a catalyst for community revitalization and redevelopment of a declining commercial strip.

#### Affordable Housing<sup>8</sup>

Americans spend over half of their incomes on housing and transportation. Lowerincome families spend as much as 30 percent of their total annual income on transportation costs alone which are driven by the cost of owning and operating a vehicle, and by land uses that are dispersed and difficult to access. By placing housing in proximity to public transportation, TODs provide the opportunity to lower the combined cost of housing and transportation. Affordable housing located near transit allows families and seniors to access employment, education, retail, and community opportunities, and reduce their reliance on automobiles. Not only does

reduced household spending on transportation result in more affordable housing, but the increased density required for TODs increases the opportunities to build and include affordable housing in TOD projects.

Studies show that the desire to live near transit is increasing dramatically in recent years, where by 2030; it is forecasted that 16 million households will want to live near transit<sup>9</sup>. The market demand for housing within close proximity to public transit, job markets, and amenities will cause housing prices to climb, and higher property values may make the building of affordable housing seem financially infeasible to developers. For this reason, policy tools are necessary to ensure the development, availability, and preservation of affordable housing in TOD projects.

#### Affordable Housing Development Strategies

To encourage the development and preservation of affordable housing in TODs, both financing strategies and policy incentives are beneficial:

Federal Housing Tax Credits is a major form of financing affordable housing. The federal government distributes housing tax credits to each state, and each state then allocates these credits to low-income housing developers. The State of California incorporates additional criteria to the federal requirements to evaluate potential projects. In order to encourage affordable housing close to transit, points are based on proximity to transit, frequency of transit service, and density. BART's Castro Valley

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> Center for Transit Oriented Development, "Preserving and Promoting Diverse Transit-Oriented Neighborhoods," http://www.cnt.org/repository/diverseTOD\_FullBenc

http://www.cnt.org/repository/diverseTOD\_FullRepor t.pdf, p. 2.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> TCRP report 102 TOD's in the US.

Station used federal housing tax credits to help finance the construction for the affordable housing provided for both lowincome families and seniors.

#### Affordable Housing Financing Strategies

Obtaining financing is one of the biggest challenges for low-income households to afford housing. Various financing strategies are being used to expand homeownership opportunities:

A common approach for making homeownership affordable is to offer silent second mortgage programs, which provide secondary home loans to low- or moderateincome homebuyers to supplement a primary mortgage. The loan is silent because repayment of the principal or interest doesn't occur until the home is resold or refinanced, allowing the funds to be recycled to assist other homebuyers. The recycling of public dollars allows this funding to serve more families each year.

Another approach for making homeownership affordable is to offer Location Efficient Mortgages (LEM). LEM's allow people to qualify for larger loan amounts for homes in densely populated and transit-rich communities. Those living in compact communities drive less, own fewer cars, and therefore spend less on transportation costs and have a greater expendable income. The borrowing capacity of homebuyers' increases with LEM's by allowing for a greater housing-to-income ratio. This adds buying power to the budgets of low-income families who are shopping for homes, and gives them strong incentive to purchase in neighborhoods with TODs

Inclusionary zoning is a voluntary program where cities can require developers to include a specified number of affordable housing units as part of a residential development. Inclusionary housing practices can help to reduce commutes and encourage TODs by addressing housing supply in proximity to job markets and amenities. Inclusionary zoning practices are often implemented in conjunction with incentives to offset the financial impact of producing below-market housing.

Density bonuses for projects that provide certain levels of affordable or senior housing are common and effective incentives that allow for the production of more units than typically permitted under the jurisdictions zoning. Density bonuses not only provide incentive for affordable housing, but they encourage higher density construction which is vital to reducing sprawl, encouraging transit, and promoting the development of TOD projects.

California State law requires that a city or county must grant a density bonus or other incentive when a developer sets aside a minimum of 10% of its development for lower income households. A developer is allotted a 20% density bonus, and the law allows for a 1.5% increase for every 1% above the minimum 10% set aside for lower income housing, with a maximum density bonus of 35%.

A developer is entitled to density bonuses for providing condominium units for families of moderate income as well. Moderate income families are defined as "persons and families whose income does not exceed 120 percent of area median income." A density bonus of 5% is available to developers who set aside a minimum 10% of the total dwelling units in the condominium project for moderate income families. For every percentage increase above the 10% minimum, an additional 1% density bonus will be provided, with a maximum density bonus of 35%. A developer is also entitled to a density bonus for constructing housing for senior citizens. Senior citizen housing is defined as "a residential development developed, substantially rehabilitated, or substantially renovated for, senior citizens that has at least 35 dwelling units." A density bonus of 20% is available to developers that set aside a minimum of 35 dwelling units for senior citizens.

On a local level, counties can implement other development incentives that further encourage the development of affordable housing for TOD projects. The Density Bonus program in Sonoma County, for example, provides developers of affordable housing with a density bonus as well as one other incentive such as a 20 percent reduction in the local open space requirements, reductions in parking requirements, minimum lot size and width requirements, and setback requirements.

The City of Los Angeles' has also implemented incentives in the form of reductions in the amount of parking required for affordable housing projects. Parking reductions are based on the number of affordable housing units, and also on the distance of the development from a transit station or bus route.

#### DENSITY THRESHOLDS & PASS/FAIL CRITERIA

The book, "The New Transit Town: Best Practices in Transit-Oriented Development," describes the best practices in TODs. This source states that there are no absolute densities for a TOD and some of the case studies presented have densities ranging from 10 to 100 units per acre. Table 3-1 shows the estimated densities of some of the examples of TODs discussed previously.

At densities of around six to seven households per acre transit use begins to increase and vehicle trips begin a corresponding decline. At about 50 households per acre, the number of trips taken daily by vehicles, transit, and walking become about the same. The Urban Land Institute has developed the following minimum densities for Supporting Transit, shown in Table 3-2.

#### Table 3-1: Examples of TOD Densities

Source: Gruen Associates

Table 3-2: ULI's Minimum Densities for Supporting Transit

#### **MINIMUM DENSITIES FOR SUPPORTING TRANSIT**

	Local Bus, Intermediate Service <sup>1</sup>	Local Bus, Frequent Service <sup>2</sup>	Light Rail <sup>3</sup>	Transit⁴
Dwelling units per acre	7	15	9	12
Residents per acre	18	38	23	30
Employees per acre	20	75	125+	<b>N.A.</b> ⁵

Note: The density of the employment destination is more important in influencing trips than the density of the residential area where the trips originate.

1. Average density; varies as a function of downtown size and distance to downtown.

2. Average density over a two-square-mile tributary area.

3. Average density for a corridor of 25 to 100 square miles; transit to downtowns of 20 to 30 million square feet of nonresidential space.

4. Average density for a corridor of 100 to 150 square miles; transit to downtowns of more than 50 million square feet of nonresidential space.

5. Not available.

Sources: For residential densities, Boris Pushkarev and Jeffrey Zupan, *Public Transportation and Land Use Policy* (Bloomington and London: Indiana University Press, 1977). For employment densities, Reid Ewing, "Transit Oriented Development in the Sunbelt," *Transportation Research Record* 1552 (Transportation Research Board, National Research Council, Washington, D.C., 1996). L.D. Frank and Gary Pivo, *The Relationship between Land Use and Travel Behavior in the Puget Sound Region* (Olympia: Washington State Department of Transportation, 1994).

Source: Urban Land Institute, 2003.

What is important to note is that higher densities and compact developments indirectly lead to higher transit ridership and less automobile use. In mixed use, high density developments, the origins and destinations of any given trip are physically closer. In other words, goods and services are closer together, resulting in shorter travel distances and less vehicle miles traveled (VMT). Studies have shown that employment densities at trip-destinations have a greater influence on ridership than do land-use mix and population densities at trip origins.<sup>10</sup> It is therefore critical to increase development densities and locate employment opportunities near transit in order to ensure high TOD ridership.

A person living in a mixed use, high density development would likely opt for a mode of transit other than an automobile and instead use bus, rail, bicycle, or walk. Less VMT means that there are fewer cars on the road, which reduces energy consumption, decreases air pollution, and lowers traffic congestion. A forthcoming study for Transit Cooperative Research Program *Ensuring Full Potential Ridership from Transit-Oriented Development (TCRP H-27A)* by PB Place Making, Dr Robert Cervero, The Urban Land Institute and the Center for Transit Oriented Development, shows that, on average, TOD housing produces 50% fewer automobile trips in the four urbanized areas (Philadelphia/N.E. New Jersey; Portland, Oregon; metropolitan Washington D.C.; and the East Bay of the San Francisco Bay Area).

Many cities around the United States are looking to TOD's to protect natural resources and sensitive environmental areas, including mature established neighborhoods. Growth management areas and protection zones are often considered complementary policies and often used in conjunction with TOD's to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Cervero, Robert. 2008. Effects of TOD on Housing Parking and Travel. TCRP Report 128. August 1, 2008.

strengthen the focus of growth near transit and sustainable neighborhoods.

Another benefit of increased density is the reduced costs associated with the building of infrastructure (sewer, water, highway, and utility lines). It stands to reason that if housing, jobs, and other associated activities are closer together, then fewer roads, sewers, and utility lines are needed to serve the area.

Table 3-3 illustrates TOD principles and potential benefits of TODs.

In order to best address the multiple goals of TOD, development thresholds or Pass/Fail Standards can be implemented to ensure that TOD development is successful. Corridor–level housing thresholds can be set even before Station Area Plans are developed to quantify the appropriate minimum level of development around transit stations along new corridors. Thresholds can be set by transit type, and do not need to reflect urban style-growth along the entire transit corridor, station areas deemed unsuitable for development by local communities can be accommodated at other stations. If existing development does not meet the corridor thresholds then station area plans can be developed to raise the level of development to reach the corridor threshold. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) has released an interim evaluation of their TOD policy that clearly shows that corridor thresholds can be a successful implementation tool to accommodate future growth.

Table 3-4 shows corridor housing unit thresholds averaged by station area for

project types in the MTC Jurisdiction. Table 3-5 shows performance of TOD's in other regions.

MTC notes that employment densities have the potential to be effective in developing corridor thresholds or as a mean to gain credit to meeting housing thresholds, however significant challenges exist in enacting employment thresholds including:

- Employment works best in generating transit ridership if job centers are concentrated at hubs as opposed to being spread along a corridor. Large central business districts are usually critical destinations, and corridor thresholds may encourage the dispersal of employment sites.
- Overall demand for office space varies by corridor and needs to be related to market demand.
- In outlying areas, residential achievable densities are generally much higher than achievable densities for employment.
- Cross-commuting to outlying employment areas may have a limited effect on transit ridership without strong parking management.
- Local jurisdictions already have many reasons to zone for employment, such as sales tax revenue, whereas affordable housing is usually not promoted.
- Housing units are easier to define and measure than employment uses, which rely heavily on assumptions such as the type of tenant and the number of workers expected to occupy the building.

TOD Principles	Be	enefits
<ul> <li>TODs occupy land within ¼ mile to ¼ mile</li> </ul>		Environmental
radius around a rail or bus station or within		<ul> <li>Improved air quality and energy consumption:</li> </ul>
125 to 500 acres		Decreased auto trips lead to lower emissions
<ul> <li>Typically, TOD areas are composed of three</li> </ul>		which results in improved air quality
elemente:	,	<ul> <li>Increased transit ridership and decreased</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>etation area with platforms and transition</li> </ul>		congestion: By decreasing driving TODs result
and passanger amenities		in reduced congestion
<ul> <li>core area within a five minute walk of the</li> </ul>		<ul> <li>Conservation of land and open space: TODs</li> </ul>
station or about a 1/4 mile of the station	,	are compact developments, and therefore.
and the most intense employment	'	consume less land than lower-intensity, auto-
residential and retail uses as well as	2	oriented development
convenience commercial for passengers	•	Economic
and	,	<ul> <li>Catalyst for economic development: TODs can</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>a neighboring ring within a ten-minute</li> </ul>		act as a catalyst for nearby properties to invest in
walk of station or about 1/4 to 1/2 mile of	F	their development as well
the station containing residential		<ul> <li>Redevelopment: TODs can be used to</li> </ul>
commercial and other uses.	'	redevelop vacant or underutilized properties and
A TOD must be a walkable pedestrian		declining urban neighborhoods.
oriented area with amenities such as stree		<ul> <li>Increased property value: TODs can be used to</li> </ul>
trees, benches, crosswalks, decorative		revitalize the area within ¼ mile of the station.
paving, and public art. Direct connection		<ul> <li>Decrease infrastructure costs: TODs help in the</li> </ul>
between different land uses should be		reduction of infrastructure costs due to compact
provided.		and infill development.
<ul> <li>TODs have connectivity to the regional</li> </ul>		<ul> <li>Revenue for transit systems: Increased</li> </ul>
transit system and bicycle/trail and shuttle		ridership leads to additional revenues for transit
links to the area outside the ½-mile area		systems.
<ul> <li>Plans, policies and zoning provisions relating</li> </ul>		<ul> <li>Reduced household spending: By reducing</li> </ul>
to mix of uses and building setbacks, and	í	gasoline costs, TODs contribute to a reduction
providing incentives such as densit	,	in household spending on transportation.
bonuses, floor area ratio increases, reduction	-	Social
of parking requirements, etc. play		<ul> <li>Increased housing and employment choices:</li> </ul>
significant role in facilitating a TOD.		TODs provide a diversity of housing and
		employment types within close proximity to the
		transit station.
		o Greater mobility choices: By creating activity
		nodes linked by transit, TODs increase mobility
		options in congested areas. Young people, the
		elderly, those without cars and those not
		wanting to drive also have mobility.
		<ul> <li>Health benefits: By providing more opportunities</li> </ul>

#### Table 3-3: TOD Principles and Benefits



TOD Principles	Benefits
	<ul> <li>for walking and bicycling, TODs offer health benefits.</li> <li>Enhanced sense of community: By bringing more people and businesses closer, and creating an activity hub, TODs enhance the sense of community.</li> <li>Enhanced public safety. By creating more</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>active places used throughout the day and night providing "eyes on the street", TODs help increase safety.</li> <li>Quality of life – by reducing the driving time for long automobile commutes, people can recapture this wasted time or other activities.</li> </ul>

Sources: Statewide Transit-Oriented Development Study; Gruen Associates

#### Table 3-4: MTC's Housing Threshold by transit Mode

Project Type	BART	Light Rail	Bus Rapid Transit	Commuter Rail	Ferry
Housing Threshold	3,850	3,300	2,750	2,200	750

Source: Metropolitan Transportation Commission, 2006

Table 3-5: Performance of TOD's in other regions							
System	Average Housing Units/Station	MTC's Equivalent TOD Policy Threshold	% Difference from TOD Policy Threshold				
New Jersey - Hudson Bergen light Rail	7,063	3,300	+114%				
New Jersey - Transit Villages	3,558	2,200-3,850*	+39%				
Chicago - Evanston	4,192	2,200	+91%				
Arlington County - Rosslyn Ballston Corridor	5,022	38,50	+30%				
California - Various Examples	3,113	2,200-3,850*	-4%				

\*Varies depending on station

Source: Metropolitan Transportation Commission, 2006

Pass/Fail standards can be developed as an implementation tool to determine if the existing policy framework exists to support successful TOD's. Standards can include the development of milestones that must be reached at certain points in the project approval process. Two examples of

applicable policies are: local communities must adopt transit-friendly zoning before construction can proceed; or parking and affordable-housing requirements must be developed before station area plans are approved. This page intentionally left blank.





# CHAPTER 4 TRAVEL DEMAND FORECASTING AND FUTURE CONDITIONS

#### 4.1 TRAVEL DEMAND FORECASTING METHODOLOGY

This section summarizes the methodology used and the validation of the San Bernardino Valley Focus Model (SBVFM) that was used to produce travel forecasts for the Long Range Transit Plan. This information is intended to demonstrate the model's ability to replicate existing transportation and transit ridership behavior, and the utility of the model for forecasting future ridership and comparing transit alternatives in San Bernardino County.

This document provides a summary of the development and derivation of the SBVFM from the SCAG regional model, followed by a summary of the model validation effort specifically required for the analysis of transit services in the San Bernardino Valley. The regional nature of the remainder of the model (outside of the San Bernardino Valley) also allows for future transit analysis of the remainder of San Bernardino County, to a sketch planning lower level of accuracy.

The forecasting tool employed for the Long Range Transit Plan is the San Bernardino Valley Focus Model, which is a focused model derived from the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) regional model. The SCAG model was updated in conjunction with the 2008 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), using a Year 2003 validation year. Elements of the SCAG regional mode are documented in 2003 SCAG Model Validation and Summary – Regional Transportation Model (January 2008).

The San Bernardino Valley Focus Model uses the basic structure of the SCAG model, with

the mode choice model customized for use in the San Bernardino Valley, and an increased level of definition based on the networks and zone systems found in the San Bernardino Valley.

The SBVFM employs the traditional 4-step modeling process used in the SCAG model. Special features of the SBVFM include:

- All person trips are modeled (including non-motorized)
- Auto-ownership is tied to transit accessibility
- Person trip data is split into peak and offpeak trips before application of distribution models
- Feed-back loops are used for highway and transit skims
- Log-sums are used to estimate composite impedance for application within trip distribution models for home-based work trip purpose
- Vehicle trip data is split into four time periods and converted to origindestination format using time-of-day models
- Transit trip data is assigned to peak (AM) and off-peak (midday) time periods in production-attraction format

#### ZONE SYSTEM

The SBVFM uses a zone system comprising 3,056 transportation analysis zones (TAZs) in the SCAG region. The development of the SBVFM zone system was accomplished in two steps. First, 259 TAZs in the two regional statistical areas (RSAs) that comprise the San Bernardino Valley area were split into 1,811 TAZs, using zone boundaries defined in other local models used in the San Bernardino Valley. Then, the SCAG TAZs in remote areas of Ventura, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, and Imperial Counties were aggregated to coarser levels of detail, reducing the number of zones outside of San Bernardino County by 2,605. The net result was to decrease the number of zones in the SCAG region from 4,109 to 3,056. Table 4-1 displays a comparison of the number of TAZs in each of the six SCAG counties, plus the other centroids, in the SCAG zone system and in the SBVFM zone system.

### Table 4-1: Transportation Analysis Zones inSCAG Counties

County	SCAG TAZS	SBVFM TAZs
Ventura	210	6
Los Angeles	2,243	541
Orange	666	225
Riverside	475	320
San Bernardino	701	1,954
Imperial	110	6
Total	4,109	3,056

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

DIRACT

#### Socioeconomic Data

The SBVFM uses the same socioeconomic input data used in the SCAG model, except that the data has been aggregated or split to fit into the SBVFM zone system. Key socioeconomic data used in the SBVFM include the following variables:

- Total population
- Resident population
- Workers
- Single-family households
- Multiple family households
- K-12 school enrollment
- College/university enrollment
- Retail employment
- Service employment

- Basic employment
- Median household income

#### **Trip Purposes**

Trips made for different purposes have been found to have different characteristics, such as average trip lengths and mode shares. Therefore, separate models are used to estimate the different trip purposes. The most popular trip purposes used in travel demand models are home-based work, home-based other, and non-home based.

The SBVFM uses the same 13 trip purposes that are used in the SCAG models. These include six home-based work trip purposes, five home-based other trip purposes, and two non-home based trip purposes. These trip purposes are summarized below.

- Home-based work-direct
  - Low income (<\$25,000)
  - Middle income (\$25,000 \$49,999)
  - High income (\$50,000 or more)
- Home-based work-strategic
  - Low income
  - Middle income
  - High income
- Home-based elementary & high school
- Home-based college & university
- Home-based shopping
- Home-based social-recreational
- Home-based other
- Work-based other
- Other-based other

#### **Trip Generation**

Trip generation is the process of estimating how many person trips are generated within each TAZ. The trip generation procedures used in the SBVFM are identical to the procedures used in the SCAG model. Trip generation models estimate both productions (the home end of trips) and attractions (the non-home end of trips).
Finally, the productions and attractions are "balanced" so that the regional totals match for each trip purpose.

Trip productions are estimated for each TAZ using a cross-classification procedure. First, the households in each TAZ are stratified into household categories. For example, for home-based work trips the households are stratified into a matrix of household categories based on the number of persons in the household, the number of workers in the household, and the income level of the household. The cross-classification variables for the work and non-work trip purposes are summarized below.

- Home-based work & work-based other (3-way cross classification)
  - 6 household size groups (1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6+)
  - 4 workers per household groups (0, 1, 2, 3+)
  - 3 income level groups (low, middle, high)
- Home-based non-work & other-based other (2-way cross classification)
  - 6 household size groups (1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6+)
  - 5 auto ownership level groups (0, 1, 2, 3, 4+)

After households have been stratified, trip production rates are applied to each household category, and the resulting trips are aggregated in each TAZ for use in subsequent models. Trip attractions are estimated by a set of linear equations that convert households, employees, and school enrollment to trip attractions.

### **Transportation Networks**

The SBVFM uses an integrated transportation network that includes mixed-flow and exclusive facilities for highway, truck and transit modes. The network structure is similar to the structure developed for the SCAG models, with some refinements designed to ease the analysis of trips that may be influenced by the transportation alternatives in the detailed analysis, such as a refined coding of access to transit stations.

### **Highway Networks**

The SBVFM uses separate networks for four different time periods:

- AM Peak 6 to 9 AM
- Midday 9 AM to 3 PM
- PM Peak 3 to 7 PM
- Nighttime 7 PM to 6 AM

The primary difference between the four networks is the highway capacity, which is a function of the number of hours of duration of each time period.

The links in the networks are coded with each of the modes that are available. The available highway modes include mixed flow links, shared ride HOV links (two or more persons), carpool HOV links (three or more persons), toll links, and truck links for three classes of heavy vehicles.

The highway networks are comprised of nodes and links that connect centroids that represent the 3,056 TAZs in the SCAG region. The Year 2007 highway network also includes 40 external stations that represent highway connections to areas outside of the SCAG region, 12 airports, 40 port zones, and 150 park-and-ride stations that allow the model to simulate travel between the highway network and the integrated transit network.

The highway network comprises over 100,000 directional highway links. Each link is characterized by several attributes, including seven area types, ten facility classes, number of travel lanes, the link capacity, free-flow speed, and observed speed. The latter three attributes are estimated for each link with the use of lookup tables, based on the area type, facility type, number of lanes and other link variables.

The highway network includes attributes and modes that identify toll facilities and truck facilities. Toll facilities in the region are currently restricted to Orange County. Link attributes defining truck facilities serve two purposes. First, they allow the user to restrict or prohibit the use of links by certain classes of heavy duty trucks. Second, they allow the model assignment algorithm to assign truck trips separately from other modes, which allows the user to convert truck trips to Passenger Car Equivalents (PCEs).

### **Transit Networks**

The SBVFM includes two transit networks integrated with the AM Peak period and Midday period highway networks. The AM Peak transit network is used to assign and model transit trips made in the peak periods, and the Midday transit network is used to assign and model transit trips made in the off-peak periods.

The transit networks are integrated with the highway networks so that mixed flow links can carry both highway and transit modes, and exclusive links can carry various transit modes. The transit networks also include auxiliary transit links that allow trips to access transit services and to transfer between transit routes. In all, the SBVFM transit networks include 13 transit modes and eight auxiliary transit modes.

The transit networks include transit lines that are characterized by itineraries, stop locations, and headways. The AM Peak transit network includes over 1,500 transit lines in the region, including 30 Omnitrans routes, three Metrolink routes, and two other operators serving the San Bernardino Valley.

### **Highway and Transit Skims**

One of the main objectives of the highway and transit networks is to allow an accurate and comparative representation of the travel times and costs between centroids by various modes of travel. The travel times and costs estimated by the model are commonly referred to as skims. The highway and transit skims are used as input to both the trip distribution and mode choice models.

Highway skims for both the peak and offpeak time periods are based on the travel time on the shortest time paths. The highway operating speeds are estimated using equilibrium assignment algorithms that adjust the operating speeds on the links as a function of the demand-capacity ratio for the link. In model application, the highway skims are based on feedback speeds resulting from three iterations of the four-step modeling procedure. The in-vehicle highway travel times are augmented with terminal times associated with the locations of the trip ends. The SBVFM calculates separate highway skims for both HOV trips and drive alone trips (which are restricted from using HOV links).

Transit skims comprise a combination of variables that have been found to affect both the choice of the transit mode and the path choice for transit options. The variables include the in-vehicle transit travel time, access time between centroids and transit stops, wait time, number of transfers, and transit fare. The in-vehicle travel times are estimated using different procedures for transit routes using mixed-flow and exclusive facilities. For transit routes that operate on links that are coded as mixed flow facilities, the transit operating speeds are estimated as a function of the highway operating speed. For exclusive transit links, the operating speeds are derived from published schedules. The SBVFM calculates separate transit skims for four sets of transit paths for both walkaccess and drive-access paths. The four sets of transit paths are distinguished by the transit modes that are allowed for the trip, as follows:

- The *local bus* paths allow only transit modes defined as local;
- The premium express bus paths can use transit modes described as either local or express bus;
- The premium LRT/BRT paths can use any transit mode described as bus, light-rail transit or subway transit; and
- The *commuter rail* paths can use any transit mode.

### **Trip Distribution**

The SBVFM trip distribution models use a gravity model to distribute trips. These models use the same procedures and gamma function friction factors similar to those developed for the SCAG trip distribution models. However, the gamma function coefficients are recalibrated specifically for use in the SBVFM.

The input data to the trip distribution models include productions and attractions output from the trip generation models, and impedance data from highway and transit skims. Three different types of travel impedance are used for different types of trip distribution models. The six home-based work trip purposes use composite impedance log-sums, which also serve as the denominator in the mode choice equations. The composite impedance log-sums for the medium income and high income households include all travel modes, while the composite impedance log-sums for the low income households exclude drive alone skims from the log-sum calculation. The other seven trip purposes use impedances derived exclusively from highway travel times.

The distribution process creates 26 person trip tables, including both peak period and off-peak period trip tables for each of the 13 trip purposes estimated by the trip generation models. Following application of the trip distribution models, the 26 resulting trip tables are aggregated to 14 person trip tables, as summarized below in Table 4-2.

### **Mode Choice**

The SBVFM mode choice model uses the basic structure developed for the OCTAM mode choice model. However the modal bias constants have been recalibrated specifically for use in the SBVFM.

The mode choice model application is performed separately for the peak and offpeak time periods for five trip purposes (home-based work, home-based school, home-based other, work-based other, and other-based other).

Different model constants are used for households in the three income classes for home-based work and home-based other trips. The home-based work stratification of households by income class is output from the trip distribution models. The homebased other stratification of households by income class is estimated for each TAZ as a constant share of the total person trips.

The TAZ data is split into three walk access markets - short walk, long walk, and no transit - based on a GIS analysis of the relationship between the zone boundaries and the transit stop locations.

### Table 4-2: Trip Purposes from Trip Generation and Trip Distribution Models

Exhibit 3: Trip Purposes from Trip Generation and Trip Distribution Models

Trip Generation Models (26 Tables)	Trip Distribution Models (14 Tables)		
Peak Period Home-Based Work Direct - Low Income	Peak Period Home-Based Work - Low Income		
Peak Period Home-Based Work Strategic - Low Income	reak renod home-based work - Low income		
Peak Period Home-Based Work Direct - Medium Income			
Peak Period Home-Based Work Strategic - Medium Income	Peak Period Home-Based Work - Medium Income		
Peak Period College/University			
Peak Period Home-Based Work Direct - High Income	Peak Period Home Paced Work High Income		
Peak Period Home-Based Work Strategic - High Income	Feak Fellod Home-Based Work - High Income		
Peak Period School (K-12)	Peak Period School (K-12)		
Peak Period Home-Based Shopping			
Peak Period Home-Based Social-Recreational	Peak Period Home-Based Other		
Peak Period Home-Based Other			
Peak Period Work-Based Other	Peak Period Work-Based Other		
Peak Period Other-Based Other	Peak Period Other-Based Other		
Off-Peak Period Home-Based Work Direct - Low Income	Off Book Pariod Homo Boood Work Jow Income		
Off-Peak Period Home-Based Work Strategic - Low Income	On-Feak Feriod Home-Based Work - Low Income		
Off-Peak Period Home-Based Work Direct - Medium Income			
Off-Peak Period Home-Based Work Strategic - Medium Income	Off-Peak Period Home-Based Work - Medium Income		
Off-Peak Period College/University	7		
Off-Peak Period Home-Based Work Direct - High Income	Off Book Pariod Home Bacad Work High Income		
Off-Peak Period Home-Based Work Strategic - High Income	On-Feak Fenod Home-based Work - High Income		
Off-Peak Period School (K-12)	Off-Peak Period School (K-12)		
Off-Peak Period Home-Based Shopping			
Off-Peak Period Home-Based Social-Recreational	Off-Peak Period Home-Based Other		
Off-Peak Period Home-Based Other	7		
Off-Peak Period Work-Based Other	Off-Peak Period Work-Based Other		
Off-Peak Period Other-Based Other	Off-Peak Period Other-Based Other		

### Source: Hexagon, 2009.

The regional modal bias constants were adjusted to match observed modal shares derived from regional household survey data. The modal bias constants were further refined for San Bernardino County to match data from transit boarding counts collected for Omnitrans and Metrolink in the Year 2006.

### Time-of-Day and Assignment Procedures

The procedures from the preceding three steps (trip generation, trip distribution, and mode choice) are used to create vehicle and transit trip tables in production-attraction format for peak and off-peak trips for five trip purposes.

The time-of-day factors are used to convert the vehicle trip tables from productionattraction format to origin-destination format for the four time periods (AM Peak, Midday, PM Peak, and Nighttime). The resulting vehicle trip tables are then assigned to the highway networks using a multi-class assignment procedure for three auto modes (drive alone, two-person, and three-or-more person) and three truck modes (light-heavy vehicle, medium-heavy vehicle, and heavyheavy vehicle).

The transit trip tables are assigned in production-attraction format to the AM Peak transit network (peak transit trips) and the midday transit network (off-peak transit trips). The transit trips are assigned separately to the four sets of transit paths before the assignment results are aggregated together.

# Additional Model Development and Validation Tools

Additional tools used to complete this model validation include the following.

- SCAG 2008 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), and SCAG 2008 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) are used to validate the background highway and transit networks for the Base Year (2007) conditions.
- Omnitrans Short Range Transit Plan, 2008-2013, Final Report (July 2007) is used to validate the model's ability to replicate transit ridership on individual transit routes.
- San Bernardino Associated Governments Profile of Transit Riders in San Bernardino County – Final Report (March 2007) is used to validate the model's ability to replicate characteristics of transit riders served by Omnitrans bus routes and Metrolink rail routes.
- Omnitrans On-board Survey data (2006) is used to validate the model's ability to replicate transit trips and origindestination data in the San Bernardino Valley.

Omnitrans on/off count data, collected in 2006, is used to validate activity at bus stops in the San Bernardino Valley.

### 4.2 TRAVEL DEMAND MODEL VALIDATION

The model validation process is presented sequentially from the coarser level to the finer level of analysis as follows:

- Regional model validation
- San Bernardino Valley/Omnitrans systemwide validation
- San Bernardino Valley study area and bus route segments
- Origin-destination of trips in study area

### **Regional Validation**

The regional transportation system in the SBVFM is virtually identical to the transportation system in the parent SCAG Regional Model, except in the San Bernardino Valley. The SCAG model was validated to Year 2003 conditions. Validation of this model is documented in 2003 SCAG Model Validation and Summary – Regional Transportation Model (January 2008).

The San Bernardino Valley Focus Model (SBVFM) is a focus model derived from the most recent update of the SCAG Regional Model, with the mode choice component of the model derived from the OCTA Model. First developed in 2004, the SBVFM has been used in several projects in the San Bernardino Valley. The SBVFM was developed specifically to satisfy FTA guidelines for transit modes for New Starts projects. The SBVFM was applied successfully to complete the Alternatives Analysis phase of the E Street Corridor Project, and to bring that project into the Project Development phase.

For purposes of this model validation, the SBVFM was updated to base year 2006/2007 conditions. This base year update includes:

- SE data interpolated between 2003 and 2010 data;
- Highway network updated to reflect freeway projects throughout the region;
- Transit networks updated to reflect regional rail and rapid bus services;
- Highway network updated to reflect highway improvements in the San Bernardino Valley; and
- Transit networks updated to reflect Omnitrans bus services.

Several regional validation issues arose from the conversion of the SCAG regional model to

the San Bernardino Valley Focus Model. The most important was related to the trip distribution and mode choice models. Each of these issues were identified and addressed to maintain validation of the regional application of the models to the focus model.

The key issue with the trip distribution model arose as a result of the disaggregation of zones within the San Bernardino Valley focus area. The finer zone structure within the focus area resulted in many more opportunities for short trips than within the SCAG regional model. Since the trip distribution element of the regional model had been calibrated with relatively few short trips (less than six minutes in highway travel time) there was limited data with which to calibrate the gravity models for the shorter trip lengths.

Meanwhile, the focus model has a significant number of possible trips of the shorter trip lengths to consider. When the regional trip distribution model was applied within the context of the focus model, the result was that far more very short trips than desired. In order to correct this problem it was necessary to recalibrate the friction factors for the short trip lengths. The result of this effort produced trip distributions and trip tables that were consistent with the results of the regional model validation. Separate recalibration efforts were completed for home-based work trips for three income groups, plus seven other trip purposes, each in two time periods.

The key issue with the mode choice model was the ratio of transit boardings to linked transit trips, resulting from the average number of transfers assigned to each transit trip. To correct this problem the coefficients for second wait (transfer wait) were adjusted from 2.0 times first wait to 3.0 times first wait. This adjustment was applied to all travel modes for both the path-builder and mode choice model to maintain consistency within the models.

Other elements of the models were not adversely affected by the transition from the regional model to the focus model, and did not require additional adjustment. These elements include the trip generation model and highway algorithms.

### San Bernardino Valley/Omnitrans Bus System

The primary providers of transit service in the San Bernardino Valley are Omnitrans, which operates 29 local bus routes and one express bus route, and Metrolink, which provides regional commuter rail service between downtown Los Angeles and several suburban areas, including the San Bernardino Valley.

For purposes of this model validation, the San Bernardino Valley portion of the SBVFM was updated from the Year 2003 conditions reflected in the SCAG model validation to Year 2006/2007 conditions. This update includes highway improvements in the San Bernardino Valley and local bus service updates. Since the on-board transit survey was conducted in 2006, the validation transit network replicates the local bus routes as they existed in 2006.

Several validation issues were encountered during validation of the mode choice models at the San Bernardino Valley level of detail. The issues requiring the most significant effort to achieve model validation include issues with trip purpose and the assignment results on bus routes with low-frequency vs. high-frequency service.

The original application of the regional models within the context of the San Bernardino Valley Focus Model resulted in a lower percentage of work and school trips on Omnitrans bus routes than were observed during the Omnitrans on-board bus survey. This problem was corrected by applying distinct adjustments to the transit bias constant within the mode choice models for each of the five trip purposes.

The transit assignments resulting from the original application of the focus model resulted in a system-wide under-assignment of transit trips on high-frequency transit routes (less than 30-minute headways) and over-assignment of transit trips on low-frequency transit routes (60-minute headways). The original version of the pathbuilders used in the model included a cap on wait time equivalent to a 30-minute headway. This cap was adjusted to a 60-minute headway and the relative assignments on low-frequency vs. high-frequency services improved.

Other important elements of the model were not adversely affected by the transition from the regional model to the focus model, and did not require additional adjustment. These elements include the wealth variable and the relative shares of ridership on local and premium transit modes. The transit travel time functions required only a very minor adjustment to calibrate travel times to bus schedules.

The total boardings on each of the local bus routes operated by Omnitrans are summarized in Table 4-3. This table shows that the daily assignments for most of the transit routes are within +/- 900 daily boardings, or within +/- 30% of the daily ridership, and the root mean statistically error (RMSE) for the transit routes is 0.262.

Relative shares of local bus trips in the San Bernardino Valley made for five trip purposes are summarized in Table 4-4. The results shown in this table are expected since the transit bias constants for the San Bernardino Valley were calibrated to match the distribution of transit trips by trip purpose. The Year 2006 Omnitrans on-board bus survey reports that 53 percent of Omnitrans riders are from households with annual incomes of less than \$20,000. The SBVFM accurately reflects this fact, with the mode choice models creating 54 percent of its transit trips from lower income households.

### 4.3 YEAR 2035 POPULATION AND EMPLOYMENT FORECASTS

The population of the San Bernardino Valley is expected to grow to over 2 million people in the Year 2035, which is 37 percent higher than the Year 2006 population. Table 4-5 displays population and employment growth data for the year 2035 for San Bernardino Valley cities.

The City of San Bernardino, which is currently the largest city in the valley, is expected to grow by 30 percent to a population of over 265,000. The city of Ontario is expected to experience the greatest population growth, with a year 2035 population estimate of over 337,000.

Employment in the San Bernardino Valley is expected to grow to over 928,000 in the Year 2035, which is 62 percent higher than the Year 2006 employment. The cities of Ontario, San Bernardino, and Rancho Cucamonga are expected to maintain their current positions as the three cities with the highest employment in the valley. Figures 4-1 and 4-2 show the forecasts for Employment and Population Densities for Year 2035, respectively.

Route			Ridership			
Number	Type of Route	Headway	Observed	Estimated	Difference	Ratio
1	East Valley Local	15	3,462	4,064	602	1.17
2	East Valley Local	15	4,113	4,441	328	1.08
3	East Valley Local	20	2,821	2,313	(508)	0.82
4	East Valley Local	20	2,876	2,212	(664)	0.77
5	East Valley Local	30	1,820	1,409	(412)	0.77
7	East Valley Local	30	1,030	1,414	384	1.37
8	East Valley Local	60	828	1,237	409	1.49
9	East Valley Local	60	1,041	1,208	167	1.16
10	East Valley Local	30	1,278	1,574	296	1.23
11	East Valley Local	30	1,272	895	(377)	0.70
14	East Valley Local	15	3,968	3,154	(814)	0.79
15	East Valley Local	30	2,591	3,444	853	1.33
19	East Valley Local	30	2,627	2,992	365	1.14
20	East Valley Local	30	635	209	(426)	0.33
22	East Valley Local	20	2,000	1,672	(328)	0.84
28	East Valley Local	60	150	120	(30)	0.80
29	East Valley Local	60	209	113	(96)	0.54
31	East Valley Local	60	94	299	205	3.19
60	West Valley Local	60	723	655	(68)	0.91
61	West Valley Local	15	5,349	4,620	(729)	0.86
62	West Valley Local	30	1,370	1,758	388	1.28
63	West Valley Local	30	1,203	908	(295)	0.76
65	West Valley Local	30	1,094	1,132	38	1.03
66	West Valley Local	15	3,072	2,970	(102)	0.97
67	West Valley Local	60	702	587	(115)	0.84
68	West Valley Local	30	1,373	1,926	553	1.40
70	West Valley Local	60	348	326	(22)	0.94
71	West Valley Local	60	807	881	74	1.09
75	West Valley Local	60	107	144	37	1.34
90	Express	45	1,225	979	(246)	0.80
Total			50,189	49,656	(533)	0.99

Table 4-3: Omnitrans Ridership Validation by Route

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

Trip Purpose	Actual	Target
Home-based Work	34%	34%
Home-based Other	34%	34%
Work-based Other	7%	7%
Home-based School	16%	16%
Other-based Other	9%	9%

Table 4-4: Omnitrans Ridership by Trip Purpose

Source: Hexagon, 2009





	Year 2035 Data			Growth - 2006-2035			
City	Population	Households	Employment	Population	Households	Employment	
Chino	112,038	28,800	64,869	43%	52%	36%	
Chino Hills	82,880	24,848	14,720	6%	12%	64%	
Colton	89,604	27,851	53,412	69%	82%	123%	
Fontana	224,011	57,784	70,782	36%	40%	55%	
Grand Terrace	14,911	5,324	5,866	19%	24%	91%	
Highland	72,497	21,911	16,492	39%	47%	167%	
Loma Linda	41,385	17,286	33,086	84%	105%	97%	
Montclair	54,643	15,032	24,434	50%	64%	53%	
Ontario	337,095	91,936	187,671	94%	103%	69%	
Rancho Cucamonga	172,420	55,181	97,874	3%	8%	59%	
Redlands	93,196	34,316	51,206	31%	36%	31%	
Rialto	143,308	39,736	46,581	42%	55%	105%	
San Bernardino	265,515	78,619	157,088	30%	35%	61%	
Upland	82,444	31,716	30,888	11%	25%	15%	
Yucaipa	63,357	24,033	18,006	25%	36%	87%	
Unincorporated	160,987	43,290	55,838	29%	33%	58%	
San Bernardino Valley Total	2,010,291	597,663	928,813	37%	44%	62%	

### Table 4-5: Year 2035 Population and Employment Growth Data - San Bernardino Valley Cities

Source: SCAG, 2009.

Draff

PARSONS 71



Figure 4-1: VISION Employment Density Year 2035

Source: Parsons, 2009.

72 PARSONS



# Figure 4-2: VISION Population Density Year 2035 Draff

Source: Parsons, 2009.



z.

This page intentionally left blank.





### CHAPTER 5 DEVELOPMENT OF ALTERNATIVES

This chapter first presents descriptions of existing regional transit plans and planning projects that are under study. These plans form the basis for the four future transit alternatives that are analyzed in the Long Range Transit Plan. The reason for studying the different alternatives is to be able to assess the ridership benefits of different levels of transit investment in the San Bernardino Valley. The four future transit alternatives include:

- The Baseline Alternative, shown in Figure 5-1 which includes existing transit services;
- The Plan Alternative, shown in Figure 5-2 which includes an increase in coverage and service frequency designed to serve the future growth in the region;
- The Vision Alternative, shown in Figure 5-3, which includes an investment in a higher level of transit services – BRT and rail – in the region; and
- The Sustainable Land Use Alternative, shown in Figure 5-4 which redistributes population and employment growth to transit corridors, allowing us to study the potential ridership benefits of public policy efforts to shape the transit/land use connection in the region.

Based on the April 26, 2006 workshop at SANBAG, five LRTP Conceptual Alternatives for the San Bernardino Valley were carried forward for initial analysis and presentation to the general public. In conjunction with the Compass Blueprint 2% Strategy and in preparation for SB 375 it became desirable to revise the transit alternatives to combine three "vision alternatives" into one transit alternative and prepare a Sustainable Land Use Alternative. Table 5-1 compares mass transit Service Assumptions for each alternative.

### 5.1 REGIONAL PLANS

The LRTP is an integral part of the regional planning process and serves in conjunction with the following plans:

### SYSTEM-WIDE TRANSIT CORRIDOR PLAN

The 2004 System-wide Transit Corridor Plan developed for Omnitrans identified seven key transit corridors, shown in Figure 5-5 for the San Bernardino Valley to introduce higher quality transit service (higher frequency, express or BRT services) known as the sbX, to attract choice riders and effect a positive transit mode shift. Major transit corridors include: Corridor 1 (E Street); Corridor 2 (Foothill East); Corridor 3 (Foothill West); Corridor 4 (Mountain & Euclid); Corridor 5 (San Bernardino Avenue); Corridor 6 (Holt & Fourth Street); and Corridor 7 (Grand & Edison). Three additional corridors have been identified for study, including: Corridor 8 (Sierra Avenue); Corridor 9 (Riverside Avenue); and Corridor 10 (Haven Avenue).

Corridor 1, Shown in Figure 5-6 was identified as the highest priority corridor and has progressed into the Project Development Process with planned operation of the E Street sbX in 2012. The remaining corridors form the framework for the establishment of a base fixed route network, with the possible introduction of limited stop or full express services as a precursor to sbX network expansion. All ten of these corridors will be the subject of an update to the System-wide Transit Corridor Plan, which is due to be completed later in 2009.







Source: Parsons, 2009.



Draft

Figure 5-2: The Plan Alternative

Source: Parsons, 2009.





Draff

Source: Parsons, 2009.

Figure 5-3: The Vision Alternative



# Figure 5-4: The Vision Sustainable Land Use Alternative

Governments SANBAG Working Together

Source: Parsons, 2009.



79

Transit Modes	2035 Baseline Alternative	2035 Planned Alternative	2035 Vision Alternative
Omnitrans Fixed Route Service	Omnitrans service similar to existing service with Routes 1, 3/4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, and 14 realigned to new San Bernardino Transit Station	Omnitrans service reconfigured to create grid system of trunk routes supported by circulator routes; E Street BRT (sbX) Refined LPA operated at 5 minute headway - 16 stations over a total of 16 miles in length with 4 park-and-ride lots.	Same as 2035 Planned Alternative plus extension of E Street BRT to California Station of Redlands Rail line; Nine additional corridors operated with for BRT service.
Other Transit Operators	MARTA service from Lake Arrowhead to San Bernardino (new Midday round trip service); MARTA service from Big Bear to San Bernardino (Tripper service); RTA service as existing on Route 25; Add RTA Route 204 Riverside to Montclair; Foothill Transit "Silver Streak" service, other Foothill service as exiting to Montclair on Routes 187, 190, 480, 492, 690, and 699, and Foothill Transit service to Chino Hills on Route 497; No VVTA service from Victor Valley	Gold Line Extension to Montclair. VVTA service from Victor Valley to CSUSB and San Bernardino Transcenter; VVTA service from Victor Valley to Ontario and Fontana Metrolink; MARTA service as in Baseline; RTA service as in Baseline on Routes 25 and 204; Foothill Transit "Silver Streak" service and other services to Montclair on Routes 187, 190, 480, 492, 497, 690, and 699; and OCTA service from Irvine to Chino Hills on Route 758	Background bus is the same as the 2035 Planned Alternative, with minor route deviations to serve BRT stations; Gold Line is extended to Ontario Airport
Metrolink Commuter Rail	Metrolink service same as existing except that the line is extended to serve the new San Bernardino Transit Station; New Parking structure at existing San Bernardino Station	Metrolink service with headways improved to levels shown in the new draft Strategic Plan (18 minutes peak and 60 minutes off-peak on San Bernardino Line)	Same as 2035 Planned
Redlands Rail	No Rail service.	Rail service with 10 minute headways and three feeder routes,	Same as 2035 Planned, plus Extension to Mentone

Table 5-1:	Mass	<b>Transit Service</b>	Assumptions	for	LRTP	Alternatives
------------	------	------------------------	-------------	-----	------	--------------

Source: Hexagon, 2009.





Source: Gruen Associates, 2004.







LOCALLY PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE WITH PROPOSED REFINEMENTS

Source: Gruen Associates, 2009.



Draft

### **OMNITRANS SRTP**

The Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) is a Comprehensive Operational Assessment that lays the foundation for increasing ridership, providing reliable service that reflects their projected financial situation.

### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY'S (SCRRA) STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT

The SCRRA Strategic Assessment is a conceptual plan for the development of the Metrolink commuter rail system through 2030. While the potential for increasing demand is clearly recognized, the plan prioritizes demand-driven service expansion with operational and fiscal realities.

Six Service Scenarios were developed for the *SCRRA Strategic Assessment*. Under each scenario, service levels, ridership and costs/benefits were projected for 2010, 2015, 2020 and 2030. Possible service levels were determined for each line. For the lines serving the Omnitrans service area:

- San Bernardino Line service levels would remain constant at 34 trains/weekday through 2010 and be increased to 48 in 2015.
- Inland Empire-Orange County Line service levels will rise from the current 12 trains/weekday to 20 in 2010 and 24 in 2015.
- Riverside Line service levels will rise from the current 12 trains/weekday to 22 by 2015.

If the increased service levels on the Inland Empire-Orange County Line are implemented, demand is expected to increase for enhanced feeder service to the San Bernardino Metrolink Station.

### SANBAG COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN (CTP)

SANBAG is currently updating San Bernardino County's CTP to the year 2030<sup>11</sup>. Goals, objectives, performance indicators and alternative transportation scenarios are being defined and analyzed to create a preferred plan alternative. In cooperation with local agencies, this work has involved updating the socioeconomic forecasts to the year 2030 and the base year streets and highway network for the CTP traffic model.

The updated CTP will:

- Identify transportation improvements and strategies to enhance system performance and achieve emission reductions to meet air quality requirements; and
- Integrate goods movement strategies currently under development and serve as a basis for action programs to be implemented through the Congestion Management Program.

### PUBLIC TRANSIT- HUMAN SERVICES TRANSPORTATION COORDINATION PLAN FOR SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

The remote portions of the County face their own unique challenges and opportunities in developing their transit ridership. A recent study prepared by SANBAG entitled "San Bernardino County Public Transportation-Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan.

SANBAG in December of 2007 developed a *Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan* for San Bernardino County. This plan identified the short term mobility needs for six remote areas of the County and recommended strategies and priorities to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> http://www.SANBAG.ca.gov accessed 07/07/09

help improve access to human necessities such as, medical appointments, trips to the pharmacy, social service agency visits, and grocery store shopping for the elderly, disabled and low-income individuals. With the reauthorization in 2005 of the federal transportation bill, SAFETEA-LU, new regulations specify that it is desirable for federal monies to be coordinated and consolidated in "a process through which representatives of different agencies and client groups work together to achieve any one or all of the following goals: more costeffective service delivery; increased capacity to serve unmet needs; improved quality of service; and services which are more easily understood and accessed by riders." Moreover, FTA mandates that projects receiving FTA 5310, JARC or New Freedom funds be part of the plan adopted by SANBAG addressing ways to improve service through coordination and/or consolidation.

### 5.2 2035 BASELINE ALTERNATIVE

This alternative assumes all existing roadway and transit services will continue and be supplemented by improvements already funded.

### PLANNED ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

For roadway improvements in the 2035 Baseline Alternative, the most significant funded projects are carpool lanes that will be constructed on the I-10 and I-215 freeways. The Valley also has a limited number of street improvements funded along with improvements to traffic signal systems. The highway network used for the analysis of the Baseline Alternative is based on the SCAG Baseline network, plus highway improvements in the San Bernardino Valley that are funded by the extension of Measure I.

No additional Rail service expansions are included. Bus service for the San Bernardino Valley in the Baseline Alternative is shown in Figure 5-1 and specified as follows:

- Omnitrans fixed route bus service is constrained to existing bus services operated as of January, 2009, which include 26 local bus routes and one express bus route. The planned E Street BRT service is specifically excluded from the Baseline Alternative in order to provide a baseline context for the transit ridership analysis.
- Foothill Transit service includes eight local and express bus routes providing transit service to either Montclair Transcenter or Chino Transit Center, including the "Silver Streak" service from the Montclair Transcenter to downtown Los Angeles.
- MARTA service includes 3 daily round trips connecting Big Bear Valley to San Bernardino and Highland, and four daily trips serving Lake Arrowhead to San Bernardino and Highland.
- OCTA services include Route 758, and express bus service between Irvine and Chino Transit Center.
- RTA service includes Route 25 from Riverside to Loma Linda, and Route 204 from Riverside to Montclair through Ontario Mills Mall.

Service frequencies for rail and bus routes serving the San Bernardino Valley in this alternative are summarized in Table 5-2.



## Table 5-2: San Bernardino Valley Mass Transit Service Assumptions for the baselineAlternative

	Route			Peak	Off-Peak
Operator	Number	Route Description	Service Type	Headway	Headway
Omnitrans	1	Colton-Del Rosa	Local Bus	15	15
Omnitrans	2	Cal State-E St-Loma Linda	Local Bus	15	15
Omnitrans	3	Baseline-Highland-SB-Yucaipa	Local Bus	20	20
Omnitrans	5	Cal State-Del Rosa-Downtown SB	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	7	N San Bern-Sierra-Downtown SB	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	8	San Bernardino-Mentone-Yucaipa	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	9	San Bernardino-Redlands-Yucaipa	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	10	Fontana-Baseline-San Bernardino	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	11	San Bernardino-Muscoy	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	14	Fontana-Foothill-San Bernardino	Local Bus	15	15
Omnitrans	15	Fontana-Rialto-SB-Highlands-Redlands	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	19	Redlands-Colton-Fontana	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	20	Fontana-Metrolink	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	22	S Rialto-N Rialto	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	29	Fontana-Cedar-N Rialto	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	61	Fontana-Ontario-Pomona	Local Bus	15	15
Omnitrans	63	Chino-Ontario-Upland	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	65	Montclair-Chino Hills	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	66	Fontana-Foothill-Montclair	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	67	Montclair-Baseline-Fontana	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	68	Chino-Montclair-Chaffey	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	80	Montclair-Ontario-Chaffey	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	81	Ontario-Ont. Mills-Chaffey	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	82	Rancho-Fontana-Sierra Lakes	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	83	Upland-Euclid-Chino	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	215	San Bernardino-Riverside Express	Express Bus	30	30
Metrolink	-	San Bernardino Line	Commuter Rail	20	60
Metrolink	-	Riverside Line	Commuter Rail	36	-
Metrolink	-	IE/OC Line	Commuter Rail	45	120
Foothill	-	Silver Streak	Express Bus	12	15
Foothill	187	Montclair-Pasadena	Local Bus	20	20
Foothill	197	Montclair-Pomona	Local Bus	30	60
Foothill	480	Montclair-Los Angeles	Local Bus	30	30
Foothill	492	Montclair-El Monte	Local Bus	30	30
Foothill	497	Chino-Los Angeles Express	Express Bus	15	-
Foothill	690	Montclair-Pasadena Express	Express Bus	30	-
Riverside	25	Riverside-Loma Linda	Local Bus	60	60
Riverside	204	Riverside-Montclair	Express Bus	45	-
MARTA	-	Lake Arrowhead Off Mountain	Express Bus	120	120
MARTA	-	Big Bear Off Mountain	Express Bus	180	-
OCTA	758	Chino-Irvine Express	Express Bus	90	-

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

Draff

By definition, the 2035 Baseline Alternative includes only existing plus funded transportation because ridership is holding somewhat steady in recent years and current funding is limited for service improvements.



Boarding on northeast side of E Street/4<sup>th</sup> Street

Metrolink has prepared a Strategic Assessment to chart expansion of service through 2035. At this time, however, only the current level of service is funded. For the purposes of this study, all alternatives tested by the model will assume that all Metrolink trips will serve both the existing station and the new one at the proposed San Bernardino Transcenter at Rialto and E Streets. The Baseline Alternative also assumes increases in service between now and year 2030 as shown in internal Metrolink documents, even though those service levels have not been adopted or funded. In this way the need for commuter rail service, Park and Ride spaces and other features can be assessed.

There will be, however, some significant changes in transit operations in the San Bernardino Valley. These include:

New San Bernardino Transit Station. Omnitrans plans to move their downtown transfer function from the temporary but long-lived 4<sup>th</sup> Street location to a new facility at Rialto and E Street. Omnitrans has completed the purchase of the land for the new facility. This project is now in the design phase and it is scheduled to be ready for transit operations in 2012, and for completion of the depot in 2013.

The new San Bernardino Transit Station will become the major transfer point for all the various modes of transit in the area. The San Bernardino Transit Station will serve as the major transfer site for Omnitrans' routes serving the East Valley. Routes approaching downtown San Bernardino from the south will be rerouted directly into the new facility before heading back to their current route. Routes approaching downtown from the north will be extended down to Rialto.

Additionally, the San Bernardino Transit Station will serve as the site of a new Metrolink station, with the trips now terminating at the San Bernardino Metrolink Station (Old Santa Fe Depot) extended to the new Transit Station. The planned E Street BRT and Redlands Rail services (see Plan Alternative) will also serve the San Bernardino Transit Station.

Other transit services featured in the 2035 Baseline Alternative include:

Metrolink Commuter Rail – Metrolink service on the San Bernardino Line terminates (or originates) at the existing San Bernardino Station on 3<sup>rd</sup> Street west of downtown San Bernardino. The City plans to build a 350 space parking structure on site to relieve overcrowding. No additional service to this station is planned. However, when the new San Bernardino Transit Station is built, the commuter train trips will be extended to the new station on Rialto Avenue and E Street.

The Baseline Alternative also includes a constrained level of transit service in the

Governments SANBAG Working Together

Victor Valley, commensurate with service described in the Short Range Transit Plan.

### 5.3 2035 PLAN ALTERNATIVE

By definition, this alternative is an enhancement of the 2035 Baseline Alternative. In this alternative, the transit services included in the 2035 Baseline Alternative are supplemented with transit improvements beyond what is currently funded. It adds all feasible major transit investments and facility improvements in the Valley that are considered to be in the detailed project development pipeline. These include increases in levels of service to keep pace with additional ridership due to population and employment growth and to maintain headways in light of reduced bus speeds resulting from increased levels of traffic congestion.

The service plan for the 2035 Plan Alternative includes a redesign of many trunk routes in the Omnitrans service area which will result in a grid system of local transit routes serving much of the San Bernardino Valley. The Omnitrans routes included in this alternative are displayed in Figure 5-7.

The travel demand model was used to assess the ridership potential of each transit route, and an equilibration procedure was used to adjust the service frequencies.

The LRTP Planned alternative also includes:

Redlands Rail Line plus supporting shuttles. The proposed Redlands Rail Line is a partially funded east-west rail line with one end in the E Street Corridor (see Figure 5-8). The rail line has been planned by SANBAG as a key connection between Redlands and central San Bernardino. The *Redlands Passenger Rail Station Area Plan* identifies nine Redlands Passenger Rail stations with TOD along the former BNSF Redlands Subdivision right-of-way, shown in Figure 5-8. Possible station sites include the proposed San Bernardino Transit Station, Mill Street, Orange Show Road, Tippecanoe Avenue, Mountain View Avenue, California Street, Alabama Street, New York Street, Downtown Redlands (with three possible alternatives), and Grove Street.

The service is envisioned to operate with Diesel Multiple Unit (DMU) trains on 7.5 minute headways. The western terminus will be the new San Bernardino Transit Station at Rialto Avenue and E Street. Shuttle service between specific stations and San Bernardino International Airport, Loma Linda Medical University and Medical Center, Loma Linda VA Hospital, University of Redlands, Crafton Hills College and the planned Yucaipa Transcenter may be warranted.

The introduction of this rail passenger service will impact east-west transit ridership in the East Valley and also require East Valley service restructuring as feeders around the final Redlands Passenger Rail stations. TOD development proposed around each station will concentrate densities and activities, potentially generating increased local transit demand.



Source: Parsons, 2009.

Draft





Figure 5-8: Redlands Rail Alignment and Station Locations

In addition to the Redlands Passenger Rail Service, SANBAG is also examining the transit-oriented development of the proposed extension.

The plan was released in November 2006 and has been presented to the three involved cities. Recommendations for transit-oriented zoning changes are set out for the proposed stations. Some aspects of the extension remain to be worked out, including the location of a station in downtown Redlands.

At the April 4, 2007 SANBAG Board meeting, the Board decided to continue studying the passenger rail extension. While the extension is still several years away, approval was given for more indepth studies, and for SANBAG to prepare an application for \$75 million in federal funding. With approval of the plan, the Cities of San Bernardino, Loma Linda, and Redlands will be asked to start considering land use changes around the proposed stations, such as denser housing, commercial development, pedestrian and bicycle paths and other amenities.

### E STREET BUS RAPID TRANSIT (SBX)

Of the Seven Corridors identified in the 2004 Omnitrans Systemwide Plan, the sbX E Street BRT Corridor emerged as the highest priority transit Corridor in the San Bernardino Valley. The 16 mile BRT has 16 stations and 4 park-and-ride facilities at key locations along the corridor. It is scheduled for Construction in 2010 and revenue operation in 2012.

The sbX E Street Corridor BRT Project will connect the northern portion of the City of San Bernardino with the City of Loma Linda (see Figure 5-2). The proposed transit route would begin in the vicinity of Palm Avenue and Kendall Drive and terminate in the vicinity of the Veterans Administration Hospital located at Barton Road and Benton Street.

The sbX service will operate on 5-minute headways throughout the day. Headways will be 10 minutes in the evening hours of weekdays. sbX will be supported by a system of transit services. This system includes shuttles at CSUSB on the northern end of the Corridor and in Loma Linda on the southern end in addition to the shuttles which will feed the Redlands Rail Line. The sbX service on E Street will be supported by a continuation of Route 2 service as a "shadow service" serving "in-between" bus stops. The sbX service will be enhanced by priority treatment at intersections and will operate both in "mixed traffic" and in its own exclusive lane.

The planned Alternative also includes:

- Higher Metrolink Commuter Rail 2030 Service Levels. Metrolink commuter rail service will be enhanced from that shown in the 2035 Baseline Alternative with additional peak and off-peak service.
- Metro Gold Line Extension to Montclair-Currently, the Metro Gold Line train service operates from L.A. Union Station to Pasadena. An extension east along the I-210 to San Bernardino County (a line to

Montclair is in the detailed corridor planning stages).

The Metro Gold Line Authority is proposing to extend the current Gold Line Light Rapid Transit system 16 miles east from Pasadena, where it currently ends, to Montclair (Figure 5-9). Preliminary Engineering Studies are underway and federal funding for construction is expected, even though the alignment faces stiff competition in the City of Los Angeles from other proposed transit alignments. The first segment of the Gold Line extension, from Arcadia to Azusa, is scheduled for completion in 2013. The second phase, to the Montclair Transcenter, is currently undertaking an extensive transit-oriented development (TOD) study, evaluating stations along the proposed 16 mile extension. Each city along the corridor is at different development stages in regards to TOD readiness and acceptance.

The TOD analysis is particularly relevant to the LRTP as the third phase is proposed to connect the Montclair Transcenter to the Ontario Airport. Montclair has recently completed the North Montclair Specific Plan, which significantly increases the range of uses and proposed densities in and around the Transcenter into the area in order to build on the existing commercial center and support transit initiatives, such as the Gold Line extension and Omnitrans efforts to enhance transit connections to other parts of the San Bernardino Valley. Service to the Ontario Airport would support a unique opportunity to create a multi-modal transit center.





Source: Metro Gold Line Foothill Extension Construction Authority, 2009. *Figure 5-9: Metro Gold Line Extension* 

- Loma Linda Shuttle The disbursed nature of the medical and educational facilities in the City of Loma Linda and the increasing need for people to move between those facilities will support a Loma Linda circulator service. The circulator will serve major facilities, large parking areas and major transit stops.
- California State University-San Bernardino (CSUSB) Shuttle – CSUSB, anchoring the northern end of the E Street transit Corridor will provide a circulator to move people from remote parking lots to the center of campus and the transit station as well as around the large campus.

Other bus operators – Foothill Transit serving the San Gabriel Valley, Mountain Area Regional Transit Authority (MARTA) serving Big Bear and Lake Arrowhead, Orange County transportation Authority (OCTA) and Riverside Transit Agency – operate bus routes that serve the San Bernardino Valley. These bus routes are included in the 2035 Baseline Alternative and will remain in place for the 2035 Plan Alternative. The 2035 Baseline Alternative does not provide transit connections to two significant population centers adjacent to the San Bernardino Valley – the Victor Valley to the north and the Coachella Valley to the east. Victor Valley Transit Authority provided service into the San Bernardino Valley until June 2005. Given the projected population growth in the Victor Valley, the 2035 Plan Alternative assumes that funding will be found to implement such service before 2035.

The 2035 Plan Alternative includes two transit lines between the Victor Valley and the San Bernardino Valley – one route serving Cal State University – San Bernardino and the E Street BRT line, and another route serving the Ontario Mills Mall and Rancho Cucamonga Metrolink Station.

The 2035 Plan Alternative also includes a proposed bus service between the Coachella Valley and hospital services in Loma Linda. This service would be operated by Sunline Transit Agency, and would provide transfer services to the San Bernardino Valley for Morongo Basin residents. The analysis of the 2035 Plan Alternative began by coding all transit routes in the Omnitrans system with high service frequencies – 15-minute peak and off-peak period headways. Iterative model runs (equilibration) were used to fine tune the headways to provide cost-effective service with high seating probability throughout the system. The results of this equilibration process, and all other service frequencies for transit routes serving the San Bernardino Valley for the 2035 Plan Alternative, are displayed in Table 5-3.

Operator	Route Number	Route Description	Service Type	Peak Headway	Off-Peak Headway
Omnitrans	301	E Street sbX	BRT	5	10
Omnitrans	1	Colton-Del Rosa	Local Bus	10	15
Omnitrans	2	Cal State-E St-Loma Linda	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	3	Baseline-Highland-SB-Yucaipa	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	4	Baseline-Highland-San Bernardino	Local Bus	15	20
Omnitrans	5	Cal State-Del Rosa-Downtown SB	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	7	N San Bern-Sierra-Downtown SB	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	8	San Bernardino-Mentone-Yucaipa	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	9	San Bernardino-Redlands-Yucaipa	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	10	Fontana-Baseline-San Bernardino	Local Bus	10	20
Omnitrans	11	San Bernardino-Muscoy	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	14	Fontana-Foothill-San Bernardino	Local Bus	10	15
Omnitrans	15	Fontana-Rialto-SB-Highlands-Redlands	Local Bus	10	15
Omnitrans	19	Redlands-Colton-Fontana	Local Bus	15	15
Omnitrans	22	S Rialto-N Rialto	Local Bus	15	20
Omnitrans	61	Fontana-Ontario-Pomona	Local Bus	10	20
Omnitrans	63	Chino-Ontario-Upland	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	65	Montclair-Chino Hills	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	66	Fontana-Foothill-Montclair	Local Bus	15	20
Omnitrans	67	Montclair-Baseline-Fontana	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	68	Chino-Montclair-Chaffey	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	80	Montclair-Ontario-Chaffey	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	81	Ontario-Ont. Mills-Chaffey	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	82	Rancho-Fontana-Sierra Lakes	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	83	Upland-Euclid-Chino	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	84	San Bernardino Street E/W Corridor	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	85	Mountain Avenue N/S Corridor	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	86	Chino-Ontario (Riverside/Milliken)	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	87	Francis Avenue E/W Corridor	Local Bus	60	0
Omnitrans	88	Edison Avenue E/W Corridor	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	89	Haven Avenue N/S Corridor	Local Bus	20	60
Omnitrans	93	Cherry Avenue N/S Corridor	Local Bus	60	0
Omnitrans	94	Cedar/Ayala N/S Corridor	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	95	Santa Ana Avenue E/W Corridor	Local Bus	60	0
Omnitrans	96	Sierra Avenue N/S Corridor	Local Bus	30	30

### Table 5-3: San Bernardino Valley Route Service Frequencies in the Plan Alternative

	Route			Peak	Off-Peak
Operator	Number	Route Description	Service Type	Headway	Headway
Omnitrans	97	Chino-Industry Metrolink	Local Bus	60	0
Omnitrans	98	Yucaipa-Beaumont	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	99	Palm/Alabama N/S Corridor	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	215	San Bernardino-Riverside Express	Express Bus	15	30
Metrolink	-	Riverside Line	Commuter Rail	23	240
Metrolink	-	San Bernardino Line	Commuter Rail	18	60
Metrolink	-	IE/OC Line	Commuter Rail	20	60
Redlands	-	Redlands Rail	DMU Rail	10	10
Redlands	101	Redlands Rail Feeder Bus #1	Feeder Bus	30	30
Redlands	102	Redlands Rail Feeder Bus #2	Feeder Bus	30	30
Redlands	104	Redlands Rail Feeder Bus #4	Feeder Bus	20	20
MTA	-	Gold Line	Light Rail	5	10
Foothill	187	Montclair-Pasadena	Local Bus	20	20
Foothill	197	Montclair-Pomona	Local Bus	30	60
Foothill	480	Montclair-Los Angeles	Local Bus	30	30
Foothill	492	Montclair-El Monte	Local Bus	30	30
Foothill	497	Chino-Los Angeles Express	Express Bus	15	-
Foothill	690	Montclair-Pasadena Express	Express Bus	30	-
Foothill	-	Silver Streak	Express Bus	12	15
Riverside	204	Riverside-Montclair	Express Bus	45	-
Riverside	25	Riverside-Loma Linda	Local Bus	60	60
MARTA	-	Big Bear Off Mountain	Express Bus	180	-
MARTA	-	Lake Arrowhead Off Mountain	Express Bus	120	120
OCTA	758	Chino-Irvine Express	Express Bus	90	-
Sun Line	-	Coachella-Loma Linda Express	Express Bus	120	120

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

### 5.4 2035 Vision ALTERNATIVE

The 2035 Vision Alternative, shown in Figure 5-3 has the same background transit services as those defined in the 2035 Plan Alternative, with minor deviations to serve specific transfer locations.

The transit service assumptions for the LRTP Vision Alternative are shown in Table 5-4. The 2035 Vision Alternatives described below feature all of the transit and roadway elements that are included in the 2035 Planned LRTP Alternative. To this level of transit, they add various additional modes and alignments. In conjunction with the System-wide plan, the 10 transit corridors identified are presented along with preliminary alignment alternatives to be further analyzed. The Omnitrans routes included in the Vision Alternative are displayed in Figure 5-3.

Governments SANBAG

	Route			Peak	Off-Peak
Operator	Number	Route Description	Service Type	Headway	Headway
Omnitrans	301	E Street sbX Redlands Extension	BRT	5	10
Omnitrans	302	Foothill East sbX	BRT	5	10
Omnitrans	303	Foothill West sbX - Foothill	BRT	10	15
Omnitrans	304	Euclid sbX	BRT	10	15
Omnitrans	305	San Bernardino Avenue sbX - San Bernardino	BRT	10	10
Omnitrans	306	Holt/Fourth sbX	BRT	10	15
Omnitrans	307	Grand/Edison sbX	BRT	10	20
Omnitrans	308	Sierra sbX	BRT	10	20
Omnitrans	309	Riverside sbX	BRT	10	10
Omnitrans	310	Haven sbX	BRT	10	15
Omnitrans	1	Colton-Del Rosa	Local Bus	10	15
Omnitrans	2	Cal State-E St-Loma Linda	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	3	Baseline-Highland-SB-Yucaipa	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	4	Baseline-Highland-San Bernardino	Local Bus	20	20
Omnitrans	5	Cal State-Del Rosa-Downtown SB	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	7	N San Bern-Sierra-Downtown SB	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	8	San Bernardino-Mentone-Yucaipa	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	9	San Bernardino-Redlands-Yucaipa	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	10	Fontana-Baseline-San Bernardino	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	11	San Bernardino-Muscoy	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	14	Fontana-Foothill-San Bernardino	Local Bus	20	20
Omnitrans	15	Fontana-Rialto-SB-Highlands-Redlands	Local Bus	10	15
Omnitrans	19	Redlands-Colton-Fontana	Local Bus	20	20
Omnitrans	22	S Rialto-N Rialto	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	61	Fontana-Ontario-Pomona	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	63	Chino-Ontario-Upland	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	65	Montclair-Chino Hills	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	66	Fontana-Foothill-Montclair	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	67	Montclair-Baseline-Fontana	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	68	Chino-Montclair-Chaffey	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	80	Montclair-Ontario-Chaffey	Local Bus	15	30
Omnitrans	81	Ontario-Ont. Mills-Chaffey	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	82	Rancho-Fontana-Sierra Lakes	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	83	Upland-Euclid-Chino	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	84	San Bernardino Street E/W Corridor	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	85	Mountain Avenue N/S Corridor	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	86	Chino-Ontario (Riverside/Milliken)	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	87	Francis Avenue E/W Corridor	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	88	Edison Avenue E/W Corridor	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	89	Haven Avenue N/S Corridor	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	91	Vineyard/Carnelian N/S Corridor	Local Bus	60	0
Omnitrans	93	Cherry Avenue N/S Corridor	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	94	Cedar/Ayala N/S Corridor	Local Bus	20	30
Omnitrans	95	Santa Ana Avenue E/W Corridor	Local Bus	60	0

### Table 5-4: San Bernardino Valley Route Service Frequencies in 2035 Vision Alternative

	Route			Deak	Off-Deak
Operator	Number	Route Description	Service Type	Headway	Headway
Omnitrans	96	Sierra Avenue N/S Corridor	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	97	Chino-Industry Metrolink	Local Bus	30	60
Omnitrans	98	Yucaipa-Beaumont	Local Bus	30	30
Omnitrans	99	Palm/Alabama N/S Corridor	Local Bus	60	60
Omnitrans	215	San Bernardino-Riverside Express	Express Bus	30	60
Metrolink	-	Riverside Line	Commuter Rail	23	240
Metrolink	-	San Bernardino Line	Commuter Rail	18	60
Metrolink	-	IE/OC Line	Commuter Rail	20	60
Redlands	-	Redlands Rail	DMU Rail	10	10
Redlands	101	Redlands Rail Feeder Bus #1	Feeder Bus	30	30
Redlands	102	Redlands Rail Feeder Bus #2	Feeder Bus	30	30
Redlands	104	Redlands Rail Feeder Bus #4	Feeder Bus	20	20
MTA	-	Gold Line	Light Rail	5	10
Foothill	187	Montclair-Pasadena	Local Bus	20	20
Foothill	197	Montclair-Pomona	Local Bus	30	60
Foothill	480	Montclair-Los Angeles	Local Bus	30	30
Foothill	492	Montclair-El Monte	Local Bus	30	30
Foothill	497	Chino-Los Angeles Express	Express Bus	15	-
Foothill	690	Montclair-Pasadena Express	Express Bus	30	-
Foothill	-	Silver Streak	Express Bus	12	15
Riverside	204	Riverside-Montclair	Express Bus	45	-
Riverside	25	Riverside-Loma Linda	Local Bus	60	60
MARTA	-	Big Bear Off Mountain	Express Bus	180	-
MARTA	-	Lake Arrowhead Off Mountain	Express Bus	120	120
OCTA	758	Chino-Irvine Express	Express Bus	90	-
Sun Line	-	Coachella-Loma Linda Express	Express Bus	120	120

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

### **BRT CORRIDORS**

### **Corridor 1: E Street**

Over the past four years, the sbX E Street Corridor has evolved as the highest priority corridor identified in the System-Wide Transit Corridor Plan for the San Bernardino Valley, through the Alternatives Analysis and selection of the Locally Preferred Alternative (LPA), through the FTA Small Starts rating process, to the current Project Development phase. The sbX E Street Corridor BRT Project shown in Figure #-# is a proposed approximately 16-mile long BRT project that will connect the northern portion of the City of San Bernardino with the City of Loma Linda. The BRT alignment starts south of Kendall Drive and Palm Avenue and continues south along Kendall Drive into CSUSB. From CSUSB it returns to Kendall Drive south to E Street where it passes through Downtown San Bernardino to Hospitality Lane. The route then heads east along Hospitality Lane, and then south along Tippecanoe Avenue and Anderson Street to Barton Road. The corridor then heads north on Benton Street and West on Prospect Avenue back to Anderson Street, completing a loop.

Possible future transit connections with the E Street Corridor from outside of the San Bernardino Valley include a Metrolink

Governments SANBAG connection at the planned downtown San Bernardino Transcenter site, connections to the Victor Valley, Mountain Area Regional Transit Authority, Sun Line Transit, Riverside County (I-215 HOV Corridor and the Bi-County Corridor) and the proposed Redlands Rail Line.

### **Corridor 2: Foothill Boulevard East**

The corridor centered on Foothill Boulevard runs from the Los Angeles County line past San Bernardino International (SBI) Airport and the Highland Plaza area. This corridor has been divided into two segments for easier study and for a phased implementation of future premium transit services. Corridor 2 is the eastern part of the Foothill Corridor. It runs from the Fontana Metrolink station past SBI, with the northern boundary running along Highland Avenue and the southern boundary at Randall and San Bernardino Avenues. Corridor 2 overlaps Corridor 1 (E Street) in downtown San Bernardino. Major activity centers in Corridor 2 include the Fontana Metrolink Station (a major transfer point for Omnitrans riders), the San Bernardino Civic Center, the 4th Street Transit Mall, Highland Plaza, and SBI. As shown in Figure 1-1, possible future transit connections are envisioned from the Victor Valley on I-215.

### **Potential Alignment**

**sbX Route 2** is an east/west BRT route with a western terminal station at the Fontana Metrolink Station. This route follows Foothill Blvd to 5<sup>th</sup> Street in San Bernardino and then heads north on Victoria Avenue, west on Highland Avenue, south on Boulder Avenue, and east on Baseline Avenue to the eastern terminal station at Palm Street (in Highland), and then closing the loop by heading south on Victoria Avenue This 16 mile alignment includes 17 transit stations and two parkand-ride lots. Four of the stations are

optional stations, subject to elimination depending on the model-generated ridership potential. The three eastern-most stations are located on a loop, the only loop on any of the ten alignment alternatives studied in the preliminary model run.

### **Corridor 3: Foothill Boulevard West**

Corridor 3 contains the western part of the Foothill Boulevard Corridor. This corridor is anchored on the west by the Montclair Transcenter, which includes the Montclair Metrolink Station and a major transit transfer hub, and on the east by the Fontana Metrolink Station. Other major activity centers include San Antonio Community Hospital, Montclair Plaza, and new developments in the City of Rancho Cucamonga including Victoria Gardens Mall.

Possible regional connections to Corridor 3 from the Victor Valley would occur along I-15 and inter-county transit connections to Los Angeles exist from the Montclair Transcenter and Metrolink Stations. In the future, a possible extension of the Metro Rail Gold Line along the I-210 will reach Corridor 3 at the Montclair Transcenter.

### **Potential Alignment**

**sbX Route 3** is an east/west BRT route with a western terminal station at the Montclair Transcenter. This alignment alternative follows Foothill Boulevard through the cities of Upland, Rancho Cucamonga and Fontana to an eastern terminal station at the Fontana Metrolink Station. The alignment connects with Corridor 4 Mountain/Euclid Avenue as well as Corridor 10 Haven Avenue. This alignment includes 15 transit stations and three park-and-ride lots. Four of the stations studied are optional stations subject to elimination.



### Corridor 4: Mountain/Euclid Avenue

This north/south corridor in the west San Bernardino Valley has been designated as much for its future growth potential as for its current activity. This corridor has three major north/south arterials that could accommodate BRT services: Euclid, Mountain and Central Avenues. The corridor runs from just north of Foothill Boulevard in the north to the Riverside County Line in the south. It includes the agricultural preserve areas in the Cities of Chino and Ontario, which in the coming decades may be developed to house over 100,000 new residents. Current major activity centers in the corridor include Montclair Plaza, Montclair TransCenter, Ontario Civic Center, Ontario Transit Center, and the Chino prisons.

As displayed in Figure 5-8, the BRT alignment serving Corridor 4 would transition to SR-71 before continuing south to a possible future transit connection at the Corona Metrolink Station.

### **Potential Alignment**

Three preliminary BRT alignments for Corridor 4 were analyzed as part of the LRTP and Euclid Avenue emerged as the strongest alignment. Sbx Route 4 runs north/south with a northern terminal station at Foothill Boulevard. The alignment follows Euclid Avenue south and services the Ontario Metrolink Station and Ontario Transcenter. The route continues south on Euclid where it crosses Holt Avenue and Corridor 6, and continues through Ontario and Chino where it connects with Corridor 7 Grand/Edison Avenue to a southern terminal station at SR-71. This 12 mile alignment includes 14 transit stations and three park-and-ride lots. One of the stations is an optional station subject to elimination depending on the modelgenerated ridership potential.

### **Corridor 5: San Bernardino Avenue**

There are two east/west routes that are being studied to provide BRT service between the western and eastern portions of the San Bernardino Valley: the northern strip that includes Corridors 2 and 3; and the southern strip that includes Corridors 5 and 6. Corridor 5 is centered along San Bernardino Avenue from the South Fontana Transit Center to the western boundary of the E Street Corridor. This corridor is generally bounded by Randall Avenue on the north and Interstate 10 on the south. Major activity centers include the Arrowhead Regional Medical Center and the Fontana Kaiser Hospital.

### **Potential Alignment**

Three alignment alternatives are available to connect Corridor 5 to destinations in the E Street Corridor (Corridor 1). The three Corridor 5 alignments studied include alignments connecting Corridor 5 to downtown San Bernardino; to the Hospitality Lane commercial area; and to the city of Loma Linda. All three alignments use a western terminal station at the South Fontana Transfer Center and travel east on San Bernardino Avenue through the city of Rialto. The routes then transition via Pepper Avenue to Valley Boulevard to La Cadena Drive before diverting to different destinations.

**sbX Route 5** is the highest performing route heads east on Valley Boulevard, north on Mount Vernon Avenue, diverts north on Mount Vernon Avenue and east on Rialto Avenue to the planned downtown San Bernardino Transcenter and E Street sbX. This 11 mile alignment includes 12 transit stations and one park-and-ride lot. Five of the stations studied are optional stations that are subject to elimination depending on the model-generated ridership potential. An alternative route heads east on Valley Boulevard, north on Mount Vernon Avenue, then east on Fairway Drive to Hospitality Lane where it connects with the E Street sbX. From Hospitality Lane the route turns north on Tippecanoe Avenue to a terminal station at the Tippecanoe Avenue Redlands Rail Station. This alignment includes 16 transit stations and one park-and-ride lot. Five of the stations studied are optional stations and three of the stations are also used by the E Street sbX (Corridor 1).

The last alternative route diverts south on La Cadena Avenue, east on M Street, south on Mount Vernon Avenue, east on Washington Street to Barton Road where it connects with the E Street sbX before transitioning north on California Avenue to a terminal at the California Avenue Station of the Redlands Rail line. This alignment includes 18 transit stations and three park-and-ride lots. Nine of the stations studied are optional stations four of the stations are also used by the extended E Street sbX (Corridor 1A).

### **Corridor 6: Holt Avenue/4th Street**

This corridor starts at the Pomona Transcenter in Los Angeles County. Centered along Holt Avenue and 4th Street, the corridor runs from Pomona through Ontario and on to the South Fontana Transcenter. This corridor also Connects the north/south corridors of Corridor 4 Mountain/Euclid Avenues and Corridor 10 Haven Avenue. Besides the transit centers mentioned above and Ontario International Airport (ONT), major activity centers in this corridor include the Ontario Convention Center, Ontario Mills Mall and the Ontario Transit Center. This corridor is one of three corridors studied that extends beyond the Omnitrans coverage area, into Los Angeles County.

### **Potential Alignment**

sbX Route 6 is an east/west BRT route with a western terminal station at the Pomona Transcenter in Los Angeles County. This route follows Holt Avenue through the cities of Montclair and Ontario to Ontario International Airport where it heads north on Archibald Avenue to Inland Empire Boulevard east and then north on Milliken to east on 4<sup>th</sup> Street into the city of Fontana where 4<sup>th</sup> Street changes names to San Bernardino Avenue and the South Fontana Transit Center. This 19 mile alignment (the longest alignment studied here) includes 18 transit stations and three park-and-ride lots. Three of the stations are optional stations, subject to elimination depending on the modelgenerated ridership potential.

### **Corridor 7: Grand/Edison Avenues**

This east-west corridor is essential to connect the future developments in the Agricultural preserves areas with Chino/Chino Hills and possible inter-county transit connections to Los Angeles and Riverside Counties. A likely point of connection will be from the civic center in Chino Hills.

This east-west strip south of State Route 60 in the western section of the Valley serves the planned growth of the agricultural preserve areas of Chino and Ontario. Significant development is planned for the preserve areas with over 100,000 new residents expected within 20 years. Activity centers include the Chino Community Hospital, the Chino Civic Center, and the Chino Transfer Center. This corridor crosses Corridor 4, Mountain/Euclid Avenues and Corridor 10, Haven Avenue. This corridor is one of three corridors studied that extends beyond the Omnitrans coverage area into Riverside County.
# **Potential Alignment**

sbX Route 7 is an east/west BRT route with a western terminal station at the Chino Hills Civic Center. This route follows Grand Avenue across SR-71, heads north on Pipeline Avenue, east on Chino Avenue, and south on Central Avenue before continuing east on Edison Ave through the agricultural preserve areas of Chino and Ontario. This alignment eventually heads south via Milliken Avenue and to Limonite Avenue and the Limonite Shopping center in Riverside County where a terminal station is located. This 16 mile alignment includes 15 transit stations and three park-and-ride lots. Two of the stations are optional stations, subject to elimination depending on ridership potential.

# **Corridor 8: Sierra Avenue**

This new north/south corridor, not analyzed in the previous system-wide plan, lies entirely within the City of Fontana, serving the Fontana Metrolink Station, South Fontana Transfer Center, and Kaiser Hospital.

# **Potential Alignment**

**sbX Route 8** is a north/south BRT route with a northern terminal station at a park-and-ride lot near Interstate 15. This route follows Sierra Avenue through Fontana to a southern terminal station at Kaiser Hospital. This 7 mile alignment (the shortest alignment studied) includes 7 transit stations and three park-and-ride lots. The alignment serves as a spine connecting all four Cross Valley Corridors on Foothill Boulevard and San Bernardino Avenue. Two of the stations are optional stations, subject to elimination depending on ridership potential.

# Corridor 9: Riverside Avenue

This north/south corridor, not analyzed in the previous system-wide plan, lies primarily within the City of Rialto, extending south into Riverside County and the City of Riverside. This corridor serves the Rialto Metrolink Station and the RTA Downtown Terminal in Riverside. This corridor is one of three corridors studied that extends beyond the Omnitrans coverage area, into Riverside County.

# **Potential Alignment**

**sbX Route 9** is a north/south BRT route with a northern terminal station at a park-and-ride lot near Interstate 15 and Sierra Avenue. This route follows Riverside Avenue Southwest and then south through the city of Rialto and then across the Riverside County line where Riverside Avenue Changes Names to Main Street to the RTA Downtown Terminal in Riverside. This Corridor connects with Corridor 2, foothill Boulevard East and Corridor 5, San Bernardino Avenue. This 16 mile alignment includes 15 transit stations and three park-and-ride lots. Several of the stations are optional, subject to elimination depending on ridership potential.

# Corridor 10: Haven Avenue

This north/south corridor, not analyzed in the original system-wide plan, lies within the Cities of Rancho Cucamonga, Ontario and Chino. This corridor serves Chaffey College at the northern Terminus, the Rancho Cucamonga and the East Ontario Metrolink Station, the Terra Vista Town center, the Ontario airport and would end at Edison Avenue where it joins sbX Route 7.

# **Potential Alignment**

**sbX Route 10** is a north/south BRT route with a northern terminal station at the park-andride lot at Chaffey College north of Interstate 210. This route follows Haven Avenue south, past the Terra Vista Shopping Center and Corridor 3 Foothill Boulevard West, with a connection at the Rancho Cucamonga Metrolink Station and into Ontario. In the city of Ontario it connects to Corridor 6, Holt Avenue/4th Street and then south to the East Ontario Metrolink Station to Edison Avenue where it connects to Corridor 7 Grand/Edison Avenue. The 10.4 mile corridor has 9 stops, park-and-ride lots and two connections to Metrolink lines.

# **Additional Transit Services**

In addition, this alternative would introduce new express bus service from park-and ride lots to key destinations. Express buses would use the HOV lanes along freeways such as I-10 and I-215. An initial route could operate from the park-and-ride at I-10/Yucaipa Blvd. to San Bernardino. The following Rail Corridors are included in this alternative:

- Redlands Rail Line Extension from Redlands to Mentone. This would require getting an easement from the MWD.
- Gold Line extension from Montclair to Ontario Airport.
- High Speed Rail connecting Los Angeles to San Diego with a station at the Ontario airport.
- Maglev connecting Anaheim to Las Vegas with a station at the Ontario Airport and a Station in Victorville.
- Aerial Tram to Big Bear from Highland would provide an alternative to the resort area of big bear then the current Highways 18 and 38.

The analysis of the Vision Alternative began by coding all transit routes in the Omnitrans system with high service frequencies – 5minute headways for BRT services and 15minute peak period headways for local services. Iterative model runs (equilibration) were used to fine tune the headways to provide cost-effective service with high seating probability throughout the system.

# 5.5 2035 SUSTAINABLE LAND USE ALTERNATIVE

In order to estimate the potential effect of SB 375 and the potential for transit-oriented development, the LRTP is also analyzing the 2035 Vision alternative using a modified land use not regionally adopted. The transportation networks for the Sustainable Land Use Alternative are identical to the networks studied for the Vision Alternative, as described in Section 5.4 above. This allows the analysis of the Sustainable Land Use Alternative to identify the magnitude of transportation demand impacts that can be directly attributed to land use changes.

Using the regionally adopted land use forecast prepared by SANBAG, the LRTP has reassigned some of the projected growth of each city into ¼ mile station catchment areas. Station areas were increased in density by a maximum of 5 DU/Ac, and 10 Employees per acre. This resulted in an increase of 35-40% of planned growth moved into station areas. Figure 5-4, showing the Sustainable land Use Alternative, displays circles showing the walk area of a ½ mile around BRT stations where the higher density development would be encouraged to increase the potential transit ridership of this alternative. Figures 5-10 and 5-11 display the results of this effect.



# Figure 5-10: Sustainable Population Density Year 2035

Source: Parsons, 2009.







102 PARSONS



# **CHAPTER 6 EVALUATION OF ÅLTERNATIVES**

This chapter begins with a description of existing regional transit plans and planning projects that are under study. These plans form the basis for the four future transit alternatives that are analyzed in the Long Range Transit Plan. The four alternatives are then analyzed for to be able to assess the ridership benefits of different levels of transit investment in the San Bernardino Valley. The four future transit alternatives include:

- The Baseline Alternative, which includes existing transit services;
- The Plan Alternative, which includes an increase in coverage and service frequency designed to serve the future growth in the region;
- The Vision Alternative, which includes an investment in a higher level of transit services – BRT and rail – in the region; and
- The Sustainable Land Use Alternative, which redistributes population and employment growth to transit corridors, allowing us to study the potential ridership benefits of public policy efforts to shape the transit/land use connection in the region.

# 6.1 EVALUATION METHODOLOGY

By definition, each alternative studied provides a higher level of transit service than previous alternatives. The evaluation process will be used to quantify the ridership impacts of each subsequent alternative. Finally, capital costs and operating costs will be estimated to quantify the relative costs of the alternatives. Several service standards are used by Omnitrans to judge the quality of service. Some of these standards are subject to the definition of the alternative, such as the standards for span of service, minimum service frequency and bus stop spacing. Other standards can be quantified from an analysis of the ridership impacts to judge the relative performance of the alternatives. The following service standards will be used to compare the alternatives:

- Route coverage 85% of population should be located within ½ mile of bus stops;
- Vehicle loadings
  - 120% of seating capacity during peak periods;
  - 100% of seating capacity during offpeak periods;
- Ridership levels
  - Tier 1 routes: 30+ boardings per vehicle hour;
  - Tier 2 & 3 routes: 15-20 boardings per vehicle hour.

# 6.2 MODEL RESULTS FOR TRANSIT ALTERNATIVES

#### **BASE ALTERNATIVE**

The Year 2035 Base Alternative provides an idea of how the existing transit service would be used in the future if no service improvements were made to account the rapidly growing population in the San Bernardino Valley. Table 6-1 provides a summary of the Base Alternative transit ridership on each of the Omnitrans routes. This table shows that the Omnitrans bus routes in the Base Alternative will carry over 61,000 riders in the Year 2035. This Draff

			Headway		
Route	Туре	Description	Peak	Off-peak	Riders
1	Local Bus	Colton-Del Rosa	15	15	4,464
2	Local Bus	Cal State-E St-Loma Linda	15	15	5,559
3	Local Bus	Baseline-Highland-San Bernardino	20	20	5,423
5	Local Bus	Cal State-Del Rosa-Downtown SB	30	30	1,674
7	Local Bus	N San Bern-Sierra-Downtown SB	30	60	1,127
8	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Mentone-Yucaipa	60	60	1,562
9	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Redlands-Yucaipa	60	60	1,811
10	Local Bus	Fontana-Baseline-San Bernardino	30	30	1,989
11	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Muscoy	30	30	1,091
14	Local Bus	Fontana-Foothill-San Bernardino	15	15	4,278
15	Local Bus	Fontana-Rialto-SB-Highlands-Redlands	30	30	4,458
19	Local Bus	Redlands-Colton-Fontana	30	30	3,608
20	Local Bus	Fontana-Metrolink	30	30	270
22	Local Bus	S Rialto-N Rialto	30	30	1,701
29	Local Bus	Fontana-Cedar-N Rialto	60	60	124
61	Local Bus	Fontana-Ontario-Pomona	15	15	6,514
63	Local Bus	Chino-Ontario-Upland	30	30	1,385
65	Local Bus	Montclair-Chino Hills	30	30	1,987
66	Local Bus	Fontana-Foothill-Montclair	15	30	2,336
67	Local Bus	Montclair-Baseline-Fontana	60	60	1,133
68	Local Bus	Chino-Montclair-Chaffey	30	30	2,799
80	Local Bus	Montclair-Ontario-Chaffey	30	30	1,607
81	Local Bus	Ontario-Ont. Mills-Chaffey	60	60	930
82	Local Bus	Rancho-Fontana-Sierra Lakes	60	60	1,111
83	Local Bus	Upland-Euclid-Chino	30	60	1,265
215	Express Bus	San Bernardino-Riverside Express	30	30	1,180
Total	·				61,386

#### Table 6-1: Year 2035 Base Alternative Transit Ridership Forecast

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

represents a 25 percent increase over current ridership levels. This ridership increase is significantly less than the forecast population growth of 38 percent over the same time frame.

In the Year 2035 Base Alternative only 69 percent of the future population will be located within walking distance of a bus stop, as compared to 80 percent of the existing population with existing service. The coverage provided by the Base Alternative is significantly lower than existing coverage due to the population growth forecast for areas that are currently undeveloped and not served by transit.

Table 6-2 provides a summary of systemwide performance and productivity measures for the Base Alternative. While the overall productivity of the system increases from 24 to 29 passengers per hour of service, this productivity increase is accompanied by an increase in average vehicle loadings and the number of trips that exceed the maximum passenger load standard.

	Local Bus	BRT	System Total
Peak Vehicles	139	-	139
Off-Peak Vehicles	127	-	127
Spare Vehicles	28	-	28
Total Fleet	167	-	167
Vehicle Miles Traveled	32,100	-	32,100
Vehicle Hours Traveled	2,100	-	2,100
Daily Riders	61,400	-	61,400
Passenger Miles	263,000	-	263,000
Riders per Vehicle Hour	29.2	-	29.2
Average Load	8.2	-	8.2
Average Speed	15.3	-	15.3

Table 6-2: Year 2035 Base Alternative Omnitrans Performance Measures

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

Performance standard summary:

- Route coverage 69% of population located within ½ mile of bus stops – does not meet standard;
- Vehicle loadings
  - 35% of routes have maximum load exceeding 120% of seating capacity during peak periods;
  - 10% of routes have maximum load exceeding 100% of seating capacity during off-peak periods;
  - does not meet standard;
- Ridership levels
  - Tier 1 routes: 36 boardings per vehicle hour –meets standard;
  - Tier 2 & 3 routes: 29 boardings per vehicle hour – exceeds standard (ridership warrants service increase).

#### **PLAN ALTERNATIVE**

The Year 2035 Plan Alternative tests an enhanced transit system where coverage is improved and service frequencies are increased. Table 6-3 provides a summary of the Plan Alternative transit ridership on each of the Omnitrans routes. This table shows that the Omnitrans bus routes in the Plan Alternative will carry over 109,000 riders in the Year 2035. This represents a 79 percent increase over Base Alternative ridership levels. This ridership forecast indicates that there is a very large potential for increased transit ridership if coverage, accessibility, and service frequency are improved.

In the Year 2035 Plan Alternative 83 percent of the future population will be located within walking distance of a bus stop. This figure is an improvement over the current value of 80 percent with existing service and existing population. The coverage provided by the Plan Alternative provides a significant improvement over the Base Alternative due to the introduction of service to areas that are currently undeveloped and not served by transit.

			Headway		
Route	Туре	Description	Peak	Off-peak	Riders
301	BRT	E Street sbX	5	10	8,686
1	Local Bus	Colton-Del Rosa	10	15	4,974
2	Local Bus	Cal State-E St-Loma Linda	20	30	1,757
3	Local Bus	Baseline-Highland-SB-Yucaipa	30	60	2,809
4	Local Bus	Baseline-Highland-San Bernardino	15	20	5,684
5	Local Bus	Cal State-Del Rosa-Downtown SB	30	30	1,366
7	Local Bus	N San Bern-Sierra-Downtown SB	15	30	2,234
8	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Mentone-Yucaipa	15	30	3,626
9	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Redlands-Yucaipa	20	30	2,983
10	Local Bus	Fontana-Baseline-San Bernardino	10	20	4,019
11	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Muscoy	30	30	1,073
14	Local Bus	Fontana-Foothill-San Bernardino	10	15	5,322
15	Local Bus	Fontana-Rialto-SB-Highlands-Redlands	10	15	10,379
19	Local Bus	Redlands-Colton-Fontana	15	15	6,802
22	Local Bus	S Rialto-N Rialto	15	20	2,792
61	Local Bus	Fontana-Ontario-Pomona	10	20	7,963
63	Local Bus	Chino-Ontario-Upland	30	30	1,660
65	Local Bus	Montclair-Chino Hills	15	30	4,085
66	Local Bus	Fontana-Foothill-Montclair	15	20	3,827
67	Local Bus	Montclair-Baseline-Fontana	15	30	2,880
68	Local Bus	Chino-Montclair-Chaffey	15	30	4,418
80	Local Bus	Montclair-Ontario-Chaffey	20	30	2,463
81	Local Bus	Ontario-Ont. Mills-Chaffey	60	60	402
82	Local Bus	Rancho-Fontana-Sierra Lakes	20	30	2,506
83	Local Bus	Upland-Euclid-Chino	15	30	2,515
84	Local Bus	San Bernardino Street E/W Corridor	60	60	352
85	Local Bus	Mountain Avenue N/S Corridor	20	30	2,281
86	Local Bus	Chino-Ontario (Riverside/Milliken)	60	60	697
87	Local Bus	Francis Avenue E/W Corridor	60	0	157
88	Local Bus	Edison Avenue E/W Corridor	30	60	1,257
89	Local Bus	Haven Avenue N/S Corridor	20	60	1,761
93	Local Bus	Cherry Avenue N/S Corridor	60	0	190
94	Local Bus	Cedar/Ayala N/S Corridor	30	60	823
95	Local Bus	Santa Ana Avenue E/W Corridor	60	0	313
96	Local Bus	Sierra Avenue N/S Corridor	30	30	989
97	Local Bus	Chino-Industry Metrolink	60	0	214
98	Local Bus	Yucaipa-Beaumont	30	30	748
99	Local Bus	Palm/Alabama N/S Corridor	30	60	528
215	Express Bus	San Bernardino-Riverside Express	15	30	1,733
Total					109.268

# Table 6-3: Year 2035 Plan Alternative Transit Ridership Forecast

Source: Hexagon, 2009.



Table 6-4 provides a summary of systemwide performance and productivity measures for the Plan Alternative. With the equilibration of the service frequencies in the Plan Alternative, the overall productivity of the system decreases from 30 to 29 passengers per hour of service. This productivity decrease is accompanied by a significant improvement in the average vehicle loadings and the number of trips that exceed the maximum passenger load standard.

Performance standard summary:

- Route coverage 83% of population located within ½ mile of bus stops – Almost meets standard;
- Vehicle loadings
  - 5% of routes have maximum load exceeding 120% of seating capacity during peak periods;
  - 2% of routes have maximum load exceeding 100% of seating capacity during off-peak periods;
  - Almost meets standard;

- Ridership levels
  - Tier 1 routes: 31 boardings per vehicle hour –meets standard;
  - Tier 2 & 3 routes: 17 boardings per vehicle hour – meets standard.

#### **VISION ALTERNATIVE**

The Year 2035 Vision Alternative tests a transit system where local bus routes are replaced by faster, higher capacity BRT services in ten corridors in the San Bernardino Valley. Table 6-5 provides a summary of the Vision Alternative transit ridership on each of the Omnitrans routes. This table shows that the Omnitrans bus routes in the Vision Alternative will carry almost 133,000 riders in the Year 2035. This represents a 21 percent increase over Plan Alternative ridership levels. Over 53,000 of the transit riders in this alternative use BRT routes. This ridership forecast indicates that there is a significant potential for increased transit ridership if vehicle speeds and service frequency are improved in key corridors.

	Local Bus	BRT	System Total
Peak Vehicles	304	21	325
Off-Peak Vehicles	187	10	197
Spare Vehicles	61	5	66
Total Fleet	365	26	391
Vehicle Miles Traveled	59,100	4,300	63,400
Vehicle Hours Traveled	3,690	230	3,920
Daily Riders	100,600	8,700	109,300
Passenger Miles	449,000	34,000	483,000
Riders per Vehicle Hour	27.3	37.8	27.9
Average Load	7.6	7.9	7.6
Average Speed	16.0	18.7	16.2

#### Table 6-4: Year 2035 Plan Alternative Omnitrans Performance Measures

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

			Headway		
				Off-	
Route	Туре	Description	Peak	peak	Riders
301	BRT	E Street sbX Redlands Extension	5	10	10,458
302	BRT	Foothill East sbX	5	10	8,485
303	BRT	Foothill West sbX - Foothill	10	15	4,628
304	BRT	Euclid sbX	10	15	5,504
305	BRT	San Bernardino Avenue sbX - San Bernardino	10	10	5,305
306	BRT	Holt/Fourth sbX	10	15	5,977
307	BRT	Grand/Edison sbX	10	20	2,123
308	BRT	Sierra sbX	10	20	1,561
309	BRT	Riverside sbX	10	10	6,360
310	BRT	Haven sbX	10	15	2,946
1	Local Bus	Colton-Del Rosa	10	15	4,280
2	Local Bus	Cal State-E St-Loma Linda	20	30	1,809
3	Local Bus	Baseline-Highland-SB-Yucaipa	60	60	2,136
4	Local Bus	Baseline-Highland-San Bernardino	20	20	4,817
5	Local Bus	Cal State-Del Rosa-Downtown SB	20	30	1,928
7	Local Bus	N San Bern-Sierra-Downtown SB	20	30	1,843
8	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Mentone-Yucaipa	15	30	3,567
9	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Redlands-Yucaipa	30	30	2,272
10	Local Bus	Fontana-Baseline-San Bernardino	15	30	2,741
11	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Muscoy	30	30	1,127
14	Local Bus	Fontana-Foothill-San Bernardino	20	20	1,747
15	Local Bus	Fontana-Rialto-SB-Highlands-Redlands	10	15	9,874
19	Local Bus	Redlands-Colton-Fontana	20	20	5,043
22	Local Bus	S Rialto-N Rialto	20	30	1,442
61	Local Bus	Fontana-Ontario-Pomona	20	30	3,316
63	Local Bus	Chino-Ontario-Upland	30	30	1,760
65	Local Bus	Montclair-Chino Hills	15	30	3,055
66	Local Bus	Fontana-Foothill-Montclair	20	30	1,837
67	Local Bus	Montclair-Baseline-Fontana	20	30	2,333
68	Local Bus	Chino-Montclair-Chaffey	20	30	3,229
80	Local Bus	Montclair-Ontario-Chaffey	15	30	3,274
81	Local Bus	Ontario-Ont. Mills-Chaffey	60	60	363
82	Local Bus	Rancho-Fontana-Sierra Lakes	20	30	2,922
83	Local Bus	Upland-Euclid-Chino	30	30	844
84	Local Bus	San Bernardino Street E/W Corridor	30	60	652
85	Local Bus	Mountain Avenue N/S Corridor	20	30	1,847
86	Local Bus	Chino-Ontario (Riverside/Milliken)	30	60	980
87	Local Bus	Francis Avenue E/W Corridor	60	60	317
88	Local Bus	Edison Avenue E/W Corridor	30	30	1,225
89	Local Bus	Haven Avenue N/S Corridor	30	30	828
91	Local Bus	Vineyard/Carnelian N/S Corridor	60	0	112
93	Local Bus	Cherry Avenue N/S Corridor	30	60	632
94	Local Bus	Cedar/Ayala N/S Corridor	20	30	1,714
95	Local Bus	Santa Ana Avenue E/W Corridor	60	0	257

# Table 6-5: Year 2035 Vision Alternative Transit Ridership Forecast



			Headway		
Davita	Turne	Description	Deels	Off-	Distance
Route	гуре	Description	Реак	реак	Riders
96	Local Bus	Sierra Avenue N/S Corridor	30	60	578
97	Local Bus	Chino-Industry Metrolink	30	60	487
98	Local Bus	Yucaipa-Beaumont	30	30	746
99	Local Bus	Palm/Alabama N/S Corridor	60	60	839
215	Express Bus	San Bernardino-Riverside Express	30	60	563
BRT Sub-total					53,347
System Total					132,683

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

In the Year 2035 Vision Alternative 83 percent of the future population will be located within walking distance of a bus stop. This figure is identical to the coverage for the Plan Alternative because these two alternatives share common bus stop locations. As with the Plan Alternative, the coverage for the Vision Alternative represents an improvement over the current value of 80 percent with existing service and existing population.

Table 6-6 provides a summary of systemwide performance and productivity measures for the Vision Alternative. With the equilibration of the service frequencies in the Vision Alternative, the overall productivity of the system is maintained at 29 passengers per hour of service. Performance standard summary:

- Route coverage 83% of population located within ½ mile of bus stops – almost meets standard;
- Vehicle loadings
  - 4% of routes have maximum load exceeding 120% of seating capacity during peak periods;
  - 0% of routes have maximum load exceeding 100% of seating capacity during off-peak periods;
  - Almost meets standard;
- Ridership levels
  - Tier 1 routes: 32 boardings per vehicle hour –meets standard;
  - Tier 2 & 3 routes: 17 boardings per vehicle hour meets standard.

Local Bus	BRT	System Total
256	120	376
176	70	246
52	25	77
308	145	453
52,900	29,000	81,900
3,290	1,420	4,710
84,300	53,300	137,600
332,000	247,000	579,000
25.6	37.5	29.2
6.3	8.5	7.1
16.1	20.4	17.4
	Local Bus 256 176 52 308 52,900 3,290 84,300 332,000 25.6 6.3 16.1	Local BusBRT25612017670522530814552,90029,0003,2901,42084,30053,300332,000247,00025.637.56.38.516.120.4

#### Table 6-6: Year 2035 Vision Alternative Omnitrans Performance Measures

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

#### SUSTAINABLE LAND USE ALTERNATIVE

The Year 2035 Sustainable Land Use Alternative tests the impacts of a significant redistribution of the future growth in the San Bernardino Valley. Table 6-7 provides a summary of the Sustainable Land Use Alternative transit ridership on each of the Omnitrans routes. This table shows that the Omnitrans bus routes in the Sustainable Land Use Alternative will carry almost 144,000 riders in the Year 2035. This represents an 8 percent increase over Vision Alternative ridership levels. Over 62,000 of the transit riders in this alternative use BRT routes, which represents a 17 percent increase over Vision Alternative BRT ridership. This ridership forecast indicates that there is a significant potential for increased transit ridership in the San Bernardino Valley if the nature of future development can be controlled.

			Headway		
Route	Туре	Description	Peak	Off-peak	Riders
301	BRT	E Street sbX Redlands Extension	5	10	12,165
302	BRT	Foothill East sbX	5	10	10,192
303	BRT	Foothill West sbX - Foothill	10	15	5,557
304	BRT	Euclid sbX	10	15	6,508
305	BRT	San Bernardino Avenue sbX - San Bernardino	10	10	6,420
306	BRT	Holt/Fourth sbX	10	15	6,770
307	BRT	Grand/Edison sbX	10	20	2,386
308	BRT	Sierra sbX	10	20	1,893
309	BRT	Riverside sbX	10	10	7,342
310	BRT	Haven sbX	10	15	3,361
1	Local Bus	Colton-Del Rosa	10	15	4,427
2	Local Bus	Cal State-E St-Loma Linda	20	30	2,065
3	Local Bus	Baseline-Highland-SB-Yucaipa	60	60	2,097
4	Local Bus	Baseline-Highland-San Bernardino	20	20	4,764
5	Local Bus	Cal State-Del Rosa-Downtown SB	20	30	1,959
7	Local Bus	N San Bern-Sierra-Downtown SB	20	30	1,866
8	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Mentone-Yucaipa	15	30	3,573
9	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Redlands-Yucaipa	30	30	2,256
10	Local Bus	Fontana-Baseline-San Bernardino	15	30	2,695
11	Local Bus	San Bernardino-Muscoy	30	30	1,101
14	Local Bus	Fontana-Foothill-San Bernardino	20	20	1,996
15	Local Bus	Fontana-Rialto-SB-Highlands-Redlands	10	15	9,915
19	Local Bus	Redlands-Colton-Fontana	20	20	5,095
22	Local Bus	S Rialto-N Rialto	20	30	1,527
61	Local Bus	Fontana-Ontario-Pomona	20	30	3,775
63	Local Bus	Chino-Ontario-Upland	30	30	1,787
65	Local Bus	Montclair-Chino Hills	15	30	3,591
66	Local Bus	Fontana-Foothill-Montclair	20	30	2,015
67	Local Bus	Montclair-Baseline-Fontana	20	30	2,331
68	Local Bus	Chino-Montclair-Chaffey	20	30	3,138
80	Local Bus	Montclair-Ontario-Chaffey	15	30	3,090

#### Table 6-7: Year 2035 Sustainable Land Use Alternative Transit Ridership Forecast

			Hea	adway	
Route	Туре	Description	Peak	Off-peak	Riders
81	Local Bus	Ontario-Ont. Mills-Chaffey	60	60	381
82	Local Bus	Rancho-Fontana-Sierra Lakes	20	30	2,887
83	Local Bus	Upland-Euclid-Chino	30	30	<b>9</b> 55
84	Local Bus	San Bernardino Street E/W Corridor	30	60	657
85	Local Bus	Mountain Avenue N/S Corridor	20	30	1,876
86	Local Bus	Chino-Ontario (Riverside/Milliken)	30	60	948
87	Local Bus	Francis Avenue E/W Corridor	60	60	285
88	Local Bus	Edison Avenue E/W Corridor	30	30	1,381
89	Local Bus	Haven Avenue N/S Corridor	30	30	874
91	Local Bus	Vineyard/Carnelian N/S Corridor	60	0	112
93	Local Bus	Cherry Avenue N/S Corridor	30	60	558
94	Local Bus	Cedar/Ayala N/S Corridor	20	30	1,573
95	Local Bus	Santa Ana Avenue E/W Corridor	60	0	274
96	Local Bus	Sierra Avenue N/S Corridor	30	60	614
97	Local Bus	Chino-Industry Metrolink	30	60	573
98	Local Bus	Yucaipa-Beaumont	30	30	760
99	Local Bus	Palm/Alabama N/S Corridor	60	60	823
215	Express Bus	San Bernardino-Riverside Express	30	60	543
BRT Sub-total					62,594
System Total					143,731

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

In the Year 2035 Vision Plan Alternative 85 percent of the future population will be located within walking distance of a bus stop. This figure is higher than the coverage for the Plan and Vision Alternatives because much of the population growth in the Sustainable Land Use Alternative is redistributed to BRT station areas. Table 6-8 provides a summary of systemwide performance and productivity measures for the Sustainable Land Use Alternative. With the service frequencies maintained from the Vision Alternative, the overall productivity of the system increases from 29 to 31 passengers per hour of service.

	Local Bus	BRT	System Total
Peak Vehicles	256	120	376
Off-Peak Vehicles	176	70	246
Spare Vehicles	52	25	77
Total Fleet	308	145	453
Vehicle Miles Traveled	52,900	29,000	81,900
Vehicle Hours Traveled	3,290	1,420	4,710
Daily Riders	86,100	62,600	148,700
Passenger Miles	357,000	294,000	651,000
Riders per Vehicle Hour	26.2	44.1	31.6
Average Load	6.7	10.1	7.9
Average Speed	16.1	20.4	17.4

Table 6-8:	Year 2035 Sustainable	Land Use Alternative	<b>Omnitrans</b> Per	formance Measures

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

Governments SANBAG Performance standard summary:

- Route coverage 85% of population located within ½ mile of bus stops –meets standard;
- Vehicle loadings
  - 4% of routes have maximum load exceeding 120% of seating capacity during peak periods;
  - 0% of routes have maximum load exceeding 100% of seating capacity during off-peak periods;
  - Almost meets standard;
- Ridership levels
  - Tier 1 routes: 35 boardings per vehicle hour –meets standard;
  - Tier 2 & 3 routes: 18 boardings per vehicle hour meets standard.

# 6.3 COMPARISON OF ALTERNATIVES

All Four Alternatives are compared according to three sets of criteria: Omnitrans Performance Measures; Fleet Expansion and Capital Costs; and Operating and Maintenance Costs.

#### **Omnitrans Performance Measures**

As Omnitrans is the local transit provider in the San Bernardino Valley comparing the alternatives has a direct impact on Omnitrans service and operation requirements. The performance statistics documented here display the results of the equilibration efforts described earlier in this chapter.

Table 6-9 presents a summary comparison of Omnitrans fixed-route system-wide performance measures for the four alternatives. The four alternatives range in vehicle requirements and total fleet size from 167 vehicles in the Base Alternative, up to 391 vehicles in the Plan Alternative and 453 vehicles in the Vision and Sustainable Alternatives. Other service measures (VMT and VHT) exhibit similar growth through the alternatives. Ridership statistics (riders and passenger miles) increase along with service growth for the Plan and Vision Alternatives. Additional ridership growth is associated with the development changes in the Sustainable Land Use Alternative.

#### **Fleet Expansion and Capital Costs**

Table 6-10 presents a summary comparison of the Omnitrans fixed-route fleet expansion programs for the Base, Plan and Vision alternatives. These expansion programs assume that the fleet expansion will be constrained for the next five years, due to existing funding constraints, and that fleet expansion in the Plan and Vision Alternatives will begin in Year 2014 and continue at a rapid pace through the Year 2035. The replacement schedule for both standard and BRT vehicles assumes a 12-year lifespan for each vehicle.

Table 6-11 presents a summary comparison of capital costs for Omnitrans fleet expansion for the Base, Plan and Vision Alternatives. All tables display the capital costs in constant Year 2009 dollars, and bus costs are assumed to be \$517,000 for standard coaches and \$998,000 for articulated coaches for BRT service. This table shows that the total cost for vehicle purchase will almost double from \$182 million in the Base Alternative to \$343 million in the Plan Alternative. Under the Vision Alternative the total cost for vehicle purchases will be \$473 million, almost 40 percent higher than in the Plan Alternative.



	Base Alt.	Plan Alt.	Vision Alt.	Sustainable Alt.
Peak Vehicles	139	325	376	376
Off-Peak Vehicles	127	197	246	246
Spare Vehicles	28	66	77	77
Total Fleet	167	391	453	453
Vehicle Miles Traveled	32,100	63,400	81,900	81,900
Vehicle Hours Traveled	2,100	3,920	4,710	4,710
Daily Riders	61,400	109,300	137,600	148,700
Passenger Miles	263,000	483,000	579,000	651,000
Riders per Vehicle Hour	29.2	27.9	29.2	31.6
Average Load	8.2	7.6	7.1	7.9
Average Speed	15.3	16.2	17.4	17.4
Annual Riders	18,911,000	33,664,000	42,381,000	45,800,000
c II 0000				

# Table 6-9: Comparison of Alternatives for Omnitrans Performance Measures

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

# Table 6-10: Fleet Expansion Plans for Alternatives

	2009	2014	2020	2025	2030	2035			
Base Alternative									
Standard Bus									
Peak	139	139	139	139	139	139			
Off-Peak	127	127	127	127	127	127			
Spare	28	28	28	28	28	28			
Total Standard	167	167	167	167	167	167			
Replacement		70	84	70	70	70			
Expansion		0	0	0	0	0			
Total Standard Purchase		70	84	70	70	70			
Total Fleet	167	167	167	167	167	167			
Total Purchase		70	84	70	70	70			
Plan Alternative									
Standard Bus									
Peak	139	134	169	205	249	304			
Off-Peak	127	122	138	153	169	187			
Spare	28	27	34	42	50	61			
Total Standard	167	161	203	247	299	365			
Replacement		64	84	67	85	103			
Expansion		0	42	44	52	66			
Total Standard Purchase		64	126	111	137	169			
BRT Bus									
Peak	0	11	11	11	21	21			
Off-Peak	0	7	7	7	10	10			
Spare	0	3	3	3	5	5			
Total BRT Bus	0	14	14	14	26	26			
Replacement		0	0	14	0	0			
Expansion		14	0	0	12	0			
Total BRT Bus Purchase		14	0	14	12	0			
Total Fleet	167	175	217	261	325	391			
Total Purchase		78	126	125	149	169			

Draff

# SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY LONG RANGE TRANSIT PLAN

	2000	2014	2020	2025	2020	2025
	2009	2014	2020	2025	2030	2030
Vision Alternative						
Standard Bus						
Peak	139	134	161	188	219	256
Off-Peak	127	122	135	147	160	176
Spare	28	27	33	38	44	52
Total	167	161	194	226	263	308
Replacement		64	84	67	81	94
Expansion		0	33	32	37	45
Total Standard Purchase		64	117	99	118	139
BRT Bus						
Peak	0	11	32	59	93	120
Off-Peak	0	7	19	34	54	70
Spare	0	3	7	12	19	25
Total	0	14	39	71	112	145
Replacement		0	0	14	16	30
Expansion		14	25	32	41	33
Total BRT Bus Purchase		14	25	46	57	63
Total Fleet	167	175	233	297	375	453
Total Purchase		78	142	145	175	202

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

# Table 6-11: Omnitrans Fleet Replacement and Expansion Capital Costs for Alternatives

2010 –	2016 –	2021 –	2026 -	2031 -	2010-2035
2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	Total
84	70	70	70	70	364
\$43.43	\$36.19	\$36.19	\$36.19	\$36.19	\$188.19
\$71.2	\$59.3	\$59.3	\$59.3	\$59.3	\$308.4
79	111	111	137	169	607
\$40.84	\$57.39	\$57.39	\$70.83	\$87.37	\$313.82
14	0	14	12	0	40
\$13.97	\$0.00	\$13.97	\$11.97	\$0.00	\$39.90
\$54.81	\$57.39	\$71.35	\$82.80	\$87.37	\$353.72
\$67.9	\$85.8	\$103.3	\$102.6	\$197.8	\$482.9
77	104	99	118	139	537
\$39.81	\$53.77	\$51.18	\$61.01	\$71.86	\$277.63
14	25	46	57	63	205
\$13.97	\$24.94	\$45.89	\$56.86	\$62.84	\$204.49
\$53.77	\$78.71	\$97.07	\$117.86	\$134.71	\$482.12
\$66.6	\$81.3	\$95.5	\$110.3	\$141.3	\$495.0
	2010 - 2015 84 \$43.43 \$71.2 79 \$40.84 14 \$13.97 \$54.81 \$67.9 77 \$39.81 14 \$13.97 \$39.81 14 \$13.97 \$53.77 \$66.6	$\begin{array}{c c} 2010 - \\ 2015 \\ \hline 2020 \\ \hline 202$	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c } 2010 - & 2016 - & 2021 - & 2025 \\ \hline & & & & & & & & \\ 84 & 70 & 70 & \\ \$43.43 & \$36.19 & \$36.19 & \\ \$71.2 & \$59.3 & \$59.3 & \\ \hline & & & & & & & \\ \$79 & 111 & 111 & \\ \$40.84 & \$57.39 & \$57.39 & \\ 14 & 0 & 14 & \\ \$13.97 & \$0.00 & \$13.97 & \\ \$54.81 & \$57.39 & \$71.35 & \\ \$67.9 & \$85.8 & \$103.3 & \\ \hline & & & & & & \\ \$77 & 104 & 99 & \\ \$39.81 & \$53.77 & \$51.18 & \\ 14 & 25 & 46 & \\ \$13.97 & \$24.94 & \$45.89 & \\ \$53.77 & \$78.71 & \$97.07 & \\ \$66.6 & \$81.3 & \$95.5 & \\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $

<sup>1</sup>Assumes replacement cost of \$517,000 per standard bus. <sup>2</sup>Assumes cost of \$998,000 per BRT vehicle. Source: Hexagon, 2009.

Draff



This table also includes an estimate of other capital costs that are likely to be incurred through the year 2035. These other capital costs include the costs for preventive maintenance, non-service vehicles, Transcenter construction, facility upgrades and security elements that are currently funded by capital funding sources. These elements are projected as a function of the vehicle capital costs, and reflect the higher capital costs that will be required to maintain a larger vehicle fleet.

Table 6-12 presents a summary of capital costs for BRT projects in the Vision Alternative. The cost estimates include capital costs that are subject to possible FTA New Starts/Small Starts funding. These costs include running way, stations, and full fleet requirement for the year 2035, not just the opening year fleet requirement. The costs in Table 6-12 don't account for replacement costs for BRT vehicles after their 12 year lifespan. Replacement vehicle costs are covered in Table 6-11.

The capital cost estimates are allocated to potential BRT projects using the capital cost

estimates for the E Street BRT project as a basis. The total cost estimate for the E Street Corridor Project between Palm Station in northern San Bernardino and the VA Hospital in Loma Linda is \$170 million (in Year 2009 dollars). The E Street Project includes 5.3 miles of exclusive guideway along a 15.7 mile alignment, with 16 stations and 11 vehicles in peak service. The E Street capital cost estimate is used to allocate costs for other BRT projects, based on the relative alignment lengths, and numbers of stations and peak vehicles in service.

Table 6-12 shows that the total capital cost for the ten BRT corridors under study in the Vision Alternative will amount to over \$1.67 billion in Year 2009 dollars.

Table 6-13 presents a summary comparison of capital costs for major transit investments in the San Bernardino Valley that vary for the Base, Plan and Vision Alternatives. This table is in a preliminary form that will require further research to refine the cost estimates and timing for several of the capital cost elements. The Base Alternative includes only

sbX Corridor	Description	Length (mi)	Stations	Peak Vehicles	Capital Costs
1	E Street Corridor (to California)	18.3	16	24	\$235.0
2	Foothill Boulevard East	16.6	16	21	\$214.5
3	Foothill Boulevard West	16.2	15	10	\$165.5
4	Euclid Avenue to Corona	17.9	14	12	\$179.3
5	San Bernardino Avenue	11.0	12	7	\$118.7
6	Holt Avenue/4th Street	20.4	18	13	\$207.6
7	Grand/Edison Avenues	17.4	16	11	\$178.7
8	Sierra Avenue	7.6	7	5	\$78.7
9	Riverside Avenue	16.4	16	11	\$173.6
10	Haven Avenue	10.4	10	7	\$109.4
	Total	152.2	140	121	\$1,661.1

Table 6-12: Capital Costs for BRT Corridors in Vision Alternative

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

	2010 - 2015	2016 - 2020	2021 - 2025	2026 - 2030	2031 - 2035	2010-2035 Total
Base Alternative						
Omnitrans Fleet	\$43.43	\$36.19	\$36.19	\$36.19	\$36.19	\$188.19
ADA Fleet *	\$11.25	\$13.50	\$11.25	\$11.25	\$11.25	\$58.50
Omnitrans Other Costs	\$71.2	\$59.3	\$59.3	\$59.3	\$59.3	\$308.4
Metrolink Strategic	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Base Alternative Total	\$125.88	\$108.99	\$106.74	\$106.74	\$106.74	\$555.09
Plan Alternative						
Omnitrans Fleet (exclude NS)	\$40.84	\$57.39	\$71.35	\$70.83	\$87.37	\$327.78
ADA Fleet *	\$11.25	\$13.50	\$11.25	\$11.25	\$11.25	\$58.50
Omnitrans Other Costs	\$67.9	\$85.8	\$103.3	\$102.6	\$197.8	\$482.9
BRT Corridor New Starts	\$170.65	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$36.00	\$0.00	\$206.65
Redlands Rail	\$0.00	\$240.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$240.00
Gold Line	\$0.00	\$50.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$50.00
Metrolink Extension	\$0.00	\$40.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$40.00
Metrolink Strategic	\$120.00	\$110.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$230.00
Plan Alternative Total	\$410.65	\$596.69	\$185.90	\$220.68	\$296.42	\$1,635.84
Vision Alternative						
Omnitrans Fleet (exclude NS)	\$39.81	\$53.77	\$65.15	\$76.97	\$101.79	\$337.48
ADA Fleet *	\$11.25	\$13.50	\$11.25	\$11.25	\$11.25	\$58.50
Omnitrans Other Costs	\$66.6	\$81.3	\$95.5	\$110.3	\$141.3	\$495.0
BRT Corridor New Starts	\$170.65	\$375.70	\$375.70	\$375.70	\$375.70	\$1,673.45
Redlands Rail	\$0.00	\$240.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$240.00
Gold Line	\$0.00	\$50.00	\$100.00	\$100.00	\$0.00	\$250.00
Metrolink Extension	\$0.00	\$40.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$40.00
Metrolink Strategic	\$120.00	\$110.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$230.00
Vision Alternative Total	\$408.31	\$964 27	\$647.60	\$674 22	\$630.04	\$3 324 43

# Table 6-13: Total Capital Costs for Alternatives

\*Assumes 90 vehicle fleet size and 4-year life span for ADA vehicles with \$100,000 replacement cost. Source: Hexagon, 2009.

the \$555 million cost for replacement of standard coaches for Omnitrans fixed-route services, and other capital costs associated with the current fleet. The Plan Alternative adds the costs of expanding the Omnitrans fixed-route services, plus introduction of the E Street sbX BRT service, the Redlands Rail Commuter Rail service, MTA Gold Line extension to Montclair, Metrolink extension from the Santa Fe Depot to the San Bernardino Transit Station, and funding elements of the SCRRA for the 2015 and 2020 A Scenarios. These projects will increase the capital cost burden of the Plan Alternative to over \$1.1 billion dollars over the next 26 years.



The Vision Alternative adds the costs of completing a system of ten BRT corridors, and extending the MTA Gold Line to Ontario Airport. These projects will increase the capital cost burden of the Vision Alternative to almost \$3.3 billion over the next 26 years.

#### **Operating Costs**

Tables 6-14 through 6-16 present operating and maintenance cost summaries for the Base, Plan and Vision Alternatives. These tables display the gross operating cost estimates for six representative years from 2009 to 2035, before accounting for farebox recovery revenue. The operating cost estimates are calculated as function of the total vehicle hours of service operated by each service component in the alternative.

Operating and maintenance costs for the Base Alternative are summarized in Table 6-14. This alternative includes the provision of Omnitrans fixed-route services, Omnitrans ADA services (Omnilink and Access), and Metrolink services. The costs for Omnitrans services are derived from Omnitrans' Year 2009 operating plan and budget. The cost of Metrolink services includes only San Bernardino County's share of the total Metrolink costs, based on the Year 2009-2010 SCRRA budget. Table 6-14 shows that the O&M cost of the Base Alternative will remain constant into future years.

Operating and maintenance costs for the Plan Alternative are summarized in Table 6-15. This alternative includes the provision of Omnitrans fixed-route, BRT and ADA services, Metrolink, Redlands Rail and Metro Gold Line (to Montclair) services. The O&M cost of Metrolink service include the implementation of the Extension of Metrolink services to the San Bernardino Transit Center and implementation of the Metrolink Strategic Plan. The cost of Redlands Rail services are based on preliminary operating plans and cost estimates for the Redlands Rail Alternatives Analysis. The cost of Metro Gold Line services includes only San Bernardino County's share of the planned Gold Line extension into San Bernardino County, with operating unit costs based on recent MTA documentation. Table 6-15 shows that the yearly O&M cost of the Plan Alternative will increase steadily from less than \$90 million in Year 2009 to more than \$170 million in 2035.

Operating and maintenance costs for the Vision Alternative are summarized in Table 6-16. This alternative includes the provision of Omnitrans fixed-route, BRT and ADA services, Metrolink, Redlands Rail and Metro Gold Line (to Ontario Airport) services. Table 6-16 shows that the O&M cost of the Vision Alternative will increase steadily from less than \$90 million in Year 2009 to more than \$207 million in 2035.

Table 6-17 presents a summary of net O&M costs for the Base, Plan and Vision Alternatives. This table uses constant farebox recovery ratios to convert gross O&M costs to net O&M costs for each of the systems in the alternatives. The farebox recovery ratios are based on recently collected data. The data in Table 6-17 shows that the net O&M costs for the Plan and Vision Alternatives would increase by 90 percent and 130 percent, respectively, from current levels.

Table 6-18 presents a summary comparison of system-wide O&M costs aggregated to different time periods through the year 2035. This table shows that the total net O&M cost burden for the Base Alternative through the year 2035 will be approximately \$1.62 billion, as compared to \$2.35 billion for the Plan Alternative and \$ 2.63 billion for the Vision Alternative.

	2009	2014	2020	2025	2030	2035
Omnitrans - Standard Bus						
Annual VHT	646,800	646,800	646,800	646,800	646,800	646,800
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$57.03	\$57.03	\$57.03	\$57.03	\$57.03	\$57.03
Omnitrans - ADA Vehicle						
Annual VHT	164,900	164,900	164,900	164,900	164,900	164,900
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90
Metrolink *						
Annual VHT	48,950	48,950	48,950	48,950	48,950	48,950
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$21.54	\$21.54	\$21.54	\$21.54	\$21.54	\$21.54
Total O&M Costs (\$M)	\$89.47	\$89.47	\$89.47	\$89.47	\$89.47	\$89.47

### Table 6-14: Gross Operating and Maintenance Costs for Base Alternative

\*San Bernardino County share of total.

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

	2009	2014	2020	2025	2030	2035
Omnitrans - Standard Bus						
Annual VHT	646,800	622,200	736,100	850,100	979,400	1,136,500
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$57.03	\$54.87	\$64.91	\$74.96	\$86.36	\$100.22
Omnitrans - BRT Bus						
Annual VHT	0	30,600	43,100	43,100	70,800	70,800
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$0.00	\$3.91	\$3.80	\$3.80	\$6.24	\$6.24
Omnitrans - ADA Vehicle						
Annual VHT	164,900	164,900	164,900	164,900	164,900	164,900
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90
Metrolink *						
Annual VHT	48,950	74,809	92,015	92,015	92,015	92,015
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$21.54	\$32.92	\$40.49	\$40.49	\$40.49	\$40.49
Redlands Rail						
Annual VHT	0	0	20,400	20,400	20,400	20,400
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$9.18	\$9.18	\$9.18	\$9.18
MTA Gold Line *						
Annual VHT	0	0	8,400	8,400	8,400	8,400
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$3.19	\$3.19	\$3.19	\$3.19
Total O&M Costs	\$89.47	\$102.60	\$132.47	\$142.52	\$156.36	\$170.22

#### Table 6-15: Gross Operating and Maintenance Costs for Plan Alternative

\*San Bernardino County share of total.

Source: Hexagon, 2009.



	2009	2014	2020	2025	2030	2035
Omnitrans - Standard Bus						
Annual VHT	646,800	622,200	714,600	800,800	896,300	1,013,300
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$57.03	\$54.87	\$63.01	\$70.61	\$79.04	\$89.35
Omnitrans - BRT Bus						
Annual VHT	0	30,600	117,000	212,500	335,700	437,400
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$0.00	\$3.91	\$10.32	\$18.74	\$29.60	\$38.57
Omnitrans - ADA Vehicle						
Annual VHT	164,900	164,900	164,900	164,900	164,900	164,900
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90	\$10.90
Metrolink *						
Annual VHT	48,950	74,809	92,015	92,015	92,015	92,015
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$21.54	\$32.92	\$40.49	\$40.49	\$40.49	\$40.49
Redlands Rail						
Annual VHT	0	0	20,400	20,400	20,400	20,400
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$9.18	\$9.18	\$9.18	\$9.18
MTA Gold Line *						
Annual VHT	0	0	8,400	8,400	49,000	49,000
Annual O&M Cost (\$M)	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$3.19	\$3.19	\$18.62	\$18.62
Total O&M Costs	\$89.47	\$102.60	\$137.09	\$153.11	\$187.83	\$207.11

# Table 6-16: Gross Operating and Maintenance Costs for Vision Alternative

\*San Bernardino County share of total.

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

(SANBAG Costs in \$M 2009)										
	Farebox Recovery	2009	2014	2020	2025	2030	2035			
Base Alternative										
Omnitrans - Standard Bus	24%	\$43.40	\$43.40	\$43.40	\$43.40	\$43.40	\$43.40			
Omnitrans - ADA Vehicle	12%	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59			
Metrolink *	57%	\$9.35	\$9.35	\$9.35	\$9.35	\$9.35	\$9.35			
Total Net O&M Costs		\$62.34	\$62.34	\$62.34	\$62.34	\$62.34	\$62.34			
Plan Alternative										
Omnitrans - Standard Bus	24%	\$43.40	\$41.76	\$49.40	\$57.04	\$65.72	\$76.27			
Omnitrans - BRT Bus	24%	\$0.00	\$2.98	\$2.89	\$2.89	\$4.75	\$4.75			
Omnitrans - ADA Vehicle	12%	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59			
Metrolink *	57%	\$9.35	\$14.29	\$17.57	\$17.57	\$17.57	\$17.57			
Redlands Rail	25%	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$6.89	\$6.89	\$6.89	\$6.89			
MTA Gold Line	15%	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$2.71	\$2.71	\$2.71	\$2.71			
Total Net O&M Costs		\$62.34	\$68.61	\$89.05	\$96.70	\$107.23	\$117.78			
Vision Alternative										
Omnitrans - Standard Bus	24%	\$43.40	\$41.76	\$47.95	\$53.73	\$60.15	\$68.00			
Omnitrans - BRT Bus	24%	\$0.00	\$2.98	\$7.85	\$14.26	\$22.53	\$29.35			

# Table 6-17: Net Operating and Maintenance Costs for Alternatives

Draff

# SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY LONG RANGE TRANSIT PLAN

	Farebox Recovery	2009	2014	2020	2025	2030	2035
Omnitrans - ADA Vehicle	12%	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59	\$9.59
Metrolink *	57%	\$9.35	\$14.29	\$17.57	\$17.57	\$17.57	\$17.57
Redlands Rail	25%	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$6.89	\$6.89	\$6.89	\$6.89
MTA Gold Line	15%	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$2.71	\$2.71	\$15.83	\$15.83
Total Net O&M Costs		\$62.34	\$68.61	\$92.57	\$104.76	\$132.55	\$147.22

\*Recovery ratio includes other operating revenue.

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

#### Table 6-18: Total Operating and Maintenance Costs for Alternatives

	2010 - 2015	2016 - 2020	2021- 2025	2026- 2030	2031- 2035	2010- 2035
Base Alternative						
Gross O&M Costs	\$536.82	\$447.35	\$447.35	\$447.35	\$447.35	\$2,326.22
Net O&M Costs	\$374.04	\$311.70	\$311.70	\$311.70	\$311.70	\$1,620.84
Plan Alternative						
Gross O&M Costs	\$589.34	\$602.61	\$692.50	\$754.12	\$823.38	\$3,461.95
Net O&M Costs	\$399.12	\$404.37	\$468.19	\$515.08	\$567.79	\$2,354.56
Vision Alternative						
Gross O&M Costs	\$589.34	\$616.47	\$733.51	\$869.71	\$996.99	\$3,806.02
Net O&M Costs	\$399.12	\$414.92	\$499.40	\$607.17	\$706.77	\$2,627.38

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

Draff

120 PARSONS



# CHAPTER 7 VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT ALTERNATIVES

# 7.1 VICTOR VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Victor Valley Transit Authority (VVTA) is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) established in 1991 and comprised of five jurisdictions; the cities of Adelanto, Hesperia, and Victorville, the town of Apple Valley, and several unincorporated areas of San Bernardino County including Phelan, Pinon Hills, Wrightwood, Lucerne Valley, Helendale, and Oro Grande. The Board of Directors of the Victor Valley Transit Authority includes representatives from the above jurisdictions, who contract out management and operations.

VVTA is the second largest transit operator in San Bernardino County and operates 18 local fixed routes with a mixed fleet of 38 buses. The local bus routes include eight core bus routes that connect at least two major activity centers, seven circulator (or deviation) routes that connect sparsely populated neighborhoods to the core routes, and three remote routes that connect remote unincorporated areas to the heart of the Victor Valley cities.

The eighteen fixed bus routes currently operated by VVTA are summarized in Tables 7-1 and 7-2. Table 7-1 displays the type of service, service frequency, and number of peak vehicles used on each route. Table 7-2 summarizes the cities and activity centers served by each route. The city of Victorville is served by 12 routes; the city of Hesperia and the town of Apple Valley are each served by five routes; and the city of Adelanto is served by three routes. Buses operate from 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. on Saturday. There is no Sunday service. In addition to the 18 fixed-route schedules, VVTA operates a fleet of 27 cutaway vehicles for ADA Complementary paratransit bus services for the Victor Valley Area. Additional deviated service to Wrightwood, Pinon Hills, Phelan, Helendale, and Lucerne Valley is available by reservation.

The most recent comprehensive analysis of transit service in the Victor Valley is documented in Operations and Growth Analysis – Victor Valley Transit Authority – Draft Final Report (March 2007). This data resource shows that, in 2006, VVTA fixed route service carried approximately 3,300 daily transit riders. Significant system-wide performance statistics from this report include: 1.07 average boardings per vehicle mile and 17.3 average boardings per vehicle hour. The average mode share for fixed route transit is less than 0.15% of total trips in the Victor Valley. By comparison, the average mode share in the San Bernardino Valley is 0.77%.

The VVTA system is designed primarily to provide reliable coverage to a sparsely populated area. GIS estimates show that over 80 percent of the Victor Valley population is within one-quarter mile of a VVTA bus route. Almost all of the local fixed routes operated by VVTA are less than 12 miles in length which allows them to operate at 60 minute headways, thus allowing each route to be served by a single vehicle while providing easy to use clock-face service.

				20	09 Headw	vay	Peak
Route	Description	Туре	Miles	AM	Mid	PM	Vehicles
21	Tri-Community	County	33.2	90	90	90	2
22	Helendale	County	48.1	120	120	120	1
23	Lucerne Valley	County	50.7	90	90	90	1
31	Adelanto-Victorville	Core	17.8	60	60	60	2
32	Adelanto-Victorville North	Core	20.6	60	60	60	1
33	Adelanto Circulator	Circulator	25.0	60	60	60	1
40	Apple Valley North	Circulator	15.1	60	60	60	1
41	Apple Valley/Victorville	Core	23.7	60	60	60	2
43	Apple Valley/Victor Valley College	Core	17.8	60	30	30	2
44	Victor Valley Mall/Hesperia	Core	28.5	60	60	60	2
45	Victorville/Hesperia	Core	47.9	30	30	30	3
46	Hesperia Deviation	Circulator	11.4	60	60	60	1
47	Apple Valley South Deviation	Circulator	11.7	60	60	60	1
48	Hesperia West	Circulator	20.0	60	60	60	1
51	Victorville Circulator	Circulator	11.6	60	60	60	1
52	Victorville/Mall	Circulator	17.3	60	60	60	1
53	Victor Valley College/Mall	Core	14.7	60	30	30	3
54	Victorville West	Circulator	15.4	60	60	60	1
Total Ve	hicles						27

#### Table 7-1: Existing VVTA Transit Routes

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

#### Table 7-2: VVTA Transit Route Service Areas

	VVTA Route														
Cities	31	32	33	40	41	43	44	45	46	47	48	51	52	53	54
Adelanto	Х	Х	Х												Х
Apple Valley				Х	Х	Х									
Hesperia						Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х			Х	
Victorville	Х	Х			Х		Х	Х				Х	Х	Х	
Activity Centers															
Adelanto City Hall		Х	Х												
Apple Valley City Hall				Х	Х										
Apple Valley High School						Х				Х					
Apple Valley Post Office				Х	Х	Х				Х					
Desert Valley Hospital								Х						Х	
Hesperia High School							Х				Х				
Hesperia Post Office							Х		Х		Х				
Mall of Victor Valley							Х						Х	Х	
Rite Aid	Х	Х			Х			Х				Х	Х		
Saint Mary's Hospital					Х										
SCLA		Х													
Silverado High School	Х														Х
Sultana High School							Х		Х						
Victor Valley Community College						Х	Х	Х						Х	
Victor Valley Hospital					Х							Х			
Victor Valley Transit Center					Х							Х			
Victorville City Hall	Х												Х		
Source: Hexagon, 2009.															



Transit service into the San Bernardino Valley is currently provided by Greyhound Lines. SANBAG and VVTA have implemented a ticket subsidy program that provides discounted fares for trips from Victor Valley into San Bernardino Valley and into Barstow.

# 7.2 EXISTING ACTIVITY CENTERS

Seven major activity centers are used to anchor the core transit routes in the existing VVTA transit network. These include Adelanto City Hall, Apple Valley Post Office, Hesperia Post Office, Mall of Victor Valley, 7th and Lorene (Rite Aid), Victor Valley College, and Victor Valley Transit Center.

The Mall of Victor Valley, located on Bear Valley Road in Victorville is one of the largest regional shopping centers between San Bernardino and Las Vegas. The mall is anchored by major department stores and serves as a major trip generator for VVTA. Bear Valley Road east of I-15 includes the largest concentration of strip-mall and bigbox retail uses in the surrounding area, and this commercial area is continuing to intensify. Additionally, there are multiple shopping centers and strip malls that offer shopping and dining options.

The Victor Valley Community College, located off Bear Valley Road, generates many trips, as well as the various high schools dispersed around the valley. With more than 200 physicians and surgeons, the Victor Valley area provides many medical facilities, clinics, and hospitals. The largest of these are Desert Valley Medical Center, St. Mary Regional Medical Center and Victor Valley Community Hospital. Desert Valley Hospital is located on the campus of Prime Care Desert Valley Medical Center on Bear Valley Road. St. Mary's Hospital in Apple Valley is located on Kasota Road, just off Highway 18; and Victor Valley Community Hospital is located on Eleventh Street in Victorville.

# 7.3 Existing Demographics

The socioeconomic data is derived from the SCAG RTP, aggregated to 60 TAZ in the Victor Valley. The population and employment for the individual cities in the Victor Valley is displayed in Table 7-3.

The Victor Valley currently has very low density development that is not conducive to efficient high-capacity transit service. The average existing population density in the Victor Valley cities is approximately 1.6 persons per acre, as compared to 5.2 persons per acre in the San Bernardino Valley. The existing population and employment densities for the TAZ in the Victor Valley are displayed graphically in Figures 7-1 and 7-2, respectively.

City	2005 Population	2005 Employment
Adelanto City	24,156	5,125
Apple Valley Town	65,760	12,488
Hesperia City	78,284	14,934
Victorville City	90,913	31,425
Total Victor Valley	259,113	63,972
Source: SCAG. 2009.		

#### Table 7-3: Victor Valley Population and Employment





Draff





Governments SANBAG Working Together

# 7.4 PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

The Victor Valley region is a pro-growth region that has experienced rapid development during the last economic growth cycle. It is expected that the progrowth attitude will continue once favorable economic conditions return. Growth in the area has been characterized by low-density development, however to comply with SB 375 it is expected that any future growth take into consideration the Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) generated.

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA LOGISTICS AIRPORT (SCLA)

By far, the largest generator of economic activity in the Victor Valley region is anticipated to be the Southern California Logistics Airport (SCLA). SCLA encompasses some 5,000 acres and, according to plans, when it is built out it will accommodate up to 6,000 employees. Currently, there are 60 tenants on the airport site. Some of the uses that either now or will occur on this site are expected to include:

- Air cargo services
- Aviation maintenance
- Military Defense Programs
- Flight Testing
- Advanced Flight Training
- Charter Passenger Service
- Business & Executive Jet Travel Center
- Warehousing and logistics
- Automotive and manufacturing support
- Rail distribution
- Office and other commercial development
- Foreign trade zone
- Real Estate Development

According to the SCAG 2030 Regional Transportation Plan, air cargo activity at the airport will rise to 81,000 tons by 2010. There are currently over 100 businesses housed at SCLA. The majority of these activities are in the warehousing, logistics activities and aviation related activities. Current employment is estimated at around 2,500. SCLA is currently undergoing construction and will operate a warehousing and distribution complex containing 64 million square feet of space.

At present, there is no commercial passenger service originating from SCLA. While the primary function of this airport will continue to be air cargo and other aviation related activity, there will also be some modest demand for passenger service however **Ontario International Airport will still** primarily serve travel needs. Almost none of the demand for this airport will originate from outside the Mojave desert. In order to accommodate this service, this airport is planned for a new passenger terminal facility, passenger parking, ground access improvements and ramp improvements. With a 2030 forecast of 4 million annual passengers, the airport would be similar to current passenger activity at Reno/Tahoe International Airport.

# 7.5 TRAVEL DEMAND FORECASTING AND FUTURE CONDITIONS

The Victor Valley Transit Alternatives were tested using the San Bernardino Valley Focus Model (see Chapter 4). The Victor Valley portion of this model was calibrated to existing conditions using current transit routes and recently collected transit ridership data. This model maintains the SCAG zone system in the Vector Valley area, which is less refined than the focus zone system in the San Bernardino Valley. This zone system is sufficient for testing the ridership and operational impacts of core transit routes in the VVTA system. As shown in Table 7.4, the Victor Valley is forecast to experience rapid growth in the next three decades. The existing population of less than 300,000 is forecasts to grow to over 600,000 by the year 2035. The year 2035 population and employment densities for the TAZ in the Victor Valley are displayed graphically in Figures 7-3 and 7-4, respectively.

In spite of this growth spurt, the overall level of density in the Victor Valley will remain relatively low. The population density for the Victor Valley cities is expected to grow from its current level of 1.6 persons per acre to approximately 3.4 persons per acre in the year 2035, as compared to an existing population density of 5.2 persons per acre in the San Bernardino Valley.

# 7.6 DEVELOPMENT OF TRANSIT ALTERNATIVES

As it is currently structured, the VVTA system is designed primarily to provide reliable coverage to a sparsely populated area (the average population density in the Victor Valley is only 1.6 persons per acre). The existing Core Transit routes operated by VVTA are typically less than 12 miles in length which allows them to operate at 60 minute headways. These core routes are supplemented by several circulators and deviated routes to provide coverage to populated areas.

As population and employment density grow in the Victor Valley region it will become beneficial for the VVTA system to evolve into a grid-like system of trunk routes, with a similar system of and circulator services. This evolution of services is described in the development of the transit alternatives for the Victor Valley.

Three transit alternatives were developed to study potential transit service scenarios in the Victor Valley: the Base Alternative; the Plan Alternative; and the Vision Alternative.

	Growth 2005-2035									
City	2005	2015	2025	2035	Net	Percent				
Population										
Adelanto City	24,156	56,674	86,629	114,398	90,242	374%				
Apple Valley Town	65,760	77,115	86,749	95,681	29,921	46%				
Hesperia City	78,284	126,456	170,384	211,108	132,824	170%				
Victorville City	90,913	122,205	153,376	182,275	91,362	100%				
Total Victor Valley	259,113	382,450	497,138	603,462	344,349	133%				
Employment										
Adelanto City	5,125	10,501	15,232	20,884	15,759	307%				
Apple Valley Town	12,488	16,243	18,500	23,662	11,174	89%				
Hesperia City	14,934	25,706	32,787	47,998	33,064	221%				
Victorville City	31,425	49,131	61,972	84,335	52,910	168%				
Total Victor Valley	63,972	101,581	128,491	176,879	112,907	176%				
Source: SCAG, 2009.										

# Table 7.4: Victor Valley Population and Employment Growth Forecasts



Draft

128 PARSONS



Draff

#### **BASE ALTERNATIVE**

The Base Alternative for the Victor Valley, as shown in Figure 7-5, is coded and modeled in coordination with the Base Transit Alternative for the San Bernardino Valley. This alternative includes the existing transit services operated by VVTA, as described in Section 7.1. Base Alternative transit routes and operating statistics are summarized in Table 7-5. This alternative operates 23 vehicles in peak service.

#### **PLAN ALTERNATIVE**

The Plan Alternative for the Victor Valley, as shown in Figure 7.6, is coded and modeled in coordination with the Plan Transit Alternative for the San Bernardino Valley. This alternative includes the Base Alternative transit routes with headways equilibrated to serve the Year 2035 transit demand. Additional circulator services are also included to provide coverage to newly developed areas of the Victor Valley.

The Plan Alternative also introduces express bus services between the Victor Valley and San Bernardino Valley. Two express bus routes are coded, providing services between major activity centers and transfer locations in Victor Valley and two destinations in San Bernardino Valley: the Palm Station of the E Street BRT route in San Bernardino; and the Metrolink Station and Ontario Mills Mall in Rancho Cucamonga. These express bus routes are displayed in Figure 7-6.

Plan Alternative transit routes and operating statistics are summarized in Table 7-6. This alternative operates 40 vehicles in peak service.

		Head	lway	Peak		
Route	Description	Peak	Off-peak	Vehicles	VMT	VHT
21	Tri-Community	90	90	1	366	17.5
22	Helendale	120	120	1	385	14.2
23	Lucerne Valley	90	90	1	558	14.6
31	Adelanto-Victorville	60	60	1	313	23.8
32	Adelanto-Victorville North	60	60	2	349	14.9
33	Adelanto Circulator	60	60	2	387	15.0
40	Apple Valley North	60	60	1	323	14.9
41	Apple Valley/Victorville	60	60	1	411	29.1
43	Apple Valley/Victor Valley College	60	30	2	503	20.8
44	Victor Valley Mall/Hesperia	60	60	1	355	29.8
45	Victorville/Hesperia	30	30	3	901	38.9
46	Hesperia Deviation	60	60	1	169	14.8
47	Apple Valley South Deviation	60	60	1	223	14.9
48	Hesperia West	60	60	1	296	15.0
51	Victorville Circulator	60	60	1	174	14.9
52	Victorville/Mall	60	60	1	261	14.9
53	Victor Valley College/Mall	60	30	1	345	28.5
54	Victorville West	60	60	1	240	15.0
Total				23	6,559	351

#### Table 7-5: Year 2035 Base Alternative – Weekday VVTA Transit Service

Source: Hexagon, 2009.



Figure 7-5: VVTA Baseline Alternative

Draft

Source: Parsons, 2009.



PARSONS 131

# SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY LONG RANGE TRANSIT PLAN



Figure 7-6: VVTA Plan Alternative

Source: Parsons, 2009.

		Head	dway	Peak		
Route	Description	Peak	Off-peak	Vehicles	VMT	VHT
1	Victor Valley-CSU/Rialto	120	180	2	544	20.2
2	Victor Valley-Fontana	120	180	2	706	26.4
21	Tri-Community	90	90	1	366	17.5
22	Helendale	120	120	1	385	14.2
23	Lucerne Valley	90	90	1	558	14.6
31	Adelanto-Victorville	30	30	2	626	32.3
32	Adelanto-Victorville North	20	30	5	830	55.4
33	Adelanto Circulator	45	60	2	435	24.5
40	Apple Valley North	60	60	1	323	14.9
41	Apple Valley/Victorville	30	30	2	821	35.1
43	Apple Valley/Victor Valley College	30	60	2	425	19.7
44	Victor Valley Mall/Hesperia	20	30	3	843	39.1
45	Victorville/Hesperia	15	30	5	1,239	60.5
46	Hesperia Deviation	60	60	1	169	14.8
47	Apple Valley South Deviation	60	60	1	223	14.9
48	Hesperia West	60	60	1	296	15.0
49	South Hesperia Circulator	60	60	1	335	16.5
51	Victorville Circulator	60	60	1	174	14.9
52	Victorville/Mall	30	30	2	523	24.1
53	Victor Valley College/Mall	15	30	3	583	28.2
54	Victorville West	60	60	1	240	15.0
Total				40	10,644	518

Table 7-6: Year 2035 Plan Alternative – Weekday VVTA Transit Service

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

#### **VISION ALTERNATIVE**

The Vision Alternative for the Victor Valley, as shown in Figure 7-7, is coded and modeled in coordination with the Vision Transit Alternative for the San Bernardino Valley. This alternative includes a restructuring of the Core Transit routes to provide more direct service between major activity centers at a higher level of service. Seven Core Transit routes are combined and restructured to create four trunk routes, which are displayed in Figure 7-7. The Plan Alternative circulator services are maintained to provide coverage to the Victor Valley communities. These transit routes are coded with headways equilibrated to serve the Year 2035 transit demand. Vision Alternative transit routes and operating statistics are summarized in Table 7-7. This alternative operates 42 vehicles in peak service. The fleet requirement and VHT for the Vision Alternative are almost identical to the operating statistics for the Plan Alternative, which allows us to directly compare the ridership and productivity impacts of the revised service plan.



Figure 7-7: VVTA Vision Alternative

Source: Parsons, 2009.
		Head	Headway			
Route	Description	Peak	Off-peak	Vehicles	VMT	VHT
1	Victor Valley-CSU/Rialto	120	180	2	544	20.2
2	Victor Valley-Fontana	120	180	2	706	26.4
11	Adelanto/Victorville/Apple Valley	20	30	5	1,382	63.3
12	Hesperia/Apple Valley	15	30	5	1,122	52.6
13	Victorville/Hesperia	30	30	3	893	41.1
14	Adelanto/Victorville/Hesperia	15	30	11	1,795	108.1
21	Tri-Community	90	90	1	366	17.5
22	Helendale	120	120	1	385	14.2
23	Lucerne Valley	90	90	1	558	14.6
33	Adelanto Circulator	45	60	2	435	24.5
40	Apple Valley North	60	60	1	323	14.9
46	Hesperia Deviation	60	60	1	169	14.8
47	Apple Valley South Deviation	60	60	1	223	14.9
48	Hesperia West	60	60	1	296	15.0
49	South Hesperia Circulator	60	60	1	335	16.5
51	Victorville Circulator	60	60	1	174	14.9
52	Victorville/Mall	30	30	2	425	19.5
54	Victorville West	60	60	1	240	15.0
Total				42	10,371	508

Table 7-7: Year 2035 Vision Alternative – Weekday VVTA Transit Service

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

# 7.7 EVALUATION OF ALTERNATIVES

The Year 2035 Victor Valley Transit Alternatives described in the preceding section were tested using the San Bernardino Valley Focus Model. These model runs employed a single set of land use and socioeconomic assumptions to test three transit alternatives. The model was used to produce ridership estimates for each transit route. These ridership estimates were used to estimate system-wide operating requirements and efficiency statistics for the transit alternatives. All costs are expressed in constant Year 2009 dollars.

#### **BASE ALTERNATIVE**

The Base Alternative for the Victor Valley includes the existing transit services operated by VVTA, including fixed-route and paratransit services. Ridership, operating statistics and performance statistics for the Base Alternative transit routes are summarized in Table 7-8. This transit alternative, which operates 23 fixed-route vehicles and 25 ADA vehicles in peak service, is forecast to carry over 5,000 daily transit trips in 2035. The annual net operating cost of approximately \$8.25 million is comparable to the existing operating cost of VVTA fixed route services.

	Core	County	Circulator	Express	ADA	Total
Peak Vehicles	14	3	6	0	25	48
Vehicle Miles Traveled	3,908	1,309	1,342	0	2,200	8,759
Vehicle Hours Traveled	231	46	75	0	126	477
Daily Riders	3,944	287	425	0	370	5,026
Passenger Miles	14,904	954	1,652	0	4,700	22,209
Riders per Vehicle Hour	17.1	6.2	5.7	-	2.9	10.5
Average Load	3.8	0.7	1.2	-	2.1	2.5
Average Speed	17.0	28.3	18.0	-	17.5	18.3
Gross Annual Cost	\$4,174,200	\$992,700	\$1,352,700	\$0	\$3,067,800	\$9,587,400
Fare Revenue	\$623,100	\$160,600	\$201,900	\$0	\$350,600	\$1,336,200
Net Annual Cost	\$3,551,100	\$832,100	\$1,150,800	\$0	\$2,717,200	\$8,251,200

#### Table 7-8: Year 2035 Base Alternative – VVTA Performance Measures

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

The system-wide operating statistics include 10.5 passengers per VHT, which is to the statistics reported in the recent *FY 2006-2008 Triennial Performance Audit of Victor Valley Transit Authority*. This level of ridership reflects an average mode share of 0.12%, as compared to a 0.17% mode share for existing transit services. This decrease from the existing mode share is due to the expansion of development in the Victor Valley into areas not currently served by circulator or deviation bus services.

Total net O&M costs for the Base Alternative are summarized in Table 7-9. This alternative will cost over \$214 million to operate for the years 2010-2035, after accounting for fare revenue.

The VVTA fleet and capital cost requirements of the Base Alternative are displayed in Table 7-10. The Base Alternative assumes that the standard bus fleet for fixed-route services will be maintained at 30 vehicles through the year 2035, and the ADA fleet will be maintained at 33 vehicles. The vehicle replacement estimates assume that standard buses have a life span of 12 years, and ADA vehicles have a life span of 4 years. Capital cost estimates assume that standard buses cost \$400,000 to replace and ADA vehicles cost \$85,000 to replace (in constant year 2009 dollars).

Table 7-10 shows that the total capital cost for fleet replacement through the year 2035 for the Base Alternative is almost \$45 million. This table also includes an estimate of additional capital costs for the Base Alternative. The additional capital costs for the 2010-2015 time period covers the cost of a new administrative facility in Hesperia. The additional capital costs for the subsequent time periods are estimated as a function of the fleet replacement and expansion costs, similar to the methodology used for estimating Omnitrans capital costs in Chapter The total capital cost for the Base Alternative through the year 2035 is estimated to be over \$107 million.



	2010 - 2015	2016 - 2020	2021 - 2025	2026 - 2030	2031 - 2035	2010 - 2035
Total O&M Costs	\$49.5	\$41.3	\$41.3	\$41.3	\$41.3	\$214.6

#### Table 7-9: VVTA Operating and Maintenance Cost – Base Alternative

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

#### Table 7-10: VVTA Fleet Requirement and Capital Cost – Base Alternative

		2010 -	2016 -	2021 -	2026 -	2031 -	2010 -
	2009	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2035
Standard Bus							
Peak	23	23	23	23	23	23	
Spare	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Total Fleet	30	30	30	30	30	30	
Fleet Replacement		15	13	13	13	13	67
Fleet Expansion		0	0	0	0	0	0
Total Standard Purchase		15	13	13	13	13	67
Capital Cost (\$M)		\$6.00	\$5.20	\$5.20	\$5.20	\$5.20	\$26.80
ADA Vehicle							
Total Fleet	33	33	33	33	33	33	
ADA Vehicle Purchase		50	41	41	41	41	214
Capital Cost (\$M)		\$4.25	\$3.49	\$3.49	\$3.49	\$3.49	\$18.19
Total Fleet	63	63	63	63	63	63	
Total Purchase		65	54	54	54	54	281
Total Fleet Cost (\$M)		\$10.25	\$8.69	\$8.69	\$8.69	\$8.69	\$44.99
Other Capital Costs (\$M)		\$19.00	\$10.86	\$10.86	\$10.86	\$10.86	\$62.43
Total Capital Cost (\$M)		\$29.25	\$19.54	\$19.54	\$19.54	\$19.54	\$107.42

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

#### **PLAN ÅLTERNATIVE**

The Plan Alternative for the Victor Valley includes an improved level of service on existing Core Transit routes operated by VVTA, increased circulator service to newly developed areas of Victor Valley, and new express bus service to the San Bernardino Valley. Ridership, operating statistics and performance statistics for the Plan Alternative transit routes are summarized in Table 7-11. This transit alternative, which operates 40 fixed-route vehicles and 25 ADA vehicles in peak service, is forecast to carry approximately 9,100 daily transit trips in 2035, which is 82 percent higher than the ridership forecast for the Base Alternative. This ridership includes approximately 300 daily trips between the Victor Valley and San Bernardino Valley on new express bus services. The annual net operating cost of \$10.46 million for the Plan Alternative represents a 27% increase over the Base Alternative costs.

The system-wide operating statistics for the Plan Alternative, including 14.6 passengers per VHT, is a modest improvement over the productivity rating for the Base Alternative. This level of ridership reflects an average mode share of 0.21%. While this mode share

		Type of S	Service			
	Core	County	Circulator	Express	ADA	Total
Peak Vehicles	27	3	6	4	25	65
Vehicle Miles Traveled	6,695	1,309	1,390	1,250	2,200	12,844
Vehicle Hours Traveled	333	47	74	47	126	627
Daily Riders	7,159	352	337	931	370	9,149
Passenger Miles	28,105	1,088	1,318	15,251	4,700	50,463
Riders per Vehicle Hour	21.5	7.5	4.6	20.0	2.9	14.6
Average Load	4.2	0.8	0.9	12.2	2.1	3.9
Average Speed	20.1	27.7	18.9	26.8	17.5	20.5
Gross Annual Cost	\$6,041,000	\$1,014,200	\$1,334,300	\$728,300	\$3,067,800	\$12,185,600
Fare Revenue	\$901,700	\$164,100	\$199,200	\$108,700	\$350,600	\$1,724,300
Net Annual Cost	\$5,139,300	\$850,100	\$1,135,100	\$619,600	\$2,717,200	\$10,461,300

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

represents a significant improvement over both the existing mode share (0.17%) and the Base Alternative mode share (0.11%), it is still very small in comparison to the mode shares observed in more densely populated areas, such as the existing 0.8% mode share in the San Bernardino Valley.

Total net O&M costs for the Plan Alternative are summarized in Table 7-12. This alternative will cost over \$243 million to operate for the years 2010-2035, after accounting for fare revenue.

The VVTA fleet and capital cost requirements of the Plan Alternative are displayed in Table 7-13. The Plan Alternative assumes that the standard bus fleet for fixed-route services will grow from 30 vehicles to 49 vehicles by the year 2035, and the ADA fleet will be maintained at 33 vehicles. The vehicle replacement and capital cost estimates use the same assumptions described for the Base Alternative. Table 7-13 shows that the total capital cost for fleet replacement through the year 2035 for the Plan Alternative is over \$56 million, which represents a 26% increase over the fleet capital costs for the Base Alternative. This table also includes an estimate of additional capital costs for the Plan Alternative. The additional capital costs for the 2010-2015 time period covers the cost of a new administrative facility in Hesperia. The additional capital costs for the subsequent time periods are estimated as a function of the fleet replacement and expansion costs, similar to the methodology used for estimating Omnitrans capital costs in Chapter The total capital cost for the Plan Alternative through the year 2035 is estimated to be over \$131 million, which represents a 22% increase over the capital costs for the Base Alternative.



	2010 - 2015	2016 - 2020	2021 - 2025	2026 - 2030	2031 - 2035	2010 - 2035
Total O&M Costs	\$50.8	\$44.8	\$47.0	\$49.2	\$51.4	\$243.3
Courses 11000000 2000						

#### Table 7-12: VVTA Operating and Maintenance Cost –Plan Alternative

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

#### Table 7-13: VVTA Fleet Requirement and Capital Cost – Plan Alternative

		2010 -	2016 -	2021 -	2026 -	2031 -	2010 -
	2009	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2035
Standard Bus							
Peak	23	28	32	35	38	40	
Spare	7	7	7	8	8	9	
Total Fleet	30	35	39	43	46	49	
Fleet Replacement		15	13	15	16	18	77
Fleet Expansion		5	4	4	3	3	19
Total Standard Purchase		20	17	19	19	21	96
Capital Cost (\$M)		\$8.00	\$6.80	\$7.60	\$7.60	\$8.40	\$38.40
ADA Vehicle							
Total Fleet	33	33	33	33	33	33	
ADA Vehicle Purchase		50	41	41	41	41	214
Capital Cost (\$M)		\$4.25	\$3.49	\$3.49	\$3.49	\$3.49	\$18.19
Total Fleet	63	68	72	76	79	82	
Total Purchase		70	58	60	60	62	310
Total Fleet Cost (\$M)		\$12.25	\$10.29	\$11.09	\$11.09	\$11.89	\$56.59
Other Capital Costs (\$M)		\$19.00	\$12.86	\$13.86	\$13.86	\$14.86	\$74.43
Total Capital Cost (\$M)		\$31.25	\$23.14	\$24.94	\$24.94	\$26.74	\$131.02

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

#### **VISION ALTERNATIVE**

The Vision Alternative for the Victor Valley includes a restructuring of the Core Transit routes to provide more direct service between major activity centers at a higher level of service. Ridership, operating statistics and performance statistics for the Vision Alternative transit routes are summarized in Table 7-14. This transit alternative, which operates 42 vehicles in peak service, is forecast to carry approximately 9,900 daily transit trips in 2035, which is eight percent higher than the ridership forecast for the Plan Alternative. The annual operating cost of \$10.31 million for the Vision Alternative is slightly lower than the Plan Alternative costs. This indicates that the revised service plan in the

Vision Alternative will generate a reasonable improvement in transit ridership for a slightly lower cost.

The system-wide operating statistics for the Vision Alternative, including 16.1 passengers per VHT, is a significant improvement over the productivity rating for the Base Alternative. This level of ridership reflects an average mode share of 0.25%, which is also a significant improvement over the Plan Alternative mode share (0.21%)

Total net O&M costs for the Vision Alternative are summarized in Table 7-15. This alternative will cost over \$241 million to operate for the years 2010-2035, after accounting for fare revenue.

		Type of S				
	Core	County	Circulator	Express	ADA	Total
Peak Vehicles	24	3	11	4	25	67
Vehicle Miles Traveled	5,192	1,309	2,620	1,250	2,200	12,571
Vehicle Hours Traveled	265	47	132	47	126	617
Daily Riders	7,409	266	941	929	370	9,915
Passenger Miles	31,907	923	3,703	15,352	4,700	56,585
Riders per Vehicle Hour	27.9	5.6	7.1	19.9	2.9	16.1
Average Load	6.1	0.7	1.4	12.3	2.1	4.5
Average Speed	19.6	27.7	19.8	26.8	17.5	20.4
Gross Annual Cost	\$4,804,700	\$1,014,200	\$2,393,100	\$728,300	\$3,067,800	\$12,008,100
Fare Revenue	\$717,200	\$164,100	\$357,200	\$108,700	\$350,600	\$1,697,800
Net Annual Cost	\$4,087,500	\$850,100	\$2,035,900	\$619,600	\$2,717,200	\$10,310,300
Source: Heyagon 2009						

#### Table 7-14: Year 2035 Vision Alternative – VVTA Performance Measures

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

#### Table 7-15: VVTA Operating and Maintenance Cost – Vision Alternative

	2010 -	2016 -	2021 -	2026 -	2031 -	2010 -
	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2035
Total O&M Costs	\$50.7	\$44.6	\$46.6	\$48.7	\$50.7	\$241.3

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

The VVTA fleet and capital cost requirements of the Vision Alternative are displayed in Table 7-16. The Vision Alternative assumes that the standard bus fleet for fixed-route services will grow from 30 vehicles to 51 vehicles by the year 2035, and the ADA fleet will be maintained at 33 vehicles. The vehicle replacement and capital cost estimates use the same assumptions described for the Base Alternative.

Table 7-16 shows that the total capital cost for fleet replacement through the year 2035 for the Vision Alternative is over \$57 million, which represents a 28% increase over the capital costs for the Base Alternative. This table also includes an estimate of additional capital costs for the Vision Alternative. The additional capital costs for the 2010-2015 time period covers the cost of a new administrative facility in Hesperia. The additional capital costs for the subsequent time periods are estimated as a function of

the fleet replacement and expansion costs, similar to the methodology used for estimating Omnitrans capital costs in Chapter 6. The total capital cost for the Plan Alternative through the year 2035 is estimated to be over \$133 million, which represents a 24% increase over the capital costs for the Base Alternative.

#### ANALYSIS

The existing ridership in the Victor Valley is very low because the existing development patterns (and socioeconomic profile) of the Victor Valley aren't conducive to a larger transit ridership and the existing transit service is able to attract only transit dependents. Our analysis shows that, while new transit service in the Victor Valley can be designed to improve the productivity of the system, it is not likely to attract significant transit ridership or mode shares similar to transit service in more densely populated areas, such as the San Bernardino Valley.



	2009	2010 - 2015	2016 - 2020	2021 - 2025	2026 - 2030	2031 - 2035	2010 - 2035
Standard Bus	2007	2010	2020	2020	2000	2000	2000
Peak	23	28	33	36	39	42	
Spare	7	7	7	8	8	9	
Total Fleet	30	35	40	44	47	51	
Fleet Replacement		15	13	15	17	18	78
Fleet Expansion		5	5	4	3	4	21
Total Standard Purchase		20	18	19	20	22	99
Capital Cost (\$M)		\$8.00	\$7.20	\$7.60	\$8.00	\$8.80	\$39.60
ADA Vehicle							
Total Fleet	33	33	33	33	33	33	
ADA Vehicle Purchase		50	41	41	41	41	214
Capital Cost (\$M)		\$4.25	\$3.49	\$3.49	\$3.49	\$3.49	\$18.19
Total Fleet	63	68	73	77	80	84	
Total Purchase		70	59	60	61	63	313
Total Fleet Cost (\$M)		\$12.25	\$10.69	\$11.09	\$11.49	\$12.29	\$57.79
Other Capital Costs (\$M)		\$19.00	\$13.36	\$13.86	\$14.36	\$15.36	\$75.93
Total Capital Cost (\$M)		\$31.25	\$24.04	\$24.94	\$25.84	\$27.64	\$133.72

Table 7-16: VVTA Fleet Requirement and Capital Cost – Vision Alternative

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

Draff

This page intentionally left blank.



# CHAPTER 8 RURAL TRANSIT AGENCIES

# 8.1 FUTURE CONDITIONS

According to regional growth forecasts the majority of the rural areas of the county are forecasted to grow at a rapid pace from 2005 levels over the next 25 years. However the ability and desire to attract and maintain jobs and the necessary corresponding population is currently being debated. Rural transit agencies currently operate in a difficult environment that provides significant challenges to providing mobility and accessibility to transit dependent populations. In 2007, SANBAG prepared the Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan for San Bernardino County to identify service improvements for five rural areas of the county. It is anticipated that many of the challenges that result from the geographic isolation of these areas will be addressed in the upcoming Rural Connectivity Study. Growth in these areas will present new opportunities for transit as new employment centers are created and new populations arrive, but it is anticipated that these opportunities are best addressed

in a short range planning process. The long range transit plan for the rural areas focuses on maintaining existing transit service and funding sources over the life of the plan.

Table 8-1 provides population and employment data by city boundaries prepared by SCAG in 2007. Barstow, served by Barstow Area Transit (BAT) and Twentynine Palms, served by Morongo Basin Transit Authority (MBTA), are expected to grow and a rapid rate, however this growth is tied to the potential growth of the nearby military installations of Fort Irwin and Twentynine Palms. Yucca Valley, also served by MBTA, is also expected to grow as nearby Twentynine Palms expands. The city of Big Bear, served by the Mountain Area Regional Transit Authority (MARTA), is expected to grow as a tourist destination, providing transit opportunities to both tourists and employees of the ski resorts and hotels. Needles, served by Needles Area Transit (NAT), is expected to maintain existing levels of population and employment.

CITY	Population 2005	Population 2035	% Growth	Households 2005	Households 2035	% Growth	Employment 2005	Employment 2035	% Growth
Barstow city	23,601	69,533	195%	8,123	25,079	209%	12,209	35,527	191%
Big Bear Lake city	6,173	10,657	73%	2,514	4,466	78%	5,887	11,546	96%
Needles city	5,622	5,840	4%	2,134	2,246	5%	3,049	3,049	0%
Twentynine Palms city	27,442	69,823	154%	7,139	19,205	169%	3,020	14,786	390%
Yucca Valley town	20,155	37,485	86%	7,869	16,856	114%	4,313	11,308	162%

#### Table 8-1: Population and Employment Growth

Source: SCAG, 2009



# 8.2 FUTURE SERVICE

The Long Range Transit Plan for the rural areas of the county provides the focus of SANBAG and rural transit operators on the maintenance of existing transit services and funding sources. In addition to maintaining the current level of transit service over the next 25 years, opportunities identified include increased transit service to military installations, as well as increased mobility and accessibility for health and human services, both of which will be looked at in further detail in the short range planning process in these areas.

#### FLEET REQUIREMENTS

The majority of the rural operators fleet consists of 8 passenger to 24 passenger

paratransit vehicles. MARTA operates one 30 passenger coach vehicle. The current vehicle fleet for the rural operators and replacement cost over the next 25 years is shown in Table 8-2. The replacement assumes a 12-year service lifespan and Year 2009 dollars.

#### **OPERATING COST**

Gross operating costs, included ADA service, for the rural operators are shown in Table 8-3. The costs assume similar levels of service from current conditions and costs are shown in Year 2009 dollars. Net operating costs are shown in Table 8-4 with the respective fare recovery ratios.

	Fleet Size	Average Vehicle Year	Fleet Replacement Cost (\$M)
NAT	7	2004	1.4
MBTA	31	2003	6.2
MARTA	30	2002	6
BAT	29	2003	5.8

#### Table 8-2: Fleet Size, Average Age and Replacement Cost

Source: Parsons, 2009.

#### Table 8-3: Gross Operating Costs

	FY2008	FY 2010-2035		
NAT	295,991	7,399,769		
MBTA	2,074,516	51,862,895		
MARTA	2,357,023	58,925,579		
BAT	2,884,999	72,124,965		

Source: Parsons, 2009.

#### Table 8-4: Net Operating Costs

	FY 2008	FY 2010-2035	FY 2008 Farebox Recovery Ratio
NAT	262,596	6,564,899	11.28%
MBTA	1,692,886	42,322,146	18.40%
MARTA	2,110,972	52,774,290	10.44%
BAT	2,544,276	63,606,894	11.58%

Source: Parsons, 2009.



# CHAPTER 9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

# 9.1 PUBLIC WORKSHOPS

SANBAG convened a series of community workshops and agency outreach efforts regarding the LRTP for San Bernardino County. The initial public workshop efforts occurred between July 18 and August 1, 2006. City outreach meetings were held in May 2009 with city staff of jurisdictions with identified BRT corridors. Final public outreach efforts were held August 18 -20, 2009. Complete Public Workshop summaries are provided under separate cover.



#### **INITIAL PUBLIC WORKSHOPS**

SANBAG's initial public outreach efforts in 2006 were held in conjunction with workshops on the Redlands Passenger Rail Extension. The purpose of the initial workshops was to inform community members about the potential transportation options being considered for the County of San Bernardino, and in particular the San Bernardino Valley, as well as to receive community feedback on the LRTP Alternatives.

The workshops occurred in the San Bernardino Valley and approximately 85 community members signed in as participants in the workshops. Participants were encouraged to provide both verbal and written comments, and overall impressions were primarily positive. Meeting materials included separate workshop booklets and discussions were provided for each subject.

Each workshop involved self-paced visits, facilitated by agency and consultant staff, where participants could view, discuss and provide input on options for transit technologies, routing, stations and proposed "transit villages" that could include housing, retail centers, offices, entertainment venues and parks near each station.

#### **OVERALL IMPRESSIONS**

In both the written and verbal comments, participants provided many positive responses. They indicated strong support for completing a Long Range Transit Plan and phasing projects for development. Participants expressed considerable frustration about traffic and were interested in options that would best address current conditions. Some expressed frustration with the length of time it takes to get mass transit projects built and wanted the projects delivered sooner.



While there was overall support for the local bus service, many participants believed that frequency, hours of service and bus stops needed to be improved. There were also requests for more information on the service.



In terms of technologies, participants' preferences ranged from bus transit, to bus rapid transit, to passenger rail, to combinations of these modes. Others expressed interest in energy efficient technologies such as low emission, selfgenerating, electric, and hybrid vehicles. A few expressed interests in Maglev or monorail technologies, but others expressed concerns about their feasibility and cost.

Participants reviewed five (5) alternatives for long range transit plan. The five transit alternatives include:

- Year 2035 Baseline
- Year 2035 Planned
- Transit Vision #1 Bus and Bus Rapid Transit Emphasis
- Transit Vision #2 Rail Emphasis
- Transit Vision #3 Ultimate

As part of the LRTP Process, the three Vision Alternatives were combined into one Vision Alternative, combining the best performing elements of each.

# 9.2 CITY AND AGENCY OUTREACH

During May of 2009, SANBAG held City outreach meetings at the SANBAG office with jurisdictions with premium transit corridors identified. Representatives from SANBAG's transit department and planning department staff were in attendance as well as OMNITRANS staff. Topics of discussion

included a review of the identified Transit Corridors, growth forecasts for the each city in the travel demand model, an update of the SB 375 process, land use plans and policies, Federal Transit Administration guidelines for project development and OMNITRANS role in the development of the corridors. Overall, most of the city staff supported the transit corridors identified. Almost all of the planned development areas expected to accommodate future growth were deemed to be satisfactorily served in the plan. The City of Ontario requested that Haven Avenue also be identified as a potential transit corridor, and this request was analyzed and included in the LRTP.



# 9.3 FINAL PUBLIC MEETING(S)

SANBAG hosted Final Public Meetings on August 18, 19, and 20, 2009. The purpose of the meetings was to provide an update on the planning process and new developments, review the potential alternatives for expanding the transit system in the County of San Bernardino, and in particular the East San Bernardino Valley, the West San Bernardino Valley, and the Victor Valley, and answer questions and receive feedback from the community.





Approximately 36 community members signed in as participants in the public meetings. Each public meeting was composed of two parts: a self-paced open house featuring informational exhibits, followed by a presentation and group discussion. Participants learned about the purpose, need, process and objectives of the LRTP, and viewed and discussed potential alternatives, or scenarios, of transit infrastructure improvements from the LRTP. Participants also viewed illustrations of new types of development and transit technologies proposed in the LRTP, including transit oriented development (TOD) and bus rapid transit (BRT).

Afterwards, a presentation was given expanding on topics covered in the open house exhibits. Each meeting concluded with a discussion session where participants shared questions or comments. During this portion of the meeting, project team members recorded discussion points on a large piece of paper at the front of the room. Participants also provided written feedback via a comment card.



#### **OVERALL IMPRESSIONS**

The greatest number of questions and comments from participants addressed BRT fuel efficiency and technology. Participants also expressed concerns about how new transit technologies and route changes would impact street configuration and traffic flow. Additionally, many participants inquired as to how LRTP improvements would be funded, and specifically, how much of the cost is covered by local, state and federal sources. Participants also asked questions about Senate Bill (SB) 375 and how it affects the LRTP. Finally, participants had specific questions about the plan itself, including routing and placement of stations. This page intentionally left blank.



# **CHAPTER 10 FINANCIAL PLAN**

# 10.1 FUNDING SOURCES AND AMOUNTS

#### FEDERAL TRANSIT FUNDS

The Federal Public Transportation Act of 2005 authorizes funding under the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient Transportation Equity Act – A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU) legislation for FY 2005 through FY 2009. The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) administers these funds primarily on a formula basis.

Federal funds for San Bernardino County are allocated under three separate urbanized areas in addition to the rural area allocations. Urbanized area funds are made available to individual transit operating agencies that are designated recipients or grantees. Rural transit systems receive funds from the FTA through the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans).

Revenue estimates have been provided for four Federal transit programs, as summarized in the following.

Federal 5317 New Freedom Program The FTA Section 5317 New Freedom Program began in FY 2006. This program provides funding for new transportation services beyond those required by the Americans with Disabilities (ADA). Development of a plan to coordinate transportation services with other federal human service programs is required prior to use of these program funds. Funds are allocated using a formula based on the disabled population of an area (using 2000 Census data), with 60% going to urbanized areas with population greater than 200,000, 20% to states for use in small urban areas with populations less than 200,000, and 20% for use in rural areas.

#### Federal 5316 Job Access & Reverse Commute (JARC) Program The FTA

Section 5316 Program provides maximum flexibility to job access projects designed to meet the needs of individuals who are not effectively served by public transportation. The program requires coordination between public, private, and non-profit transportation providers and other federal programs in the JARC Program, New Freedom Program, and Elderly and Disabled Program. The JARC Program was changed in FY 2005 to a formula program from a competitive discretionary program. Funds are allocated using a formula based on the number of eligible low-income and welfare recipients in each area (using 2000 Census data), with 60% going to urbanized areas with population greater than 200,000, 20% to states for use in small urban areas with populations less than 200,000, and 20% for use in rural area.

- Federal Section 5311 Rural Program The FTA Section 5311 Program provides formula funds for rural transit systems. Funds are allocated based on population with land area receiving 20% of these funds as of FY 2005.
- Federal Section 5307 Urbanized Area Formula Program The FTA Section 5307 Program provides formula funds to urbanized areas with population of 200,000 or more according to the 2000 Census. Funds are apportioned based on formula involving population, population density, and revenue miles. Categories include fixed guideway incentive and basic bus/urbanized areas, as well as new programs for small-urbanized areas, small transit intensive cities, and growing and high-density states.

 Federal Section 5309 Rail and Fixed Guideway Modernization Program The FTA Section 5309 Program provides formula funds for the modernization and improvement of existing fixed guideways. A fixed guideway refers to any transit service that uses exclusive or controlled rights-of-way or rails, entirely or in part. Funds are allocated by a statutory formula to urbanized areas with rail systems that have been in operation for at least seven years.

Federal funds are also available for fixed guideway Transit Projects in the form of Federal 5309 New/Starts Small Starts funds. This competitive funding source is distributed by project ranking and is an expected source of funding for BRT corridors and new rail projects. Flexible funds are also available to transit providers in the form on Surface Transportation Program (STP) funds and Congestion Management and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds.

## STATE FUNDS

Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds include revenues available from the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) and the State Transit Assistance (STA) Fund. STA has been suspended by the State and is not included in the forecasts. The LTF is derived from a ¼ cent of the general sales tax collected statewide and returned to source-county by the State Board of Equalization (BOE).

## MEASURE I FUNDS

Measure I is a half-cent sales tax collected throughout San Bernardino County for transportation improvements. San Bernardino County voters first approved the measure in November 1989 to ensure that needed transportation projects were implemented countywide through 2010. In 2004, San Bernardino County voters overwhelmingly approved the extension of the Measure I sales tax, with 80.03% voting to extend the measure through 2040.

SANBAG administers Measure I revenue and is responsible for determining which projects receive Measure I funding, and ensuring that transportation projects are implemented.

Funds are distributed geographically, with the county divided into subareas, shown in Figure 10-1. Table 10-1 summarizes measure I funding. Measure I funding for Express bus/BRT modes is currently funded at 5% of total revenues and this amount can increase 5% to 10% in 2015, if approved by SANBAG.

# 10.2 Possible Innovative Financial Strategies

Private Public Partnerships

U.S. DOT cites the following as the six basic examples of PPP with some transit applications.

Private Contract Fee Services – This is a broad arrangement where the private sector can be responsible for a variety of services, such as operations and maintenance (O&M) and management and administration of a public endeavor. Foothill Transit is a good example of this arrangement for overall transit outsourcing by a public entity. A classic transit industry practice is private operation of certain services – specific routes or types of bus service; paratransit services; heavy maintenance activities or even fare and revenue collection and management. In Southern California, Los Angeles County contracts for part of the Catalina Ferry service as part of its public transit program. The Metrolink system contracts out all operations for the SCRRA commuter rail operation.





# Figure 10-1: Measure I Sub Areas

Source: SANBAG, 2009.



	Estimate	Estimate of Measure I Revenues for Valley and Mountain/Desert Transit Programs (\$1,000)								
	Valley Transit Programs			Mounta	Mountain/Desert Senior and Disabled Transit					
	Metrolink	Express Bus/BRT	S&D Transit	Colorado River	Morongo Basin	Mtns.	No. Desert	V. Valley		
FY 10/11 - FY 14/15	34,678	8,669	34,678	67	564	486	652	2,922		
FY 15/16 - FY 24/25	77,441	34,819	77,441	111	1,401	1,213	1,390	7,932		
FY 25/26 - FY 34/35	99,890	62,432	99,890	98	2,075	1,808	1,688	13,143		
TOTAL	212,009	105,920	212,009	276	4,040	3,508	3,730	23,997		
6 64NID 4 6 90										

#### Table 10-1: Measure I Funding Estimates

Source: SANBAG, 2009.

- Design-Build (DB) This arrangement combines two services that are traditionally separated into a single process, project design and project construction, into a single continuous contract. The public will retain ownership of the facility and operate the facility. The Minneapolis Hiawatha LRT is an example of this concept. In Southern California, the Los Angeles County MTA's Mid-Cities Exposition LRT and Gold-Line LRT are both examples of this arrangement. Both Houston's MTA and Denver's RTD are advancing transit projects under this concept.
- Design-Build-Operate-Maintain (DBOM) - This arrangement is a further development of the DB into one where the private entity designs, builds, operates and maintains the facility under contract to the public sector. The public sector is responsible for financing the project. The 21-miles Hudson-Bergen LRT in New Jersey is a DBOM project.
- Long-Term Lease Agreement In this arrangement typically a public facility is leased to a private firm for a specific period and considerations, such as an upfront concession fee or long-term payments. The private firm collects revenues and maintains and operates the

facility to set standards. Fees or payments charged to users reimburse the private investment. There is no good U.S. transit example for this arrangement. It has only been applied to existing toll roads sold to private investors and some airport cases (e.g. the Chicago Skyway, the Indiana Toll Road and proposals to sell off the Pennsylvania Turnpike and Florida's Alligator Alley Toll Road and recently the City of Chicago turned Midway Airport over to private investors under this concept.)

Design Build-Finance-Operate (DBFO) – This concept goes one step beyond the DBOM example and requires to private sector to finance the project as well. Again, user fees, typically toll road charges reimburse the private investors over a set time-period. There could be public sector grants to the project from taxes, right-of-way or in-kind support. In the U.S. this example has been applied to the Dulles Airport Toll Road in Northern Virginia. Florida is proposing several road projects that fall under this concept (I-595 HOT lanes and the Port of Miami tunnel). There is no transit example in the U.S. However, a foreign example is in Dublin, Ireland where the region's LRT system (LUAS) is being developed under this arrangement. The government



guarantees a return to the private sector based on an assumed cost to build and operate the facility. If farebox or other revenues collected by the private operator fall below set indicators then government subsidies the difference. Financing and O&M costs are borne by a private entity that designed and built the system to government specifications as set-up by the Dublin Transit Office (DTO) and the Rail Procurement Agency (RPA). At the end of a period (30-years) the facility reverts to full public control. Tax laws and government practices influence the viability of this arrangement.

Build-Own-Operate (BOO) – In this arrangement the government grants the private sector the right to design, build, operate, maintain and own a facility in perpetuity (or a very long-term). Usually the private sector initiates this concept. The Las Vegas Monorail system is an example of this concept and is owned and controlled by the Las Vegas Monorail Company, a private venture, but incorporated as a non-profit entity, permitting government assistance in bond financing by the State of Nevada. BOO was common in the late 19<sup>th</sup> and early 20<sup>th</sup> centuries to develop railroads and street car systems throughout the United Sates.

#### **FACILITY NAMING RIGHTS**

Naming rights are an interesting and innovative method to raise capital funds, long-term O&M funds or a blend of the two for transit projects. Common in the sports world internationally through naming rights to stadiums and sponsorships of all types of highly visible sporting events, public transit in the U.S. and abroad have sought to use techniques from this concept in the development of new transit facilities and to maintain older ones. Below is an overview of some specific examples. Dubai Metro – United Arab Emirates<sup>12</sup> – Dubai's Roads and Transportation Authority (RTA) will open the first line of the Metro rail system in late 2009 and the second in 2010 with continuous expansion programmed through the decade. The system capital costs are estimated at \$5-6 billion.

Twenty-three (23) of the 47 stations on the two lines were opened for naming rights purposes. The RTA gained nearly \$500 million in revenue from sponsorships, which in some cases included the private sector actually building the stations. Many major developers along the line were successful bidders. Terms and conditions of the arrangements were not open and it is not clear how long the rights are in place or how payments are structured. Needless to say the real estate development climate and need for development exposure are important in influencing the number of bidders and their investments in the corridor or at a specific location. Thus, shopping developer interests bid for stations near their properties and office space, banks, airline and hotel interests did likewise, tying a station to their buildings or commercial activity.

Cleveland Silver Line – Euclid Avenue BRT – Cleveland Ohio <sup>13</sup>– In 2008, the Regional Transportation Authority (RTA) for greater Cleveland developed a substantial 10-mile BRT facility through the city's eastside that serves the region's main hospital complex. The Cleveland Clinic Foundation and University Hospitals of Cleveland have sponsored the facility now known as the "Health Line." There is a 25-year agreement that will generate \$250,000 yearly in revenue to help RTA

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Dubai Gulf News, 22 December 2008
 <sup>13</sup> The RTA Letter – Volume 91, Issue 2

maintain the corridor and provide amenities. The total sponsorship will contribute \$6.25 million toward facility operating and maintenance costs. There is a special logo for the facility and it will appear on the 32-stations and 21-buses dedicated to the corridor.

- TECO Streetcar Tampa, Fl<sup>14</sup> Tampa Electric Company (TECO) is paying \$1 million over 10-years for naming rights to the City's 3.5 mile streetcar system. Time-Warner and Sun-Trust Bank both obtained car naming rights for \$250,000 each for 10years. The streetcar system opened in 2002 and is operated by the Hillsborough Area Regional Transit (HART) Authority, but owned by a special non-profit foundation. Stations on the line are available for individual sponsorship of \$100,000 annually for a 10-year term. Purchasers had 3-years to complete payment to HART. The trolley website identifies sponsors. Rights have been sold at 8 of the 10stations. The line connects Tampa's business district with its convention center, port and tourist oriented Ybor City historic district. Because the trolley is under the control of a non-profit foundation, sponsors get state tax credit for 50% of their contribution.
- Las Vegas Monorail Las Vegas **Convention Center Station – Las Vegas, NV<sup>15</sup>** - Nextel Communications sponsors the Convention Center station of the privately funded and operated Las Vegas Monorail system. The naming rights cost \$50 million for 12-years at the nation's largest Convention Center.

- River Rail Little Rock, Arkansas<sup>16</sup> Opened in 2004, this 2.5 mile street car has 11 stations. The entire line, individual stations and streetcar vehicles are available for sponsorship. Naming rights for the entire line are available for \$1 million for a 10-year period; street cars cost \$250,000 each for a 10-year period; and stations cost \$100,000 each for a 10year period. To date only 3-stations have been successfully tendered. Sponsors will be able to have private use of the facility a few times a year for special events.
- Rapid Ride Bus Line Albuquerque, NM<sup>17</sup> In 2004 the transit authority opened an 11-mile BRT with 28-stops. Sponsorship of 23 individual stops is on offer, but there has been limited interest to date. Funds will go to defray O&M costs.

#### **ADVERTISING AND SPONSORSHIPS**

Some transit systems have created very innovative and aggressive advertising campaigns with fixed guideway elements. Some examples of innovative advertising efforts are cited below.

- The Trolley – Galveston, Texas – The system yields about \$100,000 monthly in advertising revenue from car interiors and exteriors. Vehicle wraps are also available. The Trolley serves a very active tourist area and market.
- Tri-Met Street Car and LRT Portland, **Oregon** – Sponsorships raise nearly \$200,000 toward O&M costs of \$2.4 million annually. Streetcar sponsorship is \$15,000 yearly with the sponsor's name and logo on the vehicle. A station sponsorship is \$400 per month, or \$500 a month for two stations. The sponsor's name and logo appear on the station.

D)1721(1)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> Toronto Transit Commission (TTC), August 28, 2008, Report – Sale of Naming Rights for TTC Stations and Transit Lines. <sup>15</sup> Ibid

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Ibid <sup>17 I</sup>bid



#### **BULK TICKET SALES**

In Seattle, one of the ideas to obtain revenue for a new street car line was to offer bulk sales to institutions and users along the line to raise fare box revenues for the new street car. The report noted that typically these are system-wide efforts, but given the nature of the transit line, specific sites might be interested in a street car specific prepaid bulk fare arrangement. They noted that when coupled with changes in parking policies and parking rates, the fare program could both induce transit ridership and raise revenues. The study cited the following<sup>18</sup>:

- The Trolley Galveston, Texas The University of Texas Medical Center pays the Galveston Trolley \$250,000 annually for free service to patients and employees. The Port of Galveston pays \$300,000 annually for passes on the trolley for cruise ship passengers to tour the city. Merchants and social service agencies along the corridor also buy tickets for customers and employees.
- Memphis Trolley Memphis, Tennessee – The Convention Center purchases bulk tickets for convention attendees allowing them to use the streetcar which links the convention center and the city's tourist area along Beale Street. Memphis is not a major convention destination and revenue has not been great.
- University Pass Sales varied sites Several universities such as the University of Colorado in Boulder, the University of Washington in Seattle, and an example from Halifax, Nova Scotia were cited for bulk pass sales to colleges. These bulk sales can be system-wide or limited to one facility or a specific shuttle service.

The University of Washington combined bulk sales with changes in on-campus parking policies resulting in a surge in transit use. Recently the University of Miami (Florida) Medical Center undertook a similar program, with increases in parking fees and bulk purchase of transit passes, resulting in increased transit use.

#### **OPERATING ENDOWMENT**

This is an unusual arrangement where a large amount of capital is set aside with interest and other earnings dedicated towards operating the transit line or public facility. Extensively used at universities, colleges and charitable institutions, use for public transit service is innovative. A business improvement district (BID) could act as a foundation or be a major source of endowment funds. The prime example is the endowment set-up for Tampa's TECO streetcar.<sup>19</sup>

TECO Streetcar – Tampa, Fl – Tampa Electric Company (TECO) established a non-profit foundation to operate the street car. As a non-profit charitable foundation there are a number of tax benefits to this arrangement. A separate board governs the operation, which is contract to the local public transit operator, HART. An \$8 million endowment was created to cover O&M costs after accounting for other revenues. Contributions to the foundation were taxdeductible and came from major corporate sources. Endowment income is dedicated towards system O&M costs. The concept has had success, but recently O&M costs are exceeding endowment income and the foundation has used principal to maintain service<sup>20</sup>.

<sup>20</sup> Ibid

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> Michael Mann, City of Seattle Office of Policy and Management, Summary of Financing Options for South Lake Union Streetcar, April 4, 2005

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> Ibid

#### LEVERAGE REVENUES FOR EQUITY INVESTMENT

The impetus to build street cars and downtown transit malls or guideways is often connected to urban redevelopment as much as transit service. Therefore, the creation of Program-Related Investments (PRIs) could be a financing vehicle. Improvement beneficiaries or non-profit interest groups can act as investors in the project with promise that the improvement will repay the private investors. Since these are typically foundations or other non-profit groups – long-term repayment of private loans or other equity can be structured to guarantees financial returns at a lower cost than other financing mechanisms. The interest groups can use the benefit of the improvement in a faster and less costly way than typical financing. Usually non-profit foundations invest in housing, historic buildings, open space, conservation areas, etc. But transit investment could be a use of these instruments. A BID could act as the investor. In Houston and Philadelphia, BID's backed bonds that were used in transit improvements created in their districts. Economic development agencies could also carry some of the investment effort. BID's have been important in New York MTA's restoration efforts at many subway stations through financing the improvement. No BID or non-profit investment in a BRT is reported, but the mechanism could help local property owners and other interests to directly invest in improvements that will increase their business and property values through capital investment and improved transit service.<sup>21</sup>

#### 10.3 REVENUE FROM DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT (TOD)<sup>22</sup>

This description of potential Transit Oriented Development (TOD) schemes is taken from <u>Mass Transit Magazine</u> cited below. It is a concise statement of potential strategies to raise revenue from land use tie-ins and TOD in connection with transit infrastructure development. The 10-points below outline various development opportunities that the authors deemed interesting possibilities for revenue generation in conjunction with new transit facilities.

**Overview** - One of the most powerful techniques to solve any "gap financing" requirements is to optimize non-tax income generated by government-owned land serving as the TOD site and from any proposed public facilities on site.

#### LAND LEASES TO DEVELOPERS

Public partners should view their real estate assets as a potential major source of income. Under a land lease arrangement, the government entity, or public partner is able to retain ownership of the project site and also realize any appreciation in land value achieved to date and in the future. Developers like land lease arrangements because they can avoid upfront cash outlays required to purchase a TOD site. Depending on the results of preparing a developer pro forma, the public partner, and their consultant should structure a land lease, which includes up to nine types of land lease payments paid by the selected developer to the public partner, the land owner. The nine types of land lease payments include: 1)

Draff

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup> A 10-Part TOD Finance Plan, Mass Transit Magazine June 2007 by John Stainback, President/CEO of Stainback Public/Private Real Estate, LLC (SPPRE) and. Will Reed, Vice President for finance with SPPRE.

construction rent, 2) base rent, 3) index rent, 4) participation rent, 5) participation in any sale proceeds, or refinancing, 6) maintenance, operation and security (MOS) payment, 7) home-run insurance, 8) land lease payouts, and 9) interest income.

Public partners should also be able to generate non-tax income, or operating income from any on-site public facilities. Many public facilities throw off traditional operating income, such as user fees, or admission charges, but there are other creative types of operating income that can be realized. These more creative types of income include:

- Introduce complimentary retail space, such as a coffee shop or café.
- Lease advertising space in appropriate areas of the facility.
- Lease naming rights.
- If the facility or system is large enough, lease pouring rights.

Public partners should also consider leveraging selected types of non-tax income generated by the proposed commercial development and public facility. The land lease payments which are not contingent on developer performance can be used to cover the debt service on a revenue bond. For example, the base rent described above can often be structured to be a guaranteed annual payment by the private developer to the public owner of the project site. The revenue bond supported by the base rent can be used to cover all, or a portion of the cost of the transit station and/or any transit improvements required by the TOD. This revenue bond is often referred to as a land lease-backed revenue bond.

The use of air rights over stations, maintenance yards, and parking facilities is common. Los Angeles transit agencies are seeking developers for air rights at Metrolink's Taylor yard facility and the MTA for its Red Line yard. In Chicago an old Chicago Transit Authority rail yard's air space is now becoming a mixed-use development. Small scale examples are very common at commuter rail stations, LRT stations, and metro stations, as well as, yard and garage sites.

# TAX REVENUE GENERATED BY THE PROJECT

Another important source of income from a TOD is the multiple types of tax revenue generated by commercial leasehold improvements developed on governmentowned land. In addition, if the project site is owned or purchased by the private developer, the land will generate property tax annually. Depending on the building types included in the commercial development portion of the proposed TOD, projects will generate substantial tax revenue, such as:

- Property tax
- Personal property tax
- Sales tax
- Hotel occupancy tax
- Corporate income tax
- Local and state income tax
- Utility taxes

In most instances, these taxes are distributed to varying government jurisdictions, such as the city, county and state, as well as school districts and other government entities. For most public/private development projects, the focus is on capturing the property and sales tax generated by the commercial development portion of a TOD. One of the most powerful economic development tools available to public partners is tax increment financing (TIF). TIF is an economic development tool available to a city (a potential partner with a transit agency) to publicly finance specific needed improvements consisting of, but not limited to, buildings, streets, parks and other improvements within a defined area commonly known as a TIF District.

TIF is not a new or additional tax imposed by a government entity. Therefore, citizens and property owners are not required to pay any new or additional tax. If the city is the primary public partner, city officials and their consultant will need to determine the annual tax revenue generated by the redevelopment project for each government entity. Using the results of this analysis, city officials should approach each entity receiving tax revenue from the project to negotiate using their respective portion of the property and/or sales tax increment. City officials should then leverage their portion, or all of the annual tax increment to support a TIF-backed revenue bond. Like the non-tax income, the tax increment generated by the TOD can be leveraged to fully support a sizeable revenue bond, which covers all, or a major portion of a TOD and transit-related facilities and improvements. In other words, for many TODs the income realized by the public partner can cover 100 percent of the transit facilities, amenities and improvements, so there is little, or no capital outlay required of the transit agency.

#### FEDERAL FUNDING PROGRAMS

There are a multitude of Federal funding programs available from several agencies. The limitations of this single chapter does not allow a comprehensive listing of funding programs, so the focus will be on programs directly related to TODs. The Federal agencies focused primarily on real estate development include:

- U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
- U.S. Department of the Treasury
- Federal Housing Administration (FHA)
- Fannie Mae

- Freddie Mac
- Federal Home Loan Bank
- Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

These Federal agencies have established a wide variety of financial assistance techniques, which include:

- Direct investment
- Below-market rate subordinate loans
- Grants (direct investment or as additional security for a loan)
- Interest rate buy-downs on third-party loans
- Loan guarantees
- Soft second mortgages
- Credit enhancement
- Tax credit programs
- Program to increase a homebuyer's purchasing power

Conduits for these funds vary from state and city governments, community development entities (CDE), syndication partners and private developers.

# STATE AND LOCAL FUNDING PROGRAMS

Like Federal funding programs, there are a multitude of state, county and local government funding programs and an enormous number of finance instruments. State and local governments have the power to tax and the ability to issue tax-exempt debt. Under the U.S. Internal Revenue code. the interest payments on most debt issued by state and local governments are exempt from Federal income taxes. Based on this policy, investors accept a lower interest rate on tax-exempt municipal debt than on taxable debt. Debt issued by state and local government entities is categorized by the source of revenue pledged to cover the debt service. General obligation (GO) bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the issuing government entity, while revenue bonds are backed by the pledge of specific



Government: SANBAC

income stream(s) generated by the project. GO bonds are used to finance facilities which are considered essential to a functioning government.

In addition to traditional municipal bonds, state and local governments provide a wide range of financial assistance to finance redevelopment projects or solve the required "gap financing". At last count there are nearly 30 public/private finance instruments available to state and local partners to finance redevelopment projects. Instruments such as:

- Tax increment financing (TIF)-backed revenue bond
- Certificates of participation (COP)
- Assessment district bonds
- Special tax bonds (supported by the levy of special taxes)
- Lease revenue bonds
- Tax lien bonds

In addition, many state governments have established funding programs such as:

- State infrastructure bank (SIB)
- State revolving loan funds
- Economic development programs

#### FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL OPERATIONAL, DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT INCENTIVES

There are two fundamental types of incentives provided by government entities to private companies: Tax and non-tax incentive programs. Tax related incentives include tax credits, exemptions, abatements and deferrals. Non-tax incentives include: grants, loans and/or guarantees provided directly to private companies or indirectly to communities. The primary objectives of government provided incentives are to create jobs, income and tax revenues, which can be used to improve the quality of life of residents. Incentives can reduce cost and/or enhance cash flow for three aspects of business: 1) development of facilities and infrastructure, 2) investment in facilities, equipment, and/or technology, and 3) business operations.

#### TAX CREDITS

Tax credit programs are increasingly important to private developers, and while the limitations of space in this chapter does not allow a detailed description of the tax credit industry, public and private partners of redevelopment projects should be aware of the four primary federal tax credit programs: 1) historic preservation tax credits, 2) federal brownfield expensing tax credits, 3) new market tax credits (NMTC), and 4) lowincome housing tax credits (LIHTC).

# TRANSIT STATION OPERATING INCOME

There are at least five types of non-farebox income that transit agencies should attempt to capture in order to enhance cash flow, or solve a financing shortfall. These sources of income other than the farebox include:

- Tenant lease income from support retail space for commuters.
- Income from advertising placed on the exterior and interior of transit stations and commuter parking facilities.
- Income from the shared use of commuter parking facilities.
- Income from naming rights and possibly pouring rights for the entire transit system.
- Interest income from Land Lease Payouts (a payment based on the Present Value of the land lease payment for land under condominium housing developments).
- If the financial feasibility of the TOD and/or transit station is in the balance, these types of non-farebox income could

be the difference between a "go and nogo" decision.

#### TRI-PARTY AND PUBLIC-PUBLIC PARTNERSHIPS

Another source of funding or cost sharing is "Public-Public Partnerships" or Intergovernmental Agreements between a transit agency and other governmental entities, such as a city, county or state governments. If public-public partnerships were structured a transit agency could share the cost, risks and responsibilities for financing, designing, developing and constructing a TOD. Before transit agencies approach a potential public partner, they should document how the TOD will generate economic benefits and improve the quality of life for local residents.

For situations where a transit agency does not own any, or adequate land around a transit station, the agency may have to structure a Tri-Party Agreement between the agency, private landowner(s) and a private developer. If the transit agency does not have sufficient funds to acquire the land, they will need to demonstrate the financial return for the landowner(s) to provide the land in exchange for an equity position in the TOD.

#### **INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDS**

Over the last few years Infrastructure Funds have been formed in the capital market. Infrastructure funds allow investors to own part of a professionally managed portfolio of infrastructure assets, such as:

- Rail facilities and other transport assets
- Toll roads
- Utilities
- Airports
- Communications assets, such as broadcasting towers
- Materials handling facilities

Most of these funds include one to three asset allocations: transportation, utilities and building development. The five largest funds include:

- Goldman Sachs: \$6.5 billion
- Macquarie: \$4.0 billion
- Deutsche Bank/RREEF: \$3.0 billion
- JP Morgan: \$3.0 billion
- CIT Group: \$2.5 billion

#### THE BASIS FOR GOVERNMENTS TO RECEIVE A RETURN ON THEIR INVESTMENTS

Transit agencies and governments across the country have made substantial investment in land, infrastructure and transit systems. Commercial developments at transit stations, or TODs should generate enormous amounts of non-tax income and tax revenue for the participating government entities. In other words, private developers of TODs should provide a competitive ROI to the government entities, which have invested in the land around transit stations, infrastructure required by the TOD, and the transit system. The transit system can be heavy rail, light rail and/or bus rapid transit (BRT). In addition to the major investments made by governments, private developers are achieving premium rental rates for housing, retail and office space at TODs.

#### IMPACT AND CONCURRENCY DEVELOPMENT FEES

A number of jurisdictions have been able to fund significant portions of transit infrastructure requirements through the use of various types of developer impact fees or special assessments that can be used to provide funding (or repay bonds) for major transit facility development. The procedures vary from state to state and are not legally available for use everywhere. California has some significant examples of this type of development. In almost all cases, the impact fee program is created and managed by the local government with land use powers, not the transit agency. But municipal levies can be transferred to the entity building the project or can repay the local government for contributions or funds given to the transit agency to develop the project. In most places funds can only be used for capital costs. Some examples are summarized below.

#### **CITY OF SAN FRANCISCO**

The City of San Francisco has a general transit impact fee ordinance - Transit Development Impact Fee (TDIF). This assessment based on non-residential development funds both capital and O&M costs resulting from new development and the increased need for capital and increased transit service. This dual nature is unique, but has been upheld in California courts since its adoption in 1981. It funds only the direct local costs for the service or facility impacted. A life-cycle of 45years is used. The TDIF has gone through extensive legal challenges and minor modifications have been made, but the TDIF has survived all major rulings.<sup>23</sup>

# CITIES OF PORTLAND, OREGON AND SEATTLE, WASHINGTON

Both use standard impact fee legislation to fund transit capital projects. The project needs to be part of a planned improvement and the development is then assessed for its impact on that facility – showing a direct connection or "nexus." The development then pays the portion of the impact that the development will have on the proposed improvement. Cities use similar systems to assess impacts for school, public safety and other improvements. In Portland, over \$30 million in city funds went to partly fund a light rail line and \$7.5 million was given to a streetcar project. The City will repay the debt, while the projects are developed by the Tri-Met Transit District.<sup>24</sup>

#### TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

This method has already been described. The growth in property taxes in the impacted area connected to the improvements are dedicated towards repayment of part or all of the costs related to the capital improvement. In Texas, the City of San Antonio is considering this concept to help VIA, the transit district, build a BRT system. In Miami, this concept was used to fund extension of the downtown automated people mover system – Metromover. In Chicago, the City of Chicago allocated \$773 million for specific transit improvements to Chicago Transit Authority's infrastructure. Again, the municipal government collects the taxes and works out payment with the transit operator. In Pennsylvania, municipal governments have created Transit Investment Revitalization Districts (TRID) under 2005 state legislation to assist in TOD facility investments. There are numerous examples for transit and other types of public improvements.<sup>25</sup>

#### **TRANSIT CONCURRENCY FEES**

This is another type of impact fee. It is used in Broward County, Florida (Fort Lauderdale) to fund capital improvements including bus system growth, expansion of transit support facilities, bus stops, and transit centers. The fee, known as the Transit Oriented Currency (TOC) is levied on new development throughout the county. Fees are adjusted based on planned sub-regional improvements (10-districts) so that the developer impact fee is related to improvements that are connected to the specific development and area. Broward County with about 1.7 million people and a 200-bus transit operation expects to receive

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> Transit Cooperative Research Program – LegalResearch Digest 28, December 2008 – page 11

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> Ibid. page 12

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>25</sup> Ibid. page 23

a few million dollars annually toward transit capital needs. Portland, Oregon has a similar charge known as the System Development Charge (SDC) on new development to develop transit capital improvements. The charge is based on the development's impact on the proposed facility or specific project. Both the City of Portland and Broward County have adopted transit improvement capital plans that legally underpin these assessments on new development. The project program has the capital cost for each project. <sup>26</sup> This permits development impacts to be measured and fees can be calculated on a fair proportional basis. Plans are adjusted about every five years with updated projects and capital costs.

# **10.4** FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS

Financial Projections were prepared for the LRTP through FY2035 and are shown in Table 10-2. Both historical data and recently prepared short range estimates were used to prepare the forecasts. Given the current economic climate, including the suspension of STA funds, projections were prepared for federal funding and Local Transportation Funds. Measure I, the half-cent sales tax collected throughout San Bernardino County for transportation improvements presented earlier in this chapter, estimates were provided by SANBAG. Federal Funds for New Starts/Small Starts funds are also available for individual projects based on specific requirements. Since these funds are distributed on a project-by-project basis projections are not available for this funding source. It is expected that most capital projects identified in the LRTP would have these funds available to them.

# METHODOLOGY

The Financial projections are included in Appendix C and summarized in Table 10-1. The projections were prepared using historical data and short-term estimates to develop straight-line projections through FY2035 for a variety of transit funding sources. Because the current economic recession that started in FY2008 is expected to produce lower than average funding for some years, SANBAG determined that new straight-line projections would not be appropriate at this time.

Instead, SANBAG provided actual numbers for FY2008 and estimates for FY2009 through FY2014. From there the FY2014 estimates were escalated from FY2015 through FY2035 using the historical escalation rate annual percentage of change found in the 2006 report worksheets. Where the percentage of change in the SANBAG estimates through FY2014 and the 2006 report figures for FY2015 differ, the numbers are smoothed over six years. After that the 2006 report figures are used.

Some revenue sources for San Bernardino County are allocated based on urbanized area (UZA). San Bernardino County receives allocations from the Riverside / San Bernardino UZA, the Victorville / Hesperia / Apple Valley UZA and the Los Angeles / Long Beach / Santa Ana UZA.

Draft

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>26</sup> Ibid. pages 27-29



#### Table 10-2: Funding Projections

	Total 2010-2015	Total 2016-2025	Total 2026-2035	Total 25 Years FY 2010- FY2035
FTA Section 5317 New Freedom Funds				
San Bernardino Valley	\$2,782,130	\$6,153,932	\$8,197,128	\$17,538,191
Victor Valley UZA	\$494,630	\$1,096,405	\$1,460,427	\$3,123,262
FTA Section 5316 JARC Funds				
San Bernardino UZA	\$6,859,360	\$15,438,585	\$20,664,404	\$43,958,348
Victor Valley UZA	\$1,072,560	\$2,413,476	\$3,230,415	\$6,871,451
FTA Section 5311 Rural Area Revenues				
Rural Areas	\$7,508,255	\$16,102,540	\$20,486,145	\$45,186,739
FTA Section 5309 Rail Modernization Fu	nds			
San Bernardino Valley	\$26,249,822	\$55,210,726	\$70,240,779	\$160,171,107
FTA Section 5307 Urban Formula Funds				
Hesperia/Apple Valley/Victorville UZA	\$16,815,911	\$36,033,061	\$45,842,365	\$101,115,037
San Bernardino Valley Fixed Guideway Formula Apportionment	\$33,412,400	\$68,437,883	\$84,469,679	\$191,019,962
San Bernardino Valley Bus Formula Apportionment	\$99,174,200	\$211,316,230	\$268,842,990	\$593,933,420
Federal Funds	\$194,549,268	\$412,202,837	\$523,434,332	\$1,162,917,517
LTF Funds*	\$398,813,633	\$852,769,306	\$1,084,919,268	\$2,479,614,378
Measure I Funds	\$82,715,973	\$201,748,933	\$281,023,753	\$565,488,659
Total Projected Funding	\$676,078,874	\$1,466,721,075	\$1,889,377,353	\$4,130,956,686

\*Does not include County apportionment of LTF.

Source: PP&A, SANBAG, Parsons, 2009.

Draft

This page intentionally left blank.





# CHAPTER 11 RECOMMENDED LONG RANGE TRANSIT PLAN

# 11.1 SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY ALTERNATIVES

The LRTP aims to provide the best possible future transit network for San Bernardino County. This chapter begins with an analysis of the alternatives studied for the San Bernardino Valley, followed by the choice of the Recommended LRTP for the San Bernardino Valley in Section 11.2. Section 11.3 summarizes the Victor Valley alternatives and chooses a recommended Plan. Section 11.4 summarizes the future of the rural operators in San Bernardino County.

Acknowledging the challenges and opportunities that are inherent in planning for the future, four alternatives were developed for the San Bernardino Valley, and presented in Chapter 5, to provide a range of options for recommending the LRTP. The four alternatives are compared in Table 11-1, which presents the annual boardings and passenger miles as well as capital and operating cost. This table also provides a summary of two performance measures designed to evaluate the relative cost effectiveness of the alternatives.

Table 11-2 presents a summary of the funding projections for the valley and the costs of the alternatives. The funding sources listed in Table 11-2 are limited to sources that are in available funding projections, and don't include possible sources such as FTA 5309 New Starts, STA, CMAQ, STP funds or bonding mechanisms.

The Baseline Alternative assumes the lowest total cost option, provides the lowest level of service to the residents and communities of the valley, and attracts the lowest transit ridership at close to 19 million annual riders. No operational shortfalls are expected for the Base Alternative, as shown in Table 11-2. This alternative has the highest ratio of service for operational costs and the highest ratio of service for capital costs.

The Plan Alternative provides transit service to 34 million annual boardings at double the annual cost of the baseline. Due to the planned implementation schedule of current projects, Table 11-2 identifies funding gaps of \$300 million during the 2010-2015 time period and \$535 million during the 2016-2025 time period. The table also shows that the funding gap would narrow during the 2026-2035 time period to \$155 million. The larger funding shortfall during the early life of the plan occurs because many of the capital projects are phased for implementation in the earlier years. The availability of Federal Small Starts funding for both the Redlands Rail Project as well as the E Street sbX would cover some of the projected funding gap during the early time periods.

The Vision Alternative serves almost 10 million additional annual boardings, as compared to the Plan Alternative, and serves 30 million additional passenger miles annually. The cost is tied for the highest of all four alternatives, and the Vision alternative achieves the second best ridership. For this alternative, the performance measure of operating costs divided by annual riders provides the second highest ratio. Funding projections identify an increased shortfall of funds available for capital projects; however the alternative is operationally affordable. Other funding sources, such as FTA New Starts funds or bonding mechanisms would be needed in order to fund the capital improvements in this alternative.

	Δηριμαί		Costs (\$M 2009)						Annual per N	Boardings /lillion \$	Passei per l	nger Miles Villion \$
	Annual	Passenger	Net	O&M	(	Capital		Total				
Alternative	Boardings	Miles	Total	Annual	Total	Fleet	Annual	Annual	Total	Operating	Total	Operating
Baseline	18,911,000	81,004,000	1,621	62.3	555.09	188.2	51.7	114.1	165,764	303,352	710,040	1,299,386
Plan	33,664,000	148,764,000	2,355	90.6	1,635.84	353.7	142.8	233.4	144,236	371,731	637,389	1,642,711
Vision	42,381,000	178,332,000	2,627	101.1	3,324.43	482.1	278.9	380.0	111,542	419,393	469,350	1,764,733
Sustainable	45,800,000	200,508,000	2,627	101.1	3,324.43	482.1	278.9	380.0	120,541	453,226	527,715	1,984,182

#### Table 11-1: SB Valley Alternatives Comparison

Source: Hexagon, 2009.

	Total 2010-2015	Total 2016-2025	Total 2026-2035	Total 2010-2035
Measure I	\$78,023,002	\$189,698,002	\$262,211,001	\$529,935,003
LTF	\$290,410,703	\$628,916,538	\$800,817,777	\$1,825,004,607
Federal *	\$142,228,090	\$301,346,630	\$382,174,201	\$846,449,921
Total Funding	\$510,661,796	\$1,119,961,170	\$1,445,202,979	\$3,201,389,531
Net Operating Costs				
Baseline	\$374,041,140	\$623,401,900	\$623,401,900	\$1,620,844,940
Plan	\$399,123,820	\$872,561,630	\$1,082,875,500	\$2,354,560,950
Vision (and Sustainable LU)	\$399,123,820	\$914,317,700	\$1,313,942,860	\$2,627,384,380
Capital Costs				
Baseline	\$125,878,000	\$215,730,000	\$213,480,000	\$555,088,000
Plan	\$410,647,000	\$782,589,000	\$517,102,000	\$1,710,338,000
Vision (and Sustainable LU)	\$408,313,000	\$1,611,864,187	\$1,304,252,187	\$3,324,429,375
Revenue Surplus (Deficit)				
Baseline	\$37,172,478	\$336,039,995	\$678,561,858	\$1,185,627,698
Plan	\$(272,679,202)	\$(479,978,735)	\$(84,533,742)	\$(703,338,312)
Vision (and Sustainable LU)	\$(270.345.202)	\$(1.351.009.992)	\$ (1.102.751.289)	\$(2.590.253.116)

#### Table 11-2: SB Valley Alternatives and Financial Projections

\*Excluding 5309 New Starts Funding.

Source: Parsons, 2009.

The Sustainable Land Use Alternative, which includes the same level of service and costs as the Vision Alternative, looks only at policy changes and higher development densities at locations around transit stations.

Consequently, 3 million annual boardings and over 20 million passenger miles are added to this alternative over the Vision Alternative, with the same costs. These increases result from focused population and employment growth along BRT corridors. The funding sources project the same capital shortfall as the Vision Alternative. Because of the higher ridership forecasts for this alternative, the performance measures exceed the values calculated for the Vision Alternative.

# 11.2 SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY RECOMMENDED LRTP

The Sustainable Land Use Alternative provides the most annual boardings and serves the highest annual passenger miles. Additionally, this alternative provides the opportunity to guide development in line with the implementation of SB 375 and provide the communities of the San Bernardino Valley a vehicle to promote economic development. SANBAG recommends the entire Sustainable Land Use Alternative as the recommended LRTP. SANBAG further recommends that partnering cities adopt policies to support transit as recommended in Chapter 3. It is anticipated that future project development will progress only when the transportation / land use connection is appropriately addressed.

The deficit of the alternative can be addressed by the inclusion of Federal New Start/Small Start funding as well as altering the implementation schedule of the sbX BRT Corridors. Table 11-3 prioritizes the sbX corridors and groups them into funded projects and unfunded projects. Corridor 6 is recommended as a funded corridor to serve the Ontario Airport and the key attraction centers of the Ontario Civic Center, Convention center, and new colony model colony area. The unfunded projects are likely to be funded in future updates of the LRTP as other funding sources become available. Funding for Maglev, High Speed Rail, Aerial Tram to Big Bear Valley and the Metro Gold Line extension to Ontario is not included in this analysis and these projects are currently identified as unfunded.

Table 11-4 shows the financial impact of New Starts funding, including Small Starts funding for the Redlands Rail and the four sbX corridors, and the potential implementation schedule. A funding deficit is shown for the life of the plan and reaches 1.1 billion dollars. Measure I funds for Express Bus/BRT, if increased in 2015 to 10% would result in \$120,804,000 over the last 20 years of the plan.

	Description	Length (mi)	Stations	Riders	Capital Costs	Potential Implementation Schedule
Funded	Corridors					
1	E Street Corridor (to California)	18.3	16	12165	\$241.9	2012
2	Foothill Boulevard East	16.6	16	10192	\$215.3	2015-2025
6	Holt Avenue/4th Street	20.4	18	6770	\$208.4	2025-2035
4	Euclid Avenue to Corona	17.9	14	6508	\$180.0	2025-2035
	Total	73.2	64	35635	\$845.6	
Unfunde	ed Corridors					
5	San Bernardino Avenue	11	12	6420	\$119.2	2025-2035*
3	Foothill Boulevard West	16.2	15	5557	\$166.2	2025-2035*
7	Grand/Edison Avenues	17.4	16	2386	\$179.4	2035-2045
8	Sierra Avenue	7.6	7	1893	\$79.0	2035-2045
9	Riverside Avenue	16.4	16	7342	\$174.2	2035-2045
10	Haven Avenue	10.4	10	3361	\$109.9	2035-2045
	Total	79.0	76	26959	\$827.9	

#### Table 11-3: BRT Corridors

\*If additional funding becomes available.

Source: Hexagon, Parsons, 2009.

	Total 2010-2015	Total 2016-2025	Total 2026-2035	Total 2010-2035
Omnitrans Fleet* (exclude NS)	\$51,060,000	\$143,670,000	\$174,500,000	\$369,230,000
BRT Corridor New Starts**	\$170,650,000	\$214,500,000	\$346,200,000	\$772,050,000
Omnitrans Other Costs	\$66,600,000.00	\$176,800,000	\$251,600,000	\$495,000,000
Redlands Rail	-	\$240,000,000	-	\$240,000,000
Metro Goldline to Montclair		\$50,000,000		\$50,000,000
Metrolink Extension		\$40,000,000	-	\$40,000,000
Metrolink Strategic	\$120,000,000	\$110,000,000	-	\$230,000,000
Total Capital Costs	\$408,310,000	\$974,970,000	\$813,000,000	\$2,196,280,000
Total Net Operating Costs	\$399,123,820	\$914,317,700	\$1,313,942,860	\$2,627,384,380
Projected Revenue	537,091,618	1,175,171,895	\$ 1,515,443,758	\$ 3,361,560,638
Projected 5309 Funding of				
Recommended Corridors***	\$75,000,000	\$150,000,000	\$150,000,000	\$375,000,000
Total	\$(195,342,202)	\$(564,115,805)	\$(461,499,102)	\$(1,087,103,742)

#### Table 11-4: Recommended LRTP

\*Includes ADA Fleet

\*\*E Street without Extension

\*\*\*Redlands Rail and four sbX Corridors

Source: Hexagon, Parsons, 2009.

# 11.3 VICTOR VALLEY

The three alternatives studied for the Victor Valley were evaluated based on a costeffectiveness measure, by calculating the ratio of annual boardings over the annual cost of the system. A comparison of the three alternatives is shown in Table 11-5.

The Baseline Alternative serves the least amount of future riders and provides no additional services to future travel markets.

The Plan Alternative serves a larger number of riders, and contains new services that provide additional transit connections. This alternative is also the most costly. The Vision Alternative serves the largest number of people and reduces the operational cost of the system by restructuring key routes to provide more efficient service.

As shown in Table 11-6, all three alternatives are well within the funding projections, and no shortfall in funding is expected for these alternatives. It is anticipated that only a percentage of the LTF funds will be utilized by the transit network for the area, providing funding for short term services identified in the *Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Coordination Plan.* 

	Daily Boardings	Passenger Miles	Annual O&M Cost (Million \$)	Daily Boardings / Annual Cost	Passenger Miles / Annual Cost
Baseline Alternative	4,556	17,109	4.95	920	3,456
Plan Alternative	8,779	45,763	8.25	1,064	5,547
Vision Alternative	9,445	51,485	8.08	1,169	6,372

#### Table 11-5: Victor Valley Alternatives Comparison

Source: Hexagon, 2009.



	Total 2010-2015	Total 2016-2025	Total 2026-2035	Total FY 2010- FY2035
Total Federal Funding	\$21,846,074	\$41,086,975	\$52,434,927	\$115,367,976
Total LTF Funds	\$89,811,125	\$151,358,521	\$192,562,954	\$433,732,600
Measure I Funding	\$2,921,001	\$7,932,000	\$13,142,001	\$23,995,002
Total Funding	\$114,578,200	\$200,377,497	\$258,139,881	\$573,095,578
Net O&M Cost				
Baseline	\$49,510,000	\$82,520,000	\$82,520,000	\$214,550,000
Plan	\$50,830,000	\$91,790,000	\$100,630,000	\$243,250,000
Vision	\$50,740,000	\$91,160,000	\$99,400,000	\$241,300,000
Capital Cost				
Baseline	\$29,250,000	\$39,082,500	\$39,082,500	\$107,415,000
Plan	\$31,250,000	\$48,082,500	\$51,682,500	\$131,015,000
Vision	\$31,250,000	\$48,982,500	\$53,482,500	\$133,715,000
Revenue Surplus (Deficit)				
Baseline	\$35,818,200	\$78,774,997	\$136,537,381	\$251,130,578
Plan	\$32,498,200	\$60,504,997	\$105,827,381	\$198,830,578
Vision	\$32,588,200	\$60,234,997	\$105,257,381	\$198,080,578
Net O&M CostBaselinePlanVisionCapital CostBaselinePlanVisionRevenue Surplus (Deficit)BaselinePlanVision	\$49,510,000 \$50,830,000 \$50,740,000 \$29,250,000 \$31,250,000 \$31,250,000 \$31,250,000 \$32,498,200 \$32,588,200	\$82,520,000 \$91,790,000 \$91,160,000 \$39,082,500 \$48,082,500 \$48,982,500 \$48,982,500 \$48,982,500 \$48,982,500 \$48,982,500 \$48,982,500 \$48,982,500	\$82,520,000 \$100,630,000 \$99,400,000 \$39,082,500 \$51,682,500 \$53,482,500 \$53,482,500 \$136,537,381 \$105,827,381 \$105,827,381	\$214,550,000 \$243,250,000 \$241,300,000 \$241,300,000 \$107,415,000 \$131,015,000 \$133,715,000 \$133,715,000 \$133,715,000 \$198,830,578 \$198,830,578

Table 11-6:	Victor Valley	/ Alternatives	Costs and	Financial	Projections
-------------	---------------	----------------	-----------	-----------	-------------

Source: Parsons, 2009.

The Vision Alternative, as the highest ranked alternative, is the Selected LRTP for the Victor Valley. Victor Valley is a key growth area in the county and with the implementation of SB 375 it is unclear what effect the legislation will have on the development patterns of this valley. Transit's role in providing a choice in mobility to residents of the valley is expected to remain a challenge, and due to the low density nature of the Victor Valley, new services will be implemented primarily as they become feasible in the short range planning process.

#### 11.4 RURAL TRANSIT OPERATORS

The Rural Transit Agencies of San Bernardino County each operate in unique circumstances from the remainder of San Bernardino County. The operating characteristics of each service are dependent on local land use patterns and short range planning opportunities. The LRTP assumes that operational costs will remain similar to 2008 levels with fleet replacement as the only substantial capital costs identifiable in the long term. Table 11-7 provides a summary of costs and funding sources for the rural operators. All costs are shown in Year 2009 dollars, and Measure I and LTF funding are both distributed geographically. The County portion of the LTF is distributed based on 2007 distribution percentages to the transit agencies to cover any projected shortfalls as needed. Federal 5311 funds are distributed to the Victor Valley and to the rural transit operators by population.

Needles Transit Authority is projected to operate in the short term in a deficit of \$1.3 million dollars, but over the life of the plan remains viable. MBTA is projected to operate in a \$14 million surplus, and not receive any portion of the county's LTF. MARTA is expected to operate in a deficit of \$42 million over the life of the plan, due to high operating costs and low regional LTF distributions. However, the county LTF distribution could rise to 20% for MARTA, which would result in a \$10 million surplus over the life of the plan and leave the County LTF Funding source with \$168,155,362 over the life of the plan. BAT is expected to operate in a shortfall the first periods of the plan and overall operate in a \$6.7 million surplus. In summary, there are enough funding sources to ensure the current levels of transit services over the life of the plan.

				Total FY 2010-
	Total 2010-2015	Total 2016-2025	Total 2026-2035	FY2035
NAT				
Operating and Fleet Costs	\$2,960,672	\$3,175,190	\$3,175,190	\$9,311,052
Measure I Colorado River	\$66,793	\$111,456	\$98,011	\$276,260
LTF	\$1,127,647	\$2,442,041	\$3,109,523	\$6,679,211
Federal 5311 Funding	\$12,751	\$24,416	\$31,090	\$68,257
County LTF Distribution	\$454,103	\$991,855	\$1,262,958	\$2,708,916
Surplus/(Deficit)	\$(1,299,377)	\$394,579	\$1,326,391	\$421,592
MBTA				
Operating and Fleet Costs	\$9,680,583	\$19,361,166	\$19,361,166	\$48,402,915
Measure I Morongo Basin	\$563,837	\$1,401,377	\$2,074,700	\$4,039,913
LTF	\$9,560,616	\$20,704,523	\$26,363,674	\$56,628,813
Federal 5311 Funding	\$245,907	\$470,884	\$599,590	\$1,316,382
County LTF Distribution				
Surplus/(Deficit)	\$689,777	\$3,215,618	\$9,676,798	\$13,582,193
MARTA				
Operating and Fleet Costs	\$11,731,781	\$23,463,562	\$23,463,562	\$58,658,905
Measure I Mountains	\$485,691	\$1,213,444	\$1,808,469	\$3,507,604
LTF	\$1,214,838	\$2,630,863	\$3,349,955	\$7,195,657
Federal 5311 Funding	\$23,680	\$45,344	\$57,738	\$126,763
County LTF Distribution	908,206	1,983,710	2,525,915	5,417,833
Surplus/(Deficit)	\$(9,099,365)	\$(17,590,200)	\$(15,721,484)	\$(42,411,049)
BAT				
Operating and Fleet Costs	\$13,859,071	\$27,718,142	\$27,718,142	\$69,295,356
Measure I North Desert	\$652,445	\$1,390,286	\$1,687,508	\$3,730,240
LTF	\$4,651,178	\$10,072,618	\$12,825,758	\$27,549,553
Federal 5311 Funding	\$158,474	\$303,459	\$386,403	\$848,335
County LTF Distribution	6,951,275	15,183,011	19,332,971	41,467,258
Surplus/(Deficit)	\$ <b>(1,445,699)</b>	\$(768,768)	\$6,514,498	\$4,300,431

#### Table 11-7: Rural Transit Operators

Source: Parsons, 2009.
00	
Maximum Density	
	Residential Densities up to 24 DU/AC
Iransit Policies	
	Action A3-4.1.2. Shuttle Service. Develop and offer incentives to employment centers which provide, operate, and maintain shuttle service from local Park-and-ride facilities, the Montclair Transcenter, and possible future commuter rail terminals, to the City's civic center area. Action A3-4.2.1 Ridesharing Match Service. Require employers with 100 or more full-time employees to participate in ridesharing matching services as a condition of business permit approval and business licensing. Participation includes: and active as a
	employee encouragement programs. Action A3-4.2.2 Shuttle service. Require employers with 100 or more full-time employees and major retailers to provide shuttle service from local park-n- ride facilities to the employment or shopping center.
	Action A3-5.1.2 Fee Assessments. Establish fee assessments for new development projects not providing transit facilities; base fees on anticipated transit trip generation. Encourage employers to pay for transit passes for their employees who agree not to drive to work. Policy P34.1 TDM Facilitators, inducements, and Infrastructure Require all new industrial and commercial developments to be aware of and, as
Parking Management S	tratoriae, partopace in row programs. Tratories
2 2 2	Action A3.4.1.5 Park-n-Ride. Investigate the possibility of locating park-n-ride or similar facilities along SR60, SR71 and the Euclid Avenue corridors. Possible sites could include existing parking structures and surfaces which are utilized mainly during evening or weekends, (e.g. fraternal meeting houses, religious facilities, movie theaters, or public properties). Establish a program to assess fees for the land acquisition, construction, and maintenance of such parking facilities. Require large developments (commercial or industrial development with on aggregate of 100 or more employees) of other Addicate large developments (commercial or industrial development with on aggregate of 100 or more employees)
TOD Policies	
	The City's overall land use pattern shall street higher density development in the Central portion of the City and along Euclid Avenue, and lower density development in the outlying areas. Higher density residential development shall be located conveniently to major circulation and transportation corridors such arterial streets. Densities shall, in general, decrease as the distance from major arterials increases.
	Shopping areas which serve a community-wide function shall be located close to or along Central Avenue. Shopping centers which serve the daily shopping needs of an immediate neighborhood shall be located away from Central Avenue, but they should be no closer to each other than one mile
Urban Design Policies	
	Action A3-4.1.4 Pedestrian Facilities. Require sidewalks on arterials and other roadways within industrial and commercial areas. Link bus loading bays, employment centers, and employee services (restaurants. etc.) with sidewalks. Buildings shall be well designed, shall respect the suburban image of the community and shall be designed with an awareness of existing neighboring buildings: appropriate architectural relief will be encouraged, with large expanses of blank, unrelieved walls being avoided, especially where fronting on a major street. To the maximum extent possible, land use patterns shall be planned so as to minimize Vehicles miles traveled. Higher density projects shall be kept to a small scale (number of units, heights, etc.) and shall, in general, reflect design characteristics of single family homes.
Growth Management	
Regional Coordination	
	Action A3-5.1.10 SCAG - City of Chino Regional Commuter Rail Study. Work with SCAG to include the Southern Pacific, Chino Branch and the Santo Fr Rail Line in its regional commuter rail study.
Financial Strategies	
	The City shall work closely with developers "and other interested parties to develop means by which needed capital facilities can be provided on a long term basis at little or no capital cost to the City. This could include the use of special assessment districts, developer reimbursement techniques. Private-public joint ventures, tax increment financing (redevelopment), and the such. The City shall explore alternative financing techniques which are not subject to the provisions of recent tax legislation such as Proposition 13 and
	Proposition 4.

#### **APPENDIX A – EXISTING PLANS AND POLICIES**



Governments SANBAG Working Together

2
(HC
(901
2
$(\bigcirc)$

172 PARSONS

Mamments           Mamments           Frankin           <	Chino Hills	
maxmum Density         Restortial Densities up to 35 DUAC           Transit Policies         Transit Policies         Restortial Densities which de expanded to serve enrore of the residential areas of Chino Hils Parway; and Perline Arenus. Finale regional provide access that the and provide access that the and provide access that the and provide access that the enrore of the residential areas of Chino Hils Parway; and Perline Arenus. Finale regional services should be optical. Gardinal partial activation to the service and and provide access that the provided to provide activation. Finale areas, These approvalences that the provided provide activation. Finale areas, These approvalences that the provided provide activation. Finale areas, These approvalences that the provided provided activation. Finale areas, These approvalences that the provided provided activation. Chino Hils, Farway, and Perline Arenus. Finale approvalences that the provided activation activation activates activates that the provided provided activation. Chino Hils, Carbon Canyon Chino Hils, Carbon Canyon Chino Hils, Farway, and Perline Arenus. Finale areas, These facility shall be constructed.           Parking Management Strategies         Parking of the adjacent commercial areas access that the provided		
Transit Policies         Residential Densities up to 35 DUAC           Transit Policies         Coal transit services should be expanded to serve more of the residential areas of Chino Hills Parkwy, and Projens we developments to be built under than Uues The and Uues The and Uues The serve from Chino Dhe in Umber Polyade Lamon Road Coantal Arenne. Chino Hills Parkwy, and Projens were incombined pervestion That service should be povided to provide arransit services should be provided to provide transit areas and Projens were. In addition to the submitting the serve from Chino Dhem of Hills Parkwy. Service and the expanded to provide transit access to the revealer molecular presson areas thread Density and transit access to the revealer combined to the provided to provide transit access to the revealer molecular press serve to Los Angeles via SR-80, and Park-and-Ride lots near the Chino Valley Freeway.           Parking Management Strategie         Park and ride areas stall be provided at village cores. general commercial areas and mixed land use areas. These facilities areas the elegined to maintens exactly and adpacent commercial areas and mixed land use areas. These facilities areas the elegined to maintens exactly and adpacent commercial areas and mixed land use areas. These facilities and the areas transit and the area transit and transit and the area transit and transit and the area transit and the areare to and the area transit and the area transit and	Maximum Density	
Transit Policies         Constraint Policies           Interst Policies         Coal Transit Revises should be synoted to serve not of the residential areas of Chino Hills and provide access to the major new devicipments to be buit under the Land Use Plan. These new local services should not use the chino Hills Parkway, and Pipeline Avenue. The Parking Management Strategies           Parking Management Strategies         Parking Management Strategies         Parking Hills Parkway, and Pipeline Avenue. Finance access to the major new devicipments to be buit under the Land Use Plan. These new local services should not be provided to provide disto provide disto provided to provide disto provided to provide disto prov		Residential Densities up to 35 DU/AC
Coal transits the built inter the Land Die expanded to serve more for the residentia area of Chino Hills and Youch access to the major mere developments to be Mitt mere the Land Die Pin. These new loat services should meldio. Service abong Peyton Dire from Riverside Dirie to Saquel Canyon Road to provide transit access to other countes. These regions private service should be provided to provide transit access to dire countes. These regions reviews stroll provide transit access to dire countes. These regions private service should be provided to provide transit access to dire countes. These regions reviews stroll to the Break Mal passing through Chino Hills. Perkway. Sand reviews stroll to the service should be provided to provide transit access to dire countes. These regions are avery carried are not connect as a service to Los Angeles via SR-60, and Part and Ride Mal passing through Chino Hills. The Chino Valley, Freeway.         Parking Management Strategie       Parking Management Strategie       Park and reflex los Angeles via SR-60, and Part and Ride to the ansist access to the countes. These regions are avery and provide areast of access. Each park and reflex los Ander Line Chino Valley, Freeway.         Parking Management Strategie       Al park and reflex los SR-60, and Park and Ride tots near the Chino Valley, Freeway.         Parking Management Strategie       Al park and reflex los SR-60, and Park and Ride tots near the Chino Valley, Freeway.         Parking Management Strategie       Al park and reflex los SR-60, and Park and Ride tots near the Chino Valley, Freeway.         Parking Management Strategie       Al park and reflex los SR-60, and Park and Ride tots near the Chino Valley, Freeway.         Parking Management Strategie       Al park and reflex	Transit Policies	
Parting Management Strategies       Park-and-ride areas shall be provided at vilage cores, general commercial areas and mixed land use areas. These facilities and be the designed to maximize security and provide ease of access. Each park-and -ride lot shall have a capacity equal to 0% of the required parking of the adjacent commercial area, except that no more than 50 spaces per facility shall be constructed.         TOD Policies       Al park-and-ride lots shall be provided at vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facility shall be constructed and maintained by the appropriate local entity.         Urban Design Policies       Al park-and-ride lots shall be provided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be provided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be provided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be provided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be foroided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be foroided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be foroided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be foroided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be foroided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be foroided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be coroided in vilage core areas and other commercial industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be coroided in vilage c		Local transit services should be expanded to serve more of the residential areas of Chino Hills and provide access to the major new developments to be built under the Land Use Plan. These new local services should include: Service along Peyton Drive from Riverside Drive to Soquel Canyon Road to Central, and along Central Avenue to Chino Hills Parkway; and increased frequency on Omnitrans route #72 along Grand Avenue, Chino Hills Parkway, and Pipeline Avenue. In addition to these local services should include: Grand Avenue, Chino Hills Parkway, and Pipeline Avenue. In addition to these local services, regional transit service should be provided to provide transit access to other counties. These regional services from Chino to Diamond Bar, passing through Chino Hills; Carbon Canyon Road service from Chino to Brea, including the Brea Mall passing through Chino Hills; The Chino Valley Freeway commuter express service to Los Angeles via SR-60; and Park-and-Ride lots near the Chino Valley Freeway.
Provided at vilage cores, general commercial areas, succept that no more than 50 spaces per facility shall be constructed.         TOD Policies       All park-and-ride lots shall be acquired, constructed and maintained by the appropriate local entity.         TOD Policies       All park-and-ride lots shall be acquired, constructed and maintained by the appropriate local entity.         ID Policies       All park-and-ride lots shall be acquired, constructed and maintained by the appropriate local entity.         ID Problem       Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be provided in village core areas and other commercial, industrial and public use areas.         Cowth Management       Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be provided in village core areas and chall be localed in proximity to both traffic signats and peedestrians, respectively.         Crowth Management       Policy 12. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Chino Hills. Visual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 12. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Chino Hills. Yisual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 13. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Chino Hills. Or the Yest and and such encoloryment standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 13. Prosected and mark (SCAG) propect	Parking Management Strateg	lies
TOD Policies       ToD Policies         Urban Design Policies       Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be provided in village core areas and other commercial, industrial and public use areas.         Urban Design Policies       Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be provided in village core areas and other commercial, industrial and public use areas.         Revent Management       Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be docated in proximity to both traffic signals and pedestrian crosswalks, so as to provide for ease of ingrees iron bases and ease of access for pedestrians, respectively.         Policy 1-2. Preserve significant tatural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Chino Hills Visual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 1-2. Preserve significant tatures the order employment growth coordinated with the availability of diagram duransportation.         Regional Coordination       Policy 1-3. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Opeictive 3-1. Continue to strive towards the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing unit.         Financial Strategies		Park-and-ride areas shall be provided at village cores, general commercial areas and mixed land use areas. These facilities shall be designed to maximize security and provide ease of access. Each park-and -ride lot shall have a capacity equal to 10% of the required parking of the adjacent commercial area, except that no more than 50 spaces per facility shall be constructed. All park-and-ride lots shall be acquired, constructed and maintained by the appropriate local entity
TOD Policies       Urban Design Policies         Urban Design Policies       Bus turmouts and bus shelters shall be provided in village core areas and other commercial, industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be designed to maximize security features and shall be located in proximity to both traffic signals and pedestrian crosswalks, so as to provide for ease of ingress for buses and ease of access for pedestrians, respectively.         Growth Management       Bus turmouts and bus shelters shall be designed to maximize security features and shall be located in proximity to both traffic signals and pedestrian crosswalks, so as to provide for ease of ingress for buses and ease of access for pedestrians, respectively.         Growth Management       Policy 1-2. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Chino Hills Visual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 3-3. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Delicy 3-3. Continue to strive towards the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing unit.         Financial Strategies       Financial Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing unit.		
Urban Design Policies         Urban Design Policies         Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be provided in vilage core areas and other commercial, industrial and public use areas.         Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be provided in vilage core areas and other commercial, industrial and public use areas.         Crowth Management         Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be designed to maximize security features and shall be located in proximity to both traffic signals and pedestrians, respectively.         Crowth Management         Provide Totation         Policy 1-2. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Policy 1-2. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Policy 1-2. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Policy 1-3. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Policy 1-3. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Policy 1-3. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Policy 1-3. Preserve such as ridges in the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Regional Coordination       Policy 3-3. Uontimue to strive towards the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing unit.         Financial Strategies       Financial Strategies	TOD Policies	
Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be provided in village core areas and other commercial, industrial and public use areas.         These facilities shall be designed to maximize security freatures and shall be located in proximity to both traffic signals and pedestrian crosswalks, so as to provide for ease of ingress for buses and ease of access for pedestrians, respectively.         Growth Management       Policy 1-2. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Chino Hills Visual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 1-3. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, including those identified on the City of Chino Hills Visual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Dipective 3-1. Continue to strive towards the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing ratio for the year 2010 for the West Sam Bernardino Valley, which includes the city of Chino Hills, of 1.16 jobs per housing unit.         Financial Strategies       Financial Strategies	Urban Design Policies	
Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be provided in vilage core areas and other commercial, industrial and public use areas.         These facilities shall be designed to maximize security features and shall be located in proximity to both traffic signals and pedestrian crosswaks, so as to provide for ease of ingress for buses and ease of access for pedestrians, respectively.         Growth Management       Policy 1-2. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, Including those identified on the City of Chino Hills Visual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Opicy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Opicy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Opicy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Opicy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Opicy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Opicy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employments (SCAG) projected j		
Growth Management       Policy 1-2. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, Including those identified on the City of Chino Hills Visual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Objective 3-1. Continue to strive towards the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing unit.         Financial Strategies       Includes the city of Chino Hills, of 1.16 jobs per housing unit.		Bus turnouts and bus shelters shall be provided in village core areas and other commercial, industrial and public use areas. These facilities shall be designed to maximize security features and shall be located in proximity to both traffic signals and pedestrian crosswalks, so as to provide for ease of ingress for buses and ease of access for pedestrians, respectively.
Policy 1-2. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, Including those identified on the City of Chino Hills Visual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.         Regional Coordination       Policy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Objective 3-1. Continue to strive towards the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing unit.         Financial Strategies	Growth Management	
Regional Coordination       Policy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation.         Policy 3-1. Continue to strive towards the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing ratio for the year 2010 for the West San Bernardino Valley, which includes the city of Chino Hills, of 1.16 jobs per housing unit.         Financial Strategies       Image: Strategies		Policy 1-2. Preserve significant natural features such as ridges, knolls, and vistas, Including those identified on the City of Chino Hills Visual and Scenic Resources Diagram, through special development standards and guidelines.
Policy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation. Objective 3-1. Continue to strive towards the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing ratio for the year 2010 for the West San Bernardino Valley, which includes the city of Chino Hills, of 1.16 jobs per housing unit.	Regional Coordination	
Financial Strategies		Policy 3-8. Work with local agencies and jurisdictions to promote employment growth coordinated with the availability of adequate housing and transportation. Objective 3-1. Continue to strive towards the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) projected jobs/housing ratio for the year 2010 for the West San Bernardino Valley, which includes the city of Chino Hills, of 1.16 jobs per housing unit.
	Financial Strategies	

Special Designation – Multi Use area           That and service reaction multi-formation and service subject or service and the second pay allowing service by allowing service prevention for mittee and service subject or service and the second pay allowing service prevention for mittee and service subject or service and the second pay allowing service prevention for mittee and service subject or service and service subject or service and the second pay allowing service prevention for mittee and the service of the development 48. The multi-sec sespitation is not interaction and use and the second pay and commune (in the truth or compared and the second pay and segment part matrix restriction and second methods the multi-sec sespitation is not interaction and use of the multi-sec sespitation is not interaction of second part matrix restrictions and the second part matrix restriction and use of the multi-sec sespitation is not interaction and use of the multi-sec sespitation matrix.           Maximum Density         Residential Densities up to 22 DUAC         Goad 2. Encourage the use of alternative models or mease public recognition and use of the local and regional matrix sectors to mittee and the commulation in the sector in the planning area.           Period 2. Encourage the use of alternative transpondation in provide community that sectors and the planning area.         Densities and the sector in the sector in the planning area.           Period 2. Encourage the use of alternative statistic system.         Densities and the sector indepart matrix sector in molecular provide community that sectors and the number of variable using the condox and the sector indepart matrix sector indepart matrix sector indepart matrix sector indepart matrix sectors in molecular sector indepart matrix secondores and sector indepart matrix secondores and sector indepa	Mixed Use Designation		
Maximum Density         Residential Densities up to 22 DUAC           Transit Policies         Ceal 2: Encourage the use of alternative transportation modes.           Gai 2: Encourage the use of alternative transportation modes.         Ceal 2: Encourage the use of alternative transportation modes.           Gai 2: Toronine to cooperate with Contrars for the provision of public bus service in the planning area.         Delay 2: Externary and the County of a service in provide point the planning area.           Parking Management Strates and The County of a provision of public tooggring in and the planning area.         Delay 2: Externary and the County of a service in provide point the planning area.           Parking Management Strates.         Delay 2: Externary and the County of a service in provide provide or of which service in the planning area.           Parking Management Strates.         Delay 2: Externary and the County of a service in the planning area.           Parking Management Strates.         Delay and the community.           Parking Management Strates.         Delay and the county.           Parking Management Strates.         Delay and the count		Special Designation – Multi Use area This area has been established along the Mount Vernon corridor for the purpose of creating a long-term vehicle for upgrading the economic and aesthetic environment. The multi-use area designation permits a two-pronged approach by allowing existing parcels to be used for residential or commercial activities subject to aesthetic upgrades and by encouraging more significant residential and commercial projects in the future using density bonuses and design modifications based on the size of the development site. The multi-use designation is not intended to create an immediate or near term transformation of the Mount Vernon Corridor, but rather to establish significant investment and community improvement opoortunities which may be eventually realized as surrounding land costs continue to increase.	
Transit Policies       Residential Densities up to 22 DU/AC         Transit Policies       Ceal 2: Encourage the use of alternative transportation modes.         Ceal 2: Encourage the use of alternative transportation modes.       Policy 2: Canhine to some and with Country of San Bernardino in providing alter and infer and i	Maximum Density		
Transit Policies         Coal 2: Encourage the use of alternative transportation modes.           Policy 2: 1: Continue to cooperate with Contrars stores to the constituent of public bus service in the planning area.         Policy 2: 1: Continue to cooperate with Contrars stores to the constituent of public bus service in the planning area.           Policy 2: Contrart is the cooperate with Contrars stores to the community val service in the planning area.         Policy 2: Contrart is the planning area.           Policy 2: Comprise of cover 100 employers of the county of San Bernardin in providing sites and mprovements for park-and-ride stalifies provide community val service in the planning area.         Policy 2: 4: take a leadenthy to the imposed of the county of San Bernardin in providing the number of vehicles using the road-value staline reports.           Parking Management Strateging Magnity in the planning area and major mark of the count of staline stage and major mane states without the stale of the community.         Parking the area and major commercial coundors are receased on the count of which area and major mark on the number of vehicles using the road-any state and and one states of the community.           Parking Management Strate(parking) requirements the CNY s Zoning Ordinance includes of street parking requirements for unsolutions planning requirements for providing states and major mark of the community.           Parking Management Strate(parking) requirements for the community.         Parking requirements for unsolution the scale of the community.           Parking Management Strate(parking) requirements for the conformation are recessary to make purchase operturinter unsoures preal manetion masure scale.         Parkin		Residential Densities up to 22 DU/AC	
Coal 2: Encourage the use of alternative transportation modes. Policy 2: Continue to cooperate with Omnitans for the provision of public bus service in the planning area. While Policy 2: Setablish bus shelters al of Unitans store to provide community rail service throughout the planning area, while Policy 2: Setablish bus service in regional planning efforts to provide community rail service throughout the planning area, while Policy 2: Setablish bus service throughout the planning area, while Protecting raircoar right-of-way. Therhentiation Measure 3: Transportation Demand Management (TDM): Following the air quality management plan for the south coast protecting raircoar right-of-way. Therhentiation Measure 3: Transportation Demand Management (TDM): Following the air quality management plan for the south coast protecting raircoar right-of-way. Protecting rairco	Transit Policies		
Policy 2.1: Continue to concertate with Ommitrans for the provision of public bus service in the planning area.         Policy 2.2: Stabilish bus Shelters at Ommitrans stores to increase public recognition and and regional transit system.         Policy 2.3: Concertate with Cartarns and the Courty of San Bernadrino in providing sites and improvements for planning area. while provements for planning area. while provide organization bus shelters at Ommitrans stores to provide community rail service throughout the planning area. while provide organization and regional planning efforts to provide community rail service throughout the planning area. while provide size and other methods.         Provide comparized with courts through varpooling. The sharing staggered work hours and other methods.       Provide community rail service throughout the planning area. while provide community and second provides to an expension provide organization base.         Parking Management Strategies       Provide sharing staggered work hours and other methods.         Parking Management Strategies       Provide sharing staggered work hours and other methods.         Parking Management Strategies       Provide sharing staggered work hours and other methods.         Parking Management Strategies       Provide sharing staggered work hours and other methods.         Parking Management Strategies       Provide sharing stadded development incorporation methods where effected demand management programating and and staggered work hours and other methods.         Parking Management Strategies       Provide standard stadded stadies stadied development incentives where effected demand management program avaliabit program		Goal 2: Encourage the use of alternative transportation modes.	
Parking Management Strategies         Implementation Measure 8: Off-street (parking) requirements: the City's Zoning Ordinance includes off-street parking requirements for various types of development allowances for parking reductions of development incentives where an appropriate mix of land uses exist.         Implementations       Establish minimum improvements and standards, such as off-street parking, to be required on all properties based on the scale of operations and proposed development.         IOD Policies       Velidesigne for an allowances for print use of parking facilities where an appropriate mix of land uses exist.         Establish minimum improvements and standards, such as off-street parking, to be required on all properties based on the scale of operations and proposed development.         VDP Policies       Velidesigne human-scaled commercial developments featuring an attractive and efficient pedestrian environment should be encourage as they add to the responsiveness of commercial growth to localized needs.         Growth Management       Etiancial Strategies         Financial Strategies       The City shall seek and utilize any available Federal funds and programs in implementing qualifying portions of the Land Use Element a other elements of the General Plan. This includes taking advantage of the "Enterprise Zone" designation to be granted along the Agua         Mansa and Mount Vernon concidors in the near future.       Mansa and Mount Vernon concidors in the near future.		Policy 2.1: Continue to cooperate with Omnitrans for the provision of public bus service in the planning area. Policy 2.2: Establish bus Shelters at Omnitrans stops to increase public recognition and use of the local and regional transit system. Policy 2.3: Cooperate with Caltrans and the County of San Bernardino in providing sites and improvements for park-and-ride facilities. Policy 2.4: take a leadership role in regional planning efforts to provide community rail service throughout the planning area, while protecting railroad right-of-way. Implementation Measure 3: Transportation Demand Management (TDM): Following the air quality management plan for the south coast air basin, employers of over 100 employees will be involved in a program aimed at reducing the number of vehicles using the roadway system during peak hours though vanpooling , ride sharing, staggered work hours and other methods. Public transportation linkages between residential areas and major commercial corridors are necessary to make purchase opportunities available to all secoments of the community.	
Implementation Measure 8: Off-street (parking) requirements: the City's Zoning Ordinance includes off-street parking requirements for various types of development, allowances for parking reductions of development incentives where effected demand management progra are utilized, and allowances for joint use of parking tacilities where an appropriate mix of land uses exist.         TOD Policies       Various types of development, allowances for parking tacilities where an appropriate mix of land uses exist.         TOD Policies       Various and proposed development, and variates and standards, such as off-street parking, to be required on all properties based on the scale of operations and proposed development.         Urban Design Policies       Vell-designed human-scaled commercial developments featuring an attractive and efficient pedestrian environment should be encourage as they add to the responsiveness of commercial growth to localized needs.         Regional Coordination       Financial Strategies         Financial Strategies       The City shall seek and utilize any available Federal funds and programs in implementing qualifying portions of the Land Use Element at other elements of the relements of the relements of the relements of the relements of the relement of the relement of the relements of the relements of the relements of the relements of the relement of the resonance of the resonance of the relements of the relement of the relement of the relement of the relement of the relements of the relements of the relements of the relements of the relement of the relements of the relement of the relement of the relements of the relement of the relements of the relement of the relement of the relements of the relements of the relements of the relement and mount Vernon corridors in the near future.	Parking Management Strate	dies	
TOD Policies       Well-designed human-scaled commercial developments featuring an attractive and efficient pedestrian environment should be encourage         Urban Design Policies       Well-designed human-scaled commercial developments featuring an attractive and efficient pedestrian environment should be encourage         Well-designed human-scaled commercial growth to localized needs.       Well-designed human-scaled commercial growth to localized needs.         Growth Management       Regional Coordination       Financial Strategies         Financial Strategies       The City shall seek and utilize any available Federal funds and programs in implementing qualifying portions of the Land Use Element an other elements of the General Plan. This includes taking advantage of the "Enterprise Zone" designation to be granted along the Agua		Implementation Measure 8: Off-street (parking) requirements: the City's Zoning Ordinance includes off-street parking requirements for various types of development, allowances for parking reductions of development incentives where effected demand management programs are utilized, and allowances for joint use of parking facilities where an appropriate mix of land uses exist. Establish minimum improvements and standards, such as off-street parking, to be required on all properties based on the scale of operations and proposed development.	
Urban Design Policies       Well-designed human-scaled commercial developments featuring an attractive and efficient pedestrian environment should be encourage         Well-designed human-scaled commercial growth to localized needs.       Well-designed human-scaled commercial growth to localized needs.         Growth Management       As they add to the responsiveness of commercial growth to localized needs.         Regional Coordination       Financial Strategies         Financial Strategies       The City shall seek and utilize any available Federal funds and programs in implementing qualifying portions of the Land Use Element an other elements of the General Plan. This includes taking advantage of the "Enterprise Zone" designation to be granted along the Agua	TOD Policies		
Growth Management       as they add to the responsiveness of commercial growth to localized needs.         Regional Coordination       Financial Strategies         The City shall seek and utilize any available Federal funds and programs in implementing qualifying portions of the Land Use Element ar other elements of the General Plan. This includes taking advantage of the "Enterprise Zone" designation to be granted along the Agua Mansa and Mount Vernon corridors in the near future.	Urban Design Policies	Well-designed human-scaled commercial developments featuring an attractive and efficient pedestrian environment should be encouraged	
Growth Management Regional Coordination Financial Strategies The City shall seek and utilize any available Federal funds and programs in implementing qualifying portions of the Land Use Element an other elements of the General Plan. This includes taking advantage of the "Enterprise Zone" designation to be granted along the Agua Mansa and Mount Vernon corridors in the near future.		as they add to the responsiveness of commercial growth to localized needs.	
Financial Strategies The City shall seek and utilize any available Federal funds and programs in implementing qualifying portions of the Land Use Element ar other elements of the General Plan. This includes taking advantage of the "Enterprise Zone" designation to be granted along the Agua Mansa and Mount Vemon corridors in the near future.	Growth Management Regional Coordination		
The City shall seek and utilize any available Federal funds and programs in implementing qualifying portions of the Land Use Element ar other elements of the General Plan. This includes taking advantage of the "Enterprise Zone" designation to be granted along the Agua Mansa and Mount Vernon corridors in the near future.	Financial Strategies		Go S wa
		The City shall seek and utilize any available Federal funds and programs in implementing qualifying portions of the Land Use Element and other elements of the General Plan. This includes taking advantage of the "Enterprise Zone" designation to be granted along the Agua Mansa and Mount Vernon corridors in the near future.	vernment: ANBAC rking Togethe

(ROS
$\square$

Need to Dependion         Personal Mode (Note)           Present Mode (Note)         Construction (Note)         Construction (Note)         Construction (Note)           Present Mode (Note)         Construction (Note)	ntana Oct-03	
The start for the start of contract and	Mixed Use Designation	Regional Mixed Use (RMU)
Methum Densy         Decision           Transit Policie         T		0.1 – 1.0 FAK for non-restormal; 12-24 du/acre for restormal Preferred Mix and Range of Uses: 10-30% retail; 5-15% office; 15-30% light industrial/business park; 25-35% residential, 4-6% public open
Transit Policies         Rediction Drenker up 0: 24 DUAC           Transit Policies         Transit Policies         Transit Policies         Transit Policies           Transit Policies <t< td=""><td>Maximum Density</td><td>space.</td></t<>	Maximum Density	space.
Transit Policie         Transit Policie           Transit Policie         Environment and segretation systems (15) components (ord innet(a b signal systems and inspired and approximation systems (15) components (ord innet(a b signal systems) and segretation systems (15) components (ord innet(a b signal systems) and segretation systems (15) components (ord innet(a) and segretation and approximation systems (15) components (ord innet(a) and segretation and approximation systems (15) components (15) components (15) components (15) and the segretation and approximation systems (15) components (15) co		Residential Densities up to 24 DU/AC
In plant is the signal systems and insighter in the increduction system (15) compared where it can allot increduction and and and increduction and and and and and and and and and an	Transit Policies	
Recognize elemente and private transportation services (vens, buses, abudes, abudes and innousines) as an integral part of public transportation.           Priving Management Strategies         Recognize elemente and exiting part of transportation to private transportation tervices (entrans).           Priving Management Strategies         Recognize elemente and exiting manufacture to private transportation trave to public and private transportation moles.           Priving Management Strategies         Reving areas shall continue to be buffered fram the stretet and private transportation moles.           Priving areas shall continue to be buffered fram the stretet and private transportation moles.         Priving areas shall continue to be buffered fram the stretet and private transportation moles.           Priving areas shall continue to be buffered fram the stretet and private transportation moles.         Priving areas shall continue to be buffered fram the stretet and private strengorial and addition moles.           ODD Exaltices         Improvements shall be mutad to transportation contriders that private strengorial and private transportation moles.           Commendia and induction and the strending on addition transportation and the strending private strengorial and private transportation moles.         Private strengorial and addition and transportation and addition and transportation and addition at an addition and a strengorial and addition and addition anditio addition and a strated addition andition and a strated ad		Implement traffic signal systems and intelligent transportation systems (ITS) components (not limited to signal coordination, highway advisory radio, closec circuit television, emergency vehicle signal preemption, etc.) along arterial roadways and sub-areas, in accordance to the City's Traffic Signal System Conceptual Buildout Plan and in compliance with regional and appropriate ITS Architecture Master Plans. To encourage transit ridership and transportation demand management including carpooling, required vanpool parking spaces, plan for the provision of additional transportation centers to be used as a park-and-ride for ridesharing, high-occupancy vehicle lanes, regional bus and passenger rail services.
Where needed and appropriate, require new development to provide transt facilities and accommodation, such as bus shelters and turnod,, conside messions.           Paking Management Standy         Texourage commutes and captorpriste, require new development to provide where practical, a pedestrian spine for safe access to shopping and activity are strated parameters and turnods.           Paking Management Standy         Texourage commutes and captorpriste transportation medies.         Texourage commutes and captorpriste transportation medies.           Paking areas shall continue to be buffered from the street and provide, where practical, a pedestrian spine for safe access to shopping and activity are transportation modes.           Utran Design Policiem         Terror aga area shall be oriented from the street and provide, where practical, a pedestrian spine for safe access to shopping and activity area adjacents or adjustry in activity centers and be control with designated contectivity and refect consistenty high aethelec values.           Design Policiem         Terror aga area shall be oriented from the street and provide, where practical, a pedestrian spine for safe access to shopping and activity area adjacent policiem or adjustry and refect consistenty high aethelec values.           Other Design Policiem         Terror adjustry and the street and provides adjacent policiem and adjustry adjustry and and and adjustry conservative and activity centers and be conserved and adjustry conservative and activity centers and be activity and the street and provides adjacent policiem or adjacent policiem           Terror adjustry adj		Recognize alternative and private transportation services (vans, buses, shuttles, taxis and limousines) as an integral part of public transportation.
Parting Management Strategies         Parting Management Strategies           Parting Management Strategies         Parting areas shall continue to be tuffered from the street and provide, where practical, a pedestrian spine for safe access to shopping and activity are uncomplexed.           IDD Policies         Improvements shall be made to transportation contract that promote physical connectivity and reflect consistently high aesthetic values.           Urban Design Policies         Improvements shall be made to transportation contract media shall be elevabed and increasible to the state and inducting bar of the state and inducting bar of the state contract shall be mide a different to the state and inducting bar of the state contract shall be mide a different state and inducting bar of the state contract shall be mide a different to the state and inducting bar of the state and inducting bar of the state contract shall be mide a different parting bar of the state and inducting bar of the state and the state and inducting bar of the state and the state and inducting bar of the state and the sta		Where needed and appropriate, require new development to provide transit facilities and accommodations, such as bus shefters and turnouts, consistent with regional agency plans and existing and anticipated demands. Encourage commuters and employers to reduce vehicular trips by offering incentives such as reduced price transit passes and preferential parking for ridesharing. Provide appropriate transportation terminal facilities for inter-city and regional travel by public and private transportation modes.
TOD Policie         Improvements shall be made to transportation control or that promote physical connectivity and reflect consistently high aesthet values.           Urban Design Policie         Improvements shall be made to transportation control or that promote physical connectivity and reflect consistently high aesthet values.           Undan Design Policie         Improvements shall be made to transportation control or shall be developed and or consistently bigh aesthet values.           Diadropsin addition to the sine of the sine of with residential neighborhoods and be accessible by multiple modes of transportation and its and the set and and or state accompany and material pain to the set and the sine of the sine	Parking Management Strategies	Parking areas shall continue to be buffered from the street and provide. Where practical, a pedestrian some for safe access to shooping and activity areas.
Improvements shall be made to transportation corridors that promote physical connectivity and reflect consistently high aesthetic volumes         Commenties and moust lases adjacent to evalut major inclusion and provide and materies of the ansportation and major major major major moust layer and and an and provides shall be given special mark with convenient but not visually dominating part and sing.         Commenties and moust major anterial consult major incluses address shall be oriented to with residential mediportation.       Activity centers shall be oriented toward major inclusion and development standards guidance.         Commenties and and and an and and and and and and	TOD Policies Ilthan Desiren Policies	
Management Plan routes. Continue to support the regional bus system to provide intra-city service, inter-city service to major employment centers, and connection to other region transportation transfer points.	Growth Management Regional Coordination	Commercial and industrial uses adjacent to or within designated corridor's shall be developed and revitalized to reflect contemporary design standards as on site. Activity centers should be linked with residential neighborhoods and be accessible by multiple modes of transportation. Activity centers should be linked with residential neighborhoods and be accessible by multiple modes of transportation. Activity centers should be linked with residential neighborhoods and be accessible by multiple modes of transportation. Areas adjacent to freeway and major arterial corridors shall be given special land use and development standards guidance. Areas adjacent to freeway and major arterial corridors shall be given special land use and development standards guidance. Require street dedications from adjacent poperties when the land is necessary for additional transportation capacity and enhanced mobility for the welfart A well-integrated network of bike and pedestrian paths should connect residential areas to schools, parks, and shopping centers Major arterial streetscape improvement plans as part of the City's Capital Improvement Program and Capital Re-Investment Program. Adopt arterial streetscape improvement plans as part of the City's Capital Improvement Program and Capital Re-Investment Program. Adopt arterial streetscape improvement plans as part of the City's Capital Improvement Program and Capital Re-Investment Program. Adopt arterial streetscape improvement plans as part of the City's Capital Improvement Program and Capital Re-Investment Program. Adopt arterial streetscape improvement plans as part of the City's Capital Improvement Program and Capital Re-Investment Program. Adopt arterial streetscape improvement plans as part of the City's Capital Improvement Program and Capital Re-Investment Program. Adopt arterial streetscape improvement plans as part of the City's Capital Improvement Program and Capital Re-Investment Program. Adopt design guidelines for Foothill Boulevard. Valley Boulevard and
transportation transfer points.		Management Plan routes. Continue to support the regional bus system to provide intra-city service, inter-city service to major employment centers, and connection to other regional
Financial Stratonice	Financial Stratanias	transportation transfer points.

Mixed Use Designation	
1	Mixeduse development which can demonstrate superior use of land, more efficient utilization of public facilities, and more effectiv conservation of natural resources shall be strongly encouraged by the city of Grand Terrace.
Maximum Density	
	Medium Residential Density - 12 DU/AC
Transit Policies	
	Public transit will be encouraged by city participation in local and regional transit programs and, by special consideration in large new developments wherever feasible. Encourage the continuance of a public transportation system that will: 1) provide a viable alternative to the automobile; 2) satisfy the transportation needs of commuters, the economically disadvantaged, the aged, the young, and the handicapped; 3) promote service at a reasonable and equitable cost both to the users and the general community.
Parking Management Strategies	
TOD Policies	
Urban Design Policies	Design of new development shall respect and preserve the view opportunities of existing development in the area.
Growth Management	
Regional Coordination	
	The city will work closely with the regional transit agencies to ensure the convenient and affordable bus service continues to be available to local residents. Encourage State, regional, and local governments and agencies to achieve a coordinated and balanced regional transportation system consistent with the city's social, economic, and environmental needs and goals.
Financial Strategies	
	Commitment of public funds to provide necessary off-site improvements for development of vacant private property will consider the net revenue which the development will produce for the city over the time.

PARSONS | 175



and the	
$\bigcirc$	

Mixed Use Designation	
Maximum Density	MX80-USE (MU) Maximum intensity: 10 dwelling units per 1.0 adre. or 1.0 F.MX
field liniuxem	Residential Density units 8 DUIAC
Transit Policies	
	Provide access to multiple modes of travel, including pedestrian, bicycle, transit and automobile. Encourage major employers to reduce vehicular trips by offering incentive concepts discussed in the General Plan Circulation Element, including but not limited to reduced transit passes and preferentia
	parking for ridesharing.
	Continue to support the regional bus system to provide intracity service, intercity service to major employment centers, and connection to regional transportation transfer points. Work with Omnitrans to ensure that transit services are extended to serve residents in the eastern portion of the study area.
Parking Management Strategi	Coordinate with Ommitrans to provide sale, clean and attractive bus shelters at bus stops and transfer stations.
	Investigate the implementation of Variable Parking District Overlays along Base Line, Highland Historic District and other areas where appropriate, to encourage the enhancement of existing parking- deficient development.
	Assess the adequacy of existing or proposed on- and off-street parking as needed, especially in urban and commercial areas, to ensure that an adequate supply is provided.
	Explore strategies for the management of parking supply, which can include parking fees, metered on-street parking and staggered work schedules. Develoo strategies for the control of parking demand such as improved transit service, amenities for biovclists and rideshare vehicles.
	Develop strategies for shared parking opportunities in mixed-use and multiple-use development.
	Encourage the use of well-desgred, aesthetically enhanced parking structures as an alternative to large, expansive surface parking lots in retail and employment centers. Provide convenient and consolidated parking where cars are screened from view, wherever possible.
	Segregate residential parking from commercial and office parking.
	Minimize the visual impact of surface parking by providing berms, landscape buffering and/or locating parking lots to the rear or side of buildings or below buildings. Locate buildings and building frontages dose to the street corners with parking behind or to the side of the buildings. Where this is not possible or practical, ensure that street-facing parking is
	shielded through landscaping or berms.
	reduce the visual impact of parking through considiated parking strangements, shared onveway accessed designs, landscape butters and recessed, covered parking structures.
TOD Policies	Han for the provision of areas within the City to be used as park-and-ride regional bus and car pool facilities.
Urban Design Policies	
	Prevent future strip commercial development by encouraging lot consolidation within commercially designated areas and by limiting commercial designations to areas of sufficient size to accommodate larger scale, quality development.
	Connect the Town Center physically and visually with the Historic Village District with pedestrian connections, historically compatible architecture, signage, landscaping and other streetscape elements.
	Frometriessanding drive-trirough commercial structures and convenience commercial uses, except at the major intersection of Paim Avenue and base Line. Encourage and improve pedestrian connections from residential neighborhoods to retail activity centers, employment centers, schools, parks, open space areas and community centers.
	Add raised, landscaped medians and bulb-outs, where appropriate, to reduce exposure to cross traffic at street crossings. Pursue unifying streetscape elements for major corridors, including coordinated streetlights, landscaping, public signage, street furniture and hardscaping.
	Locate commercial/retail uses near the sidewak to provide high visibility from the street. In multi-use development horde retail and commercial development does to street for inher visibility and residential uses behind for nonuminence and returned.
	Provide prodestrant access and constructions to nearly retail, transportation, recreation and educational centers, where practices are provide pro
	Incorporate small stitting areas and/or shaded courtyards close to shopping areas but buffered from parking and traffic impacts.
Growth Management	
Regional Coordination	
	Participate in a wide range of regional transportation planning and programs to improve the capacity, efficiency and safety of the shared circulation system. Participate in all regional transportation committees and regularly coordinate with other local agencies regarding their plans, programs and services that affect the quality and safety of the Highland roas system.
	Coordinate street system improvements and traffic signal coordination with regional transportation efforts.
	continue unist parting with the southern canoning association of overiments, so weavy, orinitatis and exert communes. Now with the Southern California Commune real council and the San Bernardin Association of Governments and Omnitrans to establish a transit connection with the Metrolink Commuter Rail System a new freewayte international Avenue and to facilitate apolicable roadway improvements.
Financial Strategies	
	Maximize sales fax-generating uses through the strategic location of commercial areas, particularly at freeway interchanges, at major intersections, and within the Town Center and Golden Triangle (se also Town Center, Golden Triangle and Victoria Avene Corrigor Community Public Areas, and within the Town Center and Golden Triangle (se
	Encourage an appropriate mix or retail, omce and civre uses to ensure the economic visionity or the area.

Under Use Designation         Secalar Planning Activity         Secala	Linda	
Special Planning Ansa A.F. (1)         Special Planning Ansa A.F. (1)           Instructionics         Special Planning Ansa A.F. (1)           Instructionics         Special Planning Ansa A.F. (1)           Instructionics         Secial Planning Ansa A.F. (1)           Instructionics         Secial Planning Ansa A.F. (1)           Instructionics         Secial Planning Ansa Andreson Sheet, and Mountan Yow Anneu.           Secial Planning Ansa Andreson Sheet, and Mountan Yow Anneu.         Secial Planning Ansa Andreson Sheet, and Mountan Yow Anneu.           Tester seciel of the Seciel Planning Ansa Andreson Sheet, and Annean Yow Anneu.         Seciel Planning Ansa Andreson Sheet, and Mountan Yow Anneu.           Tester seciel of the Seciel Planning Anneurol Antropolation of the Seciel Planning Anneurol Antropolation of the Seciel Planning Anneurol Antropolation of the Seciel Planning Anneurol	n-06 Mixed Use Designation	
Maximum Density         Relateral benefation to the DUNC           Transt Periodica         Earlies up to DUNC           Transt Periodica         Earlies the synchronization of traffic signals and predanst. Balaward, Barton Road, Anderson Sheet, and Mountain Vew Avenus.           Transt Periodica         Earlies the synchronization of traffic signals and predanst. Balaward, Barton Road, Motenson Sheet, and Mountain Vew Avenus.           Transt Periodica         Failers the synchronization of traffic signals and applier of Color). Prefixed Anderson Sheet, and Phetroder, and Anderson Sheet, and Anderson Sheet		Special Planning Areas A-F, H, I
Transit Policies         Fedinate the synchronization of traffic signals along fedinated. Bouleand, Elinon Road, Andereon Sinet, and Mourian View Awnon.           Rest asserts of the synchronization of traffic signals along fedinated. Bouleand Linon of traffic from signals to optimize and enclosed and enclosed and associated and burnels.         Teams proceed and enclosed and enclosed and associated and burnels.           Rest associated enclosed and enclosed and associated and burnels.         Teams proceed and enclosed and enclosed and enclosed and burnels.           Rest and burnels.         Teams proceed and proce	Maximum Density	Residential Densities up to 20 DU/AC
Image: Second and any second form in a production of traffic signals and or devolution (with work) and work to devolution (with more interpreted).           Previous optical emplanation of traffic signals and optical emplanation of traffic signals to optical traffic programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and optical traffic programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and optical traffic programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and optical traffic programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and optical traffic programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of new devolution of traffic signals and programma in the review of	Transit Policies	
Parking Management Strategie       Provide factor active parking there feasible considering tarfing, ire marking standards to be met with a convenient of state parking the evolution and the convenient of the state parking the mark at a convenient of state parking the evolution and the construction of parking strated state mixed-use development wholut the net with a construction of parking strated state mixed-use development wholut the street parking strated street parking strated street activation and strated street parking in a development street parking interactively and street parking street parking interactively and street parking interactive street parking interactive street parking interactive street bar parking interactive street parking interactive street parking interactive street parking interactive street parking interactinteractinteractive street parking interactive street		Facilitate the synchronization of traffic signals along Redlands Boulevard, Barton Road, Anderson Street, and Mountain View Avenue. Where a series of traffic signals is provided along a route, facilitate the coordination of traffic signals to optimize traffic progression on a given route. Traffic signalization should emphasize facilitating access from neighborhood areas onto the City's primary roadway network, and should work to discourage through traffic from using local streets. Preserve options for future transit use when designing roadway and highway improvements. When applicable, such as adjacent to E Street Locally Prefered Alternative station(s), include Omnitrans in the review of new development projects, and require new development to provide transit improvements in proportion to traffic demands created by the project. Transit improvements may include direct an paved access to transit speciation of bus turnout areas and bus shelters; and roadway geometric designs to accommodate bus traffic. Encourage restricted developments (50 units or more, but excluding facilities and large age-restricted developments (50 units or more, but excluding facilities designed for "active" adults) to provide transit services.
Topolations         Through predestrian acreates sub-for constant variation within the network and and packing standards to be mat with a convoient of the side or reaction of parking structures within the downtown area to serve projected parking standards to be mat with a convoient of the side or mate of real individual parcet.           TOD Policies         Topole present and present in a proximity to Estreet Locally Preferred Atemative station(s). Such development would include a variety of retail parcet of real individual parcet.           Untan Design Policies         Support transition of parking structures within the downtown area to serve projected parking demand and facilitate mixed-use development without the net oversity and reflex consumptions.           Untan Design Policies         Support transition of the side or consumption of the side or parking is an of stations to encourage transit indexity in the downtown area to serve projected parking demand and facilitate mixed-use development without the net oversity and transition particular parking is an of the side or constant and and transition and attending the net of the side or parking is an of the side or parking is an of the side or parking is an of the side or provide to the side or or to building structure solver borned to be parking of the side structure and attractive structure	Parking Management Strategie	
TOD Policies         Support transt-oriented development in proximity to E Street Locally Preferred Alternative station(s). Such development would include a variety of retail housing, amployment opportunity, healthcare, and civrigovernmental uses in walking distances of stations to encourage transit diversity and address all quevelopment is and attractively landscaped pedestinan linkages interconnecting transit stations.           Urban Design Policies         Support transit-oriented development to post unity. Neathbrare, and civrigovernmental uses in walking distances of stations to encourage transit diversity and address all quevelopments and attractively landscaped pedestinan linkages interconnecting transit supportive uses to the transit stations.           Urban Design Policies         Place commercial and offic development so that thas a strong relationshy up that the parking jot.           Design stress to accommodale slow to moderate moving local traffic (e.g., wo lares maximum each direction) or close stress to provide for pedestrian user with the strest.           Support transit and free development to the attractive street on an attractive street of a motion structure transit stations.           Design stress to accommodale slow to moderate moving local traffic (e.g., wo lares maximum each direction) or close streets to provide for pedestrian user or the maximum each direction or close streets to provide for prediction errors.           Support transit and tractive street on a terability store to a terability store to a terability or objection or tera at the street station or state at the station station station station station sto a stating the buildings and turne transti conters thore transit		Though pedestrian access is the focus, also provide convenient vehicular parking via nearby parking in an adjacent parking lot located to the side or rear o the building and/or on-street parking (where feasible considering traffic). Permit off-street parking standards to be met with a convenient off-site parking Pursue construction of parking structures within the downtown area to serve projected parking demand and facilitate mixed-use development without the ne to meet off-street parking and off-street parking structures within the downtown area to serve projected parking demand and facilitate mixed-use development without the ne to meet off-street parking attendands on each individual parcel.
Support transforment       Bosting and address are addevicemental in some in walking discness of stations to encourge transit directily and address are quality and traffic congestion concerns. In addition, support integration of E Street Locally Preferred Alternative stations in onearby planned quality and traffic congestion concerns. In addition, support integration of E Street Locally Preferred Alternative stations in onearby planned quality and traffic congestion concerns. In addition, support integration of E Street Locally Preferred Alternative stations.         Urban Design Policies       Place commercial and office development so that it has a strong relationship with the street, such a baye street to maintalm an attractive street edge and visually buffer the parking jot.         Design profile       Place commercial and office development so that it has a strong relationship with the street such as by sign the street to maintalm an attractive street edge and visually buffer the parking jot.         Design presito a commordial and office development so that it has a strong relationship with the street such and the provide on the street such and thrute transit routes and transit centers through specific transit and driving table.         Coroth Management       Tendet Development sportides to provide to provide to provide to provide to provide street development.         Coroth Management       The Public Oren streation condition points are provided.         Tesure that the state and transit coulds provide to provide store presting and dutine transit routes and transit centers t	TOD Policies	
Urban Design Policies         Place commercial and office development so that it has a strong relationship with the street, such as by sting the buildings so that they are close to the street visually buffer the parking lot.           Place commercial and office development so that it has a strong relationship with the street, such as by sting the buildings so that they are close to the street or buildings that need to be set back from the street with a large parking lot.         Place commercial and office development so that it has a strong relationship with the street, such as by sting the buildings so that they are close to the street or buildings along the street to maintain an attractive street edge an visually buffer the parking lot.           Place commercial and office development so rule at provide so the street or antimicant an attractive street strong traffic on attering would be provide to redestrian use close to the street or antimicant and transit cudes and transit cude		Support transit-oriented development in proximity to E Street Locally Preferred Alternative station(s). Such development would include a variety of retail housing, employment opportunity, healthcare, and civic/governmental uses in walking distances of stations to encourage transit ridership and address air quality and traffic congestion concerns. In addition, support integration of E Street Locally Preferred Alternative transit stations into nearby planned developments and attractively landscaped pedestrian linkages interconnecting transit supportive uses to the transit stations.
Place commercial and office development so that it has a strong relationship with the street, such as by siting the buildings so that they are close to the street of or for buildings that medito be astreet with a large parking lot, locate pad buildings along the street to maintain an attractive street edge and visually buffer the parking lot. Design streets to accommodate slow to moderate moving local traffic (e.g., two lanes maximum each direction) or close streets to provide for pedestrian oriented development. Design streets to accommodate slow to moderate moving local traffic (e.g., two lanes maximum each direction) or close streets to provide for pedestrian use only. Thus, through traffic on attrains would be provide on the penphery of pedestrian oriented development. Thus, through traffic on attrained bevelopment forkew process. 3.1.1.1 Pedestrian-Oriented development forkew process. 3.1.1.1 Pedestrian-Oriented development forkew process. 3.1.1.1 Pedestrian-Oriented development forkew process. The Public Open Space land use category applies to lands within the Lorna Lind South Hills area that is owned by the City, and intended for long-term naturo pens space and traits. The intent of this designation is to preclude the development of buildings and to permit only such improvements and facilities as are consistent with the environmental values of the lands they traverse. Regional Coordination Financial Strategies Area and martian existing, commercial and office uses to better serve the retal and service needs, and to examine the sales tax revenues from unchases by the Lonnal Lind Coordination set the retal and service set as a reconsistent with the environmental values of the traverse in the lands they traverse.	Urban Design Policies	
Growth Management       The Public Open Space land use category applies to lands within the Loma Linda South Hills area that is owned by the City, and intended for long-term nattoren space and trails. The intent of this designation is to preclude the development of buildings, and to permit only such improvements and facilities as are consistent with the permanent protection of natural open space. Thus, while recreational trails are encouraged within this area, their design and use is to be consistent with the environmental values of the lands they traverse.         Regional Coordination       Attract new, and maintain existing, commercial and office uses to better serve the retail and service needs of the community, to keep the sales tax revenues from purchases by the Loma Linda community from going elsewhere, to reduce the length of trips necessary to meet retail and service needs, and to expandence and to expandence of the community.		Place commercial and office development so that it has a strong relationship with the street, such as by siting the buildings so that they are close to the stree or for buildings that need to be set back from the street with a large parking lot, locate pad buildings along the street to maintain an attractive street edge an visually buffer the parking lot. Design streets to accommodate slow to moderate moving local traffic (e.g., two lanes maximum each direction) or close streets to provide for pedestrian use only. Thus, through traffic on arterials would be provide on the periphery of pedestrian oriented development. Ensure that the site design of new developments provides for pedestrian access to existing and future transit routes and transit centers through specific review during the development Guiding Policy for pedestrian oriented development flocated within commercial or mixed-use land use designations as indicated in the Land Use Element) ensure that the fact that the strative and functional pedestrian-oriented development flocated within commercial or mixed-use land use designations as indicated in the Land Use Element) ensure that the fact the and functional pedestrian-oriented development flocated within commercial or mixed-use land use designations as indicated in the Land Use Element) ensure that the fautures that make for affinctional pedestrian-oriented development the commercial or mixed-use land use designations as indicated in the Land Use Element) ensure that the fautures that maximum and functional pedestrian-oriented development the account of development are provided.
The Public Open Space land use category applies to lands within the Loma Linda South Hills area that is owned by the City, and intended for long-term nat open space and trails. The intent of this designation is to preclude the development of buildings, and to permit only such improvements and facilities as are consistent with the permanent protection of natural open space. Thus, while recreational trails are encouraged within this area, their design and use is to be consistent with the environmental values of the lands they traverse. Regional Coordination Aftract new, and maintain existing, commercial and office uses to better serve the retail and service needs of the community, to keep the sales tax revenues from purchases by the Loma Linda community from going elsewhere, to reduce the length of trips necessary to meet retail and service needs, and to expan employment opportunities within the community.	Growth Management	
Regional Coordination         Financial Strategies       Attract new, and maintain existing, commercial and office uses to better serve the retail and service needs of the community, to keep the sales tax revenues from purchases by the Loma Linda community from going elsewhere, to reduce the length of trips necessary to meet retail and service needs, and to expanemployment opportunities within the community.		The Public Open Space land use category applies to lands within the Loma Linda South Hills area that is owned by the City, and intended for long-term natuopen space and trails. The intent of this designation is to preclude the development of buildings, and to permit only such improvements and facilities as are consistent with the permanent protection of natural open space. Thus, while recreational trails are encouraged within this area, their design and use is to be consistent with the environmental values of the lands they traverse.
Financial Strategies Attract new, and maintain existing, commercial and office uses to better serve the retail and service needs of the community, to keep the sales tax revenues from purchases by the Loma Linda community from going elsewhere, to reduce the length of trips necessary to meet retail and service needs, and to expandem to expandem to promunities within the community.	Regional Coordination	
Attract new, and maintain existing, commercial and office uses to better serve the retail and service needs of the community, to keep the sales tax revenues from purchases by the Loma Linda community from going elsewhere, to reduce the length of trips necessary to meet retail and service needs, and to expandemployment opportunities within the community.	Financial Strategies	
		Attract new, and maintain existing, commercial and office uses to better serve the retail and service needs of the community, to keep the sales tax revenues from purchases by the Loma Linda community from going elsewhere, to reduce the length of trips necessary to meet retail and service needs, and to expandemployment opportunities within the community.



5
(not
$(\Box)$

Mixed Use Designation	
Maulmine Danaitu	
Resider	ntial Medium Density up to 14 DU/AC
Transit Policies	
CE-1.1. other tra	10. Promote the provision of public modes of transportation between strategic locations such as the Montclair Plaza Shopping Center, and affic generators, such as the Montclair Transcenter and potential Metrolink station on the Riverside Line.
Parking Management Strategies	
TOD Policies	
CD-1.6. hindere	0. To encourage the development of parcels along Central Avenue and Holt and Mission Boulevards where development has previously been d due to parcel size and configuration, access and multiple ownership.
Urban Design Policies	
LU-1.5. and cor comme vith reg LU-1.1. LU-1.1. LU-1.1. LU-1.1. CP-1.1. program corridor CD-1.1.	0. To ensure that commercial areas within the City are conveniently located, efficient, attractive, safe for pedestrian and vehicular circulation centrated into districts and centers in order to better serve a larger portion of the City's needs, while also continuing to provide regional crial services as the dominant proportion of the regional market in recognition of the City's needs, while also continuing to provide regional crial services as the dominant proportion of the regional market in recognition of the economic contribution and image identification associated jobnal centers. 5. Promote the assemblage of commercial parcels found in strip commercial areas along Central, Holt, Moreno and Mission. 25. Encourage the design of these properties to create an enjoyable environment for shopping by promoting improved architectural acce of buildings, excellent landscaping, and appropriate regulated signing, parking and traffic circulation. 36. Promote the beautification of streets by promoting and maintaining a tree planting, tree replacement, tree maintenance and landscaping as and median dividers. 47. Continue the establishment of an individual and distinctive identity by encouraging the highest quality design in architecture, landscape sture, sign graphics, and in the design of street furniture and fixtures.
Growth Management	
Regional Coordination	
LU-1.1. Associa City/Coi	4. Participate in and support the regional activities of the Southern California sted Governments, the San Bernardino Associated Governments, unty Planning Commissioners Conference, and other such agencies.
Financial Strategies	

178 PARSONS

d Use Designation mum Density	Communk Development Element Matrix Section 7.3: Land Use Goals and Implementation Policies Policy 7.3.5.4: Support and encourage development of mixed use projects, which combine residential uses in a planned environment
sit Policies	M3-2 Transit Facilities at New Development. We require new development to provide transit facilities, such as bus shellers and furnouts, as necessary. M3-5 Light Radi (Transit (BFT) Corndons. We work with regionaries be implement BFT service to taging definations and anong corndons, as necessary. M3-5 Light Radi (Transit (BFT) Corndons. We work the second RFT service to taging definations and anong corndons, as necessary. M3-5 Light Radi (Transit (BFT) Corndons. We work the second stransit general RFT service to taging definations and anong corndons, as necessary. M3-5 Light Radi (Transit (BFT) Corndons. We work the second stransit general RFT service to taging definations and a second to a second redensition of the transit format. M3-5 Light Radi (Transit RFT) Corndons. We work to secure station locations adjacent to the Meredith is the and at the proposed multimodal transit center. M3-5 Hapt Rest. We encourage the development of ruginations and and the multimodal transit center. M3-5 Fabric Rest. We encourage the development of ruginations active the Downtown and and the multimodal transit center. M3-8 Federal Rest. We encourage the development of ruginations active the proposed multimodal transit center. M3-8 Federal Rest. We encourage the development fabric regress that work the section frame and serve the Cly of Ortatio.
	M3-9 Ortario Aliport Metro Center Criculator. We will explore development of a convenient mobility system, including but not limited to shuftle service, people mover, and shared car system, for the Ortario Aliport Metro Center. M3-10 Multimodal Transit Center. We will explore development of a multimodal transit center near LAONT aliport to serve as a transit hub for local buses, BRT, the Gold Line, high-speed rail, the proposed Ontario Aliport Metro Center circulator and other future transit modes. Transit implementation consideration of strategies is to identify and implement appropriate infrastructure improvements and minimize potential impedments to enhance the effectiveness of BRT (Bus Rapid Transit) service in Ontario, including consideration of strategies such as but not limited to reduced parrial ranse. Evaluate the provision of incentives, such as but not limited to reduced parrial ranse.
ing Management Strategies Policies	
n Destan Policies	M3-3 Transit-Oriented Development. We consider the provision of development related incentives for projects that promote transit use.
	<ol> <li>Lobbit Wender despination and und redeprination and exploration or control model transportation coportunities.</li> <li>Lobbit Wender despination and und redeprination or the project achieve in Nortur.</li> <li>Lobbit Wender despination and und redeprination or the project achieve in Norture.</li> <li>Lobbit Wender despination and the development on the interedons of antivir nondexy.</li> <li>Terrorise actions in model or terret and redeprination on the interedons of antivir nondexy.</li> <li>Herrorise actions and redeprination.</li> <li>Herrorise actions and redeprination.</li> <li>Herrorise actions and redeprination of the interedons of antivir nondexy.</li> <li>Herrorise actions and redeprination.</li> <li>Herrorise actions and redeprination and redeprination.</li> <li>Herrorise actions and redeprination and redeprination.</li> <li>Herrorise actions and redeprinanic actions and redeprination actions and redeprinatin action</li></ol>
wth Management	ouser i data totale verieque renat anyo de verit, sue, appendig te ant accessante of perioditante. 1114 : Astratado Zondh. Ma concedicata conditione that habi conditionative conditionation and informat infrastructures and featur the datachement of feater t
onal Coordination	LUT-1 Joiles Porwin. We continue a growin its range control with regional, county intxinue evenance and porter for a source of an observation of entry.



727
Nr N
and
(910)
23
$(\bigcirc)$

ar OF	
Mixed Use Designation	
0	2.5.3.6 Mixed Use (Probable FAR of 0.40 and Maximum FAR of 1 0)
Maximum Density	
	Residential Densities up to 30 DU/AC
Transit Policies	
	<ol> <li>3.5.5 We shall pursue trip reduction and transportation systems management measures to reduce congestion on roadways and intersections.</li> <li>3.5.8 We shall continue to coordinate with Omnitrans to provide transit service (bus or shuttle) to our major centers of activity, employment, and housing.</li> <li>6.4.4.3 Require the design of transit stops to be compatible with adjacent development and provide for adequate seating, signag and shade.</li> </ol>
Parking Management Strategie	88
TOD Policies	
	2.6.1.5.7 Development projects should be designed to facilitate non-vehicular and transit system access and use.
	6.4.1.5 Mixed use areas should be developed as higher intensity "urban centers" where there is sensitive integration of land use convenient modes of transportation, and a focused "sense of place" that emanates from the architectural and landscape design.
Urban Design Policies	
Growth Management Regional Coordination	Include an integrated circulation system of arterial access, internal circulation, parking facilities, pedestrian pathways, bicycle ro transit stops (where applicable), and related signage. It is intended that movement within the entire opportunity areas be site without being forced to use adjacent arterial highways to move to other portions of the mixed-use development. 2.6.1.2.1 (key opportunity areas should be given priority in the further development of the City by focusing City efforts on bringin about their development or conservation, as appropriate, as soon as possible. 2.6.1.3.3 Commercial and office development in favor of more focused commercial or mixeduse centers. 2.6.1.3.3 Commercial and office development in favor of more focused commercial or mixeduse centers. 2.6.1.3.3 Commercial and office development in favor of more focused commercial or mixeduse centers. 2.6.1.3.3 Commercial and office development in favor of more focused commercial or mixeduse centers. 2.6.1.3.9 Allow medium and high density residential uses along transit routes in mixed-use areas and in the vicinity of activity centers. 3.5.11 We shall require the implementation of sidewalks and paths to enable safe and convenient pedestrian travel within our community. 6.4.1.6 The intersection of Foothill Boulevard and Haven Avenue, extending south to 4th Street, should form the central busine hub of the City with higher intensity office, commercial, and publicquasi-public uses. 6.4.4.4 Continue to pursue the placement of public art in prominent locations, particularly along major travel corridors and intersections within the City.
Financial Strategies	

ec 1997 Mixed Ilee Designation	
INITED OSE DESIGNATION	
Maximum Density	Residential Densities up to 27 DU/AC Density Limitation: Under Measure N, a zoning ordinance, no land designated by the General Plan as urban reserve as of June 1, 1987 is to be redesignated for a higher density than one dwelling unit per 14,000 square feet of net site area, except by a four-fifths vote of the City Council wit findings of "no significant adverse environmental impact." Current City policy that see environmental impact." Current City policy that per 10 acres. On slopes between 30 and 40 percent, required site area increases approximately proportionally from five acres to 10 acres per unit depending on slope and soil type.
Transit Policies	<ul> <li>5.40a Ensure that employers implement TDM programs to reduce peak period trip generation.</li> <li>5.40b Cooperate with public agencies and other jurisdictions to promote local and regional public transit serving Redlands.</li> <li>5.40c Support the Congestion Management Program for San Bemardino County.</li> <li>5.40e Favor TDM measures that limit vehicle use over those that extend the commute hour.</li> <li>Forgrams such as ridesharing and public transit reduce overall vehicle travel while flex time and staggered work hours simply shift traffic to less congested times of day.</li> <li>5.40f Support local feeder bus service to and from current and future regional transit lines.</li> <li>5.40b Work with Omnitrans to plan for local bus routes that are better able to penetrate neighborhoods to improve service for potential riders.</li> </ul>
	5.40i Future commuter rail services are planned within the Santa Fe rail corridor, with stops at California Street, Orange Street and Mentone Blvd. Improvements to these streets should be planned for feeder transit services, and park-and-ride provisions should be made at these locations. Another logical stop would be at University Street to serve the campus at the University of Redlands. Other potential stops could be at Judson Street and at Crafton Avenue. Residents in these areas might use short, trip commuter rail to downtown Redlands, either to work or shop 5.40j Work with Omnitrans to plan for bus shelters and turnouts.
Parking Management Strategie: TOD Policies	
Urban Design Policies	4.40g Locate high and Medium-Density development near regional access routes, employment centers, shopping areas, and public services.
Growth Management	
Regional Coordination	1A.40 Principle Four Agricultural uses of land are important to the culture, economy and stability of the City of Redlands and shall be preserved to the greatest extent possible consistent with the will of the people as expressed in Proposition R and Measure N, and consistent with the policies of the State of California set forth in Government Code Section 51220. 2.0e Encourage and promote orderly development and growth of urban areas while maintaining and encouraging the best possible use of agricultural land, protecting it against premature encroachment of non-agricultural development. Consider the costs of extending urban facilities and services in the review of urban development.
Financial Strategies	



PARSONS | 181

R
P

	CD Policy 1.2.3 - In that the mixed use charader of neighborhoods may be a positive intence (proving self sufficiency), as well as a negative intence of corroung and incursion of incompatible land uses) the City will discourage such spot zoning and incompatible land uses within its neighborhoods. At the same time, the City will encourage a variety of compatible land uses within waking distance restsering in each spot zoning and incompatible land uses within its neighborhoods. At the same time, the City will encourage a variety of compatible land uses within waking distance restsering in emission for such and incompatible land uses within its neighborhoods. At the same time, the City will encourage a variety of compatible land uses within waking distance restsering intermedives. The City shall consider such projects only when accompaned by a design program demonstrating that an innovative urban village concept can be created which meets the objective the sement.
Maximum Density	
Transit Policies	
Parking Management Strategies	<ul> <li>3.2.3.4 Alternative modes of travel such as commuter rail, park and ricke facilities, bus transit and bicycle trails shall continue to receive cooperation and support from the Cky.</li> <li>3.2.3.5 Rise sharing, flexible work scheduling and telecommuting provisions of the ACMP and CMP shall be supported by the Cky for its own employees as well as for the major businessees and industrie for a commuter rail station which includes: thirteen stors, thus assuring a stop in Riako.</li> <li>5.1.1.1.1 Work with ShalbaClo adopt the commuter rail area/ore to Rate. Polcies:</li> <li>5.1.1.1.2 Mork mis ShalbaClo adopt the commuter rail and bus lines.</li> <li>Faquied parking of 300 states.</li> <li>An adjoining transit center come met for passenger transfer between commuter rail and bus lines.</li> <li>Faquied parking of 300 states.</li> <li>An adjoining transit center commuter and service to Rate. Polcies:</li> <li>5.1.1.3 Public improvements and some the presentation station at the station and sintees to commuter rail and bus lines.</li> <li>Faquied parking of 300 states.</li> <li>An adjoining transit center commuter and and the rail of the commuter rail and bus lines.</li> <li>5.1.1.3 Public improvements and accurate rais and bus lines.</li> <li>5.1.1.1 Provide and some states that are discomplication.</li> <li>6.1.1.1 Provide and contransit center forminal at the Commuter rail and bus lines.</li> <li>6.1.1.1 Provide and contransit center Torminal as the bub of moder.</li> <li>6.1.1.1 Provide and contransitions of approval necessatated by development are provided.</li> <li>6.1.1.1 Provide and contransitions of approval necessatated by development are provided.</li> <li>6.1.1.1 Provide and and lighted bus passenger shellow.</li> <li>6.1.1.1 Provide and and lighted bus passenger shellow.</li> <li>6.1.1 Provide prairing state and lighted bus passenger shellow.</li> <li>6.1.1.1 Provide prairing state and lighted bus passenger shellow.</li> <li>6.1.2 Encourage maption rate and lighted bus passenger shellow.</li> <li< td=""></li<></ul>
TOD Policies	4.1.2.1 Monitor Transit Center/Commuter Rail parking to prevent "spill-over" parking by commuters using spaces designated for Downtown business customers.
Urban Design Policies Growth Management Regional Coordination Financial Strategies	<ul> <li>Goal 41.3 Enhance Riverside Avenue to . be the signature street of the City of Riatio.</li> <li>Boalds</li> <li>a 1.3.2 Provide planted median strips, parkway planting and turning pockets on Riverside Avenue.</li> <li>a 1.3.2 Provide planted median strips, parkway planting and turning pockets on Riverside Avenue.</li> <li>a 1.3.2 Provide planted median strips, parkway planting and turning pockets on Riverside Avenue as an enhancement to some of the City's firest neighborhoods.</li> <li>a 1.3.3 Prevent stip commercial development and other mappropriet Riverside Avenue as an enhancement to some of the City's firest neighborhoods.</li> <li>a 1.3.4 Prevent stip commercial development and other mappropriet han and/or byoket han on the mappropriet han and/or byoket han on the mapproprist of the Community Design Element, Chapter VIII, Street Enhancement to 1.3.4 Prevent stip commercial developments and/or byoket han on the mapproprist of the City's firest neighborhoods.</li> <li>a 1.3.4 Prevent stip commercial development and/or byoket han on the firest stap and encloses and encloses of the City's firest neighborhoods.</li> <li>a 1.3.4 Prevent stip commercial developments and/or byoket handles in and store commercial developments and/or byoket handles in and store and store and/or base and conferes or the step and with the goals and contractures or the step and/or firest stap and and the step in provide stand and store and/or base in and store and/or preserves.</li> <li>a 1.4 Farking lots or mercial and store and/or the fronts of publicings. Commercial developments stalling to be and/or preserves.</li> <li>b Ratin rest. Chevery areas stall be separated from pedestrian areas.</li> <li>a 1.4 Farking lots or the stability of the stripting pado stripting pado store or striptings pado striptings pado store or provide enter midprovide for adventee projects.</li> <li>b Ratin rest. Delivery areas stall be nonomercial and industrial projects.</li> <li>c 1.1 Bas statters and scoal elements which can devente predest and</li></ul>

Nexture Design         Restant Design           Trans Polies         64 f Provise a ratemony for mittan to optic transportation function.           Trans Polies         64 f Provise a ratemony for mittan to optic transportation function.           10 f Design and transportation for mittan to mittan to mittan to optic transportation function.         64 f Provise a ratemony muttan.           10 f Design and transportation for mittan to mittan tomittan tomittan to mittan to mittan to mittan to mittan to mittan	
Trant Prices         Description           Private Private         66.6 For events of an optical importance optical importance of	
Constraint         Constra	
<ul> <li>a constant of problem is under the constant of proprious transfer to the constant of the proprious of the constant of the constan</li></ul>	ion.
<ul> <li>Constrained helponer in various means the number of verture must server of units great periods, manual the number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of verture must server of units great periods. The number of periods. Th</li></ul>	artanted by the scale of the development (LU-1)
<ul> <li>Hondrives Victoria procession and varpois.</li> <li>Hondrives Victoria procession and varbois.</li> <li>Hondrives Victori</li></ul>	e centurates to priority antessagians, reutudo pantnig santantos to corected une artea s
<ul> <li>Chrowenerly character be spowing inferent and an exceeded performance of performance of the set power interface of t</li></ul>	
Exhibit Interpretent Strategies         Exhibit Interpretent Strategies           2.5 Stray the prairing straturation in the Development Core to determine if adouted be strate or state or whith Ocae porticing (UU-1)           2.9 Stray the prairing straturation in the Development Core to determine if adouted be strated a strated or strate or strated or whith Ocae porticing in the Development Core to determine if adouted be could be particip strated and the strated or advisorment Core to determine if adouted be could be particip strated and the strated or advisorment Core to determine if adouted be could be particip strated and the strated or advisorment Core to determine if adouted be could be particip strated and the strated or advisorment Core to determine if adouted be could be particip strated and the strated or advisorment Core to determine if adouted be strated and the particip strated and the strated or advisorment Core to determine a development strated or advisorment Core to determine a development strated and the strated or advisorment Core to determine a development strate strate.           1.00 Policies         2.10 Porticies and Development strate and provide policies control strated and the strated strated or anticid strated and the strated strated or advisorment and strated and the strated strated and the strated and the strated strated and the strated and the strated strated or asset and strated and the strate strated or advisorment and and advisorment and and constrate and development in the Domenton and strate strate and the strate strate andisto strate and the strate strate and the strate strate	indease transit indeship, reduce traffic congestion, and improve air quality. In the include Fransit-friendry uses such as child care, convertience retail, and housing.
<ul> <li>2. Study the participal an adequate supply of pairing to meet its models effet on-radie or within dotas powindw, (LU-1)</li> <li>2. Study the participal anticates in the Development Coore to between a factorial for fact pairing and the set of continue to expand the aspect of the participal regulaterest (LU-1)</li> <li>3. Stanting and the advectoriants provide an allocate participal control pairing and thereating and the participal regulation and set of continue to expand the participal regulation and set of continue to expand the participal countrol pairing and thereating in offenet pairing and the participal countrol pairing and the participal countrol pairing and the advectoriant and set of continue to advectoriant and set of continue to advectoriant and set of continue to the participal countrol pairing and the advectoriant and set of continue to the participal countrol pairing and the advectoriant and set of continue to the participal countrol pairing and the advectoriant and set of continue to the advectoriant and the advectoriant advectoriant and the advectoriant advectoriant and the advect</li></ul>	
<ul> <li>3. 3 Contribute be opposed the supply of public particip in offsterel particip dicaline in downhainr San Bernardino.</li> <li>3. 4. Contribute be opposed the supply of public particip of distret particip for collegebrane and supply at a prot of there particip requirements a subply at a prot of the particip requirements and any structure.</li> <li>3. 4. Domestry that there and any subply of public particip of another particip for an participation.</li> <li>3. 5. Develop participation.</li> <li>3. 6. Develop participation.</li> <li>3. 8. Develop participation.</li> <li>3. 3. Domestation.</li> <li>3. 4. Develop participation.</li> <li>3. 4. Develop par</li></ul>	such as shared parking, Comdor Improvement actions, or transit oriented development
Top Policies         S5 Require finitive description analysis to the Cry Engineer for review and approval whenever a proposal is a counser matrix control area for three anginomic adversely impacted by splicer parking and raft. (C-3)           5.5 Require finitive control area for three anginomic adversely impacted by splicer parking and raft. Control adversely in the model area for control area for three anginomic adversely impacted by splicer parking and raft. (C-3)           2.3 Promote development rate and proceent in an endicer finit and model and model and the model area for three anginomic mater threat stops in outer on encourage mater indexing the anginomic mater threat stops in outer one courage mater indexing the anginomic mater threat stops in outer one courage mater indexing the anginomic mater threat stops in outer one courage mater indexing the anginomic mater threat stops in outer one courage mater indexing the anginomic mater threat stops in outer one courage mater indexing the anginomost. (LU-1)           Constribution         2.3 Promote development rate threat parks and threat one courage mater indexing the anginomost. (LU-1)           The base of control area for threat staps in outer of the strest-base of the strest	rough the payment of an in-lieu fee which will be utilized to provide parking in consolida
TOD Policies         Exocurage mediate development fraits in correct, pediatizanty intervals watchen by a version of the samp and control and any process and its and watchen by a version project strait and provide policies and incomercial, and office straits a strain strains in table in the same and the submatrix of the same and the submatrix of the same and the submatrix in the same and the same and the submatrix and inclusions and its a store threatment that is command.           2.1.3. Promote development traits in compart, rest in more table and provide policies and increments in train by matrix indexition in the same and the submatrix of the same and the submatrix and include same and the submatrix and include same and its provide policies.           Untrained use development traits in the many control and the policies and compartitions of the submatrix and the submatrix and include same and the submatrix and and the used policies.           Untrained use development the elevelopment of the strain policies (sig committations of the strain policies and concertain strain the submatrix and include same and the submatrix and include same and the submatrix and includes and include same and the submatrix and and the concertain and the submatrix and and and the submatrix and	de to provide less than the full code requirement of parking. (LU-1)
<ul> <li>2.3.3 Prime development that is commed, predestrian-friendy, and energibly a 'average in order to encourage and and proceeding and is disportent, resh instant stores in and indeportant and non-concretent and invalidation and use development, resh in instants (sublici) pracus, asserting at supplement, resh instant and and and and and and and and and and</li></ul>	
Urban Design Policies Promote downlown revtalization by seeking and facilitating mixed-use projects (e.g. combinations of residential, commercial, and office uses) Promote downlown revtalization by seeking and facilitating mixed-use projects (e.g. combinations of residential, commercial, and office uses) Promote downlown revtalization by seeking and facilitating mixed-use projects (e.g. combinations of residential an englobornhous, 2.3.1.1.0.mercial centers of the made to transport thromote physical commercial/office structure. 2.3.2.1.0.mercial centers of the same to transport thromote physical commercial/office structure. 2.3.2.2.0.mercial centers of the same to transport thromote physical commercial/office structure. 2.3.2.2.0.mercial centers of the same to the segment to complement and not of deviate the physical commercial and shorthous kin- 2.4.2.0.mercial centers of the same downle ground floor of non-residential building to eminance pelsestian connectivity. 2.4.2.0.mercial centers of the same dispersion and complement and not deviate the physical cummentation. The use of consistent and well designed street signage, and entry momentation. The use of consistent and well designed street signage, and entry momentation. The use of consistent and well designed street signage, and entry momentation. The use of consistent and well designed street signage, and entry momentation. The use of consistent and well designed street signage, and entry momentation. The use of consistent and well designed street signage, and entry momentation. 2.5.5.7.6.4.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0.0	et wity areas, (LU-1) include thes, improve air quality, and improve traffic congression: ansit drips, improve air quality, and improve traffic congression: and drips and/or include desirable uses located within waiking distance (1/2 mile) of trans ment standards.
<ul> <li>Promote dominant restantization by seeking and leadinating medual project les, go commercial and office used)</li> <li>Promote dominant restantion brane spaces, educational tracitiles, and recreational tracitiles and uncommercial, and office used)</li> <li>2.3.1 Commercial centers, to peen spaces, educational tracitiles, and recreational tracitiles and uncommercial, and office used)</li> <li>2.3.2.1 Commercial centers, power spaces, educational tracitiles, and recreational tracitiles attract-ensitient programs to include programs to include the interval engloyments, turning as to provide special incrimportation on devalue the physical commentation of the surrounding environment.</li> <li>2.3.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.2</li></ul>	
5.6.5 Provide conversion protection pranting areas by another the methy commercial centers, stations and material stations areas and an another meter buildings yound areas that provide, when the mini you and pranting is the station and another present and provide, when are prantical, provide, when you are pranting is the provide, when are pranting is the provide when are pranting to the provide, when are pranting is the provide, when are pranting is the provide, when are pranting is the provide when are pranting is the provide when are pranting is the provide when are pranting to the provide, when are pranting is the provide when are pranting to the provide when are been and interprovement. Program is an option are provide when are pranting to the provide when are pranting to the provide when are provide when areas are provide when areas are provide when areas are provide when areas areas areas areas areas areas are areas are	D-1) rousiness comidors, and employment centers. (LU-3 and LU-4) rounding consideration of gCD-3
Purpose: The Control monoversent Program is an optional pockage of policy, regulatory and incentive programs that if applied, are interded Stategor. Areas. This a accomplished by providing optional incentives. In the Nim of density boruless and varied development standards, to owner may request, and the Cby may applied corporal incentives. In the Nim of density boruless and are inderedential and control and providing optional incentives of arterials. And/or 2) replace strip commercial and control and and/or musical evelopment standards, to Develop or incorrection Program. Investigation and/or musical and/or model areas and/or 2) replace strip commercial use with resident -) Development of desta are those its permitted with a force and and/or model areas and/or 2) replace strip commercial and control -) Development of desta area than and/or model area permitted with a force and area desta area and a for a force and area of a store as permitted with a force and area of a store and area of a store and area desta area and a store of a store and area desta area and a store of a store and area o	reared usegus. (LU-1) speed planters and incorporated into the parking (of design. (LU-1 andscapting, berming, and small-scale foncting. (LU-1)
1) Develop or improve commercial and/or mixed uses on the intersections of artenias, and/or 2) regions or improve commercial and/or mixed use projects are with a flox area artenia of 2.0 for commercial and office uses and resident arte arte of 1.5. A maximum height of stories is projects are premitted with a flox area artenia of 2.0 for commercial and office uses and resident arte arte of 1.5. A maximum height of stories is projects that combine residential and commercial and office uses and resident arte of 1.5. A maximum height of stories is provide that combine residential and commercial uses and 2 arteries for combine arter arts of 1.5. A maximum height of stories is previde that combine residential and commercial uses and 2 arteries for combine arter arts of 1.5. A maximum height of stories is previde to the order as a 1.0% (flox area are article bound for accumption to the arts. The development of desired projects or provide public amenities through the use of incentives. The following incentives are not provide public amenities through the use of incentives. The following incentives are not provide public amount that rate located within 500 feet of a desired transmitted between the arteries and article and articles through the use of incentives are not provide public.	struidte private investment and result in desired development within the Corridor elopments that quality. While the underlying land use designations still apply, the proper
building or entext or the servews. B) Lot Consolidation. Thereach and combine parcels are eligible to receive a 2.5% density bonus and a 10% floor area ratio bonus for each lot C) Encourage the development of desired projects or provide public amenities through the use of incentives. The following incentives are not incorporate the transcussion desired projects or provide public amenities through the use of incentives. The following incentives are not incorporate the transcussion desired projects or provide public amenities through the use of incentives. The following incorporate are not incorporate the transcussion desired are incorporated that are located within 500 feet of a designated transit stop are eligible to receive	ass or improve existing tradential uses between the interestorious of anterials. Interestorious of anterials, and an only projects are permitted at a maximum for bial only projects. Parking areas are required to be located in the rear of the lot with the
-Proximity to transit. Projects with a residential component that are located within 500 feet of a designated transit stop are eligible to receive	nbined. Indelive and the City can choose to award the greatest level of incertives to projects the
Growth Management	p to a 15% density bonus. Mixeduse projects would also receive a 10% increase in floo
Resional Coordination	
64.3 Continue to participate in forums involving the various governmental agencies such as Calitrans, SANBAG, SCAG, and the County that 66.1 Support the efforts of regional, state, and federal agencies to provide additional local and express bus service in the City	intended to evaluate and propose solutions to regional transportation problems.



Governments SANBAG

727
(HC)
(ROF
25
$\left[ \bigcirc \right]$

hand	
Jun-82	
pdates Compiled: Jul 1992 irculation & Land Use 1996	
Mixed Use Designation	
	Mixed Use Commercial/Industrial - Redesign industria/commercial sites, or allow for adaptive reuse of industrial areas through redesignation of land use to regional commercial or industrial Lommercial mixed use designations.
Maximum Density	
	Medium Residential Densities up to 20 DU/AC
Transit Policies	Dukt konnekadas failten skulten soorted keit Attaniska siste altanatisis keita antoineklis. Minadaki ka konnekadina soola dika antoinen ke
	Puole transportation factures shall be promoted mat: (1) provide a value alternative to the automobile; (2) satisty the transportation needs on the commuters, the economically disadvantaged, the aged, the young, and the disabled; and (3) promote service at a reasonable and equitable cost to both the users and the general commuter rail service shall be encouraged. Regional commuter rail service shall be encouraged.
Parking Management Strategies	
1	Parking concepts that relate to joint or shared parking use to maximize utilization of existing and proposed parking facilities shall be considered. Whenever a development proposed to provide less parking than that required by the City Zoning Code, the applicant for that development shall submit a parking demand analysis to the City Public Works Director for review and approval.
TOD Policies	
Urban Design Policies	
	Provide for the development of Foothill Boulevard frontages for commercial as well as residential uses subject to development standards intended to control vehicular
	access and improve visual quality of the thoroughtare. Consider the implementation of a variety of Redevelopment Agency incentives within the Foothill Contidor project area.
	Kevise the coning Ordinance 8. Establishment of standards to enhance the pedestrian character of streets in the commercial industrial districts including the types of use, architectural design, and
	siting of structures at the ground floor elevation. Lot Consolidation Program
	The City, in cooperation with the Redevelopment Agency and local property owners may develop a program for the consolidation of small lots into larger parcels of greater economic viability in the Town Center, in the 7th and 9th Streets study areas, and Foothill Boulevard. This should occur with specific short term development
	programs for these areas and developer participation. Urban Desian Improvements
	The City shall provide for formulation of Urban Design Guidelines, define a funding program, and implement public space improvements for key activity areas and entry points to the City, as defined by the land use strategy. This will include street trees and landscape, street furniture, lighting, signage, sidewalk and special paving, other pedestrian amenities, and physical integration of individual developments for pedestrian and vehicular customer convenience. Locations for which plans should be
	prepared and improvements implemented include:
	- I own center. - Major commercial/industrial comidors.
	-roumi bourevaru. -Euclid Avenue. Di Aronise stall to second transmisti second allocational and allocation de designment theorem de allocation and
	Pedestrian connections shall be encouraged between commercial uses and adjacent residential development through the City site planning review process.
	Encourage combining vehicular and pedestrian traffic patterns between separate adjoining developments to reduce hard surface aspect along major corridors. All new development shall be encouraged to provide landscaped parkways, appropriate pedestrian amenities and other streetscape improvements that improve the aesthetics of the roadway to both vehicular and pedestrian traffic.
Growth Management	
Regional Coordination	
Financial Strategies	
	Rehabilitation/Renovation Incentives
	The City shall continue to expand programs of low interest loans and grants for the renovation, rehabilitation, and/or adaptive reuse of existing residential, commercial, and industrial structures. Additionally, the City shall establish educational programs to train property owners and tenants in renovation and rehabilitation construction techniques and provide technical assistance to low income individuals. The latter should include building surveys and improvement specifications by structural and
	mechanical engineers and architects and construction assistance by contractors. The City should solicit programs of voluntary participation by local architects, endineers. contractors, and construction workers.

Mixed Use Designation	
	Planned Development (PD). (Future Land Use)
Maximum Density	
	Medium Residential Densities up to 8 DU/AC
Transit Policies	
	Identify long-range transportation corridors in conjunction with the plans of regional transportation agencies; develop a program t protect the right-of-way for long range transit corridors. Develop and implement a TDM ordinance
	Coordinate with Omnitrans for the provision of appropriate public transit routes and issues for the elderly and other city residents Develop incentive programs for the use of alternative transportation modes such as city sponsored vanpools and other measures such as flexible working hours and four-day work weeks. Design land use patterns in new developments that minimize the number of automobile trips by providing neighborhood shopping facilities and pedestrian and bicycle paths. Because public transit is a vital element in meeting transportation demands in urban areas. the city shall implement the following
	actions: -Assist Omnitrans and other transit agencies in coordinating the location and scheduling of public transit services and facilities. -Urge the timely extension of public transit between residential areas and industrial/urban employment centers. -Support the establishment of transportation services and public transit between Ontario airport, orange county airport and Los Angeles International airport.
Parking Management Strategies	
	Designate existing park and ride facilities on the GP circulation maps, work with Caltrans to identify appropriate future park-and- ride facilities, and develop a program to acquire and develop sites for such facilities in areas where there is an identified need.
TOD Policies	
Urban Design Policies	
	Adopt regulations encouraging innovative residential development. Continue to use the planning development process to permit flexible design and siting standards such as setbacks, yards, and building relationships. Promote clustering as a means of achieving more efficient housing construction and providing larger areas of common open space. Establish a system to award density bonuses in return for special design, infrastructure improvements, extra amenities, useable open space or other developedforts.
	Encourage the design and implementation of land uses, development standards, and capital improvement programs which maximize the use of public transit.
<b>Growth Management</b>	
	Utilize the provisions of the Williamson act to further the preservation of commercially viable agricultural open space. Require site development plans to provide adequate sidewalk and safe pedestrian trails.
Regional Coordination	
Financial Strategies	



Governments SANBAG Working Together This page intentionally left blank.





#### **APPENDIX B -- TRANSIT RIDERS SURVEY**



This page intentionally left blank.



**Profile of Transit Riders in San Bernardino County** San Bernardino Associated Governments

Final Report March, 2007

Submitted to:

SANBAG 1170 West 3rd Street, 2nd Floor San Bernardino, California 92410

Submitted by:

**Parsons Transportation Group** 

## PARSONS

## **Table of Contents**

<b>—</b>		цу.	~	1	$\frac{2}{2}$	2	N	Š
	- 1	- 3	:	:	:		:	:
			:	-			:	:
		:	:	:			:	:
	- 1	- 3				- 1		- 3
	- 1	- 3				- 1		- 3
1	- 1	- 3	- 3	- 3		- 1	- 3	- 3
			:	-			:	:
		:	:	:			:	:
	- 1	- 3	- 3	- 3		- 1	- 3	- 3
	- 1	- 3				- 1		- 3
	- 1	- 3	- 3	- 3		- 1	- 3	- 3
1	- 1					- 3		
			:	-			-	:
			-	-			-	-
			-	-			-	-
	- 1	- 3	- 3	:	:	- 1	- 3	- 3
	- 1					- 1		- 3
	- 1	- 3	- 3	- 3		- 1	- 3	- 3
	- 1	- 3	- 3			- 1		- 3
	- 1	- 3				- 1		- 3
		- 3				- 1		- 3
	- 1	- 3	- 3	:	:	- 1	- 3	- 3
	- 1	- 3	- 3	- 3		- 1	- 3	- 3
	- 1	- 3				- 1		- 3
	- 1	- 3				- 1		- 3
1	- 1	- 3				- 1		- 3
				-		- 1		
				-	-			-
			-	-			-	-
	- 1	- 3	- 3	:	:	- 1	- 3	- 3
	- 1	- 3	- 3	- 3		- 1	- 3	- 3
	- 1	- 3		- 3		- 1		- 3
1	- 1	- 3				- 1		- 3
			-	-			-	-
	- 1					- 1		- 3
	- 1	- 3	- 3	- 3		- 1		- 3
	- 1	- 3		- 3				- 3
				-	-	ก		-
			:			Ð		: 10
	- 1		ğ	:		id		ğ
	- 1	- 3	g			R		ğ
	- 1		Š			×		Š
1	- 1		Ļ			.⊆.		Ļ
			0			0		0
	- 1		L	:		Ĕ		L
	- 1		Ë			Ō		Ë
			σ	:	<u>0</u> .	Σ		σ
1	ຽ		'n	S	G	σ		Ъ
	Φ		$\Box$	ŝti	fa	C	:	$\Box$
	io	5	σ	.ё	<u>s</u>	¥e	5	σ
	R	ę	Ш	te	at	Ð	В	Ы
1	ij	ž	0	<u>S</u>	S	/e	ž	0
	S	Ļ	ିତ	<u></u>	J.	5	Ļ	С С
	ar	Ö	С,	g	ň	σ	Ö	L S
	Ľ	Ð	Ч	$\overline{O}$	Б		Ð	Ψ
:		Ę	ğ	0	st		Ę	ō
Š	<u>A</u>	2	E	Ξ	Ŭ,	<b>A</b>	2	E
ie	ē	Δ	ш	F	0	ē	Δ	ш
2	Ş					ş		
) e	ė	_	~	$\sim$	<u>_</u> _	ά	_	~
2	Ī	2			7	Š		N.
	2	<sup>(N</sup>	<sup>(N</sup>	<sup>(N</sup>	CN I	2	ო	3
	I					1		
$\sum_{i=1}^{n}$	N					ŝ		
er	er					er		
Ĵ	ot o					<u>o</u> t		
a	a					a		
ř	ň					ň		
0	0					0		

Trip Characteristics. 26

### Appendixes

3.3

Appendix A – Metrolink 2004 Rider Survey

Appendix B – Metrolink 2005 Weekend Survey

Appendix C – SANBAG 2005 On-Board Rider Survey (Barstow, MARTA, MBTA, and Needles Transit Systems)

Appendix D – Omnitrans 2006 Fixed Route Rider Survey

Appendix E – Victor Valley Transit Customer Survey (2006)

## List of Tables

Table 1	Gender of Transit Riders	Ĩ
Table 2	Age of Transit Riders.	: :
Table 3	Ethnicity of Transit Riders.	·
Table 4	Household Incomes of Transit Riders.	
Table 5	Did Transit Riders Have an Auto Available for their Trip?	:
Table 6	Did Transit Riders (or Someone Else in their Household) Have a Driver's License?	4
Table 7	Average Household Size of Transit Riders.	-
Table 8	Disabilities of Transit Riders	2
Table 9	Frequency of Usage of Transit Riders	<del>(</del> )
Table 10	Duration of Usage of Transit Riders	7
Table 11	Primary Trip Purpose.	-
Table 12	Access Mode	10
Table 13	Egress Mode	1
Table 14	Overall Satisfaction of Transit Riders with Service	0
Table 15	Average Satisfaction Level of Transit Riders with Various Aspects of Service – Based on a Scale from 1 (Poor) to	
	7 (Excellent).	20
Table 16	Average Importance Level for Transit Riders of Various Aspects of Service – Based on a Scale from 1 (Not	
	Important) to 7 (Very Important)	5
Table 17	Gender of Metrolink Riders	22
Table 18	Age of Metrolink Riders	30
Table 19	Ethnicity of Metrolink Riders	30
Table 20	Household Income of Metrolink Riders	24
Table 21	Auto Availability of Metrolink Riders	24
Table 22	Frequency of Usage of Metrolink Riders	20
Table 23	Duration of Usage of Metrolink Riders	33
Table 24	Primary Trip Purpose of Metrolink Riders	20
Table 25	Access Mode of Metrolink Riders	20

## Chapter 1 – Overview

# Study Area Demographics and Transit Service Providers

with increases in employment and the creation of new job centers, will dramatically affect the County's transportation systems. In grown by more than 40 percent since 1990 and has recently surpassed 2 million residents. According to the Southern California growing for the next 30 years and is expected to reach 3 million residents by the year 2035. This increase in population, coupled San Bernardino County has the largest land area of any county in the contiguous 48 states. The population of the county has Association of Governments, 2007/2008 Regional Transportation plan, the population of the county is expected to continue response to these changes, local transit systems will need to expand and enhance their transit services to provide essential mobility for transit dependent populations and to relieve traffic congestion.

Currently, there are six local transit service providers and one regional rail network operating in San Bernardino County. The transit routes that these service providers operate cover less than ten percent of the land area of the county, but they provide transit services to more than 90 percent of the population of the county. The San Bernardino Valley comprises 15 cities, plus unincorporated areas, in the southwest corner of San Bernardino County. The Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) operates Metrolink commuter trains in the five-county SCAG region, transit service in the San Bernardino Valley is provided by Omnitrans on a system that comprises thirty fixed-route bus routes. While the land in the San Bernardino Valley covers less than 2.5 percent of the county, it houses more than 70 percent of the county's population, and these residents account for more than 90 percent of the current transit ridership in the county. Local including three lines that serve the San Bernardino Valley.

Victorville. The communities in this service area comprise 12 percent of the county's population, but these residents account for only 3 percent of the transit riders in the county. The Victor Valley area is growing more rapidly than anywhere else in the The Victor Valley Transit Authority (VVTA) serves the Victor Valley communities of Adelanto, Apple Valley, Hesperia and county, with the population expected to double in the next 25 years.

Authority (MARTA) serves the mountain communities of Crestline, Lake Arrowhead and Big Bear Valley. Barstow Area Transit is Four transit operators provide local transit services for outlying communities in the county. The Mountain Area Regional Transit Basin Transit Authority (MBTA) provides transit services to the communities of Yucca Valley, Twentynine Palms, Joshua Tree operated in the City of Barstow and surrounding county area, through a contract with MV Transportation, Inc. The Morongo

S
+
- 5-
<u> </u>
C
- 25
<u>۲</u>
P
<b>7 B</b>
Ú.
5
- A -
<u>ب</u>
$\sigma$
·
$\mathbf{Q}$
0
õ
$\sim$
0
Ξ.
- <b>H</b>
-
5
÷.
H
Ū.
$\mathbf{m}$
-
$\sigma$

and Landers. These three local operators each provide transit service for approximately two percent of the county's population. Needles Area Transit (NAT) provides local transit service in the City of Needles near the Arizona border.

## **Existing Information Sources**

intended to identify demographic characteristics of riders and to measure their opinions regarding their level of satisfaction with Applied Management & Planning Group (AMPG) to develop a profile of current transit users in the county. These profiles are County, the San Bernardino Associated Governments (SANBAG) retained Parsons Transportation Group Inc. (PTG) and the As part of a Long-Range Transit Plan (LRTP) designed to address the changing needs for transit service in San Bernardino transit services and the importance of different aspects of transit services.

system. At the inception of the LRTP, SANBAG and the consultants identified existing sources of information. Two of the seven The preferred method for collection of this type of information is the on-board survey of all transit routes operated in each transit service providers (SCRRA and VVTA) already had plans to use on-board surveys to collect demographic data and attitudinal data from their riders. These data collection efforts were monitored to ensure that they met the needs of the LRTP

data for all three of these subjects (trip-making, demographics, and attitudinal questions) can be burdensome on surveyors and Bernardino Valley (which houses over 70 percent of the county's population and 90 percent of the transit riders). Collection of this information requires a different survey mechanism than is used in surveys of demographic and attitudinal data. Collecting One additional objective of the long-range transit plan is to obtain detailed trip-making information for transit riders in the San respondents alike, especially considering the constraints of an on-board survey.

consultants decided to limit the scope of questions on the new Omnitrans survey to trip-making and demographic information. Since SanBag already had access to a survey of fixed route passengers conducted by Omnitrans in 2003, SANBAG and the

AMPG was retained to conduct this survey of Omnitrans riders, plus on-board transit surveys of the other four service providers in San Bernardino County – Barstow, MARTA, MBTA, and Needles.

## **On-Board Transit Surveys**

passengers for the Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA). In this survey, 13,688 passengers on seven Metrolink satisfaction. This document will be limited to the responses collected from 2,622 Metrolink riders who either live, work, or board In April through June, 2004, Strategic Consulting and Research (SCR) conducted an independent survey of weekday Metrolink trains in San Bernardino County. A copy of the survey instrument can be seen in Appendix A. The complete results of this routes serving the SCAG region were asked questions about trip-making, demographic characteristics, and customer survey can be found in Southern California Regional Rail Authority 2004 On-Board Rail Survey.

document will be limited to the responses collected from 1,586 Metrolink riders who either rode on the San Bernardino line or live Valley line on Saturdays) were asked questions about trip-making, demographic characteristics, and customer satisfaction. This In 2005, Strategic Consulting and Research (SCR) conducted another independent survey of weekend Metrolink passengers for the SCRRA. In this survey, 2,439 passengers on Metrolink routes (San Bernardino line on Saturdays and Sundays, Antelope in San Bernardino County. A copy of the survey instrument can be seen in Appendix B. The complete results of this survey can be found in Metrolink Weekend Onboard Survey 2005 – Final Report.

In April, 2005, AMPG surveyed fixed route and demand-response riders from the Barstow, MARTA, MBTA, and Needles transit systems. The survey addressed the following key issues:

- Demographic data, including availability of a car, income, presence of disabilities, etc.; and, A
- How long riders have been using the service;
  - How often they use transit in a given week; А
- Trip characteristics (trip purpose and access modes);
- Satisfaction with various service features including on-time arrival and departure, cleanliness, frequency of fixed route buses, etc. AA

A copy of the survey instrument used for all four of these surveys can be seen in Appendix C. The complete results of these surveys can be found in San Bernardino Association of Governments Transit Rider Survey Final Report (August 30, 2005).

Omnitrans was geared towards collection of origin-destination data, instead of the attitudinal data collected in the surveys of the In March and April, 2006, AMPG surveyed fixed route and demand-response riders from the Omnitrans system. This survey smaller systems. A copy of the survey instrument used for this survey can be seen in Appendix D. The complete results of addressed the same demographic issues as the surveys of the other transit providers, but the survey of fixed route riders on these surveys can be found in On-Board User Intercept Survey of Omnitrans Riders - Final Report (August 31, 2006).

system. A copy of the survey instrument used for this survey can be seen in Appendix E. No independent documentation of the results of the VVTA survey had been published as of the publication date of this document. The methodologies used to collect In April, 2006, the Victor Valley Transit Authority (VVTA) hired Urbitran to conduct an independent survey of its passengers. this survey of 772 VVTA riders, they addressed many of the same ridership issues addressed in the AMPG surveys. At the same time, VVTA collected ridecheck data that they used to create route profiles for the 12 routes operating in their transit and analyze the data can be found in the other reports referenced in this document.

The remainder of the report presents survey findings for the seven transit services operating in San Bernardino County. Results are presented by transit operator and for the County as a whole. Chapter 2 presents analysis and comparison of survey results of mid-week transit riders on all transit services operated in the county. Chapter 3 presents analysis and comparison of survey results for San Bernardino County-based Metrolink riders who use the service either during the week or on weekends

data summarizes the results in a format that treats all survey respondents equally. The weighted data summarizes the results in a format that weights each response in proportion to the total ridership on each transit system. That proportion is estimated as Whenever possible, the countywide data is presented in two formats: unweighted and weighted. The unweighted countywide the ratio of the number of surveys completed divided by the number of daily riders on each transit system. The weighted responses are often very similar to the Omnitrans responses, which is to be expected since Omnitrans accounts for approximately 80 percent of the transit ridership in the county.

~
Ť.
<b>9</b>
e e
В
5
- 🚍
୍
2
~
Ú.
-
۵.
÷.
<u>_</u>
<u>ଁ</u>
$\circ$
$\mathcal{S}$
4
0
E
Ξ
2
ਙ
E
H
ž
щ
C
-

# Chapter 2 – Mid-week Transit Riders

operated in San Bernardino County. Section 2.1 presents demographic profiles of the transit riders. Section 2.2 presents data regarding the frequency and duration of use of the transit services. Section 2.3 presents trip characteristics, including trip This chapter presents analysis and comparison of survey results of mid-week transit riders on the seven transit services purposes and access modes. Section 2.4 presents customer satisfaction ratings.

## 2.1 Profile of Riders

This section presents demographic profiles of transit riders in San Bernardino County. The demographic characteristics include: gender; age; ethnicity; household income; auto availability; possession of driver's license; household size; and disabilities of customers.

#### Gender

evenly on a county-wide basis. Two service providers serve more males than females (MARTA and MBTA) and four providers The genders of transit riders in San Bernardino County are summarized in Table 1. Male and female riders are represented serve more females than males (Metrolink, VVTA, Barstow and Needles)

			Ser	vice Provide	ŗr			County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	WTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	800	730	620	180		53,620
(Sample Size)	3,915	2,570	728	263	268	212	22	8,033	
Male	50%	47%	45%	53%	59%	40%	36%	49%	49%
Female	50%	53%	55%	47%	41%	60%	64%	51%	51%

## Table 1: Gender of Transit Riders

#### Age

The ages of transit riders in San Bernardino County are summarized in Table 2. Almost two-thirds of all transit riders in San Bernardino County are between 20 and 49 years of age.

The median age for all transit riders is approximately 35 years of age. The riders of all service providers have median ages between 30 and 39 years of age except Metrolink and Needles, which have median ages between 40 and 49 years of age. Fifteen percent of all riders in the county are less than 20 years of age. VVTA and MARTA have the highest shares of young riders, with over 20 percent on each of those systems. Metrolink and Needles each have fewer than five percent shares of young riders.

shares of elderly riders. The more secluded rural areas have increasingly high shares of elderly riders, peaking at 26 percent in nature of the service areas. The rapidly growing suburban areas of San Bernardino Valley and Victor Valley have relatively low Six percent of all riders in the county are over 60 years of age. The shares of elderly riders are directly related to the urban Needles.

			Serv	ice Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	WTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	800	730	620	180		53,620
(Sample Size)	3,789	2,457	698	255	257	195	65	7,716	
12 to 15	2%	%0	8%	8%	2%	2%	0%	2%	2%
16 to 19	15%	3%	17%	13%	16%	11%	3%	11%	13%
20 to 29	28%	15%	23%	22%	27%	21%	23%	23%	26%
30 to 39	20%	22%	16%	19%	16%	21%	17%	20%	20%
40 to 49	18%	30%	18%	21%	16%	21%	20%	22%	19%
50 to 59	12%	23%	11%	8%	12%	10%	11%	15%	13%
60 or older	5%	7%	6%	10%	11%	14%	26%	7%	6%

## Table 2: Age of Transit Riders

#### Ethnicity

The ethnicity of transit riders in San Bernardino County are summarized in Table 3.

Hispanics represent a plurality of transit riders in San Bernardino County, with 39 percent of total riders. However, Omnitrans is the only service provider that has more Hispanic riders than any other ethnic group.

African-Americans represent the second highest share of transit riders in the county, with 27 percent of the countywide transit ridership.

Caucasians, who account for only one-quarter of the total transit riders in the county, represent either a plurality or a clear majority of riders on each of the other transit operators (besides Omnitrans). Other/Multiple race riders account for five percent of countywide ridership, with shares of greater than ten percent observed on MARTA, Barstow, and Needles buses.

Asian/Pacific Islanders account for only three percent of total ridership. The only system that carries a significant share of Asian/Pacific Islanders is Metrolink, with a 12 percent share.

			Serv	ice Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans *	Metrolink	WTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	800	730	620	180		53,620
(Sample Size)	397	2,489	713	263	263	212	72	4,409	
African American	29%	24%	26%	5%	14%	26%	3%	23%	27%
Asian/Pacific Islander	2%	12%	3%	2%	4%	1%	%0	%8	3%
Caucasian	22%	32%	37%	61%	62%	39%	54%	36%	25%
Hispanic	43%	29%	27%	19%	14%	21%	17%	28%	39%
Other/Multiple	5%	3%	7%	13%	7%	13%	26%	5%	5%
* Omnitrans data for this	duestion based o	on 2003 Survey	(other so	cioeconomia	c questions	based on da	ita collected	n 2006 survey)	

## Table 3: Ethnicity of Transit Riders

## Household Income

The household incomes of transit riders in San Bernardino County are summarized in Table 4.

Almost half of all transit riders in San Bernardino County have household incomes of less than \$20,000 per year. All service providers except Metrolink have median incomes of less than \$20,000 except Metrolink, which has a median income of over \$60,000.

			Servi	ce Provider				County	lotal
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	WTA *	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	800	730	620	180		53,620
(Sample Size)	3,303	2,332	611	242	230	183	65	6,966	
Less than \$20,000	53%	11%	58%	54%	65%	86%	85%	41%	49%
\$20,000 to \$29,999	18%	8%	22%	14%	17%	4%	6%	14%	17%
\$30,000 to \$39,999	6%	9%	4%	10%	5%	4%	2%	8%	6%
\$40,000 to \$49,999	6%	8%	%2	5%	2%	2%	3%	%L	6%
\$50,000 to \$59,999	4%	10%	3%	10%	4%	2%	%0	6%	5%
\$60,000 to \$74,999	3%	14%	3%	1%	3%	%0	2%	7%	4%
\$75,000 to \$99,999	2%	17%	1%	4%	1%	%0	2%	7%	4%
\$100,000 to \$149,999	1%	16%	1%	2%	1%	1%	2%	6%	3%
\$150,000 to \$199,999	1%	4%	0%	1%	0%	1%	%0	2%	1%
\$200,000 or more	1%	3%	0%	1%	1%	1%	%0	1%	1%
* VVTA shares for incom	le groups above	\$50,000 are e	stimated be	cause VVTA	survey us	ed different i	ncome group	s than other su	ırveys.

Table 4: Household Incomes of Transit Riders

#### Auto Availability

available for their trips are assumed to be "choice riders". Transit riders who do not have an auto available for their trips are The auto availability of transit riders in San Bernardino County are summarized in Table 5. Transit riders who have an auto assumed to be "captive riders".

Metrolink riders had an auto available for their trip. Metrolink is the only service provider with more than a 22 percent share of Overall, only 22 percent of the transit riders had an auto available in their household for their transit trip. Three-quarters of choice riders. Barstow and Needles had the highest shares of captive riders, both of which had more than 90 percent of their riders claiming that they did not have an auto available to make their trip.

			Serv	ice Provider				County .	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	WTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	800	730	620	180		53,620
(Sample Size)	3,906	2,531	131	270	272	217	79	8,006	
Yes	15%	75%	22%	16%	17%	6%	8%	34%	22%
No	85%	25%	%82	84%	83%	94%	92%	66%	78%

# Table 5: Did Transit Riders Have an Auto Available for their Trip?

### Driver's Licenses

possession of driver's licenses by transit riders and their household are summarized in Table 6. The survey of Metrolink riders Another measure used to differentiate between choice riders and captive riders is the possession of a driver's license. The did not include questions regarding the possession of driver's licenses. Table 6 shows that only 36 percent of the transit riders in San Bernardino County possessed driver's licenses. MBTA is the only approximately 70 percent of the transit riders who do not have driver's licenses live in households where someone else does operator with more than half of the riders reporting that they possessed a driver's license. This table also shows that own a driver's license.

			Servi	ce Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink *	VVTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	800	730	620	180		53,620
		Dri	ver's Licer	Ise Possesse	ed by Rider				
(Sample Size)	3,781	V/N	717	271	273	221	62	5,342	
Yes	36%	V/N	39%	42%	51%	36%	35%	37%	36%
No	64%	N/A	61%	58%	49%	64%	%59		64%
		Driver's Licens	se Posses	sed by Some	one Else ir	household			
(Sample Size)	1,982	N/A	457	147	125	134	48	2,893	
Yes	73%	N/A	69%	65%	54%	43%	46%	69%	72%
No	27%	N/A	31%	35%	46%	57%	54%	31%	28%
* The Metrolink sur	vey did not ask I	riders about the	possessio	n of driver's li	icenses.				

# Table 6: Did Transit Riders (or Someone Else in their Household) Have a Driver's License?

#### Household Size

Five of the seven surveys asked riders about the number of persons living in their household. The average household sizes for these five service providers are summarized in Table 7. The surveys of Metrolink and VVTA riders did not include questions regarding household size.

The data in Table 7 shows that the average household size for transit riders in San Bernardino County is approximately four persons per household. The MARTA and Needles services reported the smallest average household sizes in the county.

			Serv	vice Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	VVTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	796	730	620	181		45,327
(Sample Size)	3,838	N/A	N/A	254	250	191	64	4,597	
Mean	4.1	N/A	N/A	3.1	3.5	3.7	3.1	4.0	4.1
Median	4	N/A	N/A	3	3	3	3	4	4
* The Metrolink a	nd VVTA surveys	s did not ask ric	ders about	the size of th	neir house	holds			

# Table 7: Average Household Size of Transit Riders

#### Disability

Six of the seven surveys asked riders about permanent disabilities. The disabilities of transit riders for these five service providers are summarized in Table 8. The survey of Metrolink riders did not include questions about disabilities.

disabilities. Omnitrans carries the smallest proportion of disabled passengers (15 percent), and Needles and Barstow carry the The data in Table 8 shows that approximately one-sixth of all transit riders in San Bernardino County have permanent argest shares (37 and 30 percent, respectively).

Table 8 also shows what types of disabilities were reported by transit riders. Riders were allowed to claim more than one disability. The most commonly stated disability for all service providers was mobility-related disability.

			Service	e Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink *	VVTA **	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	962	730	620	181		45,327
(Sample Size)	3,831	N/A	656	266	267	214	75	5,309	
Do You Have a F	<sup>b</sup> ermanent Disat	oility?							
Yes	15%	N/A	22%	19%	22%	30%	37%	17%	16%
No	85%	N/A	78%	81%	78%	70%	63%	83%	84%
What Type of Dis	sability?								
Daily Riders	6,450	N/A	399	151	161	186	29		7,015
(Sample Size)	465	N/A	182	48	57	60	23	835	
Mobility	47%	N/A	51%	63%	%09	50%	61%	50%	51%
Hearing	16%	N/A	18%	17%	12%	7%	13%	15%	17%
Sight	11%	N/A	10%	19%	16%	20%	13%	12%	12%
Other	45%	N/A	21%	27%	35%	37%	30%	37%	45%
* The Metrolink s	urvey did not as	sk riders about th	neir disabilitie	SS.					

## Table 8: Disabilities of Transit Riders

# 2.2 Frequency and Duration of Usage

## Frequency of Usage

Transit riders were asked how often they used the transit services. Table 9 shows that more than sixty percent of transit riders in percent, respectively. The services that have the highest percentages of "occasional" riders (those who use the service twice San Bernardino County use transit at least five days per week. The services that have the greatest percentages of "regular" passengers (those who use the service at least five days per week) are Metrolink and Omnitrans, with 67 percent and 62 per week or less) are MARTA and MBTA, both of which have more than one-third of their ridership in that category.

			Service	e Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink *	* ATVV	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	796	730	620	181		53,617
(Sample Size)	4,055	2,383	693	271	267	221	78	7,968	
5-7 days per week	62%	67%	29%	34%	35%	42%	24%	61%	62%
3-4 days per week	15%	18%	26%	32%	28%	32%	25%	19%	17%
1-2 days per week	16%	11%	10%	17%	19%	16%	12%	14%	15%
less than 1 day per week	6%	4%	2%	17%	19%	10%	%6	6%	6%
* The Metrolink and VVTA	surveys used di	fferent response	e categories,	so some rea	sponses a	re interpolat	ed.		

## Table 9: Frequency of Usage of Transit Riders

### **Duration of Usage**

Transit riders were asked how long they have been using the transit services. Table 10 shows that almost half of transit riders in respectively. The services that have the highest percentages of "new " riders (those who have used the service for less than six San Bernardino County have used transit for at least two years. The services that have the greatest percentages of "long-time" passengers (those who use the service for at least two years) are Metrolink and Needles, with 53 percent and 51 percent, months) are MBTA and Barstow, with 31 percent and 29 percent, respectively.

			Serv	ice Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	VVTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	796	730	620	181		53,617
(Sample Size)	3,962	2,614	751	272	271	223	78	8,171	
More than 2 Years	49%	23%	46%	46%	38%	41%	51%	49%	49%
1-2 Years	21%	15%	17%	22%	21%	20%	23%	19%	20%
6-12 Months	13%	13%	11%	10%	10%	10%	14%	13%	13%
Less than 6 Months	17%	19%	26%	22%	31%	29%	12%	19%	18%

## Table 10: Duration of Usage of Transit Riders
### 2.3 Trip Characteristics

### Trip Purpose

Transit riders were asked to give the primary purpose of their transit trip. Table 11 shows that the most common trip purpose for transit riders in San Bernardino County is for work or work-related trips, with 46 percent of the total ridership. However, the seven services varied widely in the percentage of work trips on their services, from 8 percent on Needles to 87 percent on Metrolink.

percentage of riders making school trips also varied widely, from greater than twenty percent of riders on VVTA, to less than five The second most common trip purpose was for school trips, with 14 percent of the total transit trips in the county. The percent of riders on Metrolink, Barstow and Needles.

Shopping trips were the most common trip purposes for Needles (58 percent) and Barstow (38 percent) transit riders.

			Serv	vice Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	VVTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	796	730	620	181		53,617
(Sample Size)	4,569	2,574	757	235	212	144	53	8,544	
Work/Work Related	41%	%28	40%	34%	27%	25%	8%	54%	46%
Shopping	11%	%0	12%	14%	21%	38%	58%	9%	10%
Medical/Personal	% <i>L</i>	2%	18%	22%	22%	27%	23%	8%	8%
Recreation/Social	12%	2%	2%	12%	13%	1%	%9	9%	11%
School	16%	4%	21%	11%	10%	3%	2%	12%	14%
Other	13%	1%	8%	7%	8%	6%	4%	8%	11%

### Table 11: Primary Trip Purpose

### Access Modes

Transit riders on three of the service providers were asked how they got from their origin site to their transit stop. The surveys of the smaller bus services (MARTA, MBTA, Barstow and Needles) did not include questions relating to access modes.

the total ridership. Other common modes of access are transferring from other transit vehicles (15 percent), driving (10 percent) Table 12 shows that walking was the most common access mode for transit riders in San Bernardino County, with 66 percent of and getting a ride (6 percent).

The access modes for bus riders and Metrolink riders were completely different. Walking is a much more likely mode of access to transit for bus riders (approximately 70 percent) than for Metrolink riders (2 percent). Meanwhile, driving or getting a ride is a much more likely mode of access to transit for Metrolink riders (90 percent) than for bus riders (5-15 percent).

			Serv	vice Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	VVTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A		51,290
(Sample Size)	4,569	2,432	743	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	7,744	
Walk	%£7	2%	%69	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	51%	66%
Transfer	16%	6%	15%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	13%	15%
Drive Auto	1%	69%	%2	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	23%	10%
Auto Passenger	4%	21%	7%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	40%	6%
Bicycle	2%	1%	3%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	2%	2%
Other	1%	%0	%0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	1%	1%

### Table 12: Access Mode

### **Egress Modes**

surveys of the smaller bus services (MARTA, MBTA, Barstow and Needles) did not include questions relating to egress modes. Transit riders on three of the service providers were asked how they got from their transit stop to their final destination. The

Table 13 shows that walking was the most common egress mode for transit riders in San Bernardino County, with 67 percent of the total ridership. Other common modes of egress are transferring to other transit vehicles (23 percent), and getting a ride (5 percent).

to transit for bus riders (approximately 70 percent) than for Metrolink riders (10 percent). Metrolink riders are much more likely to The egress modes for bus riders and Metrolink riders were completely different. Walking is a much more likely mode of egress getting a ride is also a much more likely mode of egress from transit for Metrolink riders (37 percent) than for bus riders (3-6 transfer to another transit route (51 percent vs. 17 percent for Omnitrans riders and 27 percent for VVTA riders). Driving or percent).

			Serv	/ice Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	VVTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A		51,290
(Sample Size)	4,569	1,945	723	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A	7,237	
Walk	72%	10%	65%	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A	56%	67%
Transfer	17%	51%	27%	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A	28%	23%
Drive Auto	%0	17%	2%	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A	5%	2%
Auto Passenger	3%	20%	4%	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A	8%	5%
Bicycle	2%	2%	3%	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	2%	2%
Other	1%	1%	%U	V/N	N/A	N/A	N/A	1%	1%

### Table 13: Egress Mode

### 2.4 Customer Satisfaction

satisfaction with various aspects of the transit service. Customers were asked to give a subjective rating of their satisfaction with from 1 (very dissatisfied) to 5 (very satisfied). For the sake of consistency in this report, we have interpolated the results of the the transit service that they were using. They were asked to give their opinion of the overall service along with their opinion of rating from 1 (poor) to 7 (excellent). Metrolink customers were asked to rate the services with a different scale, using a rating several distinct aspects of the transit service. Customers for the six bus services were asked to express their opinions with a All seven of the service providers in San Bernardino County have recently been surveyed to determine the level of customer Metrolink survey of customer satisfaction to be comparable to the bus surveys.

Along with an assessment of their level of satisfaction, customers were also asked to rate the level of importance of each aspect of the transit service, using a similar rating scale from 1 (not very important) to 7 (very important).

### **Overall Service**

Table 14 displays the results of the subjective question of customer satisfaction with the overall transit service. This data shows the highest levels of customer satisfaction, as both of those services received favorable ratings from at least 90 percent of their that the vast majority of transit riders are at least somewhat satisfied with the transit services. Omnitrans and Needles attained customers. VVTA received the lowest satisfactions ratings, with only 65 percent favorable ratings. Conversely, VVTA received the highest percentage of unfavorable responses, with 21 percent of VVTA riders expressing some evel of dissatisfaction with their transit service. Metrolink was the only other service to receive unfavorable satisfaction ratings from more than ten percent of their riders.

			Serv	vice Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	WTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Daily Riders	43,000	6,500	1,790	796	730	620	181		53,617
(Sample Size)	408	2,524	672	255	256	203	73	4,391	
7 – Excellent	42%	26%	23%	30%	35%	32%	63%	28%	39%
6 – Very Good	28%	27%	15%	28%	30%	26%	18%	25%	28%
5 – Good	20%	27%	27%	22%	20%	22%	12%	25%	21%
4 - Fair	4%	%8	15%	10%	10%	12%	3%	%6	5%
3 – Somewhat Poor	3%	2%	10%	6%	3%	4%	3%	4%	3%
2 – Poor	%0	2%	4%	2%	2%	1%	0%	2%	%0
1 – Very Poor	2%	8%	6%	1%	0%	3%	1%	6%	3%
				Summary					
Satisfied (5-7)	%06	80%	65%	80%	85%	80%	93%	79%	88%
Dissatisfied (1-3)	5%	12%	21%	9%	5%	8%	4%	12%	7%
Average Rating	5.95	5.27	4.88	5.57	5.78	5.55	6.31	5.35	5.82

## Table 14: Overall Satisfaction of Transit Riders with Service

## Satisfaction Levels with Different Aspects of Service

stops and on vehicles; driver and conductor courtesy; and ease of getting schedule information and understandable schedules. ratings are based on a scale from 1 (Poor) to 7 (Excellent). The service categories that received below average ratings derive categories that received the highest ratings from passengers (indicating high levels of satisfaction) include: safety, both at bus Table 15 displays the average customer ratings for various aspects of transit service for the seven service providers. These from dissatisfaction with weekend bus services and amenities at bus stops (benches, shelters and lighting). The service

			Sen	vice Provider				County	Total
	Omnitrans	Metrolink	WTA	MARTA	MBTA	Barstow	Needles	Unweighted	Weighted
Service Frequency	2.7	5.0	4.4	5.2	5.4	5.5	6.4	5.1	5.6
Service Hours	5.7	N/A	4.0	4.7	5.3	5.4	6.1	5.0	5.6
Weekend Service	N/A	N/A	4.1	4.9	4.0	5.2	4.8	4.4	4.4
Weekend Service Hours	4.7	N/A	4.4	4.6	4.1	5.3	4.8	4.6	4.7
Travel Time	5.6	5.4	4.7	5.4	5.4	5.4	6.1	5.3	5.5
Ease of Transfers	0.9	5.4	5.1	5.6	6.0	5.6	6.2	5.5	5.9
Coverage (Destinations)	0.9	N/A	5.4	2.7	5.9	5.7	6.2	5.7	6.0
Safety at Stops/Stations	5.7	5.5	5.3	5.9	6.2	5.9	6.4	5.6	5.7
Safety on Vehicles	6.2	5.8	4.6	6.1	6.3	6.0	6.5	5.8	6.1
<b>On-time Performance</b>	5.6	5.7	5.2	5.3	5.9	5.5	6.3	5.6	5.6
Understandable Schedules	0.9	N/A	5.3	0.9	6.0	5.7	6.4	5.8	6.0
Getting Information	6.3	5.4	5.5	0.9	6.2	5.8	6.2	5.6	6.2
Driver/Conductor Courtesy	0.9	5.9	5.1	6.2	6.3	5.9	6.1	5.8	6.0
Cleanliness of Vehicles	6.1	5.8	4.3	0.9	6.4	5.8	6.3	5.7	6.0
Benches/Shelters	5.1	N/A	4.3	4.3	5.5	5.2	6.2	4.9	5.1
Lighting at Stops	N/A	N/A	4.7	4.4	5.6	5.2	0.9	5.0	4.9
Cleanliness of Stons	5.5	A/N	N/A	1 5	5.8	54	62	5.5	55

## Table 15: Average Satisfaction Level of Transit Riders with Various Aspects of Service – Based on a Scale from 1 (Poor) to 7 (Excellent)

## Importance of Different Aspects of Service

services and amenities at bus stops (benches, shelters, lighting, and cleanliness). It is interesting to note that the categories that received the lowest ratings in terms of customer satisfaction (weekend service and bus stop amenities) also received the lowest categories received ratings that indicate that they are all important to the customers, the service categories that most frequently Table 16 displays the average customer ratings expressing the level of importance of various aspects of transit service for the received the highest ratings include: safety on vehicles; on-time performance; service frequency; and having routes go where seven service providers. These ratings are based on a scale from 1 (Not Important) to 7 (Very Important). While all service they want to go. The service categories that received the lowest ratings for importance are associated with weekend bus ratings in terms of importance.

0.0		6.5	6.5 6.1	6.5 6.1 6.2	6.5 6.1 6.2 6.4	6.5 6.1 6.4 6.4 6.4	6.5 6.1 6.4 6.4 6.6	6.5 6.4 6.6 6.5 6.5	6.5 6.1 6.4 6.6 6.5 6.7 6.7	6.5       6.1       6.2       6.4       6.6       6.5       6.5       6.7       6.7	6.5           6.1           6.2           6.4           6.4           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.6           6.6           6.6	6.5           6.1           6.3           6.4           6.6           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.6           6.6           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.6           6.6	6.5       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6       6.7       6.6       6.7       6.6       6.7       6.6       6.7       6.6       6.7       6.6       6.7       6.6       6.7	6.5           6.1           6.3           6.4           6.4           6.5           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5	6.5           6.1           6.3           6.4           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.6           6.7           6.7           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5	6.5         6.4         6.6         6.7         6.6         6.6         6.7         6.6         6.7         6.6         6.7         6.6         6.7         6.6         6.7         6.6         6.7         6.7         6.7         6.7         6.7         6.7         6.7         6.7
6.4		6.2	6.2 6.1	6.2 6.1 6.2	6.2 6.1 6.2 6.5	6.2 6.1 6.5 5.8	6.2 6.1 6.5 5.8 6.4	6.2 6.1 6.5 5.8 6.4 6.4 6.4	6.2 6.1 6.5 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4	6.2           6.1           6.2           6.4           6.4           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5	6.2           6.1           6.2           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5	6.2           6.1           6.2           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.3	6.2           6.1           6.2           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.5           6.3           6.3           6.3	6.2           6.1           6.2           6.3           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3	6.2           6.1           6.2           6.3           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.5           6.4           6.5           6.5           6.5           6.3           6.4           6.3           6.4           6.3           6.4           6.3           6.4           6.3	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
0.0	)	6.5	6.5 6.2	6.5 6.2 6.2	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.6	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.6 6.6	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.6	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.4 6.7	6.5 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.4 6.7 6.7 6.7	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.6 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.3 6.4 6.3 6.3 6.4 6.3	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6	6.5 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.4 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6	6.5 6.2 6.2 6.4 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6
2	2	6.1	6.2	6.1 6.1 6.1	6.1 6.3 6.3	6.1 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.1 6.1 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.1 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.1           6.1           6.2           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3	6.1       6.2       6.3	6.1           6.1           6.2           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3	6.1       6.1       6.1       6.3	6.1       6.2       6.3	6.1       6.2       6.3
	r. 5	6.4	6.1 6.1	6.4 6.1 6.1	6.2 6.1 6.2 6.2	6.2 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.4 6.1 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.4 6.1 6.1 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.4       6.1       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3	$\begin{array}{c c} 0.4 \\ 0.4 \\ 0.4 \\ 0.4 \\ 0.3 \\ 0.3 \\ 0.3 \\ 0.4$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
2	2	6.3	6.3	6.3 6.3 6.3	6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	6.3 6.3 6.2 6.2 6.2	6.3 6.3 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2	6.3 6.3 6.3 6.2 6.2 6.5 6.4	6.3 6.3 6.3 6.2 6.2 6.4 6.4	6.3 6.3 6.3 6.2 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4	6.3 6.3 6.3 6.2 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.5 6.3 6.3	6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.4         6.2           6.4         6.4           6.3         6.3           6.4         6.4           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.4         6.4           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3	6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.4         6.2           6.4         6.4           6.3         6.4           6.3         6.4           6.3         6.4           6.3         6.4           6.4         6.4           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3	6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.4         6.2           6.5         6.4           6.3         6.4           6.4         6.4           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.4           6.3         6.4           6.4         6.4           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.4	6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.4         6.5           6.4         6.4           6.3         6.4           6.3         6.3           6.4         6.4           6.3         6.4           6.3         6.4           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
	>	5.9	5.9	5.9 5.9 6.1	5.9 5.9 6.1 6.1	5.9 5.9 6.1 6.3 6.3	6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1	5.9           5.9           6.1           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3	5.9         5.9           6.1         6.1           6.3         6.1           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3           6.3         6.3	5.9           5.9           6.1           6.3           6.1           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.3           6.4           6.5           6.6           6.7           6.3           6.3           6.4           6.5           6.6           6.7           6.7           6.7           6.7           6.3	5.9           5.9           6.1           6.3	5.9       5.9       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.1       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6       6.7 </td <td>5.9       5.9       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1</td> <td>5.9       5.9       5.9       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6       6.7       6.7       6.9       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7</td> <td>5.9       5.9       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1</td> <td>5.9       5.9       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6</td>	5.9       5.9       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1	5.9       5.9       5.9       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6       6.7       6.7       6.9       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7	5.9       5.9       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.7       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1       6.1	5.9       5.9       6.1       6.3       6.3       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.1       6.1       6.2       6.3       6.4       6.5       6.6
0,5		N/A	N/A N/A	N/A N/A N/A	N/A N/A N/A 6.7	N/A N/A N/A 6.7 5.4	N/A N/A N/A 6.7 5.4 N/A	N/A N/A N/A 6.7 5.4 N/A N/A 6.5	N/A N/A N/A 6.7 6.7 6.5 6.5 6.5	N/A N/A N/A N/A 5.4 N/A N/A 6.5 6.5	N/A N/A N/A N/A 5.4 N/A 6.5 6.5 N/A	N/A N/A N/A 6.7 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 7 8.5 7 8.5 7 8.5 7 8.5	N/A N/A N/A 6.7 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.3 6.3 6.3	N/A N/A N/A 6.7 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3	N/A N/A N/A N/A 5.4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A	N/A N/A N/A 6.7 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
0.0		6.5	6.5 N/A	6.5 N/A 6.2	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.6	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.5	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.5 6.7	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.6 6.6 6.6	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.5	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.5 6.5 6.5	6.5 N/A 6.2 6.4 6.5 6.5 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.5 6.5 6.5
Service Frequency		Service Hours	Service Hours Weekend Service	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations)	Service Hours Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations) Safety at Stops/Stations	Service Hours Weekend Service Hours Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations) Safety at Stops/Stations Safety on Vehicles	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations) Safety at Stops/Stations Safety on Vehicles On-time Performance	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations) Safety at Stops/Stations Safety on Vehicles On-time Performance Understandable Schedules	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations) Safety at Stops/Stations Safety on Vehicles On-time Performance Understandable Schedules Getting Information	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations) Safety at Stops/Stations Safety on Vehicles On-time Performance Understandable Schedules Getting Information Driver/Conductor Courtesy	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations) Safety at Stops/Stations Safety on Vehicles On-time Performance Understandable Schedules Getting Information Driver/Conductor Courtesy Cleanliness of Vehicles	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations) Safety at Stops/Stations Safety on Vehicles On-time Performance Understandable Schedules Getting Information Driver/Conductor Courtesy Cleanliness of Vehicles Benches/Shelters	Service Hours Weekend Service Weekend Service Hours Travel Time Ease of Transfers Coverage (Destinations) Safety at Stops/Stations) Safety on Vehicles On-time Performance Understandable Schedules Getting Information Driver/Conductor Courtesy Cleanliness of Vehicles Benches/Shelters
		Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service         N/A         7.9         6.3         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         6.2         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         6.2         6.1         6.2         6.1         6.2         6.2         6.2         6.2         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.2 <td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         6.2         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.1</td> <td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         N/A         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3</td> <td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5         6.5           Neekend Service         N/A         7.9         6.3         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5         6.4         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5</td> <td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         6.2         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.2         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.4         6.3         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.3         6.4         6.3         6.4</td> <td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         6.2         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.1</td> <td>Control         Control         <t< td=""><td>Control Form         Control Form&lt;</td><td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.3         6.1         &lt;</td><td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.1         &lt;</td><td>Derivation of the construction of the const</td><td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.3           Service Hours         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.2         6.2         6.3         6.1</td><td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.3           Weekend Service         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5         6.4         6.5         6.5         6.4         6.5         6.5         6.4         6.5</td></t<></td>	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         6.2         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.1	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         N/A         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.3	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5         6.5           Neekend Service         N/A         7.9         6.3         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5         6.4         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5         6.5	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         6.2         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.2         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.1         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.4         6.3         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.3         6.4         6.3         6.4	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5           Weekend Service Hours         6.2         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.1	Control         Control <t< td=""><td>Control Form         Control Form&lt;</td><td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.3         6.1         &lt;</td><td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.1         &lt;</td><td>Derivation of the construction of the const</td><td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.3           Service Hours         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.2         6.2         6.3         6.1</td><td>Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.3           Weekend Service         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5         6.4         6.5         6.5         6.4         6.5         6.5         6.4         6.5</td></t<>	Control Form         Control Form<	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.3         6.1         <	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.2         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.3         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.1         <	Derivation of the construction of the const	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.3           Service Hours         6.3         6.1         6.3         6.1         6.2         6.2         6.2         6.3         6.1	Service Hours         6.5         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.3           Weekend Service         N/A         5.9         6.3         6.4         6.1         6.5         6.2         6.5         6.4         6.5         6.5         6.4         6.5         6.5         6.4         6.5

## Table 16: Average Importance Level for Transit Riders of Various Aspects of Service – Based on a Scale from 1 (Not Important) to 7 (Very Important)

# Chapter 3 – Mid-week and Weekend Metrolink Riders

This chapter presents analysis and comparison of survey results of San Bernardino County Metrolink who use the service during regarding the frequency and duration of use of the Metrolink services. Section 3.3 presents trip characteristics, including trip the week and on weekends. Section 3.1 presents demographic profiles of the Metrolink riders. Section 3.2 presents data purposes and access modes.

### **3.1 Profile of Riders**

This section presents demographic profiles of San Bernardino County Metrolink riders. The demographic characteristics include: gender; age; ethnicity; household income; and auto availability.

### Gender

The genders of San Bernardino County Metrolink customers are summarized in Table 17. Female riders comprise a slight majority of Metrolink weekday ridership. On weekends, male and female ridership is almost evenly split.

## Table 17: Gender of Metrolink Riders

		Jay of Week	
	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday
Daily Riders	6,500	3,160	1,500
(Sample Size)	2,570	269	992
Male	47%	20%	51%
Female	23%	20%	49%

### Age

20 and 59 (90 percent of total ridership), as compared to 72-74 percent of approximately 43 years of age, as compared to approximately 35 years of The ages of San Bernardino County Metrolink customers are summarized in Table 18. Weekday Metrolink riders are typically between the ages of weekend riders in this age range. The median age for weekday riders is age on both weekend days.

Less than five percent of mid-week riders are less than 20 years of age, as compared to more than fifteen percent of all riders on the weekends. Riders over the age of 60 also represent a higher share of the total ridership on weekends than on weekdays.

### Table 18: Age of Metrolink Riders

		ay of Week	
	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday
Daily Riders	6,500	3,160	1,500
(Sample Size)	2,457	681	738
12 to 15	0%	3%	2%
16 to 19	3%	13%	14%
20 to 29	15%	24%	25%
30 to 39	22%	18%	17%
40 to 49	30%	19%	17%
50 to 59	23%	12%	13%
60 or older	7%	12%	10%

### Ethnicity

The ethnic breakdown of San Bernardino County Metrolink customers is summarized in Table 19. The most common ethnic group found on Metrolink trains on weekdays is Caucasian, with 32 percent of total ridership. Meanwhile, on weekends Caucasians represent the third largest ethnic group, with 20 percent of the ridership. Hispanics, who represent 29 percent of mid-week ridership, account for approximately 45 percent of weekends.

## Table 19: Ethnicity of Metrolink Riders

		ay of Week	
	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday
Daily Riders	6,500	3,160	1,500
(Sample Size)	2,489	704	778
African American	24%	22%	24%
Asian/Pacific Islander	12%	8%	6%
Caucasian	32%	20%	20%
Hispanic	29%	44%	45%
Other/Multiple	3%	6%	6%

### Household Income

wealthier than weekend ridership. The median household income of mid-The household income of San Bernardino County Metrolink customers is week riders is greater than \$60,000, as compared to a median income of less than \$30,000 for weekend riders. Approximately 20 percent of summarized in Table 20. Mid-week ridership on Metrolink is much weekend riders have household income of greater than \$60,000.

## Table 20: Household Income of Metrolink Riders

		ay of Week	
	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday
Daily Riders	6,500	3,160	1,500
(Sample Size)	2,332	603	647
Less than \$20,000	11%	37%	45%
\$20,000 to \$29,999	8%	17%	13%
\$30,000 to \$39,999	9%	13%	11%
\$40,000 to \$49,999	8%	7%	5%
\$50,000 to \$59,999	10%	7%	6%
\$60,000 to \$74,999	14%	7%	8%
\$75,000 to \$99,999	17%	5%	4%
\$100,000 to \$149,999	16%	4%	5%
\$150,000 to \$199,999	4%	1%	1%
\$200,000 or more	3%	2%	3%

### Auto Availability

The auto availability of San Bernardino County Metrolink customers is summarized in Table 21. Mid-week ridership on Metrolink is much more likely to have an automobile available for their trip-making than weekend ridership. Three quarters of mid-week riders have an auto available, as compared to 45 percent of Saturday riders and less than 40 percent of Sunday riders.

## Table 21: Auto Availability of Metrolink Riders

	Sunday	1,500	821	38%	62%	
ay of Week	Saturday	3,160	729	45%	55%	
D	Weekday	6,500	2,531	75%	25%	
		Daily Riders	(Sample Size)	Yes	No	

## 3.2 Frequency and Duration of Usage

### Frequency of Usage

Metrolink riders were asked how often they have been using Metrolink services. Table 22 shows that more than 95 percent of midweek Metrolink riders in San Bernardino County use Metrolink at least once per week, as compared to less than one-third of weekend riders.

## Table 22: Frequency of Usage of Metrolink Riders

		Day of Week	
	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday
Daily Riders	6,500	3,160	1,500
(Sample Size)	2,383	726	817
At least Once per Week	96%	30%	33%
At least Once per Month	3%	26%	27%
Less than Once per Month	2%	22%	18%
Less than Once per Year	N/A	13%	13%
Don't Know	N/A	10%	%6

### **Duration of Usage**

Metrolink riders were asked how long they have been using Metrolink services. Table 23 shows that weekend Metrolink riders are much more likely to be using the train for the first time (15 percent) than mid-week riders (4 percent). The median duration of service usage for mid-week riders is slightly more than two years, as compared to between one and two years for weekend riders.

## Table 23: Duration of Usage of Metrolink Riders

		ay or week	
	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday
Daily Riders	6,500	3,160	1,500
(Sample Size)	2,457	741	838
First Time	4%	15%	16%
Less than 6 Months	15%	17%	18%
6 to 12 Months	13%	12%	12%
1 to 2 Years	15%	15%	13%
2 to 4 Years	21%	17%	17%
4 to 6 Years	12%	11%	11%
More than 6 Years	19%	13%	13%

### 3.3 Trip Characteristics

## Riders

### **Trip Purpose**

percent of the total ridership, as compared to approximately 15 percent on Metrolink riders in San Bernardino County is for work-related trips, with 83 Metrolink riders were asked to give the primary purpose of their transit trip. Table 24 shows that the most common trip purpose for mid-week weekends. Visiting friends and family is by far the most common trip purpose for weekend Metrolink riders, with 49 percent of Saturday ridership and 56 percent of Sunday ridership.

### Access Modes

transit stop. Table 25 shows that 90 percent of mid-week Metrolink riders private car to access Metrolink. More than one-third of weekend riders contrast, approximately 55 percent of weekend Metrolink riders use a Metrolink riders were asked how they got from their origin site to their use another transit line to access Metrolink, as compared to only six use a private car to either drive or ride to their Metrolink train. By percent of weekday riders.

In summary, the typical mid-week Metrolink rider is a commuter who Metrolink rider earns less than \$30,000 per year, and uses Metrolink weekday to make a trip to work. By contrast, the typical weekend earns more than \$60,000 per year, who drives to Metrolink every occasionally to visit family or friends.

## Table 24: Primary Trip Purpose of Metrolink

		lay of Week	
	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday
Daily Riders	6,500	3,160	1,500
(Sample Size)	2,574	802	262
Work	83%	16%	14%
School	4%	3%	2%
Visit Friends/Family	N/A	%67	56%
Home	3%	3%	5%
Shopping	%0	%9	3%
Business Appointment	1%	3%	2%
Event	N/A	4%	4%
Medical/Personal	2%	1%	%0
Sight-seeing	1%	8%	7%
Other	5%	5%	7%
* The mid-week and wee	kend surveys	used differen	t
response categories.			

## Table 25: Access Mode of Metrolink Riders

		Daily Riders	(Sample Size)	Walk	Transfer	Drive Auto	Auto Passenger	Bicycle	Other
	Weekday	6,500	2,432	2%	6%	%69	21%	1%	%0
lay of Week	Saturday	3,160	610	%8	%98	%61	36%	1%	%0
	Sunday	1,500	655	8%	35%	16%	38%	1%	2%

### Appendix A – Metrolink 2004 Rider Survey



### **2004 RIDER** SURVEY

Every other year Metrolink surveys our riders onboard the trains to improve our services. Even if you are not a regular Metrolink rider or if you are visiting Southern California, we would like to hear from you. Please fill out this survey and return to the attendant.

Please select your response for each question by placing an "X" in <u>only one box |x|</u>, unless the instructions indicate otherwise ....

1. How long have you been riding METROLINK regularly ?	6. 1
<ul> <li>☐ inis is my first time</li> <li>☐ is Between 2 and 4 years</li> <li>☐ is Between 4 and 6 years</li> <li>☐ is Between 6 months and 1 year</li> <li>☐ is Between 1 and 2 years</li> </ul>	7.
2 Please fill in number of days you usually ride METROLINK. i Itypically ride Metrolink day (s) per week, OR i Itypically ride Metrolink day (s) per month, OR i Itypically ride Metrolink day (s) per year i A Iam not a regular rider. Hast took Metrolink in (month/year) i > Don't know	8. I
3. On days when you don't take Metrolink, how do you make	
this trip? (choose one)         . Don't make this trip       . Take the MTA-Metro         . Use AMTRAK       (Red Blue, Green, or Gold         . Drive alone       Line)         . Drive with someone/vanpool       . Other (please specify:)         . Take a bus	9. [ 8
4. What was the purpose of your very <u>first trip</u> on Metrolink?	
(choose one) ☐ · Commuting to or from work ☐ • Taking the train for just fun ☐ · Visiting friends or family ☐ › Other ( <i>please specify:</i> ) ☐ · Taking the train to a special	10.
These next questions ask about the <u>current one-way</u> <u>Metrolink trip</u> you are taking, including this train and all other Metrolink trains which are a part of this trip (for example: this may be your trip from home to work, or from work to home)	11
5. What type of ticket are you using today ? 	12
<ul> <li>☐ 10 -trip (average #of weeks until used up)</li> <li>☐ Four-trip ticket</li> <li>☐ Round trip ticket</li> <li>☐ One-way ticket</li> <li>☐ Armtrak ticket</li> <li>☐ Other (p/ease specify:)</li> </ul>	

### What was the price of your pass or ticket? \_\_\_\_

Does your employer pay part or all of your pass or ticket ? ∐ i No

- 🗍 🛛 Yes Myemployerpays \$ \_ \_\_\_\_\_per month
- 🗍 🛛 Does not apply (Iam not employed)

### s this trip part of a round-trip?

- ∏ ⊤ Yes, this is a round trip on Metrolink
- 📋 🗴 Yes, this is a round trip using Metrolink in one direction and Amtrak in the opposite direction
- I No, I will use Metrolink in one direction only
- Does this one-way trip include a transfer to or from another Metrolink or Amtrak train? (Choose one)
  - ∏ i Amtrak transfer
  - 📺 🗴 Metrolink transfer
  - Both Amtrak and Metrolink transfers
     <u>No</u> Amtrak and <u>no</u> Metrolink transfers
- How many minutes is your typical work commute, starting from the time you leave your home until you reach your place of work?
  - Π. \_\_ minutes
  - Don't know
- . Do you know that Metrolink passes and tickets are accepted as EZ Transit Pass on many connecting buses?
- ∐ i Yes
- ∐ i No □ 」 I am not familiar with the EZ Transit Pass
- 2. Are you a member of the AAA Automobile Club of Southern California? (Choose one)
  - ∏ i Yes
  - 🔲 🛽 No, Iam a member of a different
  - Auto Club, name: \_\_\_\_
  - ∏ ₃ No, Iam not a member of an yAuto Club
  - 🗍 🖬 Don't know

These next questions ask about the <u>current one-way Metrolink trip</u> you are taking, including this train and all other Metrolink trains which are a part of this trip (for example: this may be your trip from home to work, or from work to home). . .

START OF THIS ONE-WAY TRIP	END OF THIS ONE-WAY TRIP
13. Which best describes where you just came from?	17. Which best describes where you are going?
<ul> <li>Work</li> <li>Home</li> <li>Business appointment</li> <li>Personal appointment</li> <li>School</li> <li>School</li> <li>Business appointment</li> </ul>	↓       Work       □ €       Shopping         □ 2       Home       □ 7       Leisure, entertainment, or social visit         □ 3       Business appointment       □ €       Sight-seeing (just for fun)         □ 4       Personal appointment       □ 9       Other (please specify:)         □ 5       School
<ul> <li>14. What is the nearest known street intersection, city, and zip code for that starting point?</li> <li>(this information helps us estimate travel distance and improve access to Metrolink.)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>18. What is the nearest known street intersection, city, and zip code for that destination?</li> <li>(this information helps us estimate travel distance and improve access to Metrolink.)</li> </ul>
	&
Primary Street Cross Street	Primary Street Cross Street
City: Zip code:	City: Zip code:
16. How did you travel to that METROLINK station ? (Choose one for longest part of trip)	20. How will you travel from that METROLINK station to where you are going? (Choose one for longest part of trip)
<ul> <li>□ Drove alone in a car</li> <li>□ Drove alone in a company car</li> <li>□ Was dropped off at station</li> <li>□ Carpooled</li> <li>□ Rode a bike</li> <li>Which line (s):</li> <li>□ Gold line</li> <li>□ Gold li</li></ul>	1       Drive alone in a car         2       Drive alone in a company car         3       Someone will pick me up         4       Carpool         5       Ride a bike         Which line (s):       1         6       Ride MTA-Metro         1       Gold line         2       Green line         3       Bus #:         7       Ride the DASH bus #         8       Ride a different bus ►         Bus company:       Bus #:         9       Ride an employee van/shuttle         10       Walk       minutes         11       Other (please specify:)

These next questions ask about how well METROLINK service meets your needs...

21. Before you began using METROL this trip?	INK, how did you make	22. How satisfied are you with MET overall? (choose one)	ROLINK services
<ul> <li>I Didn't make this trip</li> <li>2 Used AMTRAK</li> <li>3 Drove alone</li> <li>4 Drove with someone/carpooled/</li></ul>	☐ ₅ Took a bus	<ul> <li>☐ 1 Very dissatisfied</li> <li>☐ 2 Dissatisfied</li> <li>☐ 3 Neither dissatisfied nor satisfied</li> </ul>	☐ ₄ Satisfied
vanpooled	☐ ₅ Other ( <i>please specify:</i> )		☐ ₅ Very satisfied

23. Please rate each feature associated How important is			ant is this fe	eature	How <u>satisfied</u> are you with this Feature?				Don't know or does not apply		
with traveling on METROLINK trains.	Not		(circle num	ber)	(C) Very	(C) Dissatisfied		(circle num)	ber)	③ Satisfied	(check if not applicable to you trip)
Travel lime on Metrolink vs. car	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
On-time arrivals	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	Ē
Connecting transit buses at station	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	Ē
Availability of free unreserved parking at station	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	ī
Availability of paid and reserved parking at station	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	Ē
Availability of seating on the train	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	n
Cleanliness of train interior	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Safe operation of trains	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	Ō
Personal security on the train	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	n
Personal security at the station	1	2	3	4	5	4	2	3	4	5	1 D
Trains free of defects (heat, doors, etc.)	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Ease of purchasing tickets	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	Ē
Cost of a Metrolink ride	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	ō
Courtesy of Metrolink conductors	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	n
Communication of schedule changes	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	n
Communication of delays	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	Ē
Schedule convenience	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	ā
Ease of getting information at 800-371-LINK	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	i n
. Have you moved or changed residence durin	g the last	c ye	earr	_			647 A.S.		- P. C. D. D.		
Yes Kirkes, has Metrolink been a factor in you	r choice			ц п.	My empl My empl	oyer gave n oyer paid fo	ne or p	a free Metro art of my Me	etrolin	cket Ik pass	
If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you Yes contresidence? □ No □ =	ir choice Yes				My empl My empl A family	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri	ne or p ien	a free Metro art of my Me d, or co-wor	etrolin etrolin ker to	ckel Ik pass Id me abo	ut Metrolink
Have you changed your place of work during	r choice Yes <b>the last</b> y	yea	ar?		My empl My empl A family I have se	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri een advertis	ne or p ien sing	a free Metro art of my Me d, or co-wor g for Metrolir	etrolin ker to nk and	ckel Ik pass Id me abo I was curio	ut Metrolink ous
Have you changed your place of work during No Have you changed your place of work during No Yes → If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you	r choice Yes <b>the last y</b> Ir choice	yea	ar?		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri aen advertis A strike force	ne or p ien sing ed	a free Metro art of my Me d, or co-wor for Metrolin me to find a	olink ( etrolin ker to nk and ilterna	cket ik pass Id me abo I was curi ite transpo	ut Metrolink ous ortation
If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you         Yes       If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you         Have you changed your place of work during         No         Yes         Yes         If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you         If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you         Yes         Yes         If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you         Yes         Yes     <	r choice Yes I <b>the last j</b> Ir choice Yes	yea	ar?		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/ I took the	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri een advertis A strike force e train to a s	me or p ien iang ed spe	a free Metro art of my M d, or co-wor of or Metrolin me to find a ccial event	olink () etrolin ker to nk and ilterna	cket Ik pass Id me abo I was curi Ite transpo	ut Metrolink ous ortation
<ul> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>if Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>of residence?</li> <li>No</li> <li>Have you changed your place of work during</li> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>if Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>if Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>if Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>if Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>if Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>if Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>if Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> </ul>	r choice Yes <b>the last y</b> r choice Yes <b>trip (if yo</b>	yea	ar? had		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/ I took the I was tra	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri een advertis A strike forc e train to a s veling in a g	me pr p ien ien sing ed spe gro	a free Metro art of my M d, or co-wor for Metrolin me to find a ccial event up	etrolin ker to nk and ilterna	cket Ik pass Id me abo I was curi Ite transpo	ut Metrolink ous ortation
<ul> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>of residence?</li> <li>No</li> <li>Have you changed your place of work during</li> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>of work location?</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>Did you have an automobile to make today's wanted to use one instead of METROLINK)?</li> </ul>	r choice Yes the last y r choice Yes trip (if yo (Choose o	yea ou l	ar? had e)		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/ I took the I was tra My car w	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri een advertis A strike force e train to a s veling in a g vas being re	ne prp ien sing ed spe gro	a free Metro art of my M d, or co-wor for Metrolir me to find a cial event up ired	etrolin ker to nk and ilterna	cket ik pass Id me abo d was curi te transpo	ut Metrolink ous ortation
<ul> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>Have you changed your place of work during</li> <li>Have you changed your place of work during</li> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> </ul>	r choice Yes the last y r choice Yes trip (if yo (Choose o	yea ou l	ar? had e)		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/ I took the I was tra My car w	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri een advertis A strike forco e train to a s veling in a g vas being re vas being us	ne pr p ien sing ed spe gro epa sed	a free Metro art of my Mi d, or co-wor for Metrolir me to find a cial event up lived I by another	family	cket ik pass Id me abo d was curi d was curi te transpo y member	ut Metrolink ous ortation
<ul> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>Have you changed your place of work during</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li>     &lt;</ul>	r choice Yes the last y r choice Yes trip (if yo (Choose of hese airp	yea ou l on	ar? had e) ts		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/ I took the I was tra My car w Ny car w I could n	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri een advertis A strike force e train to a s veling in a g vas being re vas being us ot drive my	ne pr p len sing ed spe gro epa sec ca	a free Metro art of my Me d, or co-wor for Metrolin me to find a cial event up ired I by another r for medica	family I reas	cket ik pass Id me abo I was curiu ite transpo ite transpo y member ons	ut Metrolink ous ortation
<ul> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>Have you changed your place of work during</li> <li>No</li> <li>Have you changed your place of work during</li> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> </ul>	r choice Yes the last y r choice Yes trip (if yo (Choose of hese airp f times)	yea on on	ar? had e) ts		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/ I took the I was tra My car w My car w I could n The high	oyer gave n oyer paid for member, fri een advertis A strike force e train to a s veling in a g vas being re vas being us ot drive my n cost of gas	ne pr p len sing ed spe gro epa sec ca	a free Metro art of my Me d, or co-wor for Metrolin me to find a cial event up ired I by another r for medica	blink II etrolin ker to nk anc nk anc nk anc nk anc i lerna	cket ik pass id me abo d was curi d was curi te transpo te transpo y member ons	ut Metrolink ous ortation
<ul> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>Have you changed your place of work during</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>If Yes, has Metrolink been a factor in you</li> <li>Yes</li> <li>No</li> <li></li></ul>	r choice Yes the last y r choice Yes trip (if yo (Choose of hese airp f times)	yea ou l on per	ar? had e) ts year		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/ I took the I was tra My car w I could n The high I served	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri een advertis A strike force e train to a s veling in a g vas being re vas being us ot drive my n cost of gas on Jury dut	ne prp ien sing ed spe gro epa sec ca s	a free Metro art of my Me d, or co-wor for Metrolin me to find a cial event up ired I by another r for medica nd received	olink II etrolin ker to nk anc nk anc ilterna ilterna ilters i a free	cket ik pass Id me abo I was curiu ite transpo ite transpo y member ons e Metrolini	ut Metrolink ous ntation k licket
Image: No       Image: Yes       Image: Image: No       Image: No       Image: No         Image: Have you changed your place of work during       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No         Image: Yes       Image: Yes       Image: Image: No       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No         Image: Yes       Image: Yes       Image: Image: No       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No         Image: Yes       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No         Image: Yes       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No         Image: Yes       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No         Image: How many times do you expect to fly out of to over the next 12 months? (write in number of Image: No       Image: No       Image: No         Image: LAX (Los Angeles International Airport)       Image: No       Image: No       Image: No         Image: Im	r choice Yes the last y r choice Yes trip (if yo (Choose of hese airp f <i>times</i> )	yea ou l on	ar? had e) ts year		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/ I took the I was tra My car w I could n The high I served I receive	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri een advertis A strike force e train to a s veling in a g vas being re vas being us ot drive my n cost of gas on Jury dut d an offer ir	ne prp ien sing ed spe gro epa sec ca sec ca sec ca sec the th	a free Metro art of my Me d, or co-wor for Metrolin me to find a cial event up ired I by another r for medica nd received e mail	olink II etrolin ker to kanc ikerna ilterna ilterna ilterna	cket ik pass Id me abo I was curin ite transpo ite transpo y member ons e Metrolini	ut Metrolink ous ntation k licket
Image: Yes       No       Image: Yes       Image: Yes       Image: Image: Image: Yes       Image: Image: Image: Yes       Image: I	r choice Yes the last y ir choice Yes trip (if yo (Choose of hese airp f <i>times</i> ) times of	yea ou l on	ar? had e) ts year		My empl My empl A family I have se The MT/ I took the I was tra My car w I could n The high I served I receive Other (p	oyer gave n oyer paid fo member, fri een advertis A strike force e train to a s veling in a g vas being re vas being us ot drive my n cost of gas on Jury dut d an offer ir <i>lease specil</i>	ne prp ien sing ed spe gro epa sec ca sec ca s y a h th	a free Metro art of my Me d, or co-wor for Metrolin me to find a cial event up ired I by another r for medica nd received e mail	olink II ker to nk and nk and ilterna ilterna il reas	cket ik pass Id me abo d was curi d was curi te transpo te transpo y member ons e Metrolini	ut Metrolink ous ortation k licket

32. Please indicate your gender:	38c. How many people does your company employ at your work location ?
	□ + Under 25 □ ₄ 100 - 249
33. Year you were born 19	□ 2 25 - 49 □ 5 250 or over
34. What is your home Zip code:	<u>□</u> ₃ 50 - 99
35. Which of the following best describes your ethnic background ?	38d. Does your employer provide any of the following to employees ? (check all that apply)         □ 1 Timetables and brochures       □ 4 My employer does not remark with a terrational structures
Image: Second	$\square_2$ Trial ride tickets       promote public transit $\square_3$ Shuttle / van to station $\square_5$ Other ( <i>please specify:</i> )
36. Which category includes your total annual household income before taxes in 2003 ?	Have a Comment ?
□ 1 Less than \$20,000 □ 6 \$60,000 - \$74,999	
□ 2 \$20,000 - \$29,999 □ 7 \$75,000 - \$99,999	
□ ₃ \$30,000 - \$39,999 □ ₃ \$100,000 - \$149,999	
↓ 4       \$40,000 - \$49,999       ↓ 3       \$150,000 - \$199,999         ↓ 5       \$50,000 - \$59,999       ↓ 6       \$200,000 or more	
37. Which of the following best describes your employment status ?	
Employed full-time (Answer question 38a-d)	
Employed part-time (Answer question 38a-d)	
□ ₃ Self-employed (Answer question 38a-d)	Comments can also be made by e-mail at the Metrolink
4 Retired	web site www.metrolinktrains.com or through the
5 Not employed or seeking employment	
Full-time student (please indicate type of school you are attending:)	<u>Complete surveys</u> will be entered into a random
Trade/Technical School Groups College/University	drawing to win a FREE monthly pass. For your
	chance to win please provide your name, address and
<i>If you are employed, please answer the following</i>	phone number below
questions:	Namo
38a. Which category best describes your occupation ?	
Senior Executive  Senior Executive  To Professional Managerial  Senior Sales/Clerk	Address:
Professional Non-     Professional Non-     Professional Non-     Professional Non-	City:Zip:
Managerial 🔲 10 Teacher	Home Phone: ( )
Business Owner II in Consultant	
$\square$ 5 Admin. Assistant $\square$ 2 Other (please specify:)	Work Phone: ()
38b. Which category best describes the industry you	E-mail Address:
work in ?	Please give the survey to one of our attendants!
☐ 1 Construction/Manufacturing ☐ 1 Health/Human Services	Thank you for completing the survey and helping to make
□ 2 research/couldailon □ 3 Engineering	METROLINK the nation's premier commuter
Communication/Utilities	rail service!
$\square$ 4 Wholesale and Retail Trade $\square$ $\square$ Government	
$\square$ 5 Finance/Insurance/Real Estate $\square$ 3 Military	Metrolink respects your privacy! We will not sell your
☐ ₅ Legal Services ☐ ₁₄ Other ( <i>please specify</i> :)	address information or use it to identify survey
☐ 7 Food Services/Hotels	responses! Thank you very much for your participation.

### Appendix B – Metrolink 2005 Weekend Survey



### 2005 WEEKEND SURVEY

Metrolink regularly surveys our riders onboard the trains to improve our services. Even if you are not a regular Metrolink rider or if you are visiting Southern California, we would like to hear from you. Please fill out this survey and return to the attendant.

P lease select your response for each question by placing an "X" in <u>only one box</u>  $\overline{|x|}$ , unless the instructions indicate otherwise ....

### 1. When did you take Metrolink for the first time ?

- ∐ ⊤ This is my first time
- ☐ ⊥ Less than 6 months ago ☐ ⊥ Between 6 months and 1 year ago
- Between 1 and 2 years ago
   Between 2 and 4 years ago
- ☐ Between 4 and 6 years ago
- i∏i → More than 6 years ago

### 2 How did you first hear about Metrolink?

- H Newspaper, Radio, TV
- 🗍 🛛 Friend or family member
- 📑 ، Received something in mail
- ☐ At work ⊟ ∍ Internet
- ☐ Other (please specify:) \_\_\_\_\_\_

### 3. How often do you ride a Metrolink train on weekends?

- ∐ i Everyweeken d
- 🗍 ، At least one weekend each month
- 🗄 ı Afew weekends per year
- 🗖 🖬 Less than once per year
- ∐ s Don't know

### 4. Do you ever ride Metrolink on <u>weekdays</u> (Monday-Friday)?

- 🔲 i Everyweek
- At least once per month
- □ 」 Less than once per month
- ∏ ₄ Never

### 5. On days when you don't take Metrolink, how do you make this trip? (choose one)

- 🔲 👝 Don't make this trip
- ∐i Drive alone
- Drive with someone Avanpool
- Other (please specify) \_\_\_\_\_

These next questions ask about the current one-way Metrolink trip you are taking, including this train and all other Metrolink trains which are a part of this trip (for example: this may be your trip from home to work, or from work to home)...

### 6. What type of ticket are you using today ?

- 🔲 i One-wayticket
- ∏ ı Round trip ticket
- Four-trip ticket
- 🗍 🖬 10 -trip (a verage # of weeks until used up \_\_\_\_\_)
- 🗍 🛯 Monthlypass
- Other (please specify:) \_\_\_\_\_\_

### 7. What was the price of your pass or ticket? \_\_\_\_\_

### 8. Is this trip part of a round-trip?

- ∐ → Yes, this is a round trip on Metrolink
- 🗍 រ No, Iwill use Metrolink in one direction only
- 🔲 🤉 Don't know

### 9. How many people are riding with you in your group today?

- 🔲 👝 Iam riding alone
- ☐ 」 I have \_\_\_\_\_ person (s) riding with me ☐ 」 Number of children under 7 years? \_\_\_\_\_

### 10. How did you plan this train trip? (check all that apply)

- □ . A friend or family member gave me the times for this train
- 🗍 🖬 l went to the station to check the timetables
- 🔲 🖬 I called Metrolink's 1-800 number
- 🗖 🖬 Isearch ed Metrolin K's website
- 🗍 🖕 I have a Metrolin k schedule at home or work and looked up the times for the train
- □ Other (please specify:)\_\_\_\_
- 11. Did you have a car available to use today instead of taking Metrolink?
  - □ , No ∐ i Yes
- 12. What are the two main reasons why you are traveling by train and not by car today? (Check only two)
  - ∐i i have nocaravailable
  - ∐: lam notable todrive
  - 🗖 🖬 Traveling by carcosts too much forgas
  - 🗖 🖌 Traveling by train is more enjoyable
  - ∐ ⊳ Idon 't feel safe traveling by car
  - ☐ I am traveling in a group today
  - 🔲 🛛 Other (please specify:) \_\_\_\_\_

These next eight questions ask about the <u>current one-way Metrolink trip</u> you are taking. (for example: this may be your trip from home to work, or from work to home)						
COMING FROM	GOING TO					
13. WHERE DID YOU JUST COME FROM? <sup>1</sup> Work <sup>1</sup> & Business appointment <sup>2</sup> School <sup>1</sup> Zevent <sup>3</sup> Visit friends/family <sup>1</sup> & Medical appointment <sup>4</sup> Home <sup>3</sup> Sight-seeing (just for fun) <sup>5</sup> Shopping <sup>1</sup> Other (please specify:)	17. WHERE ARE YOU GOING NOW?         1       Work       6       Business appointment         2       School       7       Event         3       Visit friends/family       8       Medical appointment         4       Home       9       Sight-seeing (just for fun)         5       Shopping       10       Other (please specify:)					
14. What are the nearest known street intersection, city, and zip code where you just came from?         (this information helps us estimate travel distance and improve access to Metrolink.)	18. What are the nearest known street intersection, city, and zip code for where you are going now?         (this information helps us estimate travel distance and improve access to Metrolink.)					
<ul> <li>15. At which station did you get on <u>THIS</u> train?</li> <li>station</li> <li>16. How did you travel to THIS train? (Choose one for longest part of trip)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>19. At which station will you get off <u>THIS</u> train</li> <li></li></ul>					
<pre>(Interest of the formation of the provided pair of the provided the formation of the provided the pro</pre>	<pre>where you are going * (choose one for longest part of thp)</pre>					

I hese next questions ask about how well INE I ROLINK service meets your needs...

21 Please rate each feature associated		How s this	importa feature to y	nt ou?		a	Ho re yo	<b>ow <u>satisf</u> u with this F</b>	ied eature	97	Don't know or
with traveling on METROLINK trains.	Not Important	(cire	cle number)		Very Important	Dissatisf	ied	(circle num	ber)	Satisfied	does not apply (check if not applicable to your trip)
Travel time on Metrolink vs. car		2	- 3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
On-time arrivals	1.41	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Connecting transit buses at station	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3 - B	4	5	
Availability of free unreserved parking at station	1	2	3	4	5	1.1	2	3	4	5	
Availability of overnight parking at station	- († 1	2	3	4	5	1	2	- <b>3</b>	4	5	
Availability of seating on the train		2	3	4	5	1 -	2	3	4	5	- 1 🗖 1
Cleanliness of train interior	1	2	3	4	5	1.1	2	3	4	- 5	
Safe operation of trains	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Personal security on the train	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Personal security at the station	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Trains free of defects (heat, doors, etc.)	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Ease of purchasing tickets	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Cost of a Metrolink ride	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Courtesy of Metrolink conductors	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Communication of annual schedule changes	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Communication of delays	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Schedule convenience	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
Ease of getting information at 800-371-LINK	1	2	3	4	5	1	2	3	4	5	
How satisfied are you with METROLINK services overall						1	2	3	4	5	

22. Please tell us if you find Metrolink easy	$(\mathbf{i})$		(circle number)	$\odot$	Don't Know
to use.	Very difficult	Somewhat difficult	Somewhat easy	Very easy	no opinion
Obtain Metrolink schedule information	1	2	3	4	5
Get directions to the Metrolink station	1	2	3	4	5
Find out what ticket to buy	1	2	3	4	5
Using the ticket vending machine	1	2	3	4	5
Find the right train to board	1	2	3	4	5
Make connections from the station to my destination	1	2	3	4	5
Other:	1	2	3	4	5
23. How likely are you to recommend METROLI	NK to	26. Do you ha	ave access to the i	nternet?	
Chrose one)     I Not at all likely     Somewhat unlikely     Somewhat unlikely     Neither unlikely     Don't k	kely now	∐ ₁ Yes, ∏ ₂ Yes,	at work [ at home [	3 Yes, both wo 4 No	rk and home
24. Do any of your friends or relatives take Metr (check only one)	rolink?	27. Please in Male Fema	dicate your gender	ş	
25. What daily newspapers do you read ? (Chec C	k all that apply o County Sun	) 28. Year you	were born 19		
Antelope Valley Press     Souther (please specify:)		29. What is y	our home Zip code	i	

The following information is for classification purposes only.	32. Which category includes your total annual household income before taxes in 2004 ? □ Less than \$20,000 □ € \$60,000 - \$74,999
<ul> <li>30. Which of the following best describes your ethnic background ?</li> <li></li></ul>	$\square$ 2\$20,000 - \$29,999 $\square$ 7\$75,000 - \$99,999 $\square$ 3\$30,000 - \$39,999 $\square$ 8\$100,000 - \$149,999 $\square$ 4\$40,000 - \$49,999 $\square$ 9\$150,000 - \$199,999 $\square$ 5\$50,000 - \$59,999 $\square$ 10\$200,000 or more
3 Caucasian         31. What languages are you comfortable speaking?         (Check all that apply)         1 Arabic       6 Hindi         2 Cantonese       7 Italian         3 English       8 Japanese         4 French       9 Korean         5 German       10 Mandarin         16 Other (please specify:)	<ul> <li>33. Which of the following best describes your employment status ?</li> <li> <ul> <li>□</li> <li>□<!--</th--></li></ul></li></ul>
Comments can also be mad web site www.metrolink customer service co	le by e-mail at the Metrolink trains.com or through the enter (800) 371-LINK.
<u>Completed</u> surveys will be entered into a rando chance to win please provide your na	m drawing to win free Metrolink tickets. For your me, address and phone number below
Name:	Citv:
Zip: Home Phone: () E-mail Address:	Work Phone: ()
Please give the survey t	o one of our attendants!
<u>Thank you</u> for completing the survey, and helping to make MET rail service!	ROLINK the nation's premier commuter
Metrolink respects your privacy! We will not sell your address i very much for your participation.	nformation or use it to identify survey responses! Thank you

### Appendix C – SANBAG 2005 On-Board Rider Survey (Barstow, MARTA, MBTA, and Needles Transit Systems)

his nt	San Bernardino Associations of Govern survey and leave it on your seat or drop i ered in a drawing to win one of 10 mon	nents ( t in the thly p:	SAN enve asses	HAC	i) wa i by ti	nts yc he do	or U	put abo pon re	out hov turn o	v to u f you	npro r cor	nplet	ansit ted su	servic irvey.	es Pl you y	ease fill or vill be
	How long have you been riding [TRAN3	SJT SY ©1 1 ©4 M	STE 2 ye ore th	M}? sars san 2	year	s										
	Currently, how often do you ride {TRAN	VSIT S week	YST	EM} ©j	9 1 - 2	days	a wee	k ©,	Less	than	onee	a wo	cī.			
	What is the main purpose of your trip too Ø1 Work Ø2 Shopping Ø4 Personal Business Ø7 Other (Pl	lay? ease sr	© recify	Me	dical			Q,	Recr	cation	nl/S	ocial			©, S	chool
	Do you use {TRANSIT SYSTEM} for c If yes, which types of trips do you most Ø, Work Ø2 Shopping Ø2 Personal Business Ø2 Other (Pl	ther tr often u	ip pu ise th ©	rpose e ser 1 Me	ts? vice f dical	©1 or?((	Yes Theck	all th ©,	at appl Recr	© y) cation	D <sub>2</sub> N al/So	o scial			©, s	chool
	Did today's trip include a transfer to or f	ion ar	othe	r bus	or tr	ain?					-					
	Does your household have an automobile	91 ·	1	5.1	les-		(), N	ĩo								
	Was an automobile available for this trin	2	- g	0, 1	Les .		0. D	lo -								
	Are you a licensed driver?			6. I	les .		(0, N	là								
	a. If no, is there a licensed driver in	your ł	nouse	hold	7		@, 1	'es	$(\mathfrak{D}_1)$	NO						
		.9.	How	satis	fied a	re you	u with	this	10	Hoy	v Imp	orta	nt is f	his fea	dure	ĥ.
q	use rate each feature	3			feat	ure?		0	8			to y	ou?		٢	Don'l Know/Doe
	Francisco of convicts	14	2	3	4	5	8	7	14	2	3	4	3	2	7	Not Apply
	length of weekday service hours	D D	1	ū.					0		ă.	ā			D	
	availability of weekend services		1				Π									
	length of weekend service hours	-		-			-	-			9	1	1		0	
	ease of making connections and	10.0		- 10-	-									10	10	
	transfers	<b>.</b>	П	-							9		<u>.</u>			
5	routes go where you want to go	0	0	2	-	2	0	0	2	-	2	2	2	2		
2	level of safety at the stops						H						E.		0	
	on-time reliability													ō		
Č.	ease of understanding schedules	D	0	0					0	0	0		2	0	0	
1	friendliness and courtesy of the drivers		1	-			-				3	1		0		
1.	cleanliness and comfort of the vehicle	Π						a	a	П		a.	а			a .
2.	availability of benches/shelters at stops	2	2			-	2				2	0	2	-	0	2
1	cleanliness of stops	0	0	0	a d		0		Ū.	ā	0	3	0	0	0	. 0
1.	Using a scale of 1 to 7, where 1 is very p	oor an	d 7 is	exc (	ellent	, how	Wou	ld you	rate {	(RAN	ISIT	SYS	TEM	} ove	rall? (4	strele one)
2,	Do you have a permanent disability? Do You have a permanent disability? Do You have a permanent disability? Do You have a permanent disability?	on [4)			6.											
3,	Does your disability affect (Check all t $\varpi_1$ Your Mobility $\varpi_2$ Your Hearing.	hat ap	ply) Your	Abi	hty to	o See	- 0	D. 01	her (Sp	ecify	<u>.</u>					
ŧ.	How many people live in your home?															
5.	Are you @1 Male @2 Fema	sle														
5	Are you ©1 African American ©4 Hispanic	6	2 As 5 Ot	ian/F her (I	Pac. 1a Pleas	dande e Spec	rt cify)_	©, (	aucas	tan	_					
1.	In what year were you born? 19	-														
8.	$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	les you 000 - 1 000 - 1 000 - 1	ir lots \$29,9 \$74,9 \$7 moi	al am 99 99 99 re	nual (	Duse Dj O7	hold i \$30,0 \$75,0	ncome 00 - 5 00 - 5	? 39,999 99,999	6	0, S 0, S	40,00 100,0	00 - S	49,99 \$149,9	9 999	
y	ou would like to be entered in a drawing l	or a m	onthi	ly pa	\$5, W	e need	l you	e,		2						
a	ne 👌 💷	-	Da	ytim	e tele	phon	e:(			.ġ.,						

### Appendix D – Omnitrans 2006 Fixed Route Rider Survey



### Español al lado opuesto.



We want your input about how to improve transit services. Please fill out this survey and leave it on your seat or drop it in the envelope by the door. Upon return of your completed survey, you will be entered in a drawing to win one of 10 monthly passes.

If you have ALREADY COMPLETED one of these forms on another bus, please CHECK HERE @ and please continue to fill out this questionnaire.

1. What FARE did you pay when you boarded THIS BUS?

	31-Day Pass	7-Day Pass	1-Day Pass	1-Way Cash Fare
Full Fare	9 <sub>1</sub> \$41.00	⑨₄ \$13.00	9 <sub>6</sub> \$2.75	9 <sub>8</sub> \$1.15
Senior/Disabled Fare	9 <sub>2</sub> \$20.50	9 <sub>5</sub> \$ 6.00	9 <sub>7</sub> \$1.25	9 <sub>9</sub> \$0.50
Student Fare	9 <sub>3</sub> \$29.50			

2. Would you agree to pay a higher fare for faster and more frequent transportation service if buses would come every 5 to 7 minutes and your travel time would be 30-40 percent faster? 91 Yes 92 No

3. Where did you get on THIS BUS?

	Corner of	&							
	(First Str	et Name) (Second Street Name)							
	OR	transfer center/station							
4.	Where did you COME FROM before you got on this bus? (Check one)								
	⑨ <sub>1</sub> Home	Doctor/Dentist							
	92 Work/Work Related								
	Channing	Beaucation							

- **9**<sub>3</sub> Shopping **9**<sub>7</sub> Recreation 98 Other (Please specify)\_
- 94 School/College

### 5. What is the ADDRESS OF THAT PLACE?

a.	Number Street Name		City	Zip
b.	Corner of	OR &	(Second Street Name)	_
		OR		
c.	Place Name (example: Ontario Mills Mall)		City	Zip
6.	How did you get to THIS BUS? (Check one)         Image: Straight of the straight of t	ped off cled sferred from ar		
7.	If you transferred, which system did you transfer from $3^{\circ}$ another Omnitrans bus (Route) $3^{\circ}$ Metrolink (Route) $3^{\circ}$ RTA (Route) $3^{\circ}$	? ୭₄ MTA (Rout ୭₅ Foothill Tra ୭₅ Other (Ope	e Insit (Route rator and Route	
8.	How long did it take you to get to THIS BUS?		_(in minutes)	
9.	Where will you get OFF THIS BUS? (Specify nearest i	intersection)		
	Corner of	&	(Second Street Name)	_
	OR	transfe	r center/station	
10.	Where are you GOING TO NOW (Check only one)         Image: Straight of the straightof the straight of the straight of the straight of the straight of	<ul> <li>Doctor/Der</li> <li>Dector/Der</li> <li>Visiting Frid</li> <li>Recreation</li> <li>Other (Please)</li> </ul>	ntist ends/Family ase specify)	

San Bernardino Associated Governments

11. What is the ADDRESS of THAT PLACE?

a.	Number Street Name City	Zip
	OR	
b.	Corner of&	_
	(First Street Name) (Second Street Name)	
C.		
	Prace Name (Example: Ontario Willis Mall) City	2.1p
12.	How will you get FROM THIS BUS TO the place that you are GOING TO?(1) Walk(1) Urop off(2) Drive alone(2) Bicycle(3) Drive with someone else (carpool)(2) G Transfer to another bus or train	
13.	How MANY BUSES/TRAINS will you ride to get from your STARTING PLACE to where you are GOII $@_1$ One $@_2$ Two $@_3$ Three or more	NG?
14.	On which days did you take an Omnitrans bus last week? <b>(Check all that apply)</b> <ul> <li>Monday</li> <li>Wednesday</li> <li>Friday</li> <li>Sunday</li> <li>Tuesday</li> <li>Thursday</li> <li>Saturday</li> </ul>	
15.	How long have you used Omnitrans? $\[mathbb{@}_1\]$ Less than 6 month $\[mathbb{@}_2\]$ 6-11 months $\[mathbb{@}_3\]$ 1-2 years $\[mathbb{@}_4\]$ More than 2 years	
16.	How many people live in your household?	
17.	Does your household have a vehicle (car, truck, van, motorcycle)? $\[mathbb{D}_1\]$ Yes $\[mathbb{D}_2\]$ No If yes, how many vehicles?	
18.	Was a vehicle available for this trip? $\textcircled{0}_1$ Yes $\textcircled{0}_2$ No	
19.	Are you a licensed driver? $\textcircled{0}_1 \text{ Yes} \textcircled{0}_2 \text{ No}$ a. If no, is there a licensed driver in your household? $\textcircled{0}_1 \text{ Yes} \textcircled{0}_2 \text{ No}$	
20.	Are you	
21.	Do you have a permanent disability?	
22.	In what year were you born 19?	
23.	Which of the following categories includes your total annual household income? $@_1$ Less than \$20, 000 $@_4$ \$40,000 - \$49,999 $@_7$ \$75,000 - \$99,999 $@_{10}$ \$2 $@_2$ \$20,000 - \$29,999 $@_5$ \$50,000 - \$59,000 $@_8$ \$100,000 - \$149,999 $@_10$ \$2 $@_3$ \$30,000 - \$39,999 $@_6$ \$60,000 - \$74,999 $@_9$ \$150,000 - \$199,999	00,000 or more
lf y so	<i>rou want to be included in a drawing for a free 31-Day Pass</i> , please give us your name, address, a we can contact you. All information will be kept confidential.	nd phone number
Na	ame: Phone:	
A	ddress: City Zip	

### Appendix E – Victor Valley Transit Customer Survey (2006)

Victor Valley Transit is currently looking at ways to improve service for our customers. Please help us by answering all the following questions. PLEASE COMPLETE ONE OF THESE FORMS EACH TIME YOU BOARD A BUS THAT IS BEING SURVEYED. What time did you board this bus? What time do you expect to get off? am pm												
Victor valley investing all the following at ways to improve service for our customers. Please help us by answering all the following questions.         PLEASE COMPLETE ONE OF THESE FORMS EACH TIME YOU BOARD A BUS THAT IS BEING SURVEYED.         I What time did you board this bus?         am       pm         What time do you expect to get off?												
1       What time did you board this bus?       am       pm         What time do you expect to get off?       am       pm	I											
What time did you board this bus?     am     pm       What time do you expect to get off?     am     pm												
What time do you expect to get off? am pm												
2 How many days per week da you ride this bus?days												
3 In what year did you start using VVTA as often as you do now?												
□ 2005 □ 2004 □ 2003 □ 2002 □ 2001 □ 2000 □ before 2000												
4 What is the main purpose of your trip today? 🛛 🛛 Work 🗆 Shopping 🗆 Medical 🔅 School												
□ Recreational/Social □ Personal Business □ Other (Please specify)												
5 Do you use VVTA for other trip purposes? 🛛 Ves 🖓 No												
If yes, which types of trips do you most often use the service for? (Check all that apply)												
□ Work □ Shopping □ Medical □ School □ Recreational/Social □ Personal Business												
□ Other (Please specify)												
6 How did you get to this bus?												
□ Walked - How many blocks □ Got a Ride □ Drove to Parking Lot □ Bicycle	6251											
Li Transferred - from Route minu	ites											
After leaving this bus, how will you get to the end of this trip?												
Walk - How many blocks Get a Ride Drive Bicycle Transfer - to Route												
8 Do you have a permanent disability?  Question 10												
9 Does your disability affect (Check all that apply)												
□ Your Mobility □ Your Hearing □ Your Ability to see □ Other (Please specify)												
10 Does your household have an automobile?												
11 Was an automobile available for this trip?												
12 Are you a licensed driver?												
If no, is there a licensed driver in your household? 🛛 🗆 yes 🗆 no												
13 In what year were you born? 19												
14 Are you? 🛛 male 🗆 female 🔢 15 Are you a student? 🗖 yes 🗆 no												
16 Are you?   African American  Asian/Pac. Islander  Caucasian  Hispanic												
Other (Please specify)												
What is your current employment status?												
What is your current employment status?         Employed full-time         Unemployed - looking for work           Homemaker         Retired         Employed part-time         Unemployed - not looking												
12 What is your current employment status?       □ Employed full-time       □ Unemployed = looking for work         □ Homemaker       □ Retired       □ Employed part-time       □ Unemployed - not looking         18 Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       □ yes       □ no												
17       What is your current employment status?       □       Employed full-time       □       Unemployed = looking for work         □       Homemaker       □       Retired       □       Employed part-time       □       Unemployed - not looking         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       □       yes       □       no         19       What is your total household income?       □       \$9,999 or less       □       \$10,000 to \$14,999       □       \$15,000 to \$19,99	9											
17       What is your current employment status?       □       Employed full-time       □       Unemployed = looking for work         □       Homemaker       □       Retired       □       Employed part-time       □       Unemployed = not looking         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       □       yes       □       no         19       What is your total household income?       □       \$9,999 or less       □       \$10,000 to \$14,999       □       \$15,000 to \$19,99         □       \$20,000 to \$24,999       □       \$25,000 to \$29,999       □       \$30,000 to \$39,99	19											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work         Homemaker       Retired       Employed part-time       Unemployed - not looking         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,99         \$20,000 to \$24,999       \$25,000 to \$29,999       \$30,000 to \$39,99         \$40,000 to \$49,999       \$50,000 to \$74,999       \$75,000 or over	19											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work         Homemaker       Retired       Employed part-time       Unemployed = looking         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,99         \$20,000 to \$24,999       \$25,000 to \$29,999       \$30,000 to \$39,99         \$40,000 to \$49,999       \$50,000 to \$74,999       \$75,000 or over         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?	99 99											
17       What is your current employment status?	29 29											
17       What is your current employment status?              Employed full-time             Employed full-time             Employed part-time             Unemployed - not looking          18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?              yes             Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?             1             2	29 29											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work         Homemaker       Retired       Employed part-time       Unemployed = looking         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,99         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$24,999       \$25,000 to \$29,999       \$30,000 to \$39,99         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         How satisfied are you	99 99											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work         Homemaker       Retired       Employed part-time       Unemployed = looking for work         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,99         \$20,000 to \$24,999       \$25,000 to \$29,999       \$30,000 to \$39,99         \$40,000 to \$49,999       \$50,000 to \$74,999       \$30,000 to \$39,99         1       2       3       4       5       6         1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Plance nate each feature?       How satisfied are you with this feature?       How important is this feature to you?       Don't	99 99											
17What is your current employment status? $\Box$ Employed full-time $\Box$ Unemployed = looking for work $\Box$ Homemaker $\Box$ Retired $\Box$ Employed part-time $\Box$ Unemployed = looking18Are you a Direct Access certified rider? $\Box$ yes $\Box$ no19What is your total household income? $\Box$ \$9,999 or less $\Box$ \$10,000 to \$14,999 $\Box$ \$15,000 to \$19,9919What is your total household income? $\Box$ \$9,999 or less $\Box$ \$10,000 to \$14,999 $\Box$ \$30,000 to \$39,9920Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?12345671234567123456721Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year? $\Box$ 123456722Please rate each feature: $\Box$ 2345671234561234567123456722Please rate each feature: $\Box$ 234567123456712345671234567Not ANDNot ANot ANot ANot ANot ANot ANot ANot ANot A	29 29											
17What is your current employment status? $\Box$ Employed full-time $\Box$ Unemployed = looking for work $\Box$ Homemaker $\Box$ Retired $\Box$ Employed part-time $\Box$ Unemployed = looking18Are you a Direct Access certified rider? $\Box$ yes $\Box$ no19What is your total household income? $\Box$ \$9,999 or less $\Box$ \$10,000 to \$14,999 $\Box$ \$15,000 to \$19,9919What is your total household income? $\Box$ \$9,999 or less $\Box$ \$10,000 to \$14,999 $\Box$ \$30,000 to \$39,9920Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?123456721Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year? $\Box$ 123456722Please rate each feature: $\Box$ 12345671234561234567123456722Please rate each feature: $\Box$ 1234567123456723456712345671245671234567123456711000101234567<	29 29											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work         Homemaker       Retired       Employed part-time       Unemployed = looking for work         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,99         \$20,000 to \$24,999       \$25,000 to \$29,999       \$25,000 to \$29,999       \$30,000 to \$39,95         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Please rate each feature:       With this feature?       How satisfied are you       How important is this feature?       Don't Know/D Not Apploid         1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Please rate each feature:       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         1       2       3       4       5       6       7       1       2       4	29 29											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work         Homemaker       Retired       Employed part-time       Unemployed = looking for work         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,99         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$24,999       \$25,000 to \$29,999       \$30,000 to \$39,99         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Please rate each feature:       With this feature?       How satisfied are you       How important is this feature to you?       Don't Know/D Not Ap         1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Please rate each feature:       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         1       2       3       4       5       6	oes ply											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work         Homemaker       Retired       Employed part-time       Unemployed = looking for work         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,9?         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$39,9?         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       \$20,000 to \$24,999       \$50,000 to \$74,999       \$75,000 or over         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Please rate each feature:	29 29 0es ply											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,9?         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$24,999       \$25,000 to \$29,999       \$30,000 to \$39,9?         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Please rate each feature:	oes ply											
17       What is your current employment status? <ul> <li>Imployed full-time</li> <li>Imployed part-time</li> <li>Imployed - not looking</li> </ul> 18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider? <ul> <li>Imployed part-time</li> <li>Imployed - not looking</li> </ul> 19       What is your total household income? <ul> <li>Sp.999 or less</li> <li>Sp.000 to \$22,999</li> <li>Sp.000 to \$22,999</li> <li>Sp.000 to \$22,999</li> <li>Sp.000 to \$49,999</li> <li>Sp.000 to \$74,999</li> <li>Sp.000 to \$75,000 or over</li> </ul> 20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?         1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         a. frequency of service <ul> <li>with this feature?</li> <li>feature to you?</li> <li>Mont Application of weekend service hours</li> <li>a. frequency of service hours</li> <li>a. frequency of weekend service hours</li> <li>a. amount of time it takes you to travel</li> <li>a. amount of time it takes you to travel</li> <li>a. amount of time it takes you to travel</li> <li>b. level of safety an the wabide</li> <li>b. amount of time you want</li></ul>	29 29 29 0es ply											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work.         Homemaker       Refired       Employed part-time       Unemployed = looking for work.         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,99         19       What is your total household income?       \$29,999 or less       \$510,000 to \$29,999       \$30,000 to \$39,99         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Please rate each feature:	29 29 29 0es ply											
17       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work.         18       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,99         19       What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$20,000 to \$24,999       \$25,000 to \$29,999       \$30,000 to \$33,99         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Please rate each feature:	29 29 29 0es ply											
1/2       What is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed = looking for work         1/3       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         1/3       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         1/3       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         1/3       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         1/3       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         1/3       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         1/3       Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         1/4       What is your total household income?       \$9.999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,9?         20       Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21       Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22       Please rate each feature:       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         1       2       3	29 29 Dess ply											
Image: Second	29 29 29 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20											
If what is your current employment status?       Employed full-time       Unemployed - looking for work         If Homemaker       Retired       Employed part-time       Unemployed - not looking         13 Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         13 What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$39,99         13 What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$74,999       \$50,000 to \$74,999       \$75,000 or over         20 Using a scale of 1 to 7 where 1 is very poor and 7 is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         21 Would you please rate VVTA service compared to last year?       1       2       3       4       5       6       7         22 Please rate each feature:       Image of service       Image of s	oes ply											
If What is your current employment status?       Employed full-thime       Unemployed - looking for work         If Homemaker       Retired       Employed part-time       Unemployed - not looking         If Are you a Direct Access certified rider?       yes       no         If What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$10,000 to \$14,999       \$15,000 to \$19,99         If What is your total household income?       \$9,999 or less       \$50,000 to \$24,999       \$550,000 to \$74,999       \$550,000 or over         If If I and the is your provide a status?       If and the is excellent, how would you rate VVTA overall?       If and the is your provide a status?       If and the is your provide a status?         If I and the is your of status?       If and the is your provide a status?       If and the is your provide a status?       If and the is your provide a status?         If I and the is your of status?       If and the is your provide a status?       If and the is your provide a status?       If and the is your?       If and the is you?         If and the is your of service       If and the is your provide a status?       If and the is your?       If and the is your?       If and the is you?       If you provide a status?         If and the is your of service       If and the is your provide a status?       If and the is your?       If and the is your?       If and the is your?         If any the is your of servic	99 99 0es ply											
Federal Ficarl Veer				Forecast -	2009 to 2015							
----------------------------------	------------	-----------	------------	------------	--------------	------------	------------	------------	------------	------------	------------	------------
LEARI AI LISCAL LEAL	2006	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
	Actual	Actual	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
San Bernardino Apportionment	\$ 188,568	\$393,532	\$ 405,000	\$ 421,000	\$ 437,000	\$ 454,000	\$ 472,000	\$ 490,000	\$ 508,130	\$ 526,423	\$ 545,374	\$ 564,462
% Channe Vear to Vear Bradiction			200 0	70 U V	2 804	3 000	70 V	3 804	3 70/	3 60L	7 607	3 50%

Section 5317 New Freedom for Victorville/Hesperia/Apple Valley UZA

Endoral Eleval Vaar				PORECAST -								
	2006	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
	Actual	Actual	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
Apportionment	\$ 55,245	\$ 68,385	\$ 71,800	\$ 74,600	\$ 77,600	\$ 80,700	\$ 83,900	\$ 87,300	\$ 90,530	\$ 93,789	\$ 97,166	\$ 100,566
% Change Year to Year Prediction			5.0%	3.9%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%	4.1%	3.7%	3.6%	3.6%	3.5%

**APPENDIX C – FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS** 

## Total San Bernardino County Total 5317 New Freedom Funds

Federal Flored Vees				Forecast -	2009 to 2015							
reueral riscal real	2006	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
	Actual	Actual	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
San Bernardino Valley	\$ 188,568	\$ 393,532	\$ 405,000	\$ 421,000	\$ 437,000	\$ 454,000 \$	472,000	\$ 490,000	\$ 508,130	\$ 526,423	\$ 545,374	564,462
Victor Valley UZA	\$ 55,245	\$ 68,385	\$ 71,800	\$ 74,600	\$ 77,600	\$ 80,700 \$	83,900	\$ 87,300	\$ 90,530	\$ 93,789	\$ 97,166	\$ 100,566

Page 1

10/29/2009

Governments SANBAG Working Together

Draff

E B	

FTA Section 5317 New Freedom for San Bernardino Valley

190

Endered Ficand Veer		Forecast 2	2016 to 2025									Forecast ;
reueral riscal real	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
San Bernardino Apportionment	\$ 584,218	\$ 604,082	\$ 624,620	\$ 645,233	\$ 665,880	\$ 686,523	\$ 707,118	\$ 727,625	\$ 747,998	\$ 768,194	\$ 788,935	\$ 809,448
% Change Year to Year Prediction	3.5%	3.4%	3.4%	3.3%	3.2%	3.1%	3.0%	2.9%	2.8%	2.7%	2.7%	2.6%

Section 5317 New Freedom for Victorville/Hesperia/Apple Valley UZA

PARSONS

10 -1 0100	1	

Endoral Elecal Voar		Forecast z	CZUZ 01 01/02									Forecast ,
	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
Apportionment	\$ 104,086	\$ 107,625	\$ 111,284	\$ 114,957	\$ 118,635	\$ 122,313	\$ 125,982	\$ 129,636	\$ 133,266	\$ 136,864	\$ 140,559	\$ 144,214
% Change Year to Year Prediction	3.5%	3.4%	3.4%	3.3%	3.2%	3.1%	3.0%	2.9%	2.8%	2.7%	2.7%	2.6%

## Total San Bernardino County Total 5317 New Freedom Funds

Forecast -- 2016 to 2025

Eadoral Ficer Veer		Forecast :	2016 to 2025									Forecast :
	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
San Bernardino Valley	\$ 584,218	\$ 604,082	\$ 624,620	\$ 645,233	\$ 665,880	\$ 686,523	\$ 707,118	\$ 727,625	\$ 747,998	\$ 768,194	\$ 788,935	\$ 809,448
Victor Valley UZA	\$ 104,086	\$ 107,625	\$ 111,284	\$ 114,957	\$ 118,635	\$ 122,313	\$ 125,982	\$ 129,636	\$ 133,266	\$ 136,864	\$ 140,559	\$ 144,214

Page 2

FTA Section 5317 New Freedom for San Bernardino Valley

Enderal Ficcol Year	2026 to 2035					Total 2010	Total 2016	Total 2026	Total EV 2010	6
	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	2015	1 ULAI 2010-	10101 2020	1 ULAI 1 1 2010	5
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	C 107	C202	2027	ren7	
San Bernardino Apportionment	\$ 829,684	\$ 850,426	\$ 870,836	\$ 891,736	\$ 912,246	\$ 2,782,130	\$ 6,153,932	\$ 8,197,128	\$ 17,538,19	2
% Change Year to Year Prediction	2.5%	2.5%	2.4%	2.4%	2.3%					

Section 5317 New Freedom for Victorville/Hesperia/Apple Valley UZA

Enderal Elsent Vear	UZ6 T0 2035					Total 2010	Total 2016	Totol OC	T 200	0100 D010
	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	2015	1 ULAI 2010-	10101 20	-	0101 F 1 2010- 2025
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	2012	C707	2007		0007
Apportionment	\$ 147,819	\$ 151,515	\$ 155,151	\$ 158,875	\$ 162,529	\$ 494,630	\$ 1,096,405	5 \$ 1,460	,427 \$	3,123,262
% Change Year to Year Prediction	2.5%	2.5%	%7 C	2.4%	2.3%					

Total San Bernardino County Total 5317 New Freedom Funds

Fadara Ficarl Veer	2026 to 2035									Ĥ	0100104	Ĥ	0100104				
	2031		2032		2033		2034		2035	2	101 2010-	-	2025 2025	10141 202	6	0141 F1 2010	
	Estimate	-	Estimate		Estimate	ш	stimate	ш	stimate		2017		7777	0007	_	0007	
San Bernardino Valley	\$ 829,68	4	850,426	ω	870,836	ω	891,736	ω	912,246	\$	2,782,130	\$	6,153,932	\$ 8,197,1	28	17,538,19	
/ictor Valley UZA	\$ 147,81	ფ ი	151,515	Ь	155,151	ь	158,875	ф	162,529	ω	494,630	φ	1,096,405	\$ 1,460,4	27	3,123,26	<b>.</b>

Page 3

Draff

Governments SANBAG Working Together

~~~~	
Č-	
90	

FTA Section 5316 JARC Funds for San Bernardino Valley

192

Eadaral Eiseal Vaar				Forecas	st 2009 to 20'	5						
	2006	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
Apportionment	Actual	Actual	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
San Bernardino	\$ 494,786	\$ 950,175	\$ 996,000	\$ 1,035,000	\$ 1,076,000	\$ 1,119,000	\$ 1,163,000	\$ 1,209,000	\$ 1,257,360	\$ 1,307,654	\$ 1,359,961	\$ 1,412,999
% Change Year to Year Prediction		92.0%	4.8%	3.9%	4.0%	4.0%	3.9%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%	3.9%

Section 5316 JARCFunds for Victorville/Hesperia/Apple Valley UZA

PARSONS

Eadoral Eiseal Vear				Forecas	17 OI 6007 - 19	6							
	2006	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	
	Actual	Actual	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	
Apportion ment	\$130,784	\$149,348	\$155,000	\$162,000	\$168,000	\$175,000	\$182,000	\$189,000	\$ 196,560	\$ 204,422	\$ 212,599	\$ 220,891	
% Change Year to Year Prediction		14.2%	3.8%	4.5%	3.7%	4.2%	4.0%	3.8%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%	3.9%	

Total San Bernardino County Total 5316 JARC Funds

Forecast 2009 to 2015	2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018	ictual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate	950,175 \$ 996,000 \$ 1,075,000 \$ 1,076,000 \$ 1,119,000 \$ 1,163,000 \$ 1,209,000 \$ 1,257,360 \$ 1,307,654 \$ 1,359,961 \$ 1,412,999	149,348 \$ 155,000 \$ 162,000 \$ 168,000 \$ 175,000 \$ 182,000 \$ 189,000 \$ 196,560 \$ 204,422 \$ 212,599 \$ 220,891
	20	e Estin	000 \$ 1,16	000 \$ 18
2015	2012	Estimat	0 \$ 1,119,C	) \$ 175,C
st 2009 to 2	2011	Estimate	\$ 1,076,000	\$ 168,000
Foreca	2010	Estimate	\$ 1,035,000	\$ 162,000
	2009	Estimate	\$ 996,000	\$ 155,000
	2008	Actual	\$ 950,175	\$ 149,348
	2006	Actual	\$ 494,786	\$ 130,784
Enderal Elecal Very			San Bernardino Valley	Victor Valley UZA

Page 4

FTA Section 5316 JARC Funds for San Bernardino Valley

Foderal Fieral Vear		Forecast 2	016 to 2025									Forecast ;
	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
Apportionment	Estimate											
San Bernardino	\$ 1,465,280	\$ 1,518,030	\$ 1,571,161	\$ 1,623,009	\$ 1,674,946	\$ 1,726,869	\$ 1,778,675	\$ 1,830,257	\$ 1,883,334	\$ 1,936,068	\$ 1,988,341	\$ 2,040,038
% Change Year to Year Prediction	3.7%	3.6%	3.5%	3.3%	3.2%	3.1%	3.0%	2.9%	2.9%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%

Section 5316 JARCFunds for Victorville/Hesperia/Apple Valley UZA

Endoral Einen Vaar		Forecast :	2016 to 2025									Forecast 2
Lenelal Liscal Leal	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
\pportionment	\$ 229,064	\$ 237,310	\$ 245,616	\$ 253,721	\$ 261,840	\$ 269,957	\$ 278,056	\$ 286,120	\$ 294,417	\$ 302,661	\$ 310,833	\$ 318,914
Change Year to Year Prediction	3.7%	3.6%	3.5%	3.3%	3.2%	3.1%	3.0%	2.9%	2.9%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%

Total San Bernardino County Total 5316 JARC Funds

Enderal Elecal Voar			Forecast	2016	to 2025														Foreca	st - ;
Leneral Liscal Teal	2019		2020		2021		2022	2023	2024	┝	2025	2026		2027	2	028	2029		2030	
													$\vdash$							
San Bernardino Valley	\$ 1,465	280	\$ 1,518,03	30 \$ 1	,571,161	\$	1,623,009	\$ 1,674,946	\$ 1,726,86	ფ ი	1,778,675	\$ 1,830,2	57 \$	1,883,334	\$ 1'8	936,068	\$ 1,988,3	41 9	2,040	,038
Victor Valley UZA	\$ 229	064	\$ 237,31	\$ 0	245,616	Ś	253,721	\$ 261,840	\$ 269,95	2 \$	278,056	\$ 286,1.	20 \$	294,417	\$	302,661	\$ 310,8	:33 8	318	,914

Draff

10/29/2009

Page 5

Governments SANBAG Working Together

55
(903
$\bigcirc$

FTA Section 5316 JARC Funds for San Bernardino Valley

194

Federal Fiscal Year	026 to 2035					Total 2010-	Total 2016-	Total 2026-	Total EV
	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	2016	20125	2025	2040 2025
Apportionment	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	61.07	6707	5002	CC02-01 02
San Bernardino	\$ 2,093,079	\$ 2,145,406	\$ 2,196,896	\$ 2,249,621	\$ 2,301,363	\$ 6,859,360	\$ 15,438,585	\$ 20,664,404	\$ 43,958,348
% Change Year to Year Prediction	2.6%	2.5%	2.4%	2.4%	2.3%				

Section 5316 JARCFunds for Victorville/Hesperia/Apple Valley UZA

PARSONS

Enderal Elecal Vaar	01 0701	C007					Total 2040	Total 2046	Total 2026-	Total EV
reuerar riscar rear	20	31	2032	2033	2034	2035	2015	20125	10101 2020-	2040-2025
	Esti	mate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	2012	7777	CC07	CC07-0107
Apportionment	\$ 3.	27,206	\$ 335,386	\$ 343,435	\$ 351,678	\$ 359,766	\$ 1,072,560	\$ 2,413,476	\$ 3,230,415	\$ 6,871,451
% Change Year to Year Prediction		2.6%	2.5%	2.4%	2.4%	2.3%				

Total San Bernardino County Total 5316 JARC Funds

Enderal Eiceal Vear	026 t	to 2035								Ě	-0100104	Toto	1 2046	Total 2026	Total	۲ ۲
		2031		2032		2033	2034		2035	ž	2015	ŝ	10102	2026	2040-	2025
											C107	J	770	CC07	5	202
dino Valley	\$ 2	,093,079	у \$	145,406	ŝ	2,196,896	\$ 249,621	5 5	2,301,363	9 \$	3,859,360	\$ 15,-	438,585	\$ 20,664,40	4 \$ 43,95	58,348
/ UZA	ŝ	327,206	ь	335,386	မာ	343,435	\$ 351,678	ъ	359,766	\$	1,072,560	\$ 2.	413,476	\$ 3,230,41	5 \$ 6,87	71,451

Page 6

Rural Area	
FTA Section 5311	Revenues

		Fore	cast 2009 to 2	015								
Fiscal Year	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017
Apportionment	\$ 917,758	\$ 952,348	\$ 1,030,659	\$ 1,089,800	\$ 1,133,300	\$ 1,178,700	\$ 1,225,800	\$ 1,274,900	\$ 1,325,900	\$1,369,655	\$1,413,484	\$1,457,302
4 Chance Vear to Vear Dradiction		708 5	706 8	7aL 3	70 J V	4 0°4	7 UoV	4 0°6	7007	708 8	706 6	3400

10/29/2009

Page 7

Governments SANBAG Working Together

Draff

Roz
$\bigcirc$

FTA Section 5311 Rural Area Revenues

			Forecast - 2(	016 to 2025								
Fiscal Year	2018	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029
Apportionment	\$1,501,021	\$1,544,550	\$1,587,798	\$1,632,256	\$1,676,327	\$1,719,911	\$1,762,909	\$1,806,982	\$1,850,350	\$1,894,758	\$1,938,337	\$1,982,919
% Change Year to Year Prediction	3.0%	2.9%	2.8%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%	2.5%	2.5%	2.4%	2.4%	2.3%	2.3%

Page 8

## FTA Section 5311 Rural Area Revenues

	Forecast 2	2026 to 2035					Totol 2010	Totol 2016	Totol 2026	Totol EV 2010	
Fiscal Year	2030	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	2015	2025	2035	2035	
Apportionment	\$2,026,543	\$2,071,127	\$2,114,621	\$2,159,028	\$2,202,209	\$2,246,253	\$ 7,508,255	\$ 16,102,540	\$ 20,486,145	\$ 45,186,739	_
% Change Year to Year Prediction	2.2%	2.2%	2.1%	2.1%	2.0%	2.0%					

Governments SANBAG Working Together

10/29/2009

Page 9

Draff

PARSONS 197

~~ ~	
F)	
gog	
$(\Box)$	

FTA Section 5307 Urban Formual Funds for the San Bernardino Valley

Elocal Vees Ending						Forecast 2(	009 to 2015						
riscal rear Enging	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
San Bernardino Fixed Guideway Apportionment	\$4,318,876	\$ 4,426,848	\$4,864,285	\$4,700,000	\$5,200,000	\$5,350,000	\$5,500,000	\$5,600,000	\$5,800,000	\$5,962,400	\$6,123,385	\$6,282,593	\$6,445,940
% Change Year to Year Prediction		2.5%	9.6%	-3.4%	10.6%	2.9%	2.8%	1.8%	3.6%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%	2.6%
San Bernardino Bus Formula Apportionment	\$13,191,281	\$ 12,485,060	\$14,966,432	\$14,600,000	\$15,100,000	\$15,700,000	\$16,200,000	\$16,800,000	\$17,400,000	\$17,974,200	\$18,549,374	\$19,124,405	\$19,698,137
% Change Year to Year Prediction		-5.4%	19.9%	-2.4%	3.4%	4.0%	3.2%	3.7%	3.6%	3.3%	3.2%	3.1%	3.0%

FTA Section 5307 Urban Formual Funds for the Hesperia/Apple Valley/Victorville UZA

Flored Vees Fudles					-	Forecast 20	09 to 2015						
riscal rear Enging	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
Apportionment	NA	NA	\$2,303,151	\$2,423,700	\$2,544,000	\$2,638,000	\$2,733,000	\$2,869,000	\$2,967,000	\$3,064,911	\$3,162,988	\$3,261,041	\$3,358,872
% Change Year to Year Prediction				5.2%	5.0%	3.7%	3.6%	5.0%	3.4%	3.3%	3.2%	3.1%	3.0%

Page 10

10/29/2009

PARSONS

Urban Formual	Bernardino Valley
FTA Section 5307	Funds for the San

Figure Fudir -		Forecast ;	2016 to 2025									Forecast:
	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
san Bernardino Fixed Guideway vpportionment	\$6,607,089	\$6,765,659	\$6,921,269	\$7,080,458	\$7,243,309	\$7,402,662	\$7,565,520	\$7,724,396	\$7,886,608	\$8,044,340	\$8,205,227	\$8,369,332
5 Change Year to Year Prediction	2.5%	2.4%	2.3%	2.3%	2.3%	2.2%	2.2%	2.1%	2.1%	2.0%	2.0%	2.0%
an Bernardino Bus Formula Apportionment	\$20,269,383	\$20,836,926	\$21,420,360	\$21,998,710	\$22,570,676	\$23,134,943	\$23,713,316	\$24,282,436	\$24,865,214	\$25,437,114	\$26,022,168	\$26,594,656
6 Change Year to Year Prediction	2.9%	2.8%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%	2.5%	2.5%	2.4%	2.4%	2.3%	2.3%	2.2%

FTA Section 5307 Urban Formual Funds for the Hesperia/Apple Valley/Victorville UZA

Fload Voor Fading		Forecast 2	016 to 2025									Forecast:
	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
rtionment	\$3,456,279	\$3,553,055	\$3,652,541	\$3,751,159	\$3,848,689	\$3,944,907	\$4,043,529	\$4,140,574	\$4,239,948	\$4,337,467	\$4,437,228	\$4,534,847
ige Year to Year Prediction	2.9%	2.8%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%	2.5%	2.5%	2.4%	2.4%	2.3%	2.3%	2.2%

10/29/2009

R

FTA Section 5307 Urban Formual Funds for the San Bernardino Valley

200

Final Yang Fuding	2026 to 2035					Total 2010-	Total 2016-	Total 2026-	Total 2010-
riscal rear Enging	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	2015	2025	2035	2035
						, \$	\$	\$	•
San Bernardino Fixed Guideway Apportionment	\$8,528,349	\$8,690,388	\$8,846,815	\$9,006,057	\$9,168,166	\$33,412,400	\$68,437,883	\$84,469,679	\$191,019,962
% Change Year to Year Prediction	1.9%	1.9%	1.8%	1.8%	1.8%				
San Bernardino Bus Formula Apportionment	\$27,179,738	\$27,750,513	\$28,333,273	\$28,899,939	\$29,477,938	\$99,174,200	\$211,316,230	\$268,842,990	\$593,933,420
% Change Year to Year Prediction	2.2%	2.1%	2.1%	2.0%	2.0%				

PARSONS

FTA Section 5307 Urban Formual Funds for the Hesperia/Apple Valley/Victorville UZA

Final Vess Fudine	2026 to 2035					T-4-1 0040	T-1- 0010	T-4-1 0000	T-4-1 0040
riscal teal Engling	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	10131 2010-		10131 2020-	1 OTAL 2010-
						6102	6202	6002	6007
Apportionment	\$4,634,614	\$4,731,941	\$4,831,312	\$4,927,938	\$5,026,497	\$16,815,911	\$36,033,061	\$45,842,365	\$101,115,037
% Change Year to Year Prediction	2.2%	2.1%	2.1%	2.0%	2.0%				

<u>م</u>	late	6,545	3.0%
201	Estin	\$ 5,14	<u> </u>
2017	stimate	4,996,645	3.1%
	fte E	,407 \$	2.9%
2016	Estima	\$ 4,846,	
2015	Estimate	4,709,822	2.7%
14	mate	36,000 \$	2.5%
20	Estin	0 \$ 4,58	%
2013	Estimate	\$ 4,474,000	2.0
2012	stimate	1,386,000	4.0%
to 2015	te Es	000 \$ 4	4.0%
ast 2009 2011	Estima	\$ 4,218,	
Foreca 2010	Estimate	4,056,000	0.0%
2009	stimate	4,056,000 \$	-4.2%
	ш	781 \$ 4	
2008	Actual	\$ 4,233	
2006	ctual		
2(	Ac		
ear			
			ear Prediction
		nent	r to Yea

San Bernardino Valley Section 5309 Rail Mod



Governments SANBAG Working Together

R	

	33	ıate	2,652	2.1%
	203	Estim	\$ 7,40.	
	2032	Estimate	\$ 7,250,394	2.1%
126 to 2035	2031	Estimate	\$ 7,101,267	2.2%
Forecast - 20	2030	Estimate	\$ 6,948,403 \$	2.2%
	2029	Estimate	\$ 6,798,828	2.3%
	2028	Estimate	\$ 6,645,971	2.3%
	2027	Estimate	\$ 6,496,550	2.4%
	2026	Estimate	\$ 6,344,287	2.4%
	2025	Estimate	\$ 6,195,593	2.5%
	2024	Estimate	\$ 6,044,481	2.5%
	2023	Estimate	\$ 5,897,055	2.6%
	2022	Estimate	\$ 5,747,617	2.7%
2016 to 2025	2021	Estimate	\$ 5,596,511	2.8%
Forecast 2	2020	Estimate	\$ 5,444,077	2.8%
	2019	Estimate	\$ 5,295,795	2.9%

Page 14



10/29/2009

Page 15

Draff

				2.0%	2.0%
\$160,171,107	\$ 70,240,779	\$ 55,210,726	\$ 26,429,822	\$ 7,701,720	\$ 7,550,705
7000	2002	7777	2012	Estimate	Estimate
1 ULAI FT 2010	1 ULAI 2020-	10141 2019-	1 ULAI 2010-	2035	2034
Totol EV 2010		Totol 2016	Totol 2040		

PARSONS 203

(JOJ	

Local Transportation Fund

Elecal Veer Ending						Forecast 20	109 to 2015					
	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017
			Actual	Estimate								
Predicted Population	1,819,168	1,844,474	1,869,780	1,895,087	1,920,393	1,945,700	1,971,006	1,996,312	2.021.619	2,046,925	2.072.231	2,097,538
Predicted BOE Receipts	\$ 64,516,530	\$ 67,788,016	\$ 77,063,868	\$ 66,048,303	\$ 61,199,485	\$ 62,423,475	\$ 64,920,414	\$ 67,517,230	\$ 70,217,919	\$ 72,535,110	\$ 74,856,234	\$ 77,176,777
% Change Year to Year Receipts Prediction		5.1%	13.7%	-14.3%	-7.3%	2.0%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%	3.3%	3.2%	3.1%

Page 16

_
2
5
ш.
-
-
<u> </u>
÷
90
2
5
ŏ.
22
=
9
⊂.
-
_
22
×
Ч.
_

Ciccol Veer Ending			Forecast ZU	16 10 2025								
	2018	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
Predicted Population	2,122,844	2,148,151	2,173,457	2,198,763	2,224,070	2,249,376	2,274,683	2,299,989	2,325,295	2,350,602	2,375,908	2,401,214
Predicted BOE Receipts	\$ 79,492,080	\$ 81,797,351	\$ 84,087,677 \$	\$ 86,442,132 \$	\$ 690'92'88'	91,084,247	3 93,361,353	3 95,695,387	\$ 97,992,076	\$ 100,343,886 \$	\$ 102,651,795	\$ 105,012,787
V Change Veer to Veer Descinte Descliption	000 0	200 0	200 0	2 001	70 L C	1000	70 2 4	70.2 0	79.4 0	7107	70 C C	70.0

Page 17

Draff

Governments SANBAG Working Together

Local Transportation Fund

206

Elecal Voar Ending	Forecast 2	026 to 2035					Totol 2040	Totol 2046		Totol EV 2040
	2030	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	1 ULAI 2010-	10141 2010-	Total 2026-2035	10141 FT 2010-
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	C107	C707		CC07
Predicted Population	2,426,521	2,451,827	2,477,134	2,502,440	2,527,746	2,553,053				
Predicted BOE Receipts	\$ 107,323,068	\$ 109,684,175	\$ 111,987,543	\$ 114,339,282	\$ 116,626,067	\$ 118,958,589	\$ 398,813,633	\$ 852,769,306	\$ 1,084,919,268	\$ 2,402,550,510
04. Chance Veer to Veer Beceinte Dradiction	70000	2000	2 10L	2 1 GL	2000	2000				

10/29/2009

Apportionment 5.005 Science 65.2 % Change Vear to Vear Prediction				Fore	cast 2009 to	2015						
Apportionment 5 55.2 % Change Vear to Vear Prediction	2008	» [	2009 Ectimate	2010 Ectimate	Z011 Ectimate	2012 Ectimate	Z013 Ectimate	2014 Ectimate	Z015 Ectimato	2016 Ectimato	2017 Ectimato	ZU18 Ectimato
% Change Year to Year Prediction	45 \$ 68,	385 \$	71,800	\$ 74,600	\$ 77,600	\$ 80,700	\$ 83,900	\$ 87,300	\$ 90,530	\$ 93,789	\$ 97,166	<u>\$ 100,566</u>
	Ц	H	5.0%	3.9%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%	4.1%	3.7%	3.6%	3.6%	3.59
Section 5316 JARCFunds for Victorville/He Valley UZA	esperia/Ap	ople										
Endered Finnel Vare				Fore	tcast 2009 to	2015						
rederal riscal rear 2006	200		2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
Apportionment 2130,7	Estim: 784 \$149	ate ),348	Estimate \$155,000	Estimate \$162,000	Estimate \$168,000	Estimate \$175,000	Estimate \$182,000	Estimate \$189,000	\$ 196,560	\$ 204,422	\$ 212,599	\$ 220,891
% Change Year to Year Prediction % Change Year to Section 5307 Urban Formual Funds fo	or the	14.2%	8.00 m	40.5%	3.1%	4.2%	4.0%	150 N	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%	ð, ri
Hesperia/Apple Valley/VictorVille UZA												
				Fore	cast 2009 to	2015						
Fiscal Year Ending												
2006	2008		2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
Apportionment	NA \$2,303	3,151	\$2,423,700	\$2,544,000	\$2,638,000	\$2,733,000	\$2,869,000	\$2,967,000	<b>\$3,064,911</b>	\$3,162,988	\$3,261,041	\$3,358,87
tinnenda i son on tana and		1	D. 9. A	2 A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.A.	2	2	de or o	A: 1-7	2	of 210	2	2
	2008		2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
LTF	Actu	al	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate				
Adelanto	\$962	2,607 \$	834,074	\$ 839,325	\$ 855,746	\$ 889,976	\$ 925,575	\$ 962,598				
Apple Valley	\$2,611	1,846 \$	2,134,564	\$ 2,087,575	\$ 2,128,418	\$ 2,213,554	\$ 2,302,097	\$ 2,394,180				
Hesperia	\$3,105	5,569 \$	2,607,619	\$ 2,615,574	\$ 2,666,747	\$ 2,773,417	\$ 2,884,353	\$ 2,999,727				
Victorville	\$3,681	1,160 \$	3,113,560	\$ 3,198,971	\$ 3,261,558	\$ 3,392,020	\$ 3,527,701	\$ 3,668,809				
Unincorporated County portion				\$ 2,090,166	\$ 2,167,397	\$ 2,245,450	\$ 2,357,188	\$ 2,437,705				
Total for Victor Valley % Channe Year to Year Prediction	\$10,361	1,182 \$	8,689,817	\$ 10,831,611	\$ 11,079,866	\$ 11,514,417 3.9%	\$11,996,914 42%	\$ 12,463,019 3 9%	\$12,936,614 3.8%	\$13,402,332 3.6%	\$13,858,012 34%	\$14,301,46
FTA Section 5311												
Fiscal Year	Actu	al	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	1100	0100	2700	0700
Victor Valley Trant Authority	2000 \$ 218,	262 \$	215,780	\$ 242,160	\$ 251,861	\$ 261,925	\$ 272,417	2014 \$ 283,314	\$294,080	\$304,667	\$315,025	2018 \$325,10
% Change Year to Year Prediction			-1.1%	12.2%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%	3.8%	3.6%	3.4%	3.2

10/29/2009

Governments SANBAG Working Together

Draff

23	
(905)	
$\bigcirc$	

Section 5317 New Freedom for Victorville/Hesperia/Apple Valley I

208

Enderal Finnel Voor		Forecast - 2	016 to 2025									Forecast - 2
	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate
Apportionment	\$ 104,086	\$ 107,625	\$ 111,284	\$ 114,957	\$ 118,635	\$ 122,313	\$ 125,982	\$ 129,636	\$ 133,266	\$ 136,864	\$ 140,559	\$ 144,214
% Change Year to Year Prediction	3.5%	3.4%	3.4%	3.3%	3.2%	3.1%	3.0%	2.9%	2.8%	2.7%	2.7%	2.6%

Section 5316 JARCFunds for Vict Valley UZA

PARSONS

Eodoral Eicoral Voar			orecast – 2	016 to 2025									Forecast - 2
	2019		2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
Apportionment	\$ 229,	064 \$	237,310	\$ 245,616	\$ 253,721	\$ 261,840	\$ 269,957	\$ 278,056	\$ 286,120	\$ 294,417	\$ 302,661	\$ 310,833	\$ 318,914
% Change Year to Year Prediction		3.7%	3.6%	3.5%	3.3%	3.2%	3.1%	3.0%	2.9%	2.9%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%

FTA Section 5307 Urban Formual Hesperia/Apple Valley/Victorville I

		Forecast – 2	016 to 2025									Forecast – ;
Fiscal Year Ending												
	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
Apportionment	\$3,456,279	\$3,553,055	\$3,652,541	\$3,751,159	\$3,848,689	\$3,944,907	\$4,043,529	\$4,140,574	\$4,239,948	\$4,337,467	\$4,437,228	\$4,534,847
6 Change Year to Year Prediction	2.9%	2.8%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%	2.5%	2.5%	2.4%	2.4%	2.3%	2.3%	2.2%
)									1			-

	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
TF												
Adelanto												
Apple Valley												
Hesperia												
/ictorville												
Jnincorporated County portion												
Fotal for Victor Valley	\$14,730,512	\$15,142,966	\$15,566,969	\$15,987,278	\$16,402,947	\$16,813,020	\$17,233,346	\$17,646,946	\$18,070,473	\$18,486,094	\$18,911,274	\$19,327,322
% Change Year to Year Prediction	3.0%	2.8%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%	2.5%	2.5%	2.4%	2.4%	2.3%	2.3%	2.2%

FTA Section 5311

Final Var												
riscal real	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030
Victor Valley Trant Authority	\$334,859	\$344,236	\$353,874	\$363,429	\$372,878	\$382,200	\$391,755	\$401,157	\$410,785	\$420,233	\$429,898	\$439,356
% Change Year to Year Prediction	3.0%	2.8%	2.8%	2.7%	2.6%	2.5%	2.5%	2.4%	2.4%	2.3%	2.3%	2.2%

Section 5317 New Freedom for Victorville/Hesperia/Apple Valley I

Federal Fieral Vear	2026 to 2035					Total 2000-	Total 2046.	Total 2026.	Total EV 2000-	
	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	2045	20125	2026	10101 F1 2003-	
	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	Estimate	C107	C707	6602	6602	
Apportionment	\$ 147,819	\$ 151,515	\$ 155,151	\$ 158,875	\$ 162,529	\$ 566,430	\$ 1,096,405	\$ 1,460,427	\$ 3,123,262	
%. Change Vear to Vear Prediction	7 E96.	2013 C	70V C	70V C	70°C					

Section 5316 JARCFunds for Vict Valley UZA

Eaderal Fiscal Vear	2026 to	o 2035						Total 2000-	Total 2016-	Total 2026	Total EV 2000-
	2	2031	2032	203	3	2034	2035	10101 2003-	10101 2010-	1 ULAI 2020-	10141 F1 2003-
								6107	6707	6602	6602
Apportionment	s	327,206	\$ 335,386	\$ 343	3,435 \$	351,678	\$ 359,766	\$ 1,227,560	\$ 2,413,476	\$ 3,230,415	\$ 6,871,451
% Change Year to Year Prediction		2.6%	2.59		2.4%	2.4%	2.3%				

FTA Section 5307 Urban Formual Hesperia/Apple Valley/Victorville t

	2026 to 2035					Totol 2000	Totol 2046	Total 2026	Totol EV 2000
Fiscal Year Ending						10141 2003-	10141 2010-	10141 2020-	10141 FT 2003-
	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	CI.07	C7N7	C6U2	6602
Apportionment	\$4,634,614	\$4,731,941	\$4,831,312	\$4,927,938	\$5,026,497	\$ 19,239,611	\$ 36,033,061	\$ 45,842,365	\$ 101,115,037
1% Change Year to Year Prediction	2.2%	2.1%	2.1%	2.0%	2.0%				

	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035				
LTF									
Adelanto									
Apple Valley									
Hesperia					-	T-4-1 2000	T-41 1046	9000  - <del>1</del> - 1	T-4-1 FV 2000
Victorville						101al 2009-	10141 2010-	10141 2020-	101al FT 2003-
Unincorporated County portion						6107	6707	6602	6602
Total for Victor Valley	\$19,752,523	\$20,167,326	\$20,590,840	\$21,002,657	\$21,422,710	\$ 79,512,258	\$153,438,850	\$ 195,378,164	\$ 428,329,272
% Change Year to Year Prediction	2.2%	2.1%	2.1%	2.0%	2.0%				

FTA Section 5311

						Total 2000-	Total 2016.	Total 2026.	Total EV 2000-	
						10101 F000-		10101 2020-	10101 1 F002-	
Eigend Voor						2046	2005	20.05	2025	
riscal real	2031	2032	2033	2034	2035	C1.07	6707	6602	6602	
Victor Valley Trant Authority	\$449,022	\$458,451	\$468,079	\$477,440	\$486,989	3 1,821,537	\$ 3,488,029	\$ 4,441,409	\$ 9,750,975	
% Change Year to Year Prediction	2.2%	2.1%	2.1%	2.0%	2.0%					

Governments SANBAG Working Together



This page intentionally left blank.

